
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL AND REGULAR MEETING 

AGENDA 
April 16, 2024 

 
SPECIAL MEETING:   6:00 P.M. – 7:00 P.M 
REGULAR MEETING:  7:00 P.M. 
 
WE ENCOURAGE ALL MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIA 
TELECONFERENCE BY CALLING (520) 525-8911.  ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC 
PARTICIPATING VIA TELECONFERENCE WILL BE GIVEN THE OPPORTUNITY TO 
PROVIDE PUBLIC COMMENT. 
 
ADDITIONALLY, THE REGULAR MEETING WILL BE STREAMED ON YOUTUBE LIVE 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCB_ZmQZIHELh-ECEPZ2VwZg 
 
Notice is hereby given that the City Council will hold a Special and Regular Meeting on April 16, 2024, 
at the City Council Chambers, 663 Main Street, Livingston, California. Assistance will be provided to 
those requiring accommodations for disabilities in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990. Persons requesting accommodation should contact the Deputy City Clerk at least 24 hours prior 
to this meeting at (209) 394-8041, Ext. 121. Any writings or documents pertaining to an Open Session 
item provided to a majority of the members of the legislative body less than 72 hours prior to the 
meeting shall be made available for public inspection by email if requested. Public comments can be 
submitted via emailed at citycouncil@livingstoncity.com. Comments must be received by 2:00 p.m. on the 
day of the City Council meeting in order for them to be distributed to the Council prior to consideration 
of the matter. You will need to provide: Meeting date, item number, name, email and comment (please 
limit to 300 words or 3 minutes). Please include: PUBLIC COMMENT in the subject for the email.  
Written comments will not be read aloud at the meeting, but will be reported as received for the record. 
If you do not receive an acknowledgement of receipt by 4:00 p.m., please call the City Clerk’s Office at 
(209) 394-8041, Ext. 121 (Note: This technology is not a guaranteed method). 
 

 
 

Page 1

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCB_ZmQZIHELh-ECEPZ2VwZg
mailto:citycouncil@livingstoncity.com


SPECIAL MEETING 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
2. Roll Call 

 
        3.   Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
        4.  Moment of Silence – First Responders and Military Members. 

 
5. Citizen Comments 

 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
A “Closed” or “Executive” Session of the City Council or the Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the City 
of Livingston may be held in accordance with state law which may include, but is not limited to, the following types of 
items:  personnel matters, labor negotiations, security matters, providing instructions to real property negotiators, 
conference with legal counsel regarding pending litigation.  The Closed Session will be held in the City Council Chambers 
located at 663 Main Street, Livingston, California.  Any public comment on Closed Session items will be taken before 
the Closed Session.  Any required announcements or discussion of Closed Session items or actions following the Closed 
Session will be made in the City Council Chambers, 633 Main Street, Livingston, California. 
                           

6. Threat to public services or facilities, pursuant to  
 Government Code section 54957. 
 Consultation with: City Attorney 

 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER       Next Resolution No.:  2024-16 
           Next Ordinance No.:  653 

 Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 Moment of Silence – First Responders and Military Members. 
 
 Roll Call. 
 
 Closed Session Announcement. 
  
 Changes to the Agenda. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS     
 
This section of the agenda allows members of the public to address the City Council on any item NOT on the agenda.  
Members of the public, when recognized by the Mayor, should come forward to the lectern, and identify themselves.  
Comments are normally limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with State Open Meeting Laws, no action will be 
taken by the City Council this evening.   

Page 2



AWARD, PRESENTATIONS, PROCLAMATIONS 
 
      1.   Presentation by Council Member Soto: Recognition of Livingston High School Varsity Girls Wrestling 
            Team.   
 
      2.   Presentation of Council Member Soto: Recognition of Livingston Boys Wrestling Team.   
 
      3.   Presentation by Council Member Soto: Recognition of Livingston Youth Football (LYF) Varsity Team. 
 
      4.   Presentation by Mayor Moran: Sister Cities: Bridging Cultures Across Borders.  
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS AND REPORTS 
 

 Supervisor Rodrigo Espinoza Announcements and Reports. 
 
 City Staff Announcements and Reports. 

• Robert Wynne, Fire Apparatus Engineer – Fire Department Update. 
 
  City Manager Announcements and Reports. 
 
 City Council Members’ Announcements and Reports. 
 
 Mayor’s Announcements and Reports. 
 
 Jatinder Mann 

• City Council Alternate Liaison - Parks, Recreation and Arts Commission – Jatinder Mann 
• Merced Integrated Regional Water Management Plan (MIRWMA) – Jatinder Mann, 

Representative and Jason Roth, Alternate Representative. 
• Central Valley Division League of California Cities – Maria Soto, Representative and Jatinder 

Mann, Alternate. 
 

 Jason Roth  
• City Council Liaison - Livingston Planning Commission – Jason Roth 
• Special City Selection Committee of the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control Board – Jason 

Roth, Representative and Gurpal Samra, Alternative. 
• Merced Integrated Regional Water Management Plan (MIRWMA) – Jatinder Mann, 

Representative and Jason Roth, Alternate Representative.  
 

  Maria Soto 
• Merced County Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) – Maria Soto, Representative. 
• Central Valley Division League of California Cities – Maria Soto, Representative and Jason 

Roth, Alternate. 
 

Gurpal Samra 
• Merced County Mosquito Abatement District Board of Directors – Gurpal Samra, 

Representative and Jason Roth, Alternate. 
 
 

Page 3



Jose Moran 
• Merced County Association of Governments (MCAG) Governing Board – Jose Moran, 

Representative and Gurpal Samra, Alternate. 
• City Council Liaison - Parks, Recreation and Arts Commission – Jose Moran. 
• Utility Stakeholders Committee – Jose Moran and Gurpal Samra. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine or non-controversial and will be enacted by one vote, unless 
separate action is requested by a member of the public, the City Manager or City Council Member.  There will be no 
separate discussion of these items unless members of the public, City Council or City Manager request that specific items 
be removed. Public comment on consent agenda items shall be limited to three (3) minutes per-person regardless of the 
number of items contained within the consent agenda. 
 
 5. RATIFY CHECK WARRANTS 
  Ratify Warrant Register Dated April 11, 2024. 
 
       6. Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing the Interim City Manager to Enter into a Contract with 

Turbodata Systems for Citation Processing Services. Staff Recommendation: Approve Resolution.  
 
 7. Consideration of a Resolution Approving the City of Livingston’s Purchase of a New Code 

Enforcement/Animal Control Vehicle. Staff Recommendation: Approve Resolution. 
 
 8. Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing Approval of Purchase of Six (6) Solar Light Poles from 

Fonroche Lighting America, in the Amount of $31,107 and Authorizing the Interim City Manager to 
Execute All Required Documents. Staff Recommendation: Approve Resolution.  

 
 9. Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing and Approving the Interim City Manager to Execute a 

Services Agreement with NeoGov for the Purchase of Applicant Tracking System Recruit Module. 
Staff Recommendation: Approve Resolution. 

 
 10. Consideration of an Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Livingston Repealing Chapter 3, 

Underground Utility Districts, of Title 9 and Replacing it with Chapter 3, Underground, Utilities, of 
Title 9 of the City of Livingston Municipal Code.  Staff Recommendation: Waive the Second Reading 
of the Ordinance by Title Only, Open the Public Hearing, Close the Public Hearing and Adopt the 
Ordinance as Presented. 

  
DISCUSSION AND POTENTIAL ACTION ITEMS 
 
 11. Consideration of a Resolution Appointing Alan Cadiente, Darmeen Randhawa, Cristy Pineda, and    
              Anabel Perez to the Parks Recreation and Arts Commission. Staff Recommendation: Approve  
              Resolution. 
 
 12. Mayor Moran will administer the Oath of Office to the New Recreation Commissioners.  
 
 13. Discussion and Direction on City of Livingston Fire Services. 
 

Page 4



14. Consideration of a Resolution Establishing an Administrative Fee for Solid Waste, Recycling and 
Organics Collection Services Processing Maintenance and Enforcement. Staff Recommendation: 
Approve Resolution.  

 
       15. Consideration of a Resolution Establishing a Fifteen (15%) Percent Franchise Fee for Exclusive  

Access to City Solid Waste, Recycling and Organics Collection Services and Exclusive Access to City  
Streets and Right-of-Way. Staff Recommendation: Approve Resolution. 

 
 16. Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing Interim City Manager to Execute Agreement with HR    
             Green, Inc. to Perform Engineering Services to Include Water Modelling, Development of a 

Water Comprehensive Capital Improvement Program (CIP), and Other Water Related 
Engineering Services as Needed. Staff Recommendation: Approve Resolution.  

  
 17. Discussion and Direction Regarding Community Facilities District (CFD) 2005-1 and the Respective    
        Expenditure Against This Fund. 
  
COUNCIL DIRECTION ON FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

Page 5



CITY OF LIVINGSTON 
Merced County Fire Department Station 96 

Staff Report 

.. 

Page 6



EITiergency Activity Report 
01/01/2024-03/27 /2024 

Page 7



City Equipment Updates 

• All City Fire Engines are up to date with there 90-day safety inspections. 

• Engine 96-E1 is in shop for repair and upgrades. (Pump testing, New LED code 3 light bar). 

• New hand tools coming for all 3 fire engines. 

• New 1 ¾ Fire Hose ordered for Engine 96-E1 and Truck 96. 

• New LED scene lighting for Engine 96-E1. 

Page 8



Fire Prevention and Education 
• Appliance and Electrical Fire Safety 

• Garage Fire Safety 

• Battery Fire Safety 

• Candle Fire Safety 

• Cooking Fire Safety 

• Fire Safety for Children 

• Fire Safety for People with Disabilities 

• Fire Safety for Older Adults 

• Hoarding and Fire Safety 

Page 9



Appliance, Electrical and Garage Fire Safety 

• Always plug major appliances - refrigerators, stoves, washers and dryers - directly into a 

wall outlet. 

• Install tamper-resistant electrical outlets if you have young children. 

• Use power strips that have internal overload protection. 

• Store oil, gasoline, paints, propane and varnishes in a shed away from your home. 

• A 20-minute fire-rated door that is self-closing and self-latching from the garage into the 

house. 

Page 10



Batter½ Candle, and Cooking Fire Safety 
• Stop using lithium-ion batteries if you notice an odor, change in color, too much heat, change in 

shape, leaking or odd noises. 

• Don't put lithium-ion batteries in direct sunlight or keep them in hot cars. This is a fire ris_k. 

• Blow out candles when you leave a room or home, or when you go to bed. 

• Keep candles at least 12 inches away from anything that burns. 

• Turn pot handles toward the back of the stove so that no one can bump them or pull them over. 

• Watch what you are cooking. Fires start when the heat is too high. If you see any smoke or the 

grease starts to boil, turn the burner off. 

• Stand by your pan. If you leave the kitchen, turn the burner off. 

Page 11



Fire Safety for Children 
• Have a plan for young children who cannot get outside by themselves. You will need to wake 

babies and very young children and help them get out. In your plan, talk about who will help 

each child get out safely. 

• It is important to find 2 ways out of every room in your home in case the first exit is blocked or 

dangerous to use. 

• Stay low and get to your exit if you smell or see smoke or if your smoke alarm sounds. 

• Stay outside. Don't go back inside for anything. 

Page 12



Fire Safety for People with Disabilities 

• Physical disability was the second leading human factor contributing to fatalities in residential 

buildings (30%). 

• If possible, live near an exit. 

• If you are deaf or hard of hearing, use smoke alarms with a vibrating pad, flashing light or 

strobe light. These accessories start when your alarm sounds. 

• Have smoke alarms on every level of your home, inside bedrooms and outside sleeping areas. 

• If you live in a multistory home, sleep on the first floor. 

Page 13



Fire Safety for Older Adults 
• In 2020, older adults (65+) in the United States had a 2.5 times greater risk of dying in a fire than 

the total population . 

• Discuss your fire escape plan with family and neighbors. Contact your building manager or fire 

department to discuss your plan if you need extra help escaping . 

• Caregivers should check the smoke alarms of those who are unable to do it themselves. 

• Use a timer to remind you that you are cooking. 

• If you use a walker or wheelchair, check all exits to be sure that you can go through the 

doorways. 

Page 14



Hoarding and Fire Safety 

• Personal items can crowd cooking equipment, making it unsafe to cook. 

• Personal items can crowd heating equipment, putting you at risk of having a fire. 

• Blocked windows and doors make it difficult for firefighters to get into your home to fight the 

fire and search for occupants. 

• Keep doorways and windows clear for escape in case there is a fire. This will also prevent 

injuries from falling over excessive personal items. 

Page 15



Merced County Fire PCF Recognition 

• Davern Koehn 

• Marcus Koehn 

• Maynard Koehn 

• Waylen Koehn 

• Michael Koehn 

Page 16



Pancake Breakfast 

• Merced County Fire Department and the City of Livingston is hosting Livingston Volunteer Fire 

Company (United Way Non-Profit) to their Annual Pancake Breakfast. 

• The Pancake breakfast will be on Saturday May 4, 2024 from 7 Am to 11 Am. 

• Please reach out to Fire Department Staff or any member of the Livingston Volunteer Fire 

Company. 

Page 17



Feedback/Comments 

United We Stand-Divided We Fall 

Page 18



ister Ci ties: Bridging 
Cultures Across Borders 

ayor Jose Am Moran 

Page 19



A sister city, county, or state 
relationship is a broad-based, long
term partnership between two 
communities in two countries.·A 
relationship is officially recognized 
after the highest elected or 
appointed official from both 
communities sign off on an 
agreement to become sister cities. 

Each sister city organization is 
independent and pursues the 
activities and thematic areas that 
are important to them and their 
community including municipal, 
business, trade, educational, and 
cultural exchanges and projects 
with their sister city. 

Page 20



Sister cities programs foster cultural exchange and diplomacy through city-to-city 
partnerships, promoting understanding and friendship between different 
cultures. 

iBIENVE.,..~1 CHURINTZIO! 

fraternal 
nteras" 

~ 

Page 21



The concept of sister cities originated after World War II to promote peace and 
reconciliation between former enemies. Over time, it has evolved into a platform 
for cultural exchange and economic cooperation. 

Page 22



Sister c ities provide opportunities for cultural immersion, educational exchanges, 
and economic partnerships. They also contribute to global understanding and 
peacebuilding. 

i 

Page 23



Page 24



Many sister city partnerships have led to successful collaborations in areas such as 
education, arts and culture, and sustainable development. These success stories 
demonstrate the power of cross-border cooperation. 

Page 25



Conclusion 

Sister cities play a vital role in connecting 
and bridging cultures across borders. By 
fostering mutual understanding and 
collaboration, these partnerships 
contribute to a more peaceful and 
inclusive world. 

f _...... . • ' -·_:1.._'\t ; ~ 
.... ti • -

Page 26



Page 27



Sister Cities Presentation between Churintzio & Livingston 

Page 28



~~ SisterCities 
INTERNATIONAL 

Connect globally. Thrive locally. 

www .SisterCities.org 

Page 29



. •• • 

• 
• 

• • 
/
•
 

':,, 

I
~

 
/
,
 

~
 
~ 

' • 

, 

• 
-

. 
• 

Page 30



STAFF REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM: 

MEETING DATE: 

Warrant Register April 11, 2024 

April 16, 2024 

PREPARED BY: 

REVIEWED BY: 

Nancy Fuentes, Accounting Technician 

Christopher Lopez, Interim City Manager 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Ratify the warrant register dated April 11, 2024 

DISCUSSION: 

Government Code sections 37208(b) and 37209 provide that accounts payable warrants or 
checks drawn in payment of demands certified or approved by the finance director as conforming 
to a budget approved by ordinance or resolution of the legislative body need not be audited by 
the legislative body prior to payment. 

In addition, Government Code section 37208(a) provides that payroll warrants or checks need 
not be audited by the legislative body prior to payment. Payrolls shall be presented to the 
legislative body for ratification and approval at the first meeting after delivery of the payroll 
warrants or checks. The sum total of any payroll checks issued within the week prior to the date 
of the check register is also noted on the accompanying check register. 

The following checks have been certified to be in accordance with the City's approved budget. 
The checks have been issued and the check register is presented to the City Council for 
ratification: 

March 15, 2024 - April 11, 2024 

GENERAL WARRANTS .............. ........... $ 702,327.72 10804-10915 

PAYROLL/WIRE WARRANTS ................. $ 487,671.76 3085-3114 

TOTAL WARRANTS ...................... ........ $ 1,189,999.48 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Warrant Register (detailed by date and check number) 

1 

Page 31



Accounts Payable 
Checks by Date - Summary by Check Date 

User: nfuentes 
Printed: 4/11/2024 I 0: 10 AM 

Check No Vendor No Vendor Name 

10804 395 Administrative Solution, Inc. 

10805 396 American Fidelity Assurance 

10806 397 American Fidelity Assurance Company 

10807 393 Californ ia State Disbursement Unit 

10808 UB*02069 JOHN H. BASKETT & GLORIANA MAR 

10809 405 Premier Access Insurance Company 

108 10 598 Standard Insurance Company RB 

10811 1284 State of California 

10812 564 Texas Life Insurance 

10813 UB*02070 GEORGE OR SALVINA VELLA 

108 14 608 Vision Service Plan- CA 

10815 25 1 ABS Direct, Inc. 

10816 1414 Veronica Acosta 
10817 62 Daisy Aguilar 

10818 1309 Aleshire & Wynder LLP 

10819 162 Steve Bassi 
10820 447 Conco West, Inc 
10821 1308 CSG Consultants, Inc. 

10822 260 First Communications, LLC 
10823 115 1 Jose Flores 

10824 686 JJC Security System Solutions 
10825 675 Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP 

10826 278 Merced Irrigation District 

10827 389 Mid Valley IT 
10828 302 Office Depot, lnc./ODP Business Solutions. 

10829 430 Quadient Finance USA, Inc. 
10830 1330 James D Sanders 
10831 739 Self- Help Enterprises 
10832 1405 Taylor Backhoe Service, Inc. 
10833 3 10 Totlcom, Inc. 
10834 296 Visual Edge IT, Inc 
10835 818 Renee Waite-Mendonca 

10836 536 Robert Wall is 

10837 287 West Coast Code Consultants, Inc. 
10838 409 Willdan Financial Services 

10839 1309 Aleshire & Wynder LLP 

10840 250 Alhambra 

10841 472 Aqua-Metric Sales Company 

10842 446 Belkorp Ag, LLC 

10843 546 Bogie's Pump Systems 

10844 193 BSK Associates 

AP Checks by Date - Summary by Check Date (4/1 1/2024 10: 10 AM) 

Check Date 

03/21/2024 

03/2 1/2024 

03/2 1/2024 

03/2 1/2024 

03/21/2024 

03/2 1/2024 

03/2 1/2024 
03/2 1/2024 

03/2 1/2024 

03/21/2024 

03/21/2024 

City of Livingston 
1416 C Street 
Livingston, CA 95334 

Total for 3/21/2024: 

03/22/2024 

03/22/2024 
03/22/2024 

03/22/2024 

03/22/2024 

03/22/2024 
03/22/2024 

03/22/2024 

03/22/2024 

03/22/2024 

03/22/2024 

03/22/2024 
03/22/2024 

03/22/2024 

03/22/2024 

03/22/2024 

03/22/2024 
03/22/2024 

03/22/2024 

03/22/2024 

03/22/2024 

03/22/2024 

03/22/2024 

03/22/2024 

Total for 3/22/2024: 

03/29/2024 

03/29/2024 

03/29/2024 

03/29/2024 

03/29/2024 

03/29/2024 

Check Amount 

390.00 

3,167.68 

1,103.32 

893.06 

101.59 

905.60 

2,923.77 

65.08 
275.28 

298.17 
425.39 

10,548.94 

135.65 

150.00 

150.00 

50,359.20 

25.00 

65,742.85 
22,299.50 

16.66 

25.00 

6,000.00 

7,086.00 

45,941.93 

10,984.20 

161.47 
1, 135.97 

150.00 

6,748.44 
32,339.35 

1,314.55 

1,635.81 
25.00 

25.00 

4,500.00 
11,014.81 

267,966.39 

41 ,128.64 
276.90 

3,337.31 

229.40 
9,467.24 

2,107.00 

Page I 

Page 32



Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount 

10845 1100 CAL FIRE 03/29/2024 2,270.80 

10846 909 Canon Financial Services, Inc. 03/29/2024 33 1.89 

10847 1239 Clark Pest Control of Stockton, Inc. 03/29/2024 51.00 

10848 1383 County of Merced 03/29/2024 104,163.00 

10849 787 Custom Weed Control Inc. 03/29/2024 400.00 

10850 548 Doras Fashion 03/29/2024 217.00 

10851 455 Ernest Packag ing Solutions 03/29/2024 2,655.50 

10852 163 EZ Auto Supply 03/29/2024 172.51 

10853 641 Ferguson Enterprises LCC #686 03/29/2024 216.73 

10854 295 Ferguson Waterworks # 1423 03/29/2024 201.73 

10855 1410 FFP Fund VII TEI Partnership I, LLC 03/29/2024 6,445.88 

10856 420 Frantz Wholesale Nursery, LLC. 03/29/2024 896.05 

10857 188 Frontier 03/29/2024 2,563.3 1 

10858 164 Garza Tire & Wheel, Inc 03/29/2024 230.00 

10859 262 Gilton Solid Waste 03/29/2024 9,600.15 

10860 356 Gouve ia Engineering, Inc. 03/29/2024 56,893.91 

10861 1098 Granite Construction Company 03/29/2024 1,387.82 

10862 642 Hilmar Rentals, LLC 03/29/2024 140.08 

10863 267 Hoffman Security 03/29/2024 230.90 

10864 501 Hunt & Sons, Inc. 03/29/2024 6,807.0 1 

10865 388 Interstate Battery System of Fresno 03/29/2024 167.88 

10866 520 Interstate Truck Center 03/29/2024 369.46 

10867 165 J L Analytical Services, Inc. 03/29/2024 159.00 

10868 167 Kimball Midwest 03/29/2024 1,724.60 

10869 502 Merced Irrigation-Urban GSA 03/29/2024 1,958.34 

10870 389 Mid Valley IT 03/29/2024 7,232.02 

10871 180 Mission Linen Service 03/29/2024 628.77 

10872 194 Modesto Welding Products 03/29/2024 24.00 

10873 275 Municipal Emergency Services 03/29/2024 925.11 

10874 199 Northstar Chemical 03/29/2024 4,273.94 

10875 949 Nova Heating and Air Conditioning 03/29/2024 2,639.25 

10876 302 O ffice Depot, lnc./ODP Business Solutions. 03/29/2024 425. 14 

10877 1147 PAC Machine Company, INC. 03/29/2024 16,442.50 

10878 203 PG&E 03/29/2024 66,355.63 

10879 948 Pump Pros Inc. 03/29/2024 1,737.56 

10880 553 Rahn's Fire & Safety Services 03/29/2024 1,427.48 

10881 605 Razzari Auto Centers 03/29/2024 38.41 

10882 265 Resourceability 03/29/2024 2,427.36 

10883 4S0 S & A Manufacturing 03/29/2024 1,392.43 

10884 386 S & N Auto Services, INC. 03/29/2024 100.00 
10885 208 Saenz Pest Control, Inc. 03/29/2024 127.00 

10886 439 Sharpening Shop 03/29/2024 8,547.56 

10887 307 Shred-It, C/0 Stericycle, Inc. 03/29/2024 260.39 

10888 309 St. Francis Electric 03/29/2024 676.00 

10889 1433 State Water Resources Control Board 03/29/2024 110.00 

10890 440 Target Specialty Products 03/29/2024 1,140.00 

10891 1036 The Water Connection, Inc 03/29/2024 156.95 

10892 1268 Totally Delicious Catering 03/29/2024 2,100.00 

10893 3 10 Totlcom, Inc. 03/29/2024 382.72 

10894 366 USABlueBook 03/29/2024 260.05 

10895 11 50 Valley 29 Electric, LLC 03/29/2024 3,191.38 

10896 1204 Valley Sanitation & Rentals LLC 03/29/2024 672.47 

10897 486 Sunil Verma DC 03/29/2024 100.00 

10898 296 Visual Edge IT, Inc 03/29/2024 933.25 

10899 409 Willdan Financial Services 03/29/2024 10,609.59 

10900 597 Work Wellness 03/29/2024 444.00 

AP Checks by Date - Summary by Check Date (4/11 /2024 I 0: 10 AM) Page 2 

Page 33



Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount 

Total for 3/29/2024: 392,582.00 

10901 395 Administrative Solution, Inc. 04/09/2024 120.00 

10902 396 American Fide lity Assurance 04/09/2024 3,282. 18 

10903 397 American Fidelity Assurance Company 04/09/2024 1,103.32 

10904 393 California State Disbursement Unit 04/09/2024 893.06 

10905 UB*02073 VANESSA FIGUEROA 04/09/2024 182.38 

10906 UB*0 l929 ROBERTO JAUREGUI 04/09/2024 200.00 

10907 437 Operating Engineers Local 3 04/09/2024 424.00 

10908 438 Operating Engineers Local Union No.3 04/09/2024 655.50 

10909 UB*0207I AURELIO ROBLES 04/09/2024 25.00 

10910 UB*02072 RICARDO ROBLES 04/09/2024 216.26 

10911 598 Standard Insurance Company RB 04/09/2024 2,946.61 

10912 1284 State of California 04/09/2024 65.08 

10913 564 Texas Life Insurance 04/09/2024 275.28 

10914 608 Vision Service Plan- CA 04/09/2024 681.99 

Total for 4/9/2024: 11 ,070.66 

10915 422 U.S. Bank Corporate Payment Systems 04/11/2024 20, 159.73 

Total for 4/1 1/2024: 20, 159.73 

Report Total ( 11 2 checks): 702,327.72 

AP Checks by Date - Summary by Check Date (4/11/2024 I 0: IO AM) Page 3 

Page 34



AGENDA ITEM: 

MEETING DATE: 

PREPARED BY: 

APPROVED By: 

STAFF REPORT 

Adopt Resolution Approving Contract with TurboData systems to 
Process Parking and Administrative Citations 

April 16, 2024 

John Ramirez, Acting Chief of Police 

Christopher Lopez, Interim City Manager 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt Resolution No. 2024- _, City Council direct the Interim City Manager to enter into an 
agreement with TURBODATA Systems for citation processing services. 

BACKGROUND: 
The City of Livingston currently contracts with Duncan Solutions for the processing of all parking 
citations, while city staff processes administrative citations. Duncan Solutions has announced 
they will no longer process citations for the City of Livingston after April 19, 2024 as the 
company is being 'decommissioned. ' If needed, the City does have the ability to issue 
administrative citations in lieu of parking citations, however it is labor intensive for each citation 
for staff to manually process the citations. Once the department received notification from 
Duncan Solutions, staff began reaching out to other citation processing agencies. On April 151, 
2024, staff was directed not to issue parking citations until we are able to get a new contract in 
place. 

Over the last year, the department has issued 446 parking citations and 21 administrative 
citations for a total of 467 citations for the year. The department has reached out to various 
police agencies to solicit information on companies that they use for the prJcessing of their 
parking citations. Staff was able to contact two companies and receive information. The 
companies were TurboData systems and Data Ticket Inc. Data ticket is used by the City of 
Merced and TurboData systems is used by many bay area agencies. Both companies were very 
similar in history and services provided. Both have been in business for about 30 years with 
hundreds of clients across the state. Both provide services for the processing of parking 
citations, administrative citations, and permits. 

In conducting reference checks, the Fresno State Police Department was very happy with the 
company TurboData systems. According to the parking and transportation manager Derrick 
Brantley, the product is very user friendly with great customer service. Derrick also advised 
they have been with TurboData systems for over twenty years and the company is well known 
with better prices than the competitors. The department has many dedicated Parking 
Enforcement Officers which utilize electronic and paper citations. 

The fees and services all vary with a standard monthly minimum charge of $400 for Data Ticket 
and $400 for TurboData systems. Given the number of bqth parking and administrative citations 
issued by the department annually, we would likely not be charged the extra to achieve the 
minimum of $400. One important feature that both companies have is the ability to coordinate 
with the Department of Motor Vehicles for reporting of delinquent or defaulted fines. The city 

{CW l 27453.I} 

Page 35



does not currently have that ability. Another important service that TurboData 
systems provides is ensuring the State Controller's Office receives the 
surcharges from the County generated from each citation. The Department was recently notified 
that a county audit was performed, and it was discovered the surcharges have not be paid by 
several municipalities in Merced County. TurboData systems offers a Joint/ Escrow Banking 
Service for $150 per month for this service. 

DISCUSSION: 

Two separate quotes were obtained from parking cite companies. 

Monthly Manual Electronic Revenue A<iTiin Admin 
minimum Process collected Manual Electronic 

Process 
Turbo Data $400.00 $0.70 $0.50 25% $5 00 $3.00 
Data Ticket $400.00 $0.70 $0.60 28% $7 to $13 $5 to $11 
Handheld $145.00 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Depending on the number of citations issued and equipment if any, the costs to achieve the 
minimum could range from $4,800 to $6,540 per year. These costs can be offset by any 
revenues generated. The service would also save staff time processing administrative citations. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution 
2. Two (2) quotes from parking ticket companies 
3. Agreement for Processing of Parking and Administrative Citations 

{CW 127453. l } 2 
Page 36



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON AUTHORIZING 
THE INTERIM CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH TURBODATA 

SYSTEMS FOR CITATION PROCESSING SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the City of Livingston Police Department currently contracts with Duncan 
Solutions for the processing of parking citations; and 

WHEREAS, the department was notified that the services for Duncan Solutions will be 
decommissioned for the City of Livingston on April 19,2024; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Livingston is in need of a company to process parking citations 
as well as administrative citations; and 

WHEREAS, staff researched several companies that provide citation processing 
services and determined that TurboData systems provides the best fit for the City; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Livingston 
that it does hereby authorize the Interim City Manager to execute an agreement with TurboData 
systems. 

I hereby certify that the forgoing Resolution No. 2024-__ is a full, true and correct copy of a 
resolution duly passed and adopted by the City Council of the city of Livingston at a regular 
meeting thereof duly held on the 16th day of April 2024, by the vote recorded as follows: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

ATTEST 

Monica Cisneros, Deputy City Clerk 
Of the City of Livingston 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM 

Roy C. Santos, City Attorney 

Page 1 of 1 

Jose A. Moran Mayor 
Of City of Livingston 

Page 37



DATA 
TICKET inc. 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@OataTicket.com 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Data Ticket, Inc. is a California Corporation that provides administrative citation 
processing and collection services, administrative hearing coordination, accounting 
services, customer service and a web-based solution that manages the entire process. 
Data Ticket has been providing these services for California Agencies for over 18 years. 
Data Ticket was incorporated in California in 1989. We provide expertise to ensure that 
citations get processed and collected in a timely manner for over 350 Agencies, 
nationwide. 

Data Ticket is located in Irvine, California and employs 52 full time individuals. Our offices 
are always open to our clients and we encourage in-person communication on a regular 
basis. Data Ticket, Inc. is a California certified Small Business Enterprise and a California 
certified Woman-Owned Business Enterprise. 

Data Ticket fully understands we are in a service industry that we consider our Client's 
acceptance of our software and services paramount to our success. When we partner 
with each Client, the goal is to ensure that each Client is treated as a unique entity, that 
our Client's Patrons are treated with respect and care, and that our Clients gain 
compliance and realize increased revenue collection through our comprehensive 
administrative citation management program. 

We attribute much of our success to the fact that our Clients and their Patrons are always 
treated politely and professionally. Providing easy, clear access for our Clients and their 
Patrons is of primary importance because it encourages communication between all 
interested parties, transparency in the data processing for our Clients and prompt 
payment by Patrons. 

Our web-based Solution provides patrons with access to lookup their citation(s), pay for 
their citation(s), get specific information about their citation(s), appeal their citations and 
attach supporting documentation and print a receipt; all online, all via real-time data. In • 
addition, the Agency's Patrons will have access to a toll-free, bi-lingual customer service 
department who will answer general and specific questions about each citation and will 
accept payment over the phone via a real-time interface. Finally, patrons will also be able 
to submit payment and appeals to the Agency or to Data Ticket via mail or in person at 
the Agency's preferred location. All of the types of access we allow are intended to make 
the process simple for the Agency's patrons so they pay their citations in a timely manner. 

Access to the data for Agency Staff is equally as important as is access for the Agency's 
Patrons. Our Solution provides online access to our Clients to lookup citations, enter 
notes on citations, process voids, dismissals, reductions, refunds, refund requests, view 
online reports, print receipts and process and review the adjudication process. Each 
capability is provided based on the level of access each person is granted. 

Data Ticket allows for real-time processing of payments via VISA, MasterCard, Discover, 
and American Express. Credit/debit card payments are accepted online, via phone with a 
customer service representative or using our state of the art IVR system or via paper. 
Website payments are updated in the system real-time, as soon as they are authorized 
1 I P a g e PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
03/11/2024 Page 38



DATA 
TICKET inc. 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

and accepted by the bank. Payments are immediately updated to the citation records 
and receipts can be printed verifying payment for the payer. 

Data Ticket's Solution is Payment Card Industry (PCI) certified and our Solution is 
subjected to both quarterly, scheduled scans of our database as well as unscheduled 
scans, thus providing the ultimate security for our Clients as well as their patrons. 

Our Solution offers all adjudication services via our online appeals website. This sets us 
apart from other vendors as we actually allow patrons to place their citations on hold and 
submit their full explanation and attach backup documentation via the web. This allows 
patrons to appeal their citation(s) online only if they are eligible to appeal based on the 
rules set forth by each Agency and the State of California. Once the appeal is submitted, 
either online or via U.S. Mail, our Solution processes the request and makes it 
immediately available for an Administrative Hearing with a certified, independent hearing 
officer. These individuals review or hear the cases and enter judgments that automatically 
mark the citation and generate written notification of the results. This notification informs 
the appellant of the decision and provides additional information if the individual wishes to 
continue his/her appeal and/or refund information and/or court filing instructions, 
depending on the appeal decision. 

Our Solution provides an Online Reporting capability that allows our Clients to generate 
and print real-time and month-end reports via the web. These reports can be saved to a 
network, PC or external drive, copied into Excel for additional manipulation as the Agency 
wishes or they can simply be viewed. These reports are available to the Agency as long 
as the Agency is a Client. In addition, when the Agency needs ad hoc reports or 
additional data, Data Ticket will provide those at no cost. 

Data Ticket is experienced at working backlog and delinquent citations, which all 
agencies seem to have. We have years of experience collecting from "old databases and 
citations", and we do it carefully and professionally, with the utmost care given to the 
agency image and collection attitude. Since 2002, Data Ticket, Inc. has been offering 
additional collections through the Franchise Tax Board's lnteragency Intercept Program 
on behalf of our Clients in order to provide an additional opportunity for collection of 
delinquent California debts. Many of our agencies have been participating in this program 
since we began offering this interface and they have all been impressed with the return
rate on collections from this submission. 

And finally, we offer Advanced Collections by partnering with a local Los Angeles 
collections agency. For those hard-to-collect debts that have not responded or are not 
eligible for DMV holds, Delinquent Collections or FTB Collections, Advanced Collections 
provides a final effort to collect on behalf of our Agencies, while our Solution remains the 
system of record and provides a full audit trail from issue date to final collection effort! 

21Page 
03/11/2024 

PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
Page 39



DATA 
TICKET inc. 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

PROPOSAL FOR THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON 

Data Ticket offers two Cost Models for our Administrative Citation Processing Clients that 
allow our Clients to select the Cost Model that best suits their individual situation. Model 1 
represents an all-inclusive option that has a higher upfront citation processing fee than 
Model 2 and includes full-service from Data Ticket's staff. This option is typically selected 
by Agencies whose Patrons pay their citations on an inconsistent basis. Model 2 is often 
selected by Clients who has a thorough understanding of their collection rates or 
collections occur within the first 30 days of a citation being issued. 

Regardless of the Model selected, you have the option to change Models at any point 
during a contract period. This provides our Clients with the maximum amount of flexibility 
so they may experience the maximum return on citations issued. 

Description of Service Cost Cost 
Model 1 Model 2 

Manual Administrative Citation Processing **$13.00 $7.00 per 
Services for the above-mentioned items include: per citation 
• On-site data entry of manually written citations performed within 48 citation 

hours of receipt 
• On-site quality assurance verification of manually entered citations 
• Scanning of all manually written citations onto our network for 

storage and ease of retrieval 
• Bi-monthly shredding of manually written citations 

Electronic Administrative Citation Processing: $11 .00 $5.00 per 
Services for the above-mentioned items include: per citation 
• Automated citation transmission into Data Ticket's Citation citation 

Management Solution 24/7 
• Automated confirmation email detailing successfully transmitted 

citations 
• Automated transmission of photos attached to citations 
Semi-Custom Noticing: Included $0.80 per 
Services for the above-mentioned items include: notice 
• A single Courtesy Notice printed on an 8 ½ x 11" piece of paper 

and provided in a window envelope will be sent to the responsible 
party 

• All notices are attached to the citation online and are viewable via 
the web 

• All notices sent via 1st Class Mail 
• All notices include a return envelope in which the responsible party 

may submit payment 
• This cost will increase as the US Postal Service increases the 1st 

Class postage rate 
• Notices will be sent daily, Monday - Friday 

3I Page 
03/11/2024 

PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
Page 40



DATA 
TICKET inc. 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

PROPOSAL FOR THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON 

Description of Service Cost Cost 
Model 1 Model 2 

Additional Correspondence $1.50 per $1.50 per 
Services for the above-mentioned items include: letter letter 
• Courtesy Notice oer the City's reauirements 
Delinquent Collections Included 25% of 
Services for the above-mentioned items include: revenue 
• In addition to the 1st Courtesy Notice, two additional notices will be collected 

sent to the responsible party, at a time frame to be defined by the 
Agency 

• Notices will include a return envelope in which the responsible 
party may submit payment 

• Notices will be sent via 1st Class Mail, for which Data Ticket will be 
responsible 

• A citation is considered delinquent at Cite Date plus 31 days 
• All notices are sent via First Class mail and all notices are printed 

on an 8 ½ x 11" sheet of paper and folded into a window envelope; 
in addition, a window envelope is provided for the recipient to 
return payment 

• All notices are attached to the citation online and are viewable via 
the web 

• Notices will be sent via 1st Class Mail, and Data Ticket will be 
responsible for the cost incurred 

• Notices will be sent daily, Monday - Friday 

• If Data Ticket does not collect on a citation that is delinquent, the 
AQency does not owe this fee 

Adjudication Holds and Scanning Included $.50 per 
Services for the above-mentioned item include: hold 
• Data Ticket will accept Hearing Requests on behalf of the Agency 
• Dependent on the Agency's choice, Data Ticket will either review 

and approve the Hearing Request or provide the documentation 
received to the Agency for its decision 

• If the Request is accepted, Data Ticket's Adjudication Department 
will place the citation on an Administrative Hearing Request Hold 
and scan all received documentation into the Solution so it is 
displayed on the web for the Agency's Staff and the Hearing 
Officer 

41Pa ge 
03/11/2024 

PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
Page 41



DATA 
TICKET inc. 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

PROPOSAL FOR THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON 

Description of Service Cost Cost 
Model 1 Model 2 

Adjudication Letters Included $1.25 per 
Services for the above-mentioned item include: letter 
• For each request received, Data Ticket will send a semi-custom 

Hearing Approval Letter and a Schedule letter or it will send a 
Semi-Custom Denial Letter 

• Once the Hearing has been held, Data Ticket will send a semi-
custom disposition letter to the Appellant detailing the Hearing 
Officer's findings 

• All Letters are sent via First Class mail and all Letters are printed 
on an 8 ½ x 11" sheet of paper and folded into a window envelope; 
in addition, a window envelope is provided for the recipient to 
return payment 

• All Letters are attached to the citation online and are viewable via 
the web 

• Letters will be sent via 1st Class Mail, and Data Ticket will be 
responsible for the cost incurred 

• Should the Agency request Letters to be sent via Certified Mail, 
Data Ticket will arrange this at a cost of $5.00 per Letter 

• Letters will be sent dailv, Mondav - Friday 
Certified Letter Fee- Optional $5.00 per $5.00 per 

letter letter 
Administrative Hearings $85.00 per $85.00 
Services for the above-mentioned item include: hour per hour 
• Data Ticket's independent, certified, insured hearing officers will be 

provided to perform in-person, phone, and written hearings, as 
required by the Agency 

• Each hearing request will be reviewed, heard or read, and all 
required research will be performed 

• The Hearing Officer will enter a judgment into the Citation 
Processing System for viewing by the Agency, Appellant and Data 
Ticket 

• The City will incur costs associated with mileage 

• Data Ticket will work with the Agency to arrange for the use of a 
conference room at a Agency location or the Agency may elect to 
have citations heard at a centralized location within the Countv 

Franchise Tax Board SSN Look-up $3.00 per $3.00 per 
Services for the above-mentioned item include: unique unique 
• This fee will be assessed to lookup a social security number SSN SSN 

associated with a particular registered owner and address 
• This charge is charaed per unique SSN, not per citation 

SI Page 
03/1 1/2024 

PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
Page 42



DATA 
TICKET inc. 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

PROPOSAL FOR THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON 

Description of Service Cost Cost 
Model 1 Model 2 

FTB Collections 15% of 15% of 
Services for the above-mentioned item include: revenue revenue 
• This fee is charged if a citation is paid at the Franchise Tax Board collected collected 
• This charge is not combined with any other charge; for example if 

a citation is rolled to delinquent status and paid at FTB, only the 
15% of revenue collected will be charged 

• Data Ticket will send a custom FTB Notice to the Patron as 
required by the lnteragency Intercept Program; this notice will be 
sent via 1st Class Mail 

• All notices are attached to the citation online and are viewable via 
the web 

• Data Ticket will pay for the Agency's cost to participate in the FTB 
program; annually, FTB will send an invoice to the Agency for the 
number of debts placed at FTB; the Agency will simply provide this 
invoice to Data Ticket and Data Ticket will pay it in full 

• If Data Ticket does not collect on a citation that is at FTB, the 
Agency does not owe the collection fee 

• Data Ticket will send an FTB Notice to the Patron as required by 
the lnteragency Intercept Program; this notice will be sent via 1st 

Class Mail 
Advanced Collections Legal Action Not Required 30% of 30% of 
Services for the above-mentioned item include: revenue revenue 
• This fee is charged if a citation is paid at Advanced Reporting collected collected 

Collections 

• This charge is not combined with any other charge; for example if 
a citation is rolled to delinquent status and paid at Collections, only 
the 30% of revenue collected will be charqed 

Joint/ In Trust Banking Services $150.00 $150.00 
Services for the above-mentioned item include: per per 
• Daily deposits of funds to the Agency's escrow account month month 
• Online, real-time reconciliation reports that tie directly to the bank 

statement 
• Processing of all credit card charge-backs and Insufficient Funds 
• Month-end reconciliation of all funds collected 
• Payment of Data Ticket's invoice 
• Disbursement of the net remittance to the Agency 

• Scanning of all payments directly to joint bank account daily using 
remote check deposit 

• The Agency will be responsible for the purchase of banking 
supplies, including checks and endorsement stamps; these fees 
tvoically run $200.00 oer vear 

6jPag e 
03/11/2024 

PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
Page 43



DATA 
TICKET inc. 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

PROPOSAL FOR THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON 

Description of Service Cost Cost 
Model 1 Model 2 

Charge-backs and NSF's -Joint Escrow Only Included Included 
Services for the above-mentioned item include: 
• Data Ticket will process credit card charge-backs and NSFs when 

notified of each occurrence 

• Once processed, Data Ticket will send a custom letter to the 
individual detailing the returned item and the amount due on the 
citation 

Refunds - Joint Escrow Only Included Included 
Services for the above-mentioned item include: 
• Data Ticket will process refunds when notified of each need 
• In the event the utilizes Joint Banking Data Ticket will verify, 

generate and send each refund due 
• Refunds will be issued weekly 
• Refunds will be sent weeklv via 1st Class Mail 
Monthly Minimum $200.00 $200.00 
• A minimum fee of $200.00 will be charged on a monthly basis if 

services do not reach this level 

71 Page 
03/11/2024 

PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
Page 44



DATA 
TICKET inc. 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

PROPOSAL FOR THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON 

SERVICES INCLUDED AT NO ADDITIONAL COST 

Online Access for the Agency's Patrons: Included 
The Agency's Patrons will have the ability to perform the following functions online: 

• View real-time citation(s) data 
• Pay for a single or many citation(s) 
• Request an Administrative Hearing and attach up to three documents supporting their 

position ( optional) 
• Print a receipt 
• View pictures of the citation taken by the issuing officer (if the Agency allows) 

Online Access for the Agency's Staff: Included 
Access to the Agency's data is based on unique usernames and passwords assigned to 
each individual who requires access to the system. Data Ticket does not limit the number 
of individuals who have access to the system and the number and types of access can 
change at any point with a simple email request to Data Ticket. 

Our Solution is setup to maintain a complete audit trail for each and every transaction in 
the system so that the username is displayed next to every transaction in the system, 
indicating who performed the transaction and when. 

Dependent on the access rights provided to each Agency Staff member, the following 
capabilities are available: 

• View real-time citation(s) data, including pictures taken by the Issuing Officer 
• Accept payment via VISA, MasterCard, Discover and American Express credit/debit 

cards 
• Accept payment via Cash, Check or Money Order 
• Process NSFs and Refunds 
• Reduce or increase violation amounts, dismiss citations, void citations and place a 

citation on hold 
• Change citation data, including violations, date, time, location, comments, and others 
• View the complete reason for a Hearing Request and supporting documentation 

provided by the Appellant directly online 
• Edit Appellant information 
• Upload disposition documents sent to the Agency via US Mail 
• Add a note to a citation and see all comments added to the citation 
• Print a receipt 

Conversion: Included 
• Data Ticket will convert the citations currently with the Agency's existing vendor at no 

cost to the Agency 

SI Page 
03/1 1/2024 

PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
Page 45



Reporting: 

DATA 
TICKET inc. 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

PROPOSAL FOR THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON 

SERVICES INCLUDED AT NO ADDITIONAL COST 

Included 
• Data Ticket offers 23 reports online for our Clients to generate, print and re-print 24ll. 

We provide real-time reports that can be generated for any timeframe required and we 
provide pre-processed/month-end reports that reflect the month-end view of data. 

• All reports are available online and because we do not purge data unless specifically 
requested to do so by a Client, the data is available as long as the Agency is a Client. 

• All reports are generated in HTML so our Clients can copy and paste the data into 
Excel for data manipulation purposes. 

• If the Agency were to request a report that was not already available, Data Ticket 
would work with the Agency to design the report and provide it to the Agency at no 
cost. 

Manual Payment Processing: Included 
• Manually received payments (checks, cash, money orders and credit card payments 

sent via US Mail) are received at our PO Box in Newport Beach where a bonded and 
insured courier picks up the mail daily and delivers it to our Newport Beach office 

• On-site Mail Department opens, sorts and batches the payments before providing 
them to our on-site Data Entry Department 

• After double-blind entry of each payment, the citations are updated by our Quality 
Assurance team 

• Payments are then provided to our Accounting Department where daily deposit slips 
are completed and provided to a bonded, insured courier who takes them to the bank 

Customer Service: Included 
• Data Ticket provides a live, bi-lingual, on-site Customer Service Department that is 

fully trained to answer questions related to citation issuance, payment, adjudication, 
fix-it tickets, sign-offs, FTB, advanced credit reporting collections and more 

• All calls are recorded to quality assurance and recordings can be sent to the Agency 
at any time for review. 

• Data Ticket's IVR is bi-lingual and accessible via several toll-free numbers; the IVR 
provides real-time information to the caller regarding current status, including the 
amount due 

• The IVR accepts VISA, MasterCard, Discover, and American Express 

Web Presence: Included 
• Data Ticket's Solution is 100% web-based and Section 508 Compliant and is provided 

at: www.CitationProcessingCenter.com; this is a generic website in the sense that it is 
not Agency branded. This website allows for the Agency and the Agency's Patrons to 
access citations online 

• If the Agency prefers to have an Agency branded website, one in which the look and 
feel mimics that of the Agency's website, Data Ticket can and will provide this feature 
to the Agency. 

91Page 
03/11/2024 

PROPRIETARY AND CONF.'DENTIAL INFORMATION 
Page 46



DATA 
TICKET inc. 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

PROPOSAL FOR THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON 

FEES ASSESSED TO THE PATRON 

Credit/ Debit Card Processing $3.50 per transaction 
• Data Ticket is PCI Compliant and provides for the ability to pay via Visa, MasterCard, 

Discover, and American Express on our website, www.CitationProcessingCenter.com , 
via our toll-free, bi-lingual Customer Service Representatives, and via our toll-free, bi
lingual IVR Solution 

• There is no charge to the Agency for credit/ debit card processing; however, the 
Patron is charged $3.50 per transaction; this means the Patron can pay for a single or 
many citations at once and incur a single $3.50 fee 

Payment Plan Processing variable cost 
• An administrative fee will be assessed to Patrons or the City (if they wish to pay in lieu 

of the Patron paying) who wish to participate in a payment plan 
• This fee will cover the cost of the payment plan initiation, and the cost of a 

confirmation letter that is sent to the Patron confirming the details of the payment plan 
• The Agency will have the ability to determine whether Payment Plans are accepted 

and, if so, what the parameters for payment will be 

Credit Card Chargeback Processing $33.50 per transaction 
• If a chargeback occurs, a fee will be charged to the Patron for the processing of the 

chargeback 
• No fee will be charged to the Agency 

Cost Increases: 

Postal Rate Increase Offset- If postal rates increase during the term of the agreement, 
fees to DTI shall be raised immediately to offset the effect of the actual postal rate 
increase. 

CPI Increases - There will be NO CPI increases for the duration of the agreement 

IO I Pag e 
03/11/2024 

PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
Page 47



DATA■ 
TICKET inc. 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Data Ticket, Inc. is a California Corporation that provides parking citation processing and 
collection services, administrative review and hearing coordination, permit sales and 
processing, accounting services, customer service and a web-based solution that 
manages the entire process. Data Ticket has been providing these services for Cities, 
Counties, Universities, Districts and other Public entities nationwide for over 30 years. 
Data Ticket was incorporated in California in 1989. We provide expertise to ensure that 
citations get processed and collected in a timely manner for over 400 Agencies, 
nationwide. 

Data Ticket is located in Irvine, California and employs 52 full time individuals. Our offices 
are always open to our clients and we encourage in-person communication on a regular 
basis. Data Ticket, Inc. is a California certified Small Business Enterprise and a California 
certified Woman-Owned Business Enterprise. 

Data Ticket fully understands we are in a service industry that we consider our Client's 
acceptance of our software and services paramount to our success. When we partner 
with each Client, the goal is to ensure that each Client is treated as a unique entity, that 
our Client's Patrons are treated with respect and care, and that our Clients gain 
compliance and realize increased revenue collection through our comprehensive parking 
management program. 

We attribute much of our success to the fact that our Clients and their Patrons are always 
treated politely and professionally. Providing easy, clear access for our Clients and their 
Patrons is of primary importance because it encourages communication between all 
interested parties, transparency in the data processing for our Clients and prompt 
payment by Patrons. 

Our web-based Solution provides patrons with access to lookup their citation(s), pay for 
their citation(s), get specific information about their citation(s), appeal their citations and 
attach supporting documentation and print a receipt; all online, all via real-time data. In 
addition, the Agency's Patrons will have access to a toll-free, bi-lingual customer service 
department who will answer general and specific questions about each citation and will 
accept payment over the phone via a real-time interface. Finally, patrons will also be able 
to submit payment and appeals to the Agency or to Data Ticket via mail or in person at 
the Agency's preferred location. All of the types of access we allow are intended to make 
the process simple for the Agency's patrons so they pay their citations in a timely manner. 

Access to the data for Agency Staff is equally as important as is access for the Agency's 
Patrons. Our Solution provides online access to our Clients to lookup citations, enter 
notes on citations, process voids, dismissals, reductions, refunds, refund requests, view 
online reports, print receipts and process and review the adjudication process. Each 
capability is provided based on the level of access each person is granted. 

Data Ticket allows for real-time processing of payments via VISA, MasterCard, Discover, 
and American Express. Credit/debit card payments are accepted online, via phone with a 
customer service representative or using our state of the art IVR system or via paper. 
11 Pa g < PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
01/31/2024 Page 48



DATA■ 
TICKET inc. 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Website payments are updated in the system real-time, as soon as they are authorized 
and accepted by the bank. Payments are immediately updated to the citation records 
and receipts can be printed verifying payment for the payer. 

Data Ticket's Solution is Payment Card Industry (PCI) certified and our Solution is 
subjected to both quarterly, scheduled scans of our database as well as unscheduled 
scans, thus providing the ultimate security for our Clients as well as their patrons. 

Our Solution offers all adjudication services via our online appeals website. We allow 
patrons to place their citations on hold and submit their full explanation and attach backup 
documentation via the web. This allows patrons to appeal their citation(s) online only if 
they are eligible to appeal based on the rules set forth by each Agency and the State of 
California. Once the appeal is submitted, either on line or via U.S. Mail, our Solution 
processes the request and makes it immediately available for an Administrative Review 
Disposition or it is immediately available to be scheduled for an Administrative Hearing 
with a certified, independent hearing officer. These individuals review or hear the cases 
and enter judgments that automatically mark the citation and generate written notification 
of the results. This notification informs the appellant of the decision and provides 
additional information if the individual wishes to continue his/her appeal and/or refund 
information and/or court filing instructions, depending on the appeal decision. 

Our Solution provides an Online Reporting capability that allows our Clients to generate 
and print real-time and month-end reports via the web. These reports can be saved to a 
network, PC or external drive, copied into Excel for additional manipulation as the Agency 
wishes or they can simply be viewed. These reports are available to the Agency as long 
as the Agency is a Client. In addition, when the Agency needs ad hoc reports or 
additional data, Data Ticket will provide those at no cost. 

Data Ticket is experienced at working backlog and delinquent citations, which all 
agencies seem to have. We have years of experience collecting from "old databases and 
citations", and we do it carefully and professionally, with the utmost care given to the 
agency image and collection attitude. Since 2002, Data Ticket, Inc. has been offering 
additional collections through the Franchise Tax Board's lnteragency Intercept Program 
on behalf of our Clients in order to provide an additional opportunity for collection of 
delinquent California debts. Many of our agencies have been participating in this program 
since we began offering this interface and they have all been impressed with the return
rate on collections from this submission. 

On behalf of Data Ticket, thank you for the opportunity to provide Parking Citation 
Processing Collections, Services and Technology as well we excellent Client and 
Customer Service! 

2 I I' ,lg c: 
01/31/2024 

PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

Page 49



DATA■ 
TICKET inc. 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

/ PROPOSAL FOR THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON 

•J~anual·Parking Citation Processing: 
Services for the above-mentioned items include: 
• On-site data entry of manually written citations performed within 48 hours of receipt 
• On-site quality assurance verification of manually entered citations 

$0.70 

• Scanning of all manually written citations onto our network for storage and ease of retrieval 
o/ Bi-monthly shredding of manually written citations 

JElectronic Parking Citation Processing: $0.60 
Services for the above-mentioned items include: 
• Automated citation transmission into Data Ticket's Citation Management Solution 24/7 
• Automated confirmation email detailing successfully transmitted citations 
• Automated transmission of photos attached to citations 

Courtesy Notice: $0.75 
Services for the above-mentioned item include: 
• Semi-custom Courtesy Notice that is printed on an 8 ½ x 11" piece of paper and provided in a 

window envelope sent to the registered owner of a vehicle 
• All notices are attached to the citation online and are viewable via the web 
• All notices sent via 1st Class Mail 
• All notices include a return envelope in which the responsible party may submit payment 
• This cost will increase as the US Postal Service increases the 1st Class postage rate 
• This charge is only incurred if the individual does not pay off the windshield and a notice is 

/ sent to the individual. 

J Out-of-State Collections: 28% of revenue collected 
• This fee will cover all expenses associated with obtaining out-of-state registered owner 

information and will be due when a citation is paid 
• Data Ticket is a recognized Strategic Partner with NLETs; should the Agency have an 

assigned ORI, Data Ticket will request usage of the ORI for reference/audit purposes only. 
Data Ticket utilizes its own ORI for transactional purposes 

• This fee is not combined with any other contingency fee. For example, if a citation is rolled to 
a delinquent status, only 28% of revenue collected will be charged 

• If Data Ticket does not collect on a citation that is issued to an out of state plate, the Agency 
does not owe this fee. 

31Page 
01/31/2024 

PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

Page 50



DATA■ 
TICKET inc. 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

/ PROPOSAL FOR THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON 

·Joelinquent Collections: 28% of revenue collected 
• This fee will be assessed when a citation is ninety (90) days past the citation issue date, or 

when a second (2nd) notice is sent if sooner than ninety (90) days, assuming a first notice has 
been sent to the registered owner and the citation is not on hold for any reason 

• In addition to the Courtesy Notice, three Delinquent Notices will be sent to the registered 
owner 

• All notices are sent via First Class mail and all notices are printed on an 8 ½ x 11" sheet of 
paper and folded into a window envelope; in addition, a window envelope is provided for the 
recipient to return payment 

• All notices are attached to the citation online and are viewable via the web 
• If Data Ticket does not collect on a citation that is delinquent, the Agency does not owe this 

fee 

J Notices will be sent via 1st Class Mail, and Data Ticket will be responsible for the cost incurred 

ranchise Tax Board Processing - Optional 
SSN Look-up $3.00 per SSN 
• This fee will be assessed to lookup a social security number associated with a particular 

This charge is charged per unique SSN, not per citation j registered owner and address 

TB Collections 15% of revenue collected 
• This fee is charged if a citation is paid at the Franchise Tax Board 
• This charge is not combined with any other charge; for example, if a citation is rolled to 

delinquent status and paid at FTB, only the 15% of revenue collected will be charged 
• Data Ticket will send an FTB Notice to the Patron as required by the lnteragency Intercept 

Program; this notice will be sent via 1st Class Mail 
• All notices are attached to the citation online and are viewable via the web 
• Data Ticket will pay for the Agency's cost to participate in the FTB program; annually, FTB will 

send an invoice to the Agency for the number of debts placed at FTB; the Agency will simply 
provide this invoice to Data Ticket and Data Ticket will pay it in full 

• If Data Ticket does not collect on a citation that is at FTB, the Agency does not owe the 
collection fee 

• Data Ticket will send an FTB Notice to the Patron as required by the lnteragency Intercept 
Program; this notice will be sent via 1st Class Mail 

41Pag~ 
01/31/2024 

PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

Page 51



·DJ\TJ\ 
TICKET inc. 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

PROPOSAL FOR THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON 

Adjudication: 
1st Level Review Hold & Scanning of Review Request $0.50 per citation 
• Data Ticket will review all documentation received by the Appellant anc determine whether the 

request received within the required timeframe 
• If the request was received within the required timeframe, Data Ticket's Adjudication 

Department will place the citation on an Administrative Review Request Hold and scan all 
received documentation into the Citation Management Solution so it is displayed on the web 
for the Agency's Staff 

• If the request is received outside the required timeframe, the Agency will have the option to 
proceed as though the request was received within the timeframe or it may elect to have Data 
Ticket send a "time expired letter" rejecting the appeal 

1st Level Review Disposition Letters $0.85 per letter 
• Data Ticket will send a custom disposition letter to the Appellant via 1st Class Mail 
• All letters are attached to the citation online and are viewable via the web 
• Disposition letters will be sent Monday - Friday 

2nd Level Hearing Hold, Scanning and Scheduling of Hearing $0.50 per citation 
• Data Ticket will review all documentation received by the Appellant and determine whether the 

request received within the required timeframe 
• If the request was received within the required timeframe, Data Ticket's Adjudication 

Department will place the citation on an Administrative Hearing Request Hold and scan all 
received documentation into the Solution so that it is displayed on the web for the Agency's 
Staff and the Hearing Officer 

• If the request is received outside the required timeframe, the Agency will have the option to 
proceed as though the request was received within the timeframe or it may elect to have Data 
Ticket send a "time expired letter" rejecting the appeal 

• Data Ticket will work with the designated Hearing Officer to schedule the Hearing based on 
either a pre-determined schedule or an ad hoc basis, depending on the Agency's s~ ule 

2nd Le earing Officer - Optional 85.oo per hour 
• Data Ticke • dependent, certified, insured hearing officers will b ovided to the to perform 

in-person, phone ritten hearings 
• Each hearing request will viewed, heard _Q!...!ea , and all required research will be 

performed -------
• The Hearing Officer will enter • agment 1 :a..t e Citation Processing System for viewing by 

the Agency, Appellan • Data Ticket 
• Hearings will c eduled 
• The Agency will incur costs associated with mileage as defined by eral guidelines 
• Data Ticket will work with the Agency to arrange for the use of a confere e room at a Agency 

location or the Agency may elect to have citations heard at a centralized loca • within the 
County 

2nd Level Hearing Schedule & Disposition Letters $0.85 per letter 
• Data Ticket will send a custom disposition letter to the Appellant via 1st Class Mail 
• All letters are attached to the citation online and are viewable via the web 
• Disposition letters will be sent Monday - Friday 

s IP c1 ::! e 
01/3 1/2024 

PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

Page 52



DATA■ 
TICKET inc. 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

PROPOSAL FOR THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON 

• Acceptance and Scanning of Indigent Payment Plan Requests 
(Approval/Denial by Data Ticket) $5.00 per request 

OR 

• Accepting and Scanning of Indigent Payment Plan Requests 
(Approval/Denial by City) $2.00 per request 

AND 

• Indigent Payment Plan/Denial Letters 

Additional Correspondence 
• Printing & Sending daily 
• Electronic attachment to the citation 
• Windowed #10 envelope and return #9 envelope 

Joint/ Escrow Banking Services - Optional 
Services for the above-mentioned item include: 
• Daily deposits of funds to the Agency's escrow account 

$0.85 per letter 

$0.85 per letter 

$150.00 per month 

• Online, real-time reconciliation reports that tie directly to the bank statement 
• Processing of all credit card charge-backs and Insufficient Funds 
• Month-end reconciliation of all funds collected 
• Disbursement of County / State Surcharges at month-end 
• Payment of Data Ticket's invoice 
• Disbursement of the net remittance to the Agency 
• Scanning of all payments directly to joint bank account daily using remote check deposit 
• The Agency will be responsible for the purchase of banking supplies, ir.cluding checks and 

endorsement stamps; these fees typically run $200.00 per year 

Charge-backs and NSF's - Optional $5.00 per issued instance 
• Data Ticket will process credit card charge-backs and NSFs when notified of each occurrence 
• Once processed, Data Ticket will send a custom letter to the individual detailing the returned 

item and the amount due on the citation 

Refunds - Optional $8.00 per issued instance 
• Data Ticket will process refunds when notified of each need 
• In the event the Agency utilizes Joint Banking Data Ticket will verify, generate and send each 

refund due 
• Refunds will be issued weekly 
• Refunds will be sent via 1st Class Mail 

Monthly Minimum $200.00 
• A minimum fee of $200.00 will be charged on a monthly basis if services do not reach this 

level (not inclusive of the Joint/Escrow Banking Services fee) 
611' a~ e PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
01/31/2024 Page 53



DATA■ 
TICKET inc. 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 • Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

PROPOSAL FOR THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON 

Cost Increases: 

Postal Rate Increase Offset - If postal rates increase during the term of the agreement, 
fees to DTI shall be raised immediately to offset the effect of the actual postal rate 
increase. 

CPI Increases - There will be NO CPI increases for the duration of the agreement. 

71Page 
01/31/2024 

PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

Page 54



DATA■ 
TICKET inc. 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@OataTicket.com 

PROPOSAL FOR THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON - SERVICES INCLUDED AT NO 
ADDITIONAL COST 

Online Access for the Agency's Patrons: Included 
The Agency's Patrons will have the ability to perform the following functions online: 

• View real-time citation(s) data 
• Pay for a single or many citation(s). 
• Request a 1st Level Administrative Review and attach up to three documents 

supporting their position 
• Request a 2nd Level Administrative Hearing Request and attach up to three 

documents supporting their position 
• Print a receipt 
• View pictures of the citation taken by the issuing officer (if the Agency allows) 

Online Access for the Agency's Staff: Included 
Access to the Agency's data is based on unique usernames and passwords assigned to 
each individual who requires access to the system. Data Ticket does not limit the number 
of individuals who have access to the system and the number and types of access can 
change at any point with a simple email request to Data Ticket. 

Our Solution is setup to maintain a complete audit trail for each and every transaction in 
the system so that the username is displayed next to every transaction in the system, 
indicating who performed the transaction and when. 

Dependent on the access rights provided to each Agency Staff member, the following 
capabilities are available: 

• View real-time citation(s) data, including pictures taken by the Issuing Officer 
• Accept payment via VISA, MasterCard, Discover and American Express credit/debit 

cards 
• Accept payment via Cash, Check or Money Order 
• Process NSFs and Refunds 
• Reduce or increase violation amounts, dismiss citations, void citations and place a 

citation on hold 
• Change citation data, including violations, date, time, plate, location, comments, 

make, model, color, registration expiration date and others 
• Perform Administrative Reviews online by entering the disposition directly online 
• Generate a time expired or letter of non responsibility for a citation in the adjudication 

process 
• View the complete reason for the Review Request and supporting documentation 

provided by the Appellant directly online 
• Edit Appellant information 
• Upload disposition documents sent to the Agency via US Mail 
• Add a note to a citation and see all comments added to the citation 
• View the reason for the 2nd Level Administrative Hearing Request online and view the 

supporting documentation provided by the Appellant, directly online 
• Print a receipt with or without registered owner information 

SI Page 
01/31/2024 

PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

Page 55



DATA■ 
TICKET inc. 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

PROPOSAL FOR THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON - SERVICES INCLUDED AT NO 
ADDITIONAL COST 

Reporting: Included 
• Data Ticket offers 36 reports online as well as a Customized reporting application for 

our Clients to generate, print and re-print 24/7. We provide real-time reports that can 
be generated for any timeframe required and we provide pre-processed/month-end 
reports that reflect the month-end view of data. 

• All reports are available online and because we do not purge data unless specifically 
requested to do so by a Client, the data is available as long as the Agency is a Client. 

• All reports are generated in HTML so our Clients can copy and paste the data into 
Excel for data manipulation purposes. 

• If the Agency were to request a report that was not already available, Data Ticket 
would work with the Agency to design the report and provide it to the Agency at no 
cost. 

Manual Payment Processing: Included 
• Manually received payments (checks, cash, money orders and credit card payments 

sent via US Mail) are received at our PO Box in Newport Beach where a bonded and 
insured courier picks up the mail daily and delivers it to our Newport Beach office 

• On-site Mail Department opens, sorts and batches the payments before providing 
them to our on-site Data Entry Department 

• After double-blind entry of each payment, the citations are updated by our Quality 
Assurance team 

• Payments are then provided to our Accounting Department where daily deposit slips 
are completed and provided to a bonded, insured courier who takes them to the bank 

Registered Owner Information: Included 
• Registered owner information for all citations issued on California license plates 
• Turnaround time for acquisition of California registered owner information is same day 
• Registered owner information for all citations issued on out of state license plates 
• Data Ticket is a recognized Strategic Partner with NLETs and has access to 

registered owner information nationwide through the NLETs service 
• Access to this system requires the use of the County's ORI for tracking purposes only; 

Data Ticket will utilize its own ORI for actually acquiring the out of state data 
• Turnaround time for acquisition of out of state registered owner information using 

NLETs is same day 

CA DMV Holds and Releases: Included 
• California OMV Holds and Release performed daily via an online connection 
• Holds and releases can also be performed real-time, upon request 
• Citation amounts placed on hold are updated daily in the event a partial payment is 

made 

91Pngc 
0J/31/2024 

PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

Page 56



DATA■ 
TICKET inc. 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

PROPOSAL FOR THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON - SERVICES INCLUDED AT NO 
ADDITIONAL COST 

Customer Service: Included 
• Data Ticket provides a live, bi-lingual, on-site Customer Service Department that is 

fully trained to answer questions related to citation issuance, payment, adjudication, 
fix-it tickets, sign-offs, FTB, advanced credit reporting collections and more 

• All calls are recorded to quality assurance and recordings can be sent to the Agency 
at any time for review. 

• Data Ticket's IVR is bi-lingual and accessible via several toll-free numbers; the IVR 
provides real-time information to the caller regarding current status, including the 
amount due 

• The IVR accepts VISA, MasterCard, Discover, and American Express 

Web Presence: Included 
• Data Ticket's Solution is 100% web-based and Section 508 Compliant and is provided 

at: www.CitationProcessingCenter.com; this is a generic website in the sense that it is 
not Agency branded. This website allows for the Agency and the Agency's Patrons to 
access citations online 

• If the Agency prefers to have an Agency branded website, one in which the look and 
feel mimics that of the Agency's website, Data Ticket can and will provide this feature 
to the Agency. 

Conversion: Included 
• Data Ticket will convert the citations currently with the Agency's existing vendor at no 

cost to the Agency 
• Citations that have not had a payment and do not have a registered owner will 

immediately be sent to the appropriate OMV so as to obtain a registered owner 

IOjPc1gc 
01/31/2024 

PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

Page 57



DATA■ 
'TICKET inc. 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

PROPOSAL FOR THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON- FEES ASSESSED TO THE PATRON 

Credit / Debit Card Processing $3.50 per transaction 
• Data Ticket is PCI Compliant and provides for the ability to pay via Visa, MasterCard, 

Discover, and American Express on our website, www.CitationProcessingCenter.com, 
via our toll-free, bi-lingual Customer Service Representatives, and via our toll-free, bi
lingual IVR Solution 

• There is no charge to the Agency for credit/ debit card processing; however, the 
Patron is charged $3.50 per transaction; this means the Patron can pay for a single or 
many citations at once and incur a single $3.50 fee 

Payment Plan Processing $15.00 per transaction 
• An administrative fee will be assessed to Patrons who wish to participate in a payment 

plan 
• This fee will cover the cost of the payment plan initiation, and the cost of a 

confirmation letter that is sent to the Patron confirming the details of the payment plan 
• The Agency will have the ability to determine whether Payment Plans are accepted 

and, if so, what the parameters for payment will be 

Credit Card Chargeback Processing $33.50 per transaction 
• If a chargeback occurs, a fee will be charged to the Patron for the processing of the 

chargeback 
• No fee will be charged to the Agency 

lllP,1~0 
01/31/2024 

PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

Page 58



AGREEMENT FOR PROCESSING 
OF PARKING AND ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS 

This Agreement is entered into by and between Turbo Data Systems, Inc. (TDS), a California 
Corporation, and the City of Livingston, (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Customer"). 

Whereas, TDS and the Customer desire to enter into an agreement whereby TDS will process 
parking and administrative citations and provide mobile ticketwriters for the Customer pursuant 
to the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

In consideration ofthe mutual covenants, conditions, representations and warranties contained 
herein the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. PURPOSE. The purpose of this Agreement is for TDS to process parking and administrative 
citations and provide mobile ticketwriters for the Customer in a timely manner. 

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES. When and as directed by the Customer, TDS shall perform the following 
services in processing all parking citations: 

See Attached EXHIBIT A- SCOPE OF SERVICES 

3. TERM. This agreement shall become effective for a period of five years, starting April 1, 2024 
and ending March 31, 2029. This agreement may be renewed after that with written 
amendments signed by both parties. 

4. CONSIDERATION. In consideration for services performed by TDS as provided in this 
agreement, Customer shall pay TDS pursuant to the terms set forth in the Proposals for Parking 
Citation Processing, Administrative Citation Processing & Mobile Enforcement Services 
submitted to the City of Livingston on February 29, 2024 and March 7, 2024 respectively, which 
are attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

5. PAYMENT OF FEES. Charges determined on the basis set forth in the Proposals shall be billed 
on a monthly basis in arrears and payment therefore shall be made within fifteen (15) days after 
submission of each separate invoice. 

6. ACCOUNTING RECORDS. Records of the citations processed by TDS shall be available for 
examination by the Customer or its authorized representative(s) at a time agreeable to the 
Customer and TDS within one week following a request by the Customer. 

7. TIME OF PERFORMANCE. Time is of the essence, and TDS shall perform the services required 
by this agreement in an expeditious and timely manner so as not to unreasonably delay the 
purpose of this agreement as set forth in Sections 1 and 2. 

8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. At all times during the term of this agreement, TDS shall be an 
independent contractor and shall not be an employee of the Customer. The Customer shall have 

1 

Page 59



AGREEMENT FOR PROCESSING 
OF PARKING AND ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS 

the right to control TDS only insofar as the results of TDS's services rendered pursuant to this 
agreement; however, Customer shall not have the right to control the means by which TDS 
accomplishes the services rendered pursuant to this agreement. 

9. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. TDS shall, at its own cost and expense, provide all facilities and 
equipment that may be required for performance of the services required by this agreement. 

10. INDEMNIFICATION BY TDS. TDS agrees to defend, indemnify, hold free and harmless the 
Customer, its elected officials, officers, agents and employees, at contractor's sole expense, from 
and against any and all claims, actions, suits or other legal proceedings brought against the 
Customer, its elected officials, officers, agents and employees arising out of the performance of 
the contractor, its employees, and/or authorized subcontractors, of the work undertaken 
pursuant to this Agreement. The defense obligation provided for hereunder shall apply without 
any advance showing of negligence or wrongdoing by the contractor, its employees, and/or 
authorized subcontractors, but shall be required whenever any claim, action, complaint, or suit 
asserts as its basis the negligence, errors, omissions or misconduct of the contractor, its 
employees, and/or authorized subcontractors, and/or whenever any claim, action, complaint or 
suit asserts liability against the Customer, its elected officials, officers, agents and employees 
based upon the work performed by the contractor, its employees, and/or authorized 
subcontractors under this Agreement, whether or not the contractor, its employees, and/or 
authorized subcontractors are specifically named or otherwise asserted to be liable. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the contractor shall not be liable for the defense or 
indemnification of the Customer for claims, actions, complaints or suits arising out of the sole 
active negligence or willful misconduct of the Customer. This provision shall supersede and 
replace all other indemnity provisions contained either in the Customer's specifications or 
contractor's proposal, which shall be of no force and effect. 

11. INDEMNIFICATION BY CUSTOMER. TDS shall use due care in processing work of the 
Customer. Any errors shall be corrected by TDS at no additional charge to the Customer. TDS 
shall be entitled to reimbursement from the Customer for any expenses incurred by TDS for the 
correction of any erroneous information provided by the Customer and TDS shall not be 
responsible for Customers' losses and expenses resulting from erroneous source materials 
provided by the Customer. Neither party shall be liable to the other for any indirect or 
consequential losses or damages resulting from any errors within the scope ofthis Section 11. 

12. FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES/EQUAL OPPORTUNITY ACTS. In the performance of this 
agreement, TDS shall comply with all applicable provisions of the California Fair Employment 
Practices Act (California Labor Code Sections (410 et seq.) and the applicable equal employment 
provisions of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 200e 217), whichever is more restrictive. 

13. AGENCY. Except as Customer may specify in writing TDS shall have no authority, expressed 
or implied, to act on behalf of the Customer in any capacity whatsoever as an agent. TDS shall 

2 

Page 60



AGREEMENT FOR PROCESSING 
OF PARKING AND ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS 

have no authority, expressed or implied, pursuant to this agreement to bind Customer to any 
obligation whatsoever. 

14. CHANGES IN LAW. Should there be any changes in the law applicable to the processing of 
parking or administrative citations which would require material changes in the method of the 
processing as contemplated in this agreement, or materially reduce or eliminate the amount of 
revenue received by the Customer from citations, this agreement shall terminate on the date 
such law becomes effective, provided either party gives sixty (60) days' notice of termination. 
Any changes in the processing of parking violations as a result of changes in the law or DMV 
regulations affecting such violations, which do not materially add to the cost of processing such 
citations by TDS shall be implemented by TDS at the request of the Customer, provided however, 
that the cost of such implementation does not exceed the fee paid to TDS for performing such 
services. If any such change results in the cost of processing citations exceeding the amounts 
provided for in Section 4 and the Customer declines to amend this agreement to provide for the 
payment of such increased costs, the agreement shall terminate as of the effective date of the 
change in the law or regulations. 

15. OWNERSHIP OF SOFTWARE. Customer acknowledges that the software and software 
programs used by the Customer or used for the Customer's benefit which were developed by 
TDS are the sole property of TDS and the Customer obtains no right or interest in the software 
by virtue of this agreement. 

16. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. All citations, electronic and handwritten; reports; electronic 
storage media; and other documents, including copies and reproductions assembled or prepared 
by TDS or TDS' agents, officers, or employees in connection with this Agreement, shall be the 
property of the Customer and shall be delivered to the Customer upon either the completion or 
termination of this Agreement. 

17. FORCE MAJEURE. Neither party shall be responsible for delays or failure in performance 
resulting from acts beyond the control of such parties. Such acts shall include, but are not limited 
to, Acts of God, strikes, riots, acts of war, epidemics, fire, communication line failure, earthquakes 
or other.disasters. 

18. TERMINATION. This agreement may be terminated by either party upon ninety (90) days 
written notice. At such time, TDS agrees to provide Customer, in computer readable form, a copy 
of all data files to service its citations. 

19. NOTICE. Whenever it shall be necessary for either party to serve notice on the other 
respecting this agreement, such notice shall be served by certified mail addressed to: 

TDS: Turbo Data Systems, Inc. 
1551 N Tustin Avenue Suite 950 

3 

Page 61



AGREEMENT FOR PROCESSING 
OF PARKING AND ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS 

CUSTOMER: 

Santa Ana CA 92705 
Roberta J. Rosen, President 

City of Livingston 
1416 C Street 
Livingston CA 95334 
John Ramirez, Acting Chief of Police 

unless and until different addresses may be furnished in writing by either party to the other, and 
such notice shall be deemed to have been served within seventy-two (72) hours after the same 
has been deposited in the United States Post Office by certified mail. This shall be valid and 
sufficient service of notice for all purposes. 

20. EXTENT OF AGREEMENT. This agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement 
between Customer and TDS and supersedes any and all prior negotiations, representations or 
agreements, either written or oral. This agreement may be amended only by written instrument 
signed by both Customer and TDS. This agreement may only be assigned with the express written 
consent of each of the parties hereto. In the event that any provision hereof is deemed to be 
illegal or unenforceable, such a determination shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the 
remaining provisions hereof, all of which remain in full force and effect. 

21. LITIGATION COSTS. If any legal action or any other proceeding is brought to enforce the terms 
of this agreement, or because of an alleged dispute, breach, or misrepresentation in the 
connection with any of the provisions of this agreement, the successful or prevailing party or 
parties shall be entitled to recover their reasonable attorneys' fees and other costs incurred in 
that action or proceeding, including the costs of appeal in addition to any other relief to which it 
or they may be entitled. 

22. INSURANCE. TDS, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for the duration of the 
Agreement, and provide proof thereof that is acceptable to Customer, the insurance specified in 
this Agreement is satisfactory in all respects to Customer. TDS shall procure and maintain 
insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the work hereunder by TDS, its agents, representatives, 
employees, or subcontractors. The limits of liability specified in this Section may be provided by 
any combination of primary and umbrella/excess liability insurance policies. 

Minimum Limits of Insurance 

TDS shall maintain limits no less than: General Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily 
injury, personal injury and property damage. If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other 
form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply 
separately to this project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required 

4 

Page 62



AGREEMENT FOR PROCESSING 
OF PARKING AND ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS 

occurrence limit. Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property 
damage. Employer's Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS 

Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A: VII, 
unless otherwise acceptable to Customer. 

Verification of Coverage 

TDS shall furnish certificates of insurance evidencing all the coverage required above, naming the 
Customer as additional insured. All required information is to be mailed to the address shown in 
the NOTICE section of the Agreement. 

23. EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS AGREEMENT. This agreement, made in duplicate, shall be effective 
from and after April 1, 2024. 

Executed on this_ day of _________ _, 2024. 

CITY OF LIVINGSTON 

By: __________ _ 

Name/Title:, _______ _ 

Date: __________ _ 

TURBO DATA SYSTEMS, INC. 

By: ________ _ 

Roberta J. Rosen 
President 

5 

Page 63



AGREEMENT FOR PROCESSING 
OF PARKING AND ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS 

EXHIBIT "A" 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

TDS shall perform the following services in processing all Parking Citations: 

A. Basic Processing-TDS will enter manual citations and citation dispositions into Customer's database 

within 2 business days. The basic service includes database maintenance, daily system backups, toll

free phone number for the public, Interactive Voice Response System (IVRS) with customized 

recorded information and citation lookup capability, pticket.com web-based Inquiry System for the 

public with customized content, Customer Service Representatives {8:00 am - 5:00 pm, Monday 

through Friday, excluding holidays) to speak with the public regarding parking citation issues, 

ongoing Client support, and documentation and training for use of the TDS-provided on line system. 

B. Handheld Ticket writer Interface - TDS will provide for automated import of electronic citations into 

Customers database within 1 business day. TDS will maintain and update the hot sheet or scofflaw 

files on a daily basis for Customer to upload into their handheld ticket writers. TDS will work with 

Customer to implement any changes required for handheld ticket writer equipment. 

C. System and Document Storage - Citations paid or dismissed will be retained on the computer system 

for 3 years and then removed. Unpaid citations will be retained on the computer system for 5 years 

and then removed. Citation documents will be stored for 2 years from date of issue and then returned 

to Customer or shredded. Payment documents will be stored for 2 years from the date of payment 

and then returned to Customer or shredded. 

D. Online Reporting- Provide monthly reports online indicating the status of all citations, such reports to 

be available for Customer access no later than the thirtieth {30th) day of the following month. 

E. DMV Interface for Registered Owner Name Retrieval - Attempt to obtain names and addresses of 

registered owners of cited vehicles for those citations that have not been cleared prior to their notice 

generation date. 

F. Notice Processing- Print the required Notice and mail to each registered owner whose name has been 

retrieved within 10 to 21 days after the citation has been issued. Includes second notices mailed for 

bounced checks, partial payments, and name or address changes. The notice date shall be extended 

whenever there is an unusual delay in delivery of information or citations to TDS. All postage, notice 

forms and envelopes will be provided by TDS. 

6 

Page 64



AGREEMENT FOR PROCESSING 
OF PARKING AND ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS 

G. DMV Interface for Placing Registration Holds - Transmit a Notice of Delinquency to the California 

DMV for vehicles with California license plates after a Notice of Violation has been mailed to the 

registered owner and TDS has not received notification that the citation has been cleared. This 

Notice of Delinquency will be transmitted to the California DMV within 2 business days after the date 

specified by the Customer to be the DMV Date. 

H. DMV Interface for Releasing Registration Holds - Transmit a Notice to the California DMV that a 

Notice of Delinquency has been cleared within 2 business days after TDS has received notification of 

clearance. 

I. DMV Interface for Monthly Payment File - Receive payment file from DMV as available (currently 

monthly) and update DMV transactions into Customers database, providing reporting for 

reconciliation purposes. 

J. Delivery Service - Manual citations will be mailed or scanned to TDS by Customer at their own 

expense. TDS reports will be provided online. TDS will return any required documents via UPS and/or 

US Mail. 

K. Collection and Payment Processing- TDS will provide the following collection and payment processing 

services for Customer: 

• Provide P. 0. Box where payments are mailed 
• Courier pickup from P. 0. Box daily 
• Open all mail 

• Verify payment amounts and record on computer system within 2 business days (48 hours) 
• Respond to reasonable non-judicial public inquiries by phone and mail 
• Return questionable mail to Customer for decision 
• Make bank deposits to Customer bank account using check scanning 
• Verify amounts deposited, by citation number 
• Provide toll-free number for citizen inquiries 
• Provide weekly reports for bank statement reconciliation 

• Provide monthly Paid Citation Distribution Report for Customer to make surcharge 
payments to the County 

• Scan checks and deposit parking funds (remote deposits) into Customer's bank account. 
Checks never leave our facility. Check scanning hardware and software is provided by 
Customer for its specific banking requirements. 

• Contractor does not charge for remote deposits; however, the financial institution may 
charge a fee, which is the responsibility of the Customer. 

• Customers not set up for bank check scanning will incur additional courier fees of $200 per 
month. 

7 

Page 65



AGREEMENT FOR PROCESSING 
OF PARKING AND ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS 

L. Out of State Citations - TDS shall process citations for non-California license plates by entering the 

citation information into the system database and reporting them along with all other citations on the 

database with the standard reports. If they become delinquent, requests for registered owner 

information will be sent to the appropriate out-of-state DMV. The Notice of Intent will be generated 

to the registered owner and the fine amount requested. TDS will incur all costs for out of state name 

retrieval, including out-of-state DMV fees and charges. TDS will receive payment from Customer based 

on the amount of revenues collected from out-of-state citations after the Notice of Intent has been 

issued. This amount will be billed monthly for the prior months' receipts (as determined from our 

database and/or reports). Payments collected via credit card will also incur credit card fees. 

M. IVR and Web Payment Systems - Payment by Credit Card - Through the Interactive Voice Response 

(IVR) System, and through the pticket.com web site, we accept credit card payments via Visa, 

MasterCard and Discover. The systems authorize each transaction while the caller is on the phone 

or online. Customers are given an authorization number or email confirmation to confirm their 

charge. The IVR system and the pticket.com web payment system both automatically update the 

citation database with the payment immediately. Credit Card monies are paid to a Turbo Data 

Systems bank account and are reconciled monthly. Each customer receives their own credit card 

postlog which shows in detail which citations were paid and for what amount, along with the deposit 

slip from the bank or the ACH deposit email showing that these funds have been deposited into the 

customer's account. Should there be any charge backs to a merchant account, the funds are pulled 

directly from the Turbo Data master account and the citation will be reactivated, much like a 

bounced check. The violator will be sent a notice and will then proceed to DMV hold. TDS will 

provide all services regarding reconciliation, reactivation of charge backs, etc. Customer will not be 

involved in the daily processing. 

N. Administrative Adjudication Processing - TDS will provide for the processing of requests for 

contesting citations, allowing for Customer processing of administrative reviews, tracking and 

monitoring all relevant dates on an automated system, mailing timely notification to respondents 

regarding the status of their claims, and scheduling of administrative hearings. All Administrative 

Adjudication information entered into the system is done in real time and is linked to existing database 

information to ensure proper tracking of relevant dates, mailing names and addresses and other 

pertinent information. Administrative Review requests will be entered within 2 business days of receipt. 

Adjudication documents will be stored for 2 years from their activity date and then shredded. 

8 

Page 66



AGREEMENT FOR PROCESSING 
OF PARKING AND ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS 

0. Paperless Appeals (eAppealsPRO & Scanning) - TDS will provide online appeal capability for the 

public to appeal their citations online. TDS will provide the scanning of all mailed-in appeal 

documents and electronic storage of those documents. TDS will provide an online application to 

access the appeals, which will be searchable and sortable. TDS will keep an electronic history of 

processed appeals for at least two years. 

P. Online Inquiry Access for Customers' Staff-Access includes online access 24 hours a day, 7 days a 

week for Agency personnel to inquire on Customer's database. This access includes citation inquiry 

(includes citation status, history status, administrative adjudication status, notes, etc.), the ability to 

enter and view notes, post dismissals/payments, view daily deposits made at TDS' facility and view 

daily file transfers sent from the hand held ticket writer software and received at TDS' facility. TDS' 

technical staff will provide support. TDS will provide a real-time secured high-speed connection to 

the citation database through the Customers' Internet connection. 

Q. Additional Notices- TDS will mail Other Correspondence as required for processing. 

R. ICS Collection Service - Special Collections - Outstanding citations (DMV No-Holds or DMV Transfer 

of Ownership Releases or Non-California plates) and any other citations deemed as delinquent 

citations by Customer are transferred into the ICS system on a weekly basis. Up to two collection 

letters will be mailed for each ICS account requesting payment. Payments are processed daily and 

deposited to the Customer's regular citation processing bank account. The TDS Customer Service 

Center will handle all JCS related calls through a special toll-free number dedicated to ICS accounts. 

Monthly reporting shows all accounts moved to the JCS system and all payments received due to JCS 

efforts. 

S. Franchise Tax Board Offset Program-TDS will combine citations by license numberfortotal amount 

due, eliminate corporate names, retrieve SSN's by name from a 3rd party, combine accounts by SSN, 

mail required FTB letters in advance of placing accounts at FTB, process payments generated by the 

FTB process, receive phone calls generated by the FTB process, provide all systems and operational 

procedures required for the FTB process, and provide complete reporting and reconciliation for the 

FTB process. Customer will be required to complete required FTB paperwork and forms (with TDS' 

assistance), establish a SWIFT account with the FTB, and provide whatever assistance may be 

required to work with the FTB regarding the FTB process. 

9 

Page 67



AGREEMENT FOR PROCESSING 
OF PARKING AND ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS 

T. Payment Plans - The Contractor will have a payment plan system in place to comply with all 

legislation. The plan will allow for waivers, when necessary, for indigent and non-indigent 

individuals. Plan requests will be submitted to the Customer for review/approval/denial. The 

Contractor will mail correspondence to let the applicant know the status of their payment plan 

application and other details. Payment Plans allow the agency to waive fees for indigent persons, 

adjust the length of the plan and set minimum payments due. lfa plan defaults prior to full payment, 

the system automatically resumes the citation process (DMV, Collections, etc.). The Contractor will 

provide customized agency specific information for indigent payment plans on pticket.com. 

U. Bank Account Management {optional) 

TDS will open a trust account in the name of the Agency to receive parking deposits for all parking 

citation monies. TDS will handle any NSF checks from this account and reactivate the citations. TDS 

will process any required refund checks. TDS will send a monthly surcharge check to the county 

based on reporting. TDS will pay their own invoice monthly and write a check to the Agency monthly 

for the balance of the funds. TDS will reconcile the account monthly and provide documentation to 

Agency of reconciliation. 

V. Handheld Ticketwriters - ticketPRO Magic 

TDS will provide ticketPRO Magic Units and citations and envelopes as required at the pricing then 

in effect. TDS will provide maintenance and support for the Automated Citation Issuance System 

and the Field Units. RemoteConnect Support is provided for devices while in the field. TDS will 

provide a data plan with unlimited voice/text messaging for field units. Software upgrades are 

provided as newer versions become available. Support via email is provided for support requests 

and for reporting software/hardware issues. 

10 

Page 68



AGREEMENT FOR PROCESSING 
OF PARKING AND ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS 

TDS shall perform the following services in processing all Administrative Citations: 

A. Basic Processing-TDS will enter manual citations including the name and address of the responsible 

party from the citation and citation dispositions into Customer's database within 2 business days. 

The basic service includes database maintenance, daily system backups, Interactive Voice Response 

System {IVRS) with customized recorded information and citation lookup capability, pticket.com 

web-based Inquiry System for the public with customized content, ongoing Client support, and 

documentation and training for use of the TDS-provided online system. Municipal Administrative 

citations are scanned to us and then entered manually. Images of the citations are available on line 

for viewing. 

B. Automated Entry of Administrative Citations - TDS will provide for automated import of electronic 

citations into Customers database within 1 business day. TDS will work with Customer to implement 

any changes required for hand held ticket writer equipment. 

C. System and Document Storage - Citations paid or dismissed will be retained on the computer system 

for 3 years and then removed. Unpaid citations will be retained on the computer system for 5 years 

and then removed. Citation documents will be stored for 2 years from date of issue and then returned 

to Customer or shredded. Payment documents will be stored for 2 years from the date of payment 

and then returned to Customer or shredded. 

D. Online Reporting - Provide monthly reports online indicating the status of all citations, such reports to 

be available for Customer access no later than the thirtieth (30th) day of the following month. 

E. Notice Processing - Print the required Notice and mail to each responsible party within a City 

determined number of days after the citation has been issued. Includes second notices mailed for 

bounced checks, partial payments, and address changes. The notice date shall be delayed if there is 

an unusual delay in delivery of information or citations to TDS. All postage, notice forms and envelopes 

will be provided by TDS. 

F. Delivery Service - Manual citations will be mailed or scanned to TDS by Customer at their own 

expense. TDS reports will be provided on line. TDS will return any required documents via US Mail. 

G. Collection and Payment Processing- TDS will provide the following collection and payment processing 

services for Customer: 

• Provide P. 0. Box where payments are mailed 
• Courier pickup from P. 0. Box daily 
• Open all mail 
• Verify payment amounts and record on computer system within 2 business days (48 hours) 

11 

Page 69



AGREEMENT FOR PROCESSING 
OF PARKING AND ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS 

• Respond to reasonable public inquiries by phone and/or mail 
• Return questionable mail to Customer for decision 
• Verify amounts deposited, by citation number 

• Scan all checks into remote deposit software of Agency's bank account- electronic deposits 
• Store and periodically destroy checks as required 
• Provide reports for bank statement reconciliation 

• TDS does not charge for remote deposits; however, the financial institution may charge a 
fee, which is the responsibility of the Customer. 

• Customers not set up for bank check scanning will incur additional courier fees of $200 per 
month. 

H. Web Payment System - Payment by Credit Card - Through the pticket.com web site, we accept credit 

card payments via Visa, MasterCard and Discover. The system authorizes each transaction while the 

customer is online. Customers are given an email confirmation to confirm their charge. The 

pticket.com web payment system automatically updates the citation database with the payment 

immediately. Credit Card monies are paid to a Turbo Data Systems bank account and are reconciled 

monthly. Each customer receives their own credit card postlog which shows in detail which citations 

were paid and for what amount, along with the deposit slip from the bank or the ACH deposit email 

showing that these funds have been deposited into the customer's account. Should there be any 

charge backs to the merchant account, the funds are pulled directly from the Turbo Data master 

account and the citation will be reactivated, much like a bounced check. The violator will be sent a 

notice and will then proceed to further collections. TDS will provide all services regarding 

reconciliation, reactivation of charge backs, etc. Customer will not be involved in the daily processing. 

I. Administrative Adjudication Processing Service - TDS will provide for the processing of requests for 

contesting citations, and tracking and monitoring all relevant dates on an automated system. All 

Administrative Adjudication information entered into the system is done in real time and is linked to 

existing database information to ensure proper tracking of relevant dates, mailing names and addresses 

and other pertinent information. Hearing requests will be entered within 2 business days of receipt. 

Adjudication documents will be stored for 2 years from their activity date and then shredded. 

J. Administrative Adjudication Hearings -TDS will schedule the City's independent hearing examiner to 

conduct hearings in person, in writing and over the phone. City will provide in person hearing location. 

K. Online Inquiry Access for Customers' Staff- TicketPROWeb Access includes online access 24 hours a 

day, 7 days a week for Agency personnel to inquire on Customer's database. This access includes 

citation inquiry (includes citation status, history status, administrative adjudication status, notes, 

12 

Page 70



AGREEMENT FOR PROCESSING 
OF PARKING AND ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS 

etc.), the ability to enter and view notes, post dismissals/payments, and view daily deposits made 

by TDS. TDS' technical staff will provide support. TDS will provide access to the citation database 

through the Customers' Internet connection. 

L. Additional Notices - TDS will mail Other Correspondence as required for processing. 

M. ICS Collection Service - Special Collections - Citations remaining outstanding ninety days after 

becoming delinquent and any other citations deemed as delinquent citations by Customer are 

transferred into the ICS system on a weekly basis. Up to two collection letters will be mailed for each 

ICS account requesting payment. Payments are processed daily and deposited to the Customer's 

regular citation processing bank account. The TDS Customer Service Center will handle all lCS related 

calls through a special toll-free number dedicated to ICS accounts. Monthly reporting shows all 

accounts moved to the ICS system and all payments received due to ICS efforts. 

N. Franchise Tax Board Offset Program - TDS will combine citations by responsible party for total 

amount due, eliminate corporate names, retrieve SSN's by name from a 3rd party, combine accounts 

by SSN, mail required FTB letters in advance of placing accounts at FTB, process payments generated 

by the FTB process, receive phone calls generated by the FTB process, provide all systems and 

operational procedures required for the FTB process, and provide complete reporting and 

reconciliation for the FTB process. Customer will be required to complete required FTB paperwork 

and forms. (with TDS' assistance), establish a SWIFT account with the FTB, and provide whatever 

assistance may be required to work with the FTB regarding the FTB process. Customer will pay the 

FTB directly for their offset services. 

0. Bank Account Management-(optional)TDS will open a trust account in the name of the Agency to 

receive parking deposits for all administrative citation monies. TDS will handle any NSF checks from 

this account and reactivate the citations. TDS will process any required refund checks. TDS will pay 

their own invoice monthly and write a check to the Agency monthly for the balance of the funds. 

TDS will reconcile the account monthly and provide documentation to Agency of reconciliation. This 

account may be joined with the parking citation trust account in the event that one exists. 

P. Handheld Ticketwriters - ticketPRO Magic 

TDS will provide ticketPRO Magic Units and citations and envelopes as required a! the pricing then 

in effect. TDS will provide maintenance and support for the Automated Citation Issuance System 

and the Field Units. RemoteConnect Support is provided for devices while in the field. TDS will 

provide a data plan with unlimited voice/text messaging for field units. Software upgrades are 

13 

Page 71



AGREEMENT FOR PROCESSING 
OF PARKING AND ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS 

provided as newer versions become available. Support via email is provided for support requests 

and for reporting software/hardware issues. 

14 

Page 72



AGREEMENT FOR PROCESSING 
OF PARKING AND ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS 

PROPOSAL FOR PARKING CITATION PROCESSING & MOBILE ENFORCEMENT SERVICES 
AND 

PROPOSAL FOR ADMINISTRATIVE CITATION PROCESSING, 
COLLECTION & MOBILE ENFORCEMENT 

Page 73



PROPOSAL FOR 

Parking Citation Processing & 
Mobile Enforcement Services 

Submitted by: Submitted to: 

City of 

Livingston 
California 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION DISCLAIMER: 
This proposal contains certain confidential and valuable information in the form of ideas, know-how, concepts, processes, plans and trade 

secrets that belong to Turbo Data Systems, Inc. In accordance with the California Public Records Act, this confidential information shall not 

be disclosed outside the agency and shall not be duplicated, used, or disclosed in whole or in part for any purpose except in the procurement 

process. Confidential information contained in this documentis noted on each applicable page or image, Serious and irreparable competitive 

disadvantage in future procurements could result from the release of any confidential information contained in this proposal. Please notify 

us immediately, in writing, if there is a request for disclosure of any confidential information, so that we will have an opportunity to 
participate in any disclosure discussions. Page 74



1 uroo uata !)ystems, Inc. Llty or uvmgston • 

Contents 
Parking Processing Management .................................................................................................................................... 2 

1. Electronic and Manual Parking Citations .......................................................................................................................... 2 

2. ticketPRO Platform Hosting& Maintenance .................................................................................................................... 2 

3. Reminder Notices (Notice of Violation) ............................................................................................................................ 2 

4. Other Correspondence, Notices and Letters .................................................................................................................... 2 

5. Initial Review and Hearing Notices/Letters ...................................................................................................................... 2 

6. Paperless Appeals ............................................................................................................................................................. 2 

7. Payment Plan Processing .................................................................................................................................................. 2 

8. Out-of-State Collections ................................................................................................................................................... 3 

9. ICS Delinquent Collections ................................................................................................................................................ 3 

10. Franchise Tax Board Collections ................................................................................................................................... 3 

11. Credit Card Payments (Internet and Phone/lVR) ......................................................................................................... 3 

12. Banking Options -Agency may Choose from the following: ........................................................................................ 3 

13. Hearing Examiner Services - Parking Citations ............................................................................................................ 3 

14. Postal Rate Increase Offset .......................................................................................................................................... 4 

ticketPRO Mobile Enforcement ....................................................................................................................................... 5 

ticketPRO nFORCER-11 ALL-IN-ONE (Option 2) .................................................................................................................. 6 

ticketPRO nFORCER-11 Accessories and options ................................................................................................................ 7 

Parking Tickets Printed Media ........................................................................................................................................ 7 

Pagell Thursday February 29, 2024 Page 75



I uroo uata ::,ystems, Inc. Llty OT LIVI ngston 

Parking Processing Management 

1. Electronic and Manual Parking Citations $0.50 - Electronic 
$0.70 - Manual 

• Entry of all citations . 
• Citation dispositions (bounced checks, payments, extensions, etc.) 
• DMV interface (r/o retrieval and placing and releasing registration holds) 
• Toll-free telephone number (for public access) 
0 Multi-lingual interactive voice response system (IVR) 
• Customer services representatives (8 am - 5 PM, Mon - Fri, excluding holidays) 
• Daily pick up of payments and other documents from a TDS provided P.O. box . 
0 Scan and remote deposit checks into agency's bank account. 
• pticket.com web pages customized for the agency . 
• Database maintenance and daily system backups . 

• Secure, cloud access for agency staff to citation database . 
0 Documentation and training for use ofTDS provided online system. 
• Ongoing client support and training . 

2. ticketPRO Platform Hosting & Maintenance $300/month 

• Cloud Hosting . 

• Security and PC! Compliance . 

• Provides ongoing support and maintenance of hosting platforms . 
• Provide Testing/Staging environment for early software releases . 

• Online training for Mobile App and backend . 
• RMS system export - if available and supported by vendor . 

• Electronic storage and archival of captured images . 

• Scheduled shift-summary reporting and on-demand reports . 

• Access to ticketPRO WEB and TPMViewer backend Web interface . 

3. Reminder Notices (Notice of Violation) $0.90 per notice 

Includes all forms, envelopes, return envelopes and printing. Reminder notices are 
mailed 21 days after issuance or per agency timeline. Includes first class postage. 

4. Other Correspondence, Notices and Letters $0.90 per notice 

Includes all forms, envelopes, and printing. NSF letters, partial payments, name, and 
address changes, drive away notice, etc. Includes first class postage. (Excludes FTB 
and ICS notices) 

5. Initial Review and Hearing Notices/Letters $0.90 per notice 

TDS mails all initial review results letters, hearing notification letters and hearing 
result letters as required. All forms, envelopes and printing are included with the 
mailing. Includes first class postage. 

6. Paperless Appeals $1.25 per appeal 

This service allows for online submitted appeals and a 100% PAPERLESS appeal 
system. All mailed-in appeals are scanned into the system and are reviewable by 
Agency staff using the eAppeals PRO online review system. All appeals are in the 
same place, and the documentation is saved electronically. A complete history of all 
appeals, results, and who made the decisions, etc., is always available on line for the 
Agency. Includes Hearing services, scheduling, and coordination. Documents for 
Court provided to agency when required. 

7. Payment Plan Processing $5.00 per Plan 

The payment plan supports ABS03 legislation. All payment plan letters will be at the 
"Correspondence" rate. 

Page 12 Thursday February 29, 2024 Page 76



I uroo LJata ~ystems, Inc. ucy or uv1ngs1on 

8. Out-of-State Collections 25% of amount 
collected 

TDS absorbs costs to retrieve out of state registered owner information. NLETS 
electronic access for out-of-state license plates. 

9. ICS Delinquent Collections 25% of amount 
collected 

Applies to citations that are past DMV registration hold. Additional penalties applied, 
and up to two letters mailed from Innovative at no cost to the Agency. Includes taking 
toll-free phone calls from ICS customers and other follow-up efforts. Payments 
collected at DMV will not be billed this fee. 
Cost recovery option available 

10. Franchise Tax Board Collections $2 Per Account Letter 
+15% of amount paid 

TDS pursues otherwise uncollectible accounts by retrieving social security numbers 
from a third party, mailing required pre-intercept letters, and then sending the 
accounts to the FTB to intercept any state tax refunds or lottery winnings. *This fee 
is subject to change each new FTB year. 
Cost recovery option available 

11. Credit Card Payments {Internet and Phone/lVR) No Charge to Agency 

A $3.95 convenience fee per citation paid will be charged to the public for this 
service. This fee covers the cost of ongoing maintenance, support, and 
enhancements of the web payment system, and includes daily and monthly 
reconciliation of all payments. (Fee subject to change). 

12. Banking Options -Agency may Choose from the following: 

Option 1: Remote (Scan) Check Deposits No Charge to Agency 

• Electronic deposits (scanning checks) into the Agency's existing bank account 
incur no monthly fee. 

• Same day funding credit for bank deposits . 

• Scanned check images available for investigations . 
Option 2: TDS Bank Management $150/month plus bank 

• Process all parking deposits into a separate account set up for the Agency . fees/supplies 

• Scanned check images available for investigations . 

• $3.50 fee per NSF/Charge back and refund billed to Agency . 

• Write and send monthly surcharge check to the county based on reporting . 

• Write a check to TDS for services rendered . 

• Reconcile the account monthly and provide monthly reconciliation of all 
activities in the account. 

• Write a check to Agency monthly for the balance of the funds . 

13. Hearing Examiner Services - Parking Citations Unavailable 

Each trip to the city for in-person hearings Unavailable 

TDS will provide an independent, fair, and impartial hearing examiner who will 
conduct phone, written, and in-person hearings. TDS agrees to perform the hearing 
examiner services at a date and time mutually agreed upon. Hearing examiners will 
comply with the training requirements for the position as outlined in California 
Vehicle Code Section 40215. TDS will ensure that hearings are completed in a timely 
manner, that decisions are rendered to uphold or deny each appeal and that all 
paperwork is completed. 

Page 13 Thursday February 29, 2024 Page 77



I uroo Uata ~ystems, inc. uty or uvingston 

14. Postal Rate Increase Offset 
If postal rates increase during the term of this agreement, fees to TDS shall be raised 
immediately to offset the effect of the postal rate increase. 

Page 14 Thursday February 29, 2024 Page 78



I urbo uata !)ystems, Inc. ury or uvmgsron 

ticketPRO Mobile Enforcement 

ticketPRO Magic 2-piece (Option 1) 

ticketPRO Mobile Solution Option-1 

This option is a complete solution that includes phone, printer, software, 4G data plan, support, and maintenance for 
a single monthly price per unit. Two printer options are available. 

Initial One-time Fees Unit Cost 

ticketPRO Mobile software setup and configuration: Initial setup and installation of software $100 per unit 
with agency specific information 

60-Month Lease Monthly Rate 

Monthly Lease Details - Rugged Smartphone/Printer Combo + Data Plan $120 per month per 

• Rugged android smart phone unit 
• Bluetooth printer 
• USB C Power Adaptor 
• 4/SG data plan 
• ticketPRO Mobile parking software 
• Remote management software 
• ticketPRO Mobile and RM software licenses 
• Maintenance and support 
• Zebra Printer Option; Add $15/month/unit . 

Monthly Lease Details Rate 

Smartphone: Rugged Samsung smartphone or equivalent I High-Res Camera I Military spec. MIL- Included 
810G rated I Bluetooth I USB Charging I 4/SG LTE 

Bluetooth Printer: TSC or Zebra Printer I Includes Lithium-Ion Battery I AC Charger I Belt Clip I 2 Included 
years Parts & Labor Warranty (lyear on printhead) I Configured to Agency's ticketPRO Mobile 
system I Additional accessories: spare battery, case with shoulder strap, charging dock (Zebra 
only) are available for purchase. 

Managed 4/SG Voice and Data Plan Included 

ticketPRO Mobile Software: Parking Software I Real-Time citation & photo transfer I Live Lookups Included 
for prior citations I Built-in LPR I ALPR interface I Electronic Chalking I GPS tracking I Live shared 
data between all devices I Interfacing with pay-stations, and payment by phone systems I 
Scofflaw and hotlist vehicle alerts 

ticketPRO Mobile Software Annual License Included 

Remote Management Software Maintenance and Support: Remote servicing and updates I Field Included 
support including remote-connect assistance I email support for Agency requests 

• Sales tax will be applied to all items listed. 

• At the end of the monthly lease, all equipment will be returned to TDS in good working order. If equipment is not returned, 
the lease will revert to a month-to-month lease with 30 days' notice required prior to turning the equipment in. 

• Early Termination Fees will apply. 

• Rugged Smartphone and printer hardware are subject to availability. 

Disclaimer: 
TDS may subscribe to various third-party software services for the purpose of automating input of information while writing 
the ticket. These services may include Google Maps, location services GPS, LPR services, andVIN lookups. TDS reserves the 
right, should these services terminate, to disable those services in the software. These services are integrated into the 
software for convenience and do not affect the issuance of citations. 

Page IS Thursday February 29, 2024 Page 79



I urbo Uata !lystems, Inc. uty or uvmgston 

ticketPRO nFORCER-11 ALL-IN-ONE (Option 2) 

ticketPRO Mobile Solution Option-2 (All-in-one nFORCER-11 Print) 

This option is a complete solution that includes phone, printer, software, 4G data plan, support, and maintenance for 
a single monthly price per unit. 

Initial One-time Fees 

ticketPRO Mobile software setup and configuration: Initial setup and installation of software 
with agency specific information 

60-Month Lease 

Monthly Lease Details - Rugged Smartphone/Printer Combo+ Data Plan 
• All included, all-in-one rugged nFORCER-11 (smartphone + printer) 
• 4/SG data plan 
• Docking power stations 
• ticketPRO Mobile parking software 
• Remote management software 
• ticketPRO Mobile and RM software licenses 
• Maintenance and support 

Monthly Lease Details 

Smartphone: Built-in rugged Samsung smartphone or equivalent I High-Res Camera I Bluetooth 
I USB Charging I 4/SG L TE 

Printer: Built-in 3" printer. 

Managed 4/SG Voice and Data Plan 

ticketPRO Mobile Software: Parking Software I Real-Time citation & photo transfer I Live Lookups 
for prior citations I Built-in LPR I ALPR interface I Electronic Chalking I GPS tracking I Live shared 
data between all devices I Interfacing with pay-stations, and payment by phone systems I 
Scofflaw and hotlist vehicle alerts 

ticketPRO Mobile Software Annual License 

Remote Management Software Maintenance and Support: Remote servicing and updates I Field 
support including remote-connect assistance I email support for Agency requests 

• Sales tax will be applied to all items listed. 

Unit Cost 

$100 per unit 

Monthly Rate 

$145 per month per 
unit 

Rate 

Included 

Included 

Included 

Included 

Included 

Included 

• At the end of the monthly lease, all equipment will be returned to TDS in good working order. If equipment is not returned, 
the lease will revert to a month-to-month lease with 30 days' notice required prior to turning the equipment in. 

• Early Termination Fees will apply. 

• Rugged Smartphone and printer hardware are subject to availability. 

Disclaimer: 
TDS may subscribe to various third-party software services for the purpose of automating input of informationwhile writing 
the ticket. These services may include Google Maps, location services GPS, LPR services, andVIN lookups. TDS reserves the 
right, should these services terminate, to disable those services in the software. These services are integrated into the 
software for convenience and do not affect the issuance of citations. 

Page J6 Thursday February 29, 2024 Page 80



1 urbo uata !:iystems, Inc. L.lty or Livingston 

ticketPRO nFORCER-11 Accessories and options 

Item Description Price 
1 !Single Dock with power supply $ 219.00 
2 !Single Dock without power supply(used with quad base) $ 195.00 
3 Quad Dock base only $ 365.00 
4 Quad Dock base with docks $1,147.00 

5 Hot swap Battery $ 138.00 
6 Carry case $ 39.00 
7 USB Car charger $ 50.00 
8 USB AC Adapter $ 65.00 
9 Hand strap $ 24.00 
10 ~op Strap $ 24.00 

Accessories 

• 
01argmg Cubie xi: Car Charger 

, 
Purse Hundle CanymgCase Shoulder Strep 

One Position Chmgmg Dock Smgl~ Posmon On(k Pot;,·er Supply ~our Posmon Charging Dock 

Parking Tickets Printed Media 

Citations and Envelopes 

Unit Cost 

TDS provides Standard or Custom citations and envelopes that are compatible with our Varies with size and 
ticketPRO Mobile solution. quantity ordered 

All quoted prices are valid 60 days from the date submitted. 

Page 17 Thursday February 29, 2024 Page 81



BUDGETARY PROPOSAL FOR 
Administrative Citation Processing 
Collection & Mobile Enforcement 

Submitted by: 

..f-. • rh.,..,. -r A 
L i.-11 • ,,,._, ._, ,_,, /' ' u \ 

S'y'S J EMS 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION DISCLAIMER: 

Submitted to: 

City of 

Livingston 
California 

This proposal contains certain confidential and valuable information in the form of ideas, know-how, concepts, processes, plans and trade 

secrets that belong to Turbo Data Systems, Inc. In accordance with the California Public Records Act, this confidential information shall not 
be disclosed outside the agency and shall not be duplicated, used, or disclosed in whole or in partforany purpose except in the procurement 

process. Confidential information contained in this document is noted on each applicable page or image. Serious and irreparable competitive 

disadvantage in future procurements could result from the release of any confidential information contained in this proposal. Please notify 

us immediately, in writing, if there is a request for disclosure of any confidential information, so that we will have an opportunity to 
participate in any disclosure discussions. Page 82



I urbo uata !:>ystems, inc. L1ty or uvmgston 

Contents 
Administrative Citation Processing Management .................................................................................................................... 2 

Basic Processing Fees: Electronic and Manual Parking Citations ......................................................................................... 2 

Notices Mailing ..................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Other Correspondence, Notices and Letters ........................................................................................................................ 2 

Payment Plan Processing ...................................................................................................................................................... 2 

ICS Delinquent Collections .................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Franchise Tax Board Collections ........................................................................................................................................... 2 

Credit Card Payments (Internet and Phone/lVR) ................................................................................................................. 2 

Banking Service: TDS Bank Management ............................................................................................................................. 3 

Hearing Scheduling and Noticing-Administrative Citations (Optional) .............................................................................. 3 

Postal Rate Increase Offset .................................................................................................................................................. 3 

ticketPRO Mobile Enforcement ................................................................................................................................................ 4 

ticket PRO nFORCER-11 ALL-IN-ONE LEASE OPTION ................................................................................................................... 4 

ticketPRO Mobile Enforcement ................................................................................................................................................ 5 

ticketPRO nFORCER-II Accessories and options .................................................................................................................... 5 

Tickets Printed Media ........................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Page 11 Thursday, March 7, 2024 Page 83



1 urbo uata ::,ystems, 1nc. uty or uvmgston 

Administrative Citation Processing Management 

Basic Processing Fees: Electrqnic and Manual Parking Citations $3.00/Electronic citation 
$5.00/Manual citation 

Monthly Hosting fees for Basic Processing Fees $300 Monthly Hosting 

Basic Processing includes: 

• Entry of all citations . 
• Citation dispositions (bounced checks, payments, extensions, etc.) 
• Daily pick up of payments and other documents from a TDS provided P.O. box . 
• Scan and remote deposit checks into agency's bank account . 
• pticket.com web pages customized for the agency . 
• Database maintenance and daily system backups . 
• Secure, cloud access for a(iency staff to citation database . 
• Documentation and train mg for use ofTDS provided online system . 
• Ongoing client support and training . 

Additional Services 

Notices Mailing $0.95 per notice 

Includes all forms, envelopes, return envelopes and printing. Up to two notices are 
mailed per agency timeline. Includes first class postage. 

Other Correspondence, Notices and Letters $0.95 per notice 

Includes all forms, envelopes, and printing. NSF letters, partial payments, name, and 
address changes, etc. Includes first class postage. (Excludes FTB and ICS notices) 

Payment Plan Processing $5.00 per Plan 
Standard payment plans are available. All payment plan letters will be at the 
"Correspondence" rate. 

ICS Delinquent Collections 25% of amount collected 

Collection will start based on an agency timeline. Additional penalties applied, and 
up to two letters mailed from Innovative at no cost to the Agency. Includes taking 
toll-free phone calls from ICS customers and other follow-up efforts. 
Cost recoverv OQtion available 

Franchise Tax Board Collections $2 Per Account Letter 
+15% of amount paid 

TDS pursues otherwise uncollectible accounts by retrieving social security numbers 
from a third party, mailing required pre-intercept letters, and then sending the 
accounts to the FTB to intercept any state tax refunds or lottery winnings. *This fee 
is subject to change each new FTB year. 
Cost recovery option available 

Credit Card Payments (Internet and Phone/lVR) No Charge to Agency 

A $4 fee (minimum) or 4% of the amount paid (whichever is greater), convenience 
fee per citation paid by the public. This fee covers the cost of ongoing maintenance, 
support, and enhancements of the web payment system, and includes daily and 
monthly reconciliation of all payments. (Fee subject to change). 

Pagel2 Thursday, March 7, 2024 Page 84



I uroo !Jata !:iystems, Inc. uty or uvingston 

Banking Service: TDS Bank Management Reduced to $75 + bank 
fees/supplies 

• Process all parking deposits into a separate account set up for Agency . Reduction applies if 

• Scanned check images available for investigations . bank management 
already set up for 

• $5.00 fee per NSF/Charge back and refund billed to Agency . parking services. 
• Write a check to TDS for services rendered . 

• Reconcile the account monthly and provide monthly reconciliation of all 
activities in the account. 

• Write a check to Agency monthly for the balance of the funds . 

Hearing Scheduling and Noticing-Administrative Citations (Optional) $1.55 per Letter 

• Send hearing notification letters for in-person, phone and/or zoom hearings . 

• Coordinate with city and city provided hearing examiner on dates/times . 

• Track hearings and reschedules in the ticketPRO system . 

• Send hearing result letters and process refunds when required . 

Postal Rate Increase Offset 

If postal rates increase during the term of this agreement, fees to TDS shall be raised 
immediately to offset the effect of the postal rate increase. 

Page 13 Thursday, March 7, 2024 Page 85



I urbo uata !:,ystems, Inc. Llty or uvmgston 

ticketPRO Mobile Enforcement 

ticketPRO nFORCER-11 ALL-IN-ONE LEASE OPTION 

ticketPRO Mobile Solution 

This option is a complete solution that includes phone, printer, software, 4G data plan, support, and maintenance for 
a single monthly price per unit. 

Initial One-time Fees Unit Cost 
ticketPRO Mobile software setup and configuration: Initial setup and installation of software 
with agency specific information $100 per unit 

60-Month Lease Monthly Rate 
Monthly Lease Details - Rugged Smartphone/Printer Combo+ Data Plan nFORCER-11 PRINT 

• All included, all-in-one rugged nFORCER-11 (smartphone + printer) $145/month/unit • 4/SG data plan 
• Docking power stations -• ticketPRO Mobile software • nFORCER-11 SCAN 
• Remote management software ~ 

$175/month/unit • ticketPRO Mobile and RM software licenses 
• Maintenance and support 
• nFORCER-11 SCAN option includes built-in laser barcode scanner . 

Monthly Lease Details Rate 
Smartphone: Built-in rugged Samsung smartphone or equivalent I High-Res Camera I Bluetooth 
I USB Charging I 4/SG LTE 

Included 

Printer: Built-in 311 printer. Included 

Managed 4/SG Voice and Data Plan Included 

ticketPRO Mobile Software: Adm in Software I Real-Time citation & photo transfer I Live Lookups Included 
for prior citations I Built-in LPR I Reinspection Lookup I GPS tracking I Live shared data between 
all devices 

ticketPRO Mobile Software Annual License Included 

Remote Management Software Maintenance and Support: Remote servicing and updates I 
Remote-connect assistance I email support for Agency requests 

Included 

• Sales tax will be applied to all items listed. 

• At the end of the monthly lease, all equipment will be returned to TDS in good working order. If equipment is not returned, 
the lease will revert to a month-to-month lease with 30 days' notice required prior to turning the equipment in. 

• Early Termination Fees will apply. 

• Rugged Smartphone and printer hardware are subject to availability. 

• Lost/stolen/full damaged devices will be replaced at $3,800. 

• Out of warranty repairs will be assessed at the time the incident is reported. Repair costs could vary depending on the 
parts needing replacement. 

Disclaimer: 
TDS may subscribe to various third-party software services for the purpose of automating input of informationwhile writing 
the ticket. These services may include Google Maps, location services GPS, LPR services, andVIN lookups. TDS reserves the 
right, should these services terminate, to disable those services in the software. These services are integrated into the 
software for convenience and do not affect the issuance of citations. 

Page 14 Thursday, March 7, 2024 Page 86



1 urbo uata !:iystems, Inc. uty or Livingston 

ticketPRO Mobile Enforcement 

ticketPRO nFORCER-11 Accessories and options 

Item Description Price 
1 Single Dock with power supply $ 219.00 
2 Single Dock without power supply(used with quad base) $ 195.00 
3 Quad Dock base only $ 365.00 
4 Quad Dock base with docks $1,147.00 

5 Hot swap Battery $ 138.00 
6 Carry case $ 39.00 
7 USB Car charger $ 50.00 
8 USB AC Adapter $ 65.00 
9 Hand strap $ 24.00 
10 op Strap $ 24.00 

Accessories 

S:i. 0 • 
ChiJrgmg Cable X~ c,ir Ch,irger 

C>I , \11 
Pur~e ffond!e Shou!rler Strap 

Four Posrt1on Charging Dock 

Tickets Printed Media 

Citations and Envelopes 

Unit Cost 

TDS provides Standard or Custom citations and envelopes that are compatible with our Varies with size and 
ticketPRO Mobile solution. For a single device use with multiple ticketPRO Apps, a plain paper quantity ordered 
option is available which allow printing of parking and admin citations on the same stock. 

All quoted prices are valid 60 days from the date submitted. 

Page JS Thursday, March 7, 2024 Page 87



STAFF REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE 
REPLACEMENT FOR LIVINGSTON POLICE DEPARTMENT CODE 
ENFORCEMENT/ANIMAL CONTROL VEHICLE 

MEETING DATE: 

PREPARED BY: 

APPROVED By: 

April 16, 2024 

John Ramirez, Acting Chief of Police 

Christopher Lopez, Interim City Manager 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt Resolution No. 2024- _ , approving the purchase and replacement of City of Livingston 
Police Department Animal Control vehicle which is designed strictly for use as an Animal 
Control vehicle. 

BACKGROUND: 
The current Animal Control Vehicle is a 2006 Ford F-250 and has been in service for 18 years 
with approximately 114,000 "city" miles. The vehicle was designated specifically for Animal 
Control and is retrofitted with numerous cages for the purpose of transporting animals. The 
vehicle is an older model and recently has been experiencing many mechanical issues. The 
vehicle has become increasingly expensive to maintain and keep operational. 

In March 2023 the City of Livingston created a full time Code Enforcement Officer position that 
also absorbed the existing duties of the Animal Control Officer. The current vehicle is 
exclusively set up for Animal Control. The current Code Enforcement/Animal Control Officer 
would be better outfitted with a vehicle that serves as a dual purpose. 

The purchase of a new vehicle is requested to meet the dual-purpose need of the new position. 
The current set up does not allow for any other use than the transportation of animals. The new 
vehicle could also be used for additional police department functions and use if needed. 

DISCUSSION: 

Three separate quotes were obtained for a 2023/2024 Chevy Silverado. 

Base Price Tax, License Sub-Total Equipment Lights and TOTAL 
& Fees Install Graphics 

American $40,400.00 $4,135.44 $44,535.44 $1 ,600.00 $2987.15 $49,122.59 
Chevrolet 
Merced $42,250.00 $3,730.48 $45,857.23 $1 ,600.00 $2987.15 $50,444.38 
Chevrolet 
Chase $45,090.00 $3,501 .07 $48,685.82 $1,600.00 $2987.15 $53,272.97 
Chevrolet 

Page 1 of2 

Page 88



FISCAL IMPACT 

The money to purchase and retrofit the vehicle will come from current salary savings from the 
Police Department's General Fund Budget. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution 
2. Emergency Equipment/Graphics Quote 
3. Equipment installation quote 
4. Three (3) quotes for 2023/2024 Chevy Silverado 

Page 2 of 2 

Page 89



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON APPROVING THE 
CITY OF LIVINGSTON'S PURCHASE OF A NEW CODE ENFORCEMENT/ANIMAL 

CONTROL VEHICLE 

WHEREAS, the City of Livingston Police Department is responsible for the function of 
the Code Enforcement Officer and Animal Control Officer for the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Livingston Police Department maintains a fleet of vehicles that 
are necessary in the operation and function of the officer's duties; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Livingston Police Department has determined a new truck must 
be purchased to replace an existing 2006 truck which has exceeded its useful life and purpose; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City of Livingston could purchase a 2023/2024 Chevrolet Silverado 
1500 Pick Up Truck not to exceed Forty Four Thousand Five Hundred Thirty Five Dollars and 
Forty Four Cents ($44,535.44); and 

WHEREAS, the Emergency Equipment (Safety Lighting/Communication/Graphics) for 
this vehicle must be purchased separately from LEHR and Sign works for an amount of Two 
Thousand Nine Hundred Eighty Seven Dollars and Fifteen Cents ($2,987.15); and 

WHEREAS, the equipment installation for this vehicle must be purchased separately 
from Steele Public Safety Systems for an amount of Sixteen Hundred Dollars and no cents 
($1,600.00); and 

WHEREAS, the total cost for this vehicle, fully equipped will be an amount not to exceed 
Forty Nine Thousand One Hundred Twenty Two Dollars and Fifty Nine Cents ($49,122.59); and 

WHEREAS, the necessary fund for this purchase are available under the 2023/2024 
. Police Department Budget 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Livingston 
hereby authorizes 1) the expenditure of $49,122.59 from salary savings of the police 
department general fund budget for the purchase ($44,535.44) and outfitting ($4,587.15) of the 
additional vehicle proposed, and 2) authorize the Interim City Manager to purchase the following 
vehicle from American Chevrolet, in the total amount not to exceed $44,535.44. 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2024-__ is a full, true and correct copy of a 
resolution duly passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Livingston at a regular 
meeting thereof duly held on the 16th day of April 2024, by the vote recorded as follows: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

Page 90



ATTEST 

Monica Cisneros, Deputy City Clerk 
Of the City of Livingston 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM 

Roy C. Santos, City Attorney 

By: __________ _ 
Jose A. Moran, Mayor 
of City of Livingston 

Page 91



www.signs-tsw.com (>~ ~ (fJ 

• GI 

' ' ....... 

209•383•2727 
4938 W. Stale Hwy 140 Atwater. CA 95301 

&,ct«tfy;,r (✓I.-
- 01g,tal Prlntmg 
-Vohiclo Lettorlng 
..,, Vah,clD Wraps 
- Barinors 
.,, Window Gri:ipnlc:s 
.. Vinyl LoHorlng 
...- Magnetic Signs 
.. Trade Show 
..,, POP Displays 
,.,, Decals 
., Real Esta.le 
..- A•Fr.imos 
.,, Plastic Lothm: 
..- Molal Le!lors 
- Chnnnol Lo!1ors 
- E!ectnc Signs ... 

mrttC)//.(Jfd / 

Estimate #1848 3/18/2024 
Prepared for: 
City of Livingston Police Dept. 
Chief John Ramirez 
1446 C St 
Livingston, CA 95334 

Prepared by: 
The Sign Works 
Salesperson: dandugan@elite.net 
4938 W. State Hwy 140 
Atwater, CA 95301 

Phone: 209-3947-917 Fax: Phone: 383-2727 Fax: Please email 

Description: 
Code lnforcement 

Delivery: 

Production time for the following item( s) will be approximately 5 working days. 

Quantity Description Each Amount Tax 

1 Code lnforcement Pick Up Graphics 3/Sides $525.00 $525.00 Yes 

TOTALS Subtotal: $525.00 

Sales Tax: $43.31 
Total: $568.31 

Terms: 
This estimate good for 30 days. Full payment net 10 days. 
By my signature below, I authorize work to begin and agree to pay above amount in full according to the terms on this agreement 

SIGNED:. _______________ DATE:. ______ AMT. PAID TODAY:. _____ _ 

Page 92



0 

----------

0 City of Livington 

0 

.o~ ,t:, 4 ~ r&1-..-•,,,. ------IJOllll llll'Olllll"tll 0 

0 ioRi11/IOllt:llllllll 
c:::===i c:::===i 

1C@ I 
- - - I 

Page 93



9240 Prototype Dr Reno, NV 89521 
Phone: 775-507-2460 Fax: 

Sell 
To: 

Ship Via 

City of Livingston 
ramirez 
1416 C Street 
Livingston, CA 95334 
Phone: 209-646-4270 

/jf 

Tax Iden!. Type Legal Entity 

Vehicle Information: 

Ship 
To: 

Quote Number. 
Document Date: 
Terms: 
Payment Method: 

City Of Livingston 
ramlrez 
2238 Walnut Ave 
Livingston, CA 95334 
Phone: 800-982-8468 

Customer ID 
SalesPerson 

PRICES ARE VALID FOR 30 DAYS FROM DATE OF QUOTE UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED 

Sales Quote 
Page: 

46009 
3/14/2024 

Net 30 

50873 

na Niles 

Item No. Description 
Manufacturer 
Name Quantity Unit Price Total Price 

JY2MAA-LEHR 

WCC9 

STPKT101 

VTX609A 

IONA 

Whelen 56" Justice llghtbar, WC, All Amber, TA, TD, Al Whelen 

Whelen WeCan Controller, Control Lights & Traffic Advisor for Whelen 
Justice Lightbars 
Whelen, Strap Kit, Fits Silverado 1500 2019-2020 Whelen 

Whelen Vertex Super-LED Omni Directional Lighthead Amber Whelen 

Whelen ION Series Super-LED Universal Light - Amber Whelen 

FREIGHT TO BE ADDED ACCORDINGLY 

4-6 WEEK LEAD TIME 

Agency Approval 

Name. ________________ _ 

I 
Amount Subject to Sales Tax 

2244,86 
Amount Exempt from Sales Tax 

Auth. Signature: L::.::..:::::::::::.:=================--_J 0.00 

4 

2 

Subtotal: 
Total Sales Tax: 

Total: 

1,339,00 

256,90 

80,50 

87,99 

108.25 

1,339.00 

256,90 

80.50 

351.96 

216,50 

2,244,86 
173,98 

2,418,84 

PLEASE READ: No returns without approval and an RMA# will be accepted. All shortages, damage, or return claims must be made within 10 days of 
invoice date. NO EXCEPTIONS. A copy of the invoice and RMA paperwork must be shipped with returns. All return orders or cancellations are 
subject to a 25% restocking fee plus freight. Any change orders made 60 days prior to the installation date may be subject to a production delay 
and pricing changes. PRICES ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE WITHOUT NOTICE. 

Page 94



Steele Public Safety Systems 
8546 Carmellia Ave 

Dos Palos Ca 93620 

Phone: 559-301-3455 

staeleypflt@gmaiJ.com 

BILL TO 

City Of Livingston: 
Livingston Police Department 

1446 C St 

Livingston Ca 95334 

INVOICE 
INVOICE# DATE 

---1----
Q U OT E 3/18/24 L __________________ _, 

,----D-E_S_C_R_IP-T-~-N-----------------------------,----A-M_O_U_N_T~, 

QUOTE: Si1verado Code Enforcement l 
lnstalation of: 
Whelen 56' Light Bar, WC, All Amber TA, TD, AL 

Whelen WeCan-Controller, Control lights & Traffic Advisor 

Whelen Strap kit Fits Silverado 1500 2019-2020 
Whelen Vertex Super- LED Omni Directional lighthead 

Whelen Ion Series Super- LED Universal Light 

Labor: 10 hours@$160/hr 

Thank you for your business! 

Payment Due upon Receipt 

TOTAL $1,600.00 

Invoice Template© 2014 Vertex42 com Page 95



\...S?:Y 

Date/Time: Jan 30, 2024 05:37 PM 

Buyer: 

Phone: 

Address: 

City of Livingston City of Livin1.,, 
,;,ales person: 

H: (209) 394-8041 
Jonathon Quevedo 

Livingston, CA 95334 
Salesperson: Zach Riedinger 

CHEVROLET 

2023 Chevrolet Silveradp 1500, Body Type: Crew Cab Pickup T231012 

Color: Summit White VIN:1GCPDAEK4PZ298495 

Purchase 0 Months 
MSRP/Retail 

Selling Price 
$ Down Est. $/Monthly 

Rebate 

$0 $44,535 Total Savings+ Rebate 

Government Fee 

Proc/Doc Fee 

Ally Theft DNA 

Total Taxes 

Amount Financed 

X X 
Customer Signature Manager Signature 

Date Date 

$47,900.00 

$47,900.00 

$7,500.00 

$7,500.00 

$41.75 

$85.00 

$269.00 

$3,739.69 

$44,535.44 

Please submit this worksheet to Management for its review. I understand that (i) this worksheet is neither an offer nor 
a contract and is not binding on the customer or the dealership, (ii) no offer to purchase any vehicle is binding until 
accepted in writing by an authorized American Chevrolet Sales manager on a California State Motor Vehicle 
Purchase Contract form and (iii) Safes Consultant can not obligate or bind the customer or the dealership. 

Page 96



,Cq• fl _,, di'/) << ~ 
DgaJ 

Deaf= 

Deal Date 

Deal Type 

Financial Inst. 

Program 

Deal Status 

Vehicle R«lo:i: 

@ New 

Stock ~ 

Year 

Make 

Model 

Style 

0 Used () Demo Cert. 

ill !.?._401_4A_ _{_q. j l 

i 20241 

l f HEVROLET TR~:~ l 

!s1LVERADO 1500 1 • 

Sales Price 

MSRP 

Discount 

Selling Price 

Aftermarkets 

DocFee.

VSIPremlum 

ESGPremium 

Maiotenance 

GAP Premium 

LAH/IµI 

Prior Lease Bal 

License Fee 

Dealer Fees 

Total Fees 

rota! Taxes 

Total Price 

{j/ Retail Worksheet 

l~ ~ ,_?5o.ooj 
I 4,ooo.ooj 

lgl 1 __ '.!:3~~@1 

I§ 299.00 

85.00/ 

o.ool 
igj ;-- - o.oci1 

igj[- 0.001 

~ f o~ool 
lj O;OO 

11m l-~ o.ool 
701.001 

~ 0.00 

~ 742.75 

Ii 3,~0.48 

47,107.23 

DQwn P,iyrnent 

Cash Dowi, 

Deposit 

iota! Rebates 

Total Trade Allow 

Total i rade P?Jyoff 

Total l~et Tnide 

Total Def Dovm 

Total 0ovm Payment 

Odometer 
j_?~yo D~.L CAB 1~ 

1 

[_=-_, Trade Difference 42,549.00 

j!l1ye1 

Customer ~ l}§l I ,.;:-, 
Last !-------- -i 
First 

Company 

Reg Stille 

County 

L - - - _J r- ---- __ J 
jCA l:J 
~~B_CED couF! 

;2 ():;), 'f 
ck,v'( 

r tl ~.) 
C-vlf->~ ~wo( 

1 ____ o.ooj 
I 0.001 

iJ§![ _J,:m.ooJ 
ll§L 0.001 

r -~ 
0,00 

~ o.oo 
1,250.00 

Payment 

Term•• 

Sell Rate 

AOR j_ 
# Days 1st Payment t_::-11 

Payments Per Year I g J 
1st Payment Date f Q)j3il_20_2'! l~ T 
Prepaid Fin Charge r-_= O.qQI 

APR 

Amount Financed 

Finance Charge 

Total of Payments 

Total Sales Price 

Payment 

45,857.23 

0.00 

45,857.23 
47,107.23 

45,857.23 

Page 97



Datemme: 2/1/2024 11 :23:53 AM 
CHASE ~CHEVROL.ET 

Buy Into It. 
Buyer: 
Address: 

8441 HolmanRd,SlOd<ton,CAD5212 
(2119) 47M600 Ch;ayo(;hevrolot.com 

2024 Chevrolet Sllverado 1500 Custom 24T0369 

X 

MSRP/Retail 
Selling Price 
Total Savings 
Govemment Fee 
Proc/Doc Fee 
Subtotal 
Total Taxes 
CashOown 
Remaining 

Customer Signature 

VIN: 1GCRASEKXRZ222788 
Odometer:7 
Color. summit Whits 
Body Type: Extended Ceb Plc:kup 

Date 

$47,290.00 
$45,090.00 

$2,200.00 

$9.75 
$85.00 

$45,184.75 
$3,501.07 

0.00 
$48,685.82 

City of Livingston 
1416 CSt 
Livingston, CA 95334 

Salesperson: Paul Correla 

!r-l< ~~ ilrvvw ~ Pr· P .,. 
-r OL~ --.(2.,U\e.-~ \ D "' v\ D 

X 
Manager Signature Date 

Page 98



AGENDA ITEM: 

MEETING DATE: 

PREPARED BY: 

REVIEWED BY: 

STAFF REPORT 

Resolution Approving the purchase of six (6) solar light poles from 
Fonroche Lighting America, in the amount of $31,107 and Authorizing the 
Interim City Manager to execute all required documents. 

April 16, 2024 

Anthony Chavarria, Director of Public Works 

Christopher Lopez, Interim City Manager 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Livingston 
approving the purchase of six (6) solar light poles from Fonroche Lighting America, in the amount of 
$31,107 and authorize the Interim City Manager to execute all required documents. 

BACKGROUND: 

On February 2024 Interim Chief of Police Ramirez conducted a safety assessment for City Hall. One of 
the areas of concern in the safety assessment report was the poor lighting towards the back end of City 
Hall and the employee parking lot. The poorly lit areas are frequently used by transients and most 
recently an employee vehicle was vandalized. The employee parking lot is used by city personnel, the 
Police Department and Fire Department. The inadequate lighting in the surrounding areas of City Hall 
poses a significant risk to the safety and security of employees. 

DISCUSSION: 

The Livingston Municipal Code requires formal bidding procedures for all purchases over $10,000 
unless the formal bidding process is undesirable, impossible, unavailing or incongruous as determined 
by the City Manager. Section 1-11-6 waiver of formal bid procedures of the Municipal Code states that 
formal bid procedure of items over $10,000 can only be waived if the purchase is (A) Of urgent 
necessity for the preservation of life, health or property, (B) Waived by Council resolution passed by at 
least four affirmative votes; and/or (C) Available from only one source. Sole source must be adequately 
justified. 

Fonroche Lighting America meets sole source criteria justification due to being the only manufacturer in 
the World who has developed extremely robust 10-12 year NiMH battery technology and can guarantee 
reliability performance every night of year through localized solar studies and system sizing. 
They are the only manufacturer with a large base of installed lights on tower control feedback, providing 
more than ?millions data points of monitoring feedback, all for continuous reliability improvements. 
They are also the only manufacturer in the world doing climate chamber testing confirming system 
rel iability and robustness. 

To address the safety concerns outlined in the safety assessment and mitigate the risks associated 
with poor lighting, it is recommended that the City Council approve the purchase of six (6) street light 
poles from Fonroche Lighting America. These light poles will be strategically installed in the areas 
identified as poorly lit, enhancing visibility and deterrence against criminal activities. 

Page 1 of2 

Page 99



FISCAL IMPACT: 

The street solar lights will be expended from Municipal Facilities and reimbursed by Merced County 
supervisor Espinoza's discretionary fund. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 
2. Exhibit "A" Cost Proposal from Fonroche Lighting America for the amount of $31,107.00. 
3. Exhibit "B" Sole Source Cover Letter 
4. Exhibit "C" Application Design 

Page 2 of2 

Page 100



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON 
AUTHORIZING APPROVAL OF PURCHASE OF SIX (6) SOLAR LIGHT POLES 
FROM FONROCHE LIGHTING AMERICA, IN THE AMOUNT OF $31,107 AND 

AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ALL REQUIRED 
DOCUMENTS 

 
WHEREAS, on February 2024 Interim Chief of Police Ramirez conducted a safety 

assessment for City Hall; and 
  
WHEREAS, one of the areas of concern in the safety assessment report was the poor 

lighting towards the back end of City Hall and the employee parking lot and the poorly lit areas 
are frequently used by transients and most recently an employee vehicle was vandalized; and 

 
WHEREAS, the employee parking lot is used by city personnel, the Police Department 

and Fire Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, the inadequate lighting in the surrounding areas of City Hall poses a 

significant risk to the safety and security of employees. 
 
WHEREAS, Fonroche Lighting America meets sole source criteria justification due to 

being the only manufacturer in the World who has developed extremely robust 10-12 year NiMH 
battery technology and can guarantee reliability performance every night of year through 
localized solar studies and system sizing; and 

 
WHEREAS, they are the only manufacturer with a large base of installed lights on tower 

control feedback, providing more than 7millions data points of monitoring feedback, all for 
continuous reliability improvements. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Livingston as follows: 
 

Section 1.  Adopt a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Livingston approving the 
purchase of six (6) solar light poles from Fonroche Lighting America, in the amount of 
$31,107. 
 
Section 2. Authorize the Interim City Manager to execute all required documents.  
 
Section 3: Authorize the Interim City Manager to submit all documents, request 
reimbursement, and take any and all actions necessary for funding, submittal, and 
reimbursement from Merced County.   
 
Section 4: Identify the City Hall and Council Chambers security improvement project as 
a priority project for the purposes of requesting Merced County Supervisorial District 
funding.  
 
Section 5:  This Resolution will become effective immediately.  
  

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2024-___ is a full, true and correct copy of a 
resolution duly passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Livingston at a regular 
meeting thereof duly held on the 16th day of April 2024, by the vote recorded as follows: 

Page 101



 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  

 
 
 
By:   

Jose A. Moran, Mayor 
Of City of Livingston 

 

 

ATTEST 

  
Monica Cisneros, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM 
 
 
________________________ 
Roy C. Santos, City Attorney 
 

Page 102



tt 'ii l=ON~OCHE 
\(_;/ lighting AMERICA Fonroche Lighting America 

4900 David Strickland Rd. 
Forest Hill , TX 76119 

(817) 516-2056 

Opportunity Owner Jacob Fox 00082886 

Payment Terms 50% deposit, 50% Net 30 from Ship 
Date-contingent on credit approval 

Quote Number 

Quote Name 

Quote Date 

G7483-Livingston CA-City Hall Parking Lot-RevC 

3/19/2024 
Shipping Terms Prices are FOB Origin 

Quote Expiration 6/19/2024 
Date 

Est. Lead Time 

Ship To Name 

Ship To 

12-14 Weeks 

City of Livingston CA 

United States 

Beware of Fraud: Any advance payment request will only be made on the basis of a proforma invoice sent by Fonroche Lighting America. 

Shipping estimated; final cost determined on day of shipping and added to invoice. 

Fonroche Model . . Price . 
N b 

Fonroche Product Description S t Quantity Amount ~- ~~ 

2[T54-CK16B-4K-T4] 
[P270F-4P]HW-MC 

Fixture Color: BK 
POLE: 25Ft. Round 
Tapered Pole-Anchor 

SmartLight Assembly with 1248Wh-24V NiMH Battery, special extreme temperature 

(from -40 °F to +158 °F), 1 x 270W solar module with Top of Pole assembly and 
Intelligent management/control system. Provisioned for TWIN Fixture configuration. Twin 
Essential (Formerly CK16B) Fixture 4K Color Temp.-Type 4 Fixture Color: BK - . Power 
Assembly color is black. Mount: High wind and enhanced marine coating. 

25Ft. Round Tapered Pole-Anchor Base-2-4FT Arm -Arm Color: Black -Pole Color is BK 
5 Year Warranty All Night Lighting 365 Days a Year - Full Battery Replacement 

Base-2-4FT Arm -Arm Assumes No Shading I Assumes little or no snow 
Color: Black -Pole 
Color: BK 

(T54-CK 16B-4K-T2] 
[P 160F-2P)HW-MC 
Fixture Color: BK 
POLE: 25ft. Round 

10 Degrees Tilt 

100% =22 Watts worst case conditions.T-PM: 6 hrs. @100% I T-N (Balance of night) 
@20% IT-AM: 1 hrs. @100% 

SmartLight Assembly with 624Wh-24V NiMH Battery , special extreme temperature (from 
-40 °F to +158 °F), 1 x 160W solar module with Top of Pole assembly and Intelligent 
management/control system. Provisioned for Single Fixture configuration. Single 
Essential (Formerly CK16B) Fixture 4K Color Temp.-Type 2 Fixture Color: BK-. Power 
Assembly color is black. Mount: High wind and enhanced marine coating. 

25Ft. Round Tapered Pole-Anchor Base-1-4FT Arm -Arm Color: Black -Pole Color is BK 
Tapered Pole-Anchor 5 Year Warranty All Night Lighting 365 Days a Year - Full Battery Replacement 
Base-1-4FT Arm -Arm Assumes No Shading I Assumes little or no snow 
Color: Black -Pole 
Color: BK 

[T54-CK16B-4K-T4] 

[P160F-2P]HW-MC 
Fixture Color: BK 
POLE: 25Ft. Round 
Tapered Pole-Anchor 

10 Degrees Tilt 

100% =22 Watts worst case conditions.T-PM: 6 hrs. @100% I T-N (Balance of night) 
@20% IT-AM: 1 hrs. @100% 

SmartLight Assembly with 624Wh-24V NiMH Battery , special extreme temperature (from 
-40 °F to +158 °F), 1 x 160W solar module with Top of Pole assembly and Intelligent 
management/control system. Provisioned for Single Fixture configuration. Single 
Essential (Formerly CK16B) Fixture 4K Color Temp.-Type 4 Fixture Color: BK - . Power 
Assembly color is black. Mount: High wind and enhanced marine coating. 

25Ft. Round Tapered Pole-Anchor Base-1-4FT Arm -Arm Color: Black -Pole Color is BK 
5 Year Warranty All Night Lighting 365 Days a Year - Full Battery Replacement 

Base-1-4FT Arm -Arm Assumes No Shading I Assumes little or no snow 
Color: Black -Pole 
Color: BK 10 Degrees Tilt 

100% =22 Watts worst case conditions.T-PM: 6 hrs. @100% I T-N (Balance of night) 
@20% IT-AM: 1 hrs. @100% 

USO 
5,394 

USO 
3,939 

USO 
3,939 

USO 
2.00 

10,788 

1.00 

2.00 

USO 
3,939 

USO 
7,878 

Page 103



FONJ:lOCHE: 
lighting AMERICA 

Fonroche Lighting America 
4900 David Strickland Rd. 

SmartLight Assembly with 1248Wh-24V NiMH Battery , special extreme temperature 

[T54-CK168-4K-T4] (from -40 °F to +158 °F), 1 x 270W solar module with Top of Pole assembly and 

[P270F-4P]HW-MC Intelligent managemenUcontrol system. Provisioned for Single Fixture configuration. 

Fixture Color: BK Single Essential (Formerly CK16B) Fixture 4K Color Temp.-Type 4 Fixture Color: BK-. 

POLE: 25Ft. Round Power Assembly color is black. Mount: High wind and enhanced marine coating. 

Tapered Pole-Anchor 25Ft. Round Tapered Pole-Anchor Base-1-4FT Arm -Arm Color: Black -Pole Color is BK 

Base-1-4FT Arm -Arm 5 Year Warranty All Night Lighting 365 Days a Year - Full Battery Replacement 

Color: Black -Pole 
Color: BK 

Assumes No Shading I Assumes little or no snow 

10 Degrees Tilt 

100% =44 Watts worst case condilions.T-PM: 6 hrs. @100% I T-N (Balance of night) 
@20% IT-AM: 1 hrs. @100% 

Total Line Items 

Shipping and 

Handling 

Quote Total 

This quotation is subject to the following terms and conditions 

Forest Hill , TX 76119 

(817) 516-2056 

USO 
5,027 

1.00 
USO 

5,027 

USO 27,632 

USO 3,475 

USO 31,107 

Seller's Terms and Conditions of Sale in effect on the date of this order shall apply to this quote and are hereby incorporated by reference. 
Seller's Terms and Conditions of Sale may be viewed at https://www fonrochesolar!ighting com/about-us/terms/ 

Pricing is based on Fonroche Lighting America's Standard Terms & Conditions and any additional terms stipulated herein. It is the 
Representative's responsibility to convey these terms to the customer. Without prior written approval from Fonroche Lighting America's Sales 
Director, any deviation from these terms may constitute a change in this pricing at the time of order. In the event that Fonroche Lighting 
America is unable recuperate difference in pricing from end customer, it may deduct the difference from representative's commission. 

Page 104



dra FONR.ocHi;: ~\--;~A b 
'tJ' lighting AMERICA 

January 30, 2024 

To whom it may concern: 

Fonroche Lighting America 

4900 David Strickland Rd 

Forest Hill, TX 76119 

339-225-4530 

FonrocheSolarlighting.com 

Please find attached with this cover letter, technical data supporting Fonroche Lighting manufacturing of solar street 
lighting products, which arc completely unique form any other, Worldwide 

This product is purchased directly by inslit-utions from Fonrochc Lighting America, at the address listed above. 

There arc many types of battery technologies. In the attnched document, you will find supporting technical data 
supporting Nickel Metal 1-Iydride (Ni Ml-I) as superior in durability, cycle life, storage, transportation, and safety to 
other battery types. The attached technical document outlines how NiMI-J requires advanced engineering into 
battery management systems, and technical knowledge, which no other company has invested the s ignificant 
resources into bringing NiMH technology into the solar lighting marketplace. 

Fonroche has built the largest, solar lighting specific test laboratory in the World. Fonoche is the only manufacturer 
doing in-depth solar lighting battery life duration tests, analyzing depth of discharge, current rate, and temperature. 
These extensive tests arc necessary to quantify battery durability and longevity in different conditions. 

Fonorchc .is the only manufacturer completing in-depth va lidation on all the following sub-components: solar panel 
performance, mechanical des ign, transportation, telecommunication. 

Fonrochc is the only manufacturer using LoRa telecommunications in solar lighting, with 110,000 individual lights 
connected, all sending 7 million messages per day, allowing for continuous real time feedback and improvements in 
all climates, while having cus tomer facing portal infrastructure monitoring. 

Technical details supporting these topics and more arc enclosed in the attc1ched technical file. 

If you desire additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me at 316-554-4180 at any time. Thank you for 
your interest in our systems. 

Respectfully, 

Hocinc Bcnaoum 

CEO, Fonrochc Lighting America 

Sol.AR JS THE NEW STANDARD 

Page 105



&A FON~OCHE 
't}J lighting AMERICA 

APPLICATION DESIGN 

Date: 

Written by: 

Version: 

City Hall Parking Lot 

Livingston - CA 

3/19/2024 

Cuong VU 

C 
Page 106



~ 

The global leader in solar lighting 
Fonroche Lighting America is proud to be part of Fonroche Lighting, the global leader in 
off-grid solar street lighting. The deep resources and broader scope of an established 
market leader lets us take solar lighting even further, from the State Treasury in Salem, 
Oregon to the West African Republic of Senegal. Over lS0,000 Fonroche Smartlight 
systems have been deployed worldwide. 

With five offices in the USA and installations across the country, Fonroche is never far 
away. Some solution providers enter the solar lighting market-then move on. We're a 
reliable partner that sticks around. You get the responsive support and smart answers that 
you need now-and the confidence that we'll be here for you far in the future. And we can 
take on projects of any size, from local to national. That's why so 
many municipalities, military and federal faci lities, tribes, commercial properties, 
and developers trust us to deliver the full promise of solar lighting. 

Feasibility of your solar lighting project 

Jra FON~OCHE 
\t3' lighting AMERICA 

To guarantee powerful, cost-effective off-grid lighting, Fonroche operates its 
own design offices. 
We assess the feasibility of each project in four stages: 

1. First, we define your lighting requirements. 

2. Next, we analyze the last 10 years of local weather 

data to determine how much energy our PV panels 
will generate. 

3. On this basis, we calculate what size and how 
many products we need to install. 

4. Finally, our sales team draws up a cost estimate. 

Fonroche Lighting America - Design Office Page 107



Rightsized to your specific needs 

1 Project 

Simulation of product(s) over 

a typical year 

Our teams have developed a solar sizing 
software application, which we use to 
determine which products will best meet your 
needs. We then simulate how these products 
operate over a typical year, based on the 
average conditions for the last decade. 

Results 
Based on our experience, we propose the 
optimal solution in terms of lighting 
performance and cost effectiveness. 

Jra FON~OCHE 
\!_3/ lighting AMERICA 

1 Study 

10-Vear Analysis of local 

weather data 

We use the PVsyst software suite and Meteonorm 
historical t ime series irradiation data to calculate the 
real-world operating conditions - orientation and 
tilt angle of the panel, shadow, etc. - and external 
parameters, such as direct and diffuse irradiation, 
temperature and the solar calendar. 

rn, 
Sizing the project to your needs 

We use a set of key criteria to optimally specify your 
project: 
• Average battery charge level over the year 
• Minimum charge level 
• Comparative analysis of energy generated by the 

panel vs. energy used by the system 
• Worst-case scenario (lowest irradiation, longest 

night) 

Fonroche Lighting America - Design Office Page 108



Our technical proposal &A FON~OCHE 
\!_Y lighting AMERICA 

SMARTLIGHT SYSTEM CONFIGURATION 

Project-Specific System Specifications 

PHOTOVOLTAIC MODULE 

PV panel power rating 

PV panel tilt angle 

160Wp 

10° 

POWER 365: SMART STORAGE 
AND MANAGEMENT 

- CCI 
Non pro-rated 

Battery capacity 
(Must be NiMH) 

Chosen lighting profile for your project 

624Wh 

LED LIGHT UNIT 

Lighting power 

LED light unit specification 

Pole height 

Protective treatment 

30 W nominal 

4000K-180-190 Lm/w 

25' 

Powder Coated 

• 
DAY 

6UMel 

Fonroche Lighting America - Design Office 

6h 

NIGHT 

* • er 
* * DAY 

tJllnriJe 

xh l h 

■ Light intensity 

Page 109



Our technical proposal JrA FON~OCHI;: 
\t3' lighting AMERICA 

SMARTLIGHT SYSTEM CONFIGURATION 

Project-Specific System Specifications 

PHOTOVOLTAIC MODULE 

PV panel power rating 

PV panel tilt angle 

270Wp 

10° 

POWER 365: SMART STORAGE 

AND MANAGEMENT 

Battery capacity 
(Must be NiMH) 1248 Wh 

LED LIGHT UNIT 

Lighting power 

LED light unit specification 

Pole height 

Protective treatment 

50 W nominal 

4000K - 180 Lm/w 

25' 

Powder Coated 

-CCI 
Non pro-rated 

Chosen lighting profile for your project 

A • 

DAY 

MUldi!l 

6h 

NIGHT 

* er * 
* 

xh 

■ Light intensity 

• 
DAY 

.utn.ri,Je 

l h 

Fonroche Lighting America - Design Office Page 110



Our technical proposal ~A FONR_OCHE 
\t_3I lighting AMERICA 

SMARTLIGHT SYSTEM CONFIGURATION 

Project-Specific System Specifications 

PHOTOVOLTAIC MODULE 

PV panel power rating 

PV panel tilt angle 

270Wp 

10° 

POWER 365: SMART STORAGE 
AND MANAGEMENT 

Battery capacity 
(Must be NiMH) 1248 Wh 

LED LIGHT UNIT 

Lighting power 

LED light unit specification 

Pole height 

Protective treatment 

2x30 W nominal 

4000K - 180 Lm/w 

25' 

Powder Coated 

Non pro-rated 

Chosen lighting profile for your project 

NIGHT 

A • 
DAY 

,JUflJi,e 

6h xh lh 

■ Light intensity 

Fonroche Lighting America - Design Office Page 111



Jra FONA.OCH~ 
\!_JI lighting AMERICA 

PHOTOMETRIC 
STUDY 

*Note: these results are only valid if the Smartlight PV panel is at an azimuth angle of zero 
degrees and is completely free of shadow. 

**These results are subject to change due to technological or regulatory advances. This technical 
report is valid for 60 days from the date you receive it. 

Fonroche Lighting America Design Office Page 112



City Hall Parking Lot t, FONR,OCH~ 
lighting AMERICA 

4900 David Strickland Road 

Lighting Plan Rev C By: Cuong Vu Forest Hill, TX 76119 I USA 
cuong. vu@fonroche.us Phone Number: (339) 225 4530 

Project Number: G7483 Date:3/19/2024 www.fonrochesolarlighting.com 

Luminaire Schedule 
Symbol Qty Label Arrangement Total Lamp Lumens LLF - 1 T 4-CK16B-4K-Sinale-44W-25' Sinale 7920 0.900 

-0 1 T2-CK16B-4K-Single-22W-25' Single 4180 0.900 
[B ED 2 T 4-CK16B-4K-Twin-22W-25' BACK-BACK 3960 0.900 - 2 T 4-CK16B-4K-Single-22W-25' Single 3960 0.900 

Calculation Summary 
Label CalcType Units Avg Max Min Ava/Min Max/Min 
Gate & Trash area II luminance Fe 1.17 1.4 0.9 1.30 1.56 
Parking llluminance Fe 1.03 1.9 0.2 5.15 9.50 
Walkway bewteen buildinas llluminance Fe 0.63 1.9 0.0 N.A. N.A. 
Walkway to parking llluminance Fe 0.82 1.3 0.5 1.64 2.60 

Page 113



City Hall Parking Lot 

Lighting Plan Rev C 
Project Number: G7483 

By: Cuong Vu 
cuong. vu@fonroche.us 
Date:3/19/2024 

Ara FON~OCHE;: 
\tJI lighting AMERICA 
4900 David Strickland Road 
Forest Hill, TX 76119 I USA 
Phone Number: (339) 225 4530 
www.fonrochesolarlighting.com 

Page 114



City Hall Parking Lot ~ FONi=tOCH~ 
lighting AMERICA 

4900 David Strickland Road 

Lighting Plan Rev C By: Cuong Vu Forest Hill , TX 76119 I USA 
cuong.vu@fonroche.us Phone Number: (339) 225 4530 

Project Number: G7483 Date: 3/19/2024 www.fonrochesolarlighting.com 

Page 115



I 

, A few examples &a l=ON~OCHE 
\!3' lighting AMERICA 

Fonroche Lighting America Design Office Page 116



~- FONqOCHI:: 
't_Y lighting AMERICA 

Solar lighting 

Your commitment to sustainability 

Contact us 
Jacob Fox 

Sales Representative 
P: {339) 225-4530 X218 

E: jacob.fox@Fonroche.us 

FIND OUT MORE AT 

www.FonrocheSolarLighting.com 

FONROCHE LIGHTING AM ERICA I 4900 David Strickland Road 
Forest Hill, TX 76119 j USA 
Telephone : 339-225-4530 

Fonroche Lighting America Design Office Page 117



AGENDA ITEM: 

MEETING DATE: 

PREPARED BY: 

REVIEWED BY: 

STAFF REPORT 

Authorizing and Approving a Services Agreement with NEOGOV for 
the purchase of Applicant Tracking System Recruit Module 

April 16, 2024 

Arcelia Cruz, Human Resources Coordinator 

Christopher Lopez; Interim City Manager 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends council adopt the resolution authorizing the Interim City Manager to execute 
a two-year service agreement with NEOGOV for the purchase of applicant tracking system 
Recruit Module. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 

NEOGOV Recruit Module is a cloud-based module that provides public sector 
organizations with Human Resources Management System (HRMS) solutions by 
automating and supporting the entire employee lifecycle to include recruitment, hiring and 
onboarding processes in one centralized platform. NEOGOV is the leading provider of 
HRMS software for public sector organizations. 

Currently, the Human Resources Division lacks an advanced HRMS platform, which has 
resulted in a highly fragmented and manually driven work process that is very inefficient 
and duplicative. The approval and implementation of NEOGOV Recruit Module will 
significantly upgrade the City's current employment application process and employment 
cycle from initial job advertising through onboarding by providing a more streamline and 
automated solution that will result in a more efficient and effective recruitment process and 
will provide a better employee experience over the full employment cycle. 

The billing for the first-year service agreement will include the following fees: $5,500.00 for 
implementation cost to Insight Module and Onboard Module. $6,073.20 for the annual 
subscriptions to Governmentjobs.com, Insight and Onboard. This represents a 40% 
discounted rate in the first-year licensing fees and a discounted rate from $7,260.to 
$5,500.00 for the setup. For the second-year service agreement the annual subscriptions 
for Governmentjobs.com, Insight and Onboard will be $10,628.10, no pricing incentives for 
the second year. The grand total for the two-year service agreement will cost $22,201.30. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The two-year service agreement with NEOGOV Recruit Module will cost a total of $22,201.30. 
This cost to fund this service agreement is available in the current FY 23/24 Human Resources 
Budget. 

Page 1 of 2 

Page 118



ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 
2. Service Agreement with NEOGOV 
3. NEOGOV Order Form 
4. NEOGOV Recruit Module overview 

Page 2 of2 

Page 119



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON 
AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE INTERIM CITY MANAGER TO 

EXECUTE A SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH NEOGOV FOR THE PURCHASE 
OF APPLICANT TRACKING SYSTEM RECRUIT MODULE 

WHEREAS, the City of Livingston Human Resources Coordinator has met with representatives 
of NEOGOV; and 

WHEREAS, desires to have a Human Resources Management System that will provide an 
automated applicant tracking system and onboarding solution that will support the entire 
employment lifecycle; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Livingston desires to enter into a two-year service contract with 
NEOGOV for Human Resources Management Systems support; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Livingston as 
follows: 

Section 1. The City Council authorizes the Interim City Manager to execute the services 
agreement with NEOGOV. 

Section 2. This resolution will become effective immediately. 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2024-XX is a full, true and correct copy of a 
resolution duly passed and adopted by City Council of the City of Livingston at a regular 
meeting thereof duly held on 16th day of April 2024, by the vote recorded as follows: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

Monica Cisneros, Deputy City Clerk 
of the City of Livingston 

By:-------------

Page 1 of2 

Jose A. Moran, Mayor 
of the City of Livingston 

Page 120



APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM 

Roy C. Santos, City Attorney 

Page 2 of 2 

Page 121



NEOGOV™ 
SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Y071423 

P<!>werDMS 
Digital Management Software 

ANEOOOV~1 

You agree that by placing an order through a NEOGOY standard ordering document such as an "Order Form", "Service Order," 
"Ordering Document," "SOW" or other document mutually agreed by the parties detailing the services, pricing and subscription 
term (each, an "Order Form" for purposes of this Agreement), you agree to follow and be bound by the terms and conditions set 
forth herein. "Governrnentjobs.com", "NEOGOV", "we", and "our" means Governmentjobs.com, Inc. (D/8/A/ NEOGOY), for 
and on behalf of itself and its subsidiaries PowerDMS, Inc., Cuehit, Inc., Ragnasoft LLC (D/8/A/ Plan IT Schedule), and Design 
PD, LLC (D/B/A Agency360) (collectively, "NEOGOV" and, where applicable, its other affiliates; "Customer", "you", "your" 
means the NEOGOY client, customer, and/or the subscriber identified in the Order Form). 

"Services Agreement" or the "Agreement" shall be used to collectively refer to this NEOGOV Services Agreement, documents 
incorporated herein including the applicable Order Form, each Addendum (as applicable), and Special Conditions (if any). 
"Addendum" means each Addendum set forth either as an Exhibit hereto or otherwise made available at 
https://www.neogov.com/service-specifications (the "NEOGOV Site") and, as applicable, made a part of this Agreement. "Special 
Conditions" means individually negotiated variations, amendments and/or additions to this Service Agreement of which are either 
drafted, or incorporated by reference, into the Order Form. 

I. Provision of Services. Subject to the terms of this Agreement NEOGOV hereby agrees to provide Customer with access to its 
SaaS Applications and Professional Services (each defined below) included or ordered by Customer in the applicable Order 
Form (collectively referred to as the "Services"). Customer hereby acknowledges and agrees that NEOGOV's provision and 
performance of, and Customer's access to, the Services is dependent and conditioned upon Customer's full performance of its 
duties, obligations and responsibil ities hereunder. This Agreement entered into as of the earlie: of: (i) date of your signature 
on an applicable Order Form; or (ii) use of the Services commences (the "Effective Date"). The Agreement supersedes any 
prior and contemporaneous discussions, agreements or representations and warranties. 

2. SaaS Subscription. 

a) Subscription Grant. "Saas Applications" means each proprietary NEOGOV web-based software-as-a-service application 
that may be set forth on an Order Form and subsequently made available by NEOGOV to Customer, and associated 
components as described in any written service specifications made available to Customer by NEOGOV (the "Service 
Specifications"). Subject to and conditioned on Customer's and its Authorized Users' compliance with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, NEOGOY hereby grants to Customer a limited, non-exclusive, non-transferable, and non
sublicensable right to (i) onboard, access and use, and to permit Authorized Users to onboard, access and use, the Saas 
Applications specified in the Order Form solely for Customer's internal, non-commercial purposes; (i i) generate, print, 
and download Customer Data as may result from any access to or use of the SaaS Applications; and (iii) train Authorized 
Users in uses of the Saas Applications permitted hereunder (these rights shall collectively be referred to as the "Saas 
Subscription"). "Authorized Users" means {I) Customer employees, agents, contractors, consultants ("Personnel") who 
are authorized by Customer to access and use the Services under the rights granted to Customer pursuant to this Services 
Agreement and (2) for whom access to the Services has been purchased hereunder. You shall not exceed the usage limits 
(if any) as detai led in the user tier in the applicable Order Form. You may not access the Saas Applications if you are a 
direct competitor ofNEOGOY or its affiliates. In addition, you may not access the Saas Applications for purposes of 
monitoring their availability, performance, or functionality, or for any other benchmarking or competitive purposes. You 
shall be responsible for each Authorized User's access to and use of the SaaS Appl ications and compliance with 
applicable terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

b) Subscription Term. Unless otherwise specified in an applicable Order Form, Saas Subscriptions shall commence on the 
Effective Date and remain in effect for twelve ( 12) consecutive months, un less terminated earlier in accordance with this 
Agreement (the "Initial Term"). Thereafter, Saas Subscriptions shall automatically renew for successive twelve (12) 
month terms (each a "Renewal Term" and together with the Initial Term, collectively, the "Term") unless a party delivers 
to the other party, at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the Initial Term or the appl icable Renewal Term, 
written notice of such party's intention to not renew the Saas Subscriptions, or unless terminated earlier in accordance 
with this Agreement. The Term for the Services is a continuous and non-divisible commitment for the full duration 
regardless of any invoice schedule. The purchase of any Service is separate from any other order for any other Service. 
Customer may purchase certain Services independently of other Services. Your obligation to pay for any Service is not 
contingent on performance of any other Service or delivery of any other Service. 

3. Customer Responsibil ities. Customer will not, and will ensure its Authorized Users do not (a) make any of the Services 
available to anyone other than Authorized Users or use any Services for the benefit of anyone other than Customer and its 
Authorized Users, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the parties, (b) sell, resell, license, sublicense, distribute, make 

Page 122



NEOGOV™ P<!>werDMS 
Digital Management Software 

A NEOGOV eom,,.n, 

available, rent or lease any of the Services, or include any of the Services in a service bureau or outsourcing offering, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the parties, (c) use the Services to store or transmit infringing, libelous, or otherwise unlawful 
or tortious material, or to store or transmit material in violation of the privacy rights, publicity rights, copyright rights, or other 
rights of any person or entity, (d) use the Services to store or transmit code, files, scripts, agents or programs intended to do 
harm, including, for example, viruses, worms, time bombs and Trojan horses, (e) interfere with or disrupt the integrity or 
performance of the Services (including, without limitation, activities such as security penetration tests, stress tests, and 
spamming activity), (f) attempt to gain unauthorized access to the Services or its related systems or networks, (g) disassemble, 
reverse engineer, or decompi le the Services, or modify, copy, or create derivative works based on the Services or any part, 
feature, function or user interface thereof, (h) remove the copyright, trademark, or any other proprietary rights or notices 
included within NEOGOV Intellectual Property and on and in any documentation or training materials, or (i) use the Services 
in a manner which violates the terms of this Agreement, any Order Form or any applicable laws. 

4. Professional Services. "Professional Services" shall mean professional services purchased by Customer as detai led in an 
applicable Order Form or NEOGOV Scope of Work (SOW) describing the work to be performed, fees, and any applicable 
milestones, dependencies, and other technical specifications or related information. Professional Services may include 
training, implementation, and best practices of and concerning the SaaS Applications. Professional Services are subject to the 
terms of the Professional Services Addendum made available on the NEOGOV Site and made a part hereof and may be subject 
to additional terms pursuant to an SOW and Service Specifications describing, if applicable, the work to be performed, fees, 
and any applicable milestones, dependencies, and other technical specifications or related information. Order Forms or SOWs 
must be signed by Customer before NEOGOV shall commence work. If Customer executes a separate SOW, this Agreement 
and documents incorporated herein (including but not limited to the Professional Services Addendum) shall control in the 
event of a conflict with the terms of the SOW. All Professional Services purchased by Customer must be utilized within twelve 
(12) months of the date of the applicable Order Form or SOW. 

5. Payment Terms. 

a) Fees. Customer shall pay all Subscription, Onboarding and Set-Up fees ("Subscription Fees") and Professional Service 
fees ("Professional Service Fees", collectively the "Fees") as set forth in an Order Form within thirty (30) days of the 
date ofNEOGOV's invoice. Fees shall be invoiced annually in advance and in a single invoice for each Term. Unless 
explicitly stated otherwise in an Order Form, all payments due under an Order Form are expressed in and shall be paid 
in U.S. dollars. Invoices shall be delivered to the stated "Bill To" party on the Order Form. Unless explicitly provided 
otherwise, once placed the Order Form is non-cancellable and sums paid nonrefundable. Any invoiced amount that is not 
received by NEOGOV when due as set forth in an Order Form will be subject to a late payment fee of 1.5% per month 
or the maximum rate permitted by law, whichever is lower. If any amount owing by Customer is more than 30 days 
overdue, NEOGOV may, without limiting its other rights and remedies, suspend the Services until such amounts are paid 
in full. If Subscription Fees are based upon the Authorized User or employee count as may be specified in an Order 
Form, Customer shall owe NEOGOV supplemental Subscription Fees to the extent Customer exceeds the number of 
Authorized Users or employees set forth in the Order Form. Except as otherwise specifically stated in the Order Form, 
NEOGOV may change the charges for the Services with effect from the start of each Renewal Term by providing 
Customer with new pricing at least thirty (30) day notice prior to commencement of a Renewal Term. The new pricing 
shall be deemed to be effective if Customer (a) returns an executed Order Form to NEOGOV, (b) remits payment to 
NEOGOV of the fees set forth in the invoice referencing the new pricing, or (c) the Customer or any of its Authorized 
Users access or use the Services after the expiration of the previous Term. 

b) Taxes. Customer will pay all taxes, duties and levies imposed by all federal , state, and local authorities (including, 
without limitation, export, sales, use, excise, and value-added taxes) based on the transactions or payments under this 
Agreement, except those taxes imposed or based on NEOGOV's net income or those exempt by applicable state law. 
Customer shall provide NEOGOV with a certificate or other evidence of such exemption within ten (IO) days after the 
Effective Date of this Agreement and thereafter upon NEOGOV's request therefor. 

c) Purchase Orders. Any reference to a purchase order in an Order Form or any associated invoice is solely for Customer's 
convenience in record keeping, and no such reference or any delivery of services to Customer following receipt of any 
purchase order shall be deemed an acknowledgement of or an agreement to any terms or conditions referenced or included 
in any such purchase order. If a purchase order is delivered by Customer in connection with the purchase of Services, 
none of the terms and conditions contained in such purchase order shall have any effect or modify or supersede the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement. NEOGOV's failure to object to terms contained in any such purchase order shall not 
be a waiver of the terms set forth in this provision or in this Agreement. 

6. Term and Termination. 

2 

Page 123



NEOGOV™ P(!)werDMS 
Digital Management Software 

ANEOGOV~• 

a) Term. This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall remain in effect umil all SaaS Subscriptions have 
expired and/or both parties have achieved full performance of Professional Services, un less it is terminated earlier in 
accordance with this Agreement. 

b) Termination for Cause; Effect of Termination. Either Party may terminate this Agreement immediately if the other is in 
material breach of this Agreement and such breach is not cured within thirty (30) days following non-breaching party's 
written specification of the breach. NEOGOV may suspend the Services or terminate th is Agreement immediately in the 
event the Services or Customer's use of the Services provided hereunder pose a security r:sk to the Services, NEOGOV 
or any third party, or become illegal or contrary to any applicable law, rule, regulation, or public policy . Upon expiration 
or any termination of this Agreement, Customer shall cease all use and refrain from all further use of the Services and 
other NEOGOV Intellectual Property. Additionally, Customer shall be obligated to pay, as of the effective date of such 
expiration or termination, all amounts due and unpaid to NEOGOY under this Agreement. Unless otherwise specified, 
following 90 days after expiration or termination of the Agreement NEOGOV may remove Customer Data from 
NEOGOV Services and without Customer consent or notice. 

7. Audit Rights. Upon reasonable notice, NEOGOV or its agent shall have the right to audit Customer's records relating to its 
compliance with this Agreement. Customer shall cooperate fu lly with this audit. If any audit conducted under this Section 
indicates that any amount due to NEOGOY was underpaid, Customer shall within three (3) business days pay to NEOGOV 
the amount due. All expenses associated with any such audit shall be paid by NEOGOV unless the audit reveals underpayment 
in excess of five percent (5%), in which case Customer shall pay such expenses as well as any amount due to NEOGOV. 

8. Maintenance; Modifications; Support Services. 

a) Maintenance, Updates, Upgrades. NEOGOV maintains NEOGOV's hardware and software infrastructure for the 
Services and is responsible for maintaining the NEOGOY server operation and NEOGOY database security. NEOGOV 
may in its sole discretion, periodically modify, Update, and Upgrade the features, components, and functional ity of the 
Services during the Term. "Update" means any update, bug fix, patch or correction of the Services or underlying 
NEOGOY software that NEOGOV makes generally avai lable to its customers of the same module, excluding Upgrades. 
Updates are automatic and available upon Customer's next login to the Services following an Update at no additional 
cost to Customer. "Upgrade" means any update of the Services or underly ing NEOGOV software such as platform 
updates, and major product enhancements and/or new features that NEOGOV makes comr.iercially available. NEOGOY 
shall have no obligation to provide Upgrades to customers and retains the right to offer Upgrades free of cost or on a per 
customer basis at additional cost. NEOGOV shall have no liability for, or any obligations to, investments in, or 
modifications to Customer's hardware, systems or other software which may be necessary to use or access the Services 
due to a modification, Update, or Upgrade of the Services. 

b) Program Documentation: Training Materials. "Program Documentation" shall mean all user guides, trammg, and 
implementation material, and Service descriptions provided by NEOGOY to Customer in connection with the Services. 
NEOGOV hereby grants to Customer a non-exclusive, non-sublicensable, non-transferable license to use, print, and 
distribute internally via non-public platforms, the Program Documentation during the Term solely for Customer's internal 
business purposes in connection with its use of the Services. Primary training ofNEOGOV Services is conducted by self
review of on line materials. NEOGOV's pre-built, on line training consists of a series of tutc,rials to introduce the standard 
features and functions (the "Training Materials"). The Training Materials may be used as reference material by Customer 
Personnel conducting day-to-day activities. 

c) Implementation. For Services requiring implementation, NEOGOY implementation supplements the Training Materials 
and is conducted off-site unless otherwise agreed in the Order Form . For an additional fee as detailed on an applicable 
Order Form, NEOGOV personnel wi ll provide consultation on best practices for setting up the Services, answer Customer 
questions during the implementation period, and use commercially reasonable efforts to ensure Authorized User Admins 
grasp the system. The length of the implementation time is dependent on the type of Service and the Customer's 
responsiveness. NEOGOY is not responsible or liable fo r any delay or fa ilure to perform in:plcmcntation caused in whole 
or in part by Customer's delay in pcrfonn ing. its obligations hereunder and. in the event Df any such delay. NEOGOY 
may. in its sole discretion. extend all perfo rmance elates as NEOGOY deems reasonably n,xessary. 

d) Support. Phone support for the Services is available to Customer Monday through Friday, excluding NEOGOV holidays. 
Customer may submit a request for on line support for the Services 24 hours a day, seven days a week, and the NEOGOY 
support desk will acknowledge receipt of the request within a reasonable time. The length of t ime for a resolution of any 
problem is dependent on the type of case. 

e) Limitations. Unless otherwise specified in the Order Form, this Agreement does not obligate NEOGOY to render any 
maintenance or support services that are not expressly provided herein, including, but not limited to data uploads, manual 

3 
Page 124



NEOGOVTM P<!>werDMS 
Digital Management Software 

A HEOCOV Comp,ny 

data entry, migration services, data conversion, refinement, purification, reformatting, SQL dump, or process 
consultation. 

9. NEOGOV Intellectual Property. NEOGOV shall exclusively own al l right, title and interest in and to all pre-existing and 
future intellectual property developed or delivered by NEOGOV including all Services, products, systems, software (including 
any source code or object code) or Service Specifications related thereto, Updates or Upgrades, trademarks, service marks, 
logos and other distinctive brand features of NEOGOV and all proprietary rights embodied therein (collectively, the 
"NEOGOV Intellectual Property"). This Agreement does not convey or transfer title or ownership of the NEOGOV 
Intellectual Property to Customer or any of its users. All rights not expressly granted herein are reserved by NEOGOV. Other 
than recommendation use or as required by law, all use ofNEOGOV trademarks must be pre-approved by NEOGOV prior to 
use. Trademarks shall include any word, name, symbol, color, designation or device, or any combination thereof that functions 
as a source identifier, including any trademark, trade dress, service mark, trade name, logo, design mark, or domain name, 
whether or not registered. 

IO. Data Processing and Privacy. 

a) Customer Data. "Customer Data" shall mean all data that is owned or developed by Customer, whether provided to 
NEOGOV by Customer or provided by a third party to NEOGOV in connection with NEOGOV's provision of Services 
to Customer, including Personnel data collected, loaded into, or located in Customer data files maintained by NEOGOV. 
NEOGOV Intellectual Property, including but not limited to the Services and all derivative works thereof, NEOGOV 
Confidential Information, and Platform Data do not fall within the meaning of the term "Customer Data". Customer 
exclusively owns a ll right, t itle, and interest in and to all Customer Data. Customer grants NEOGOV a license to host, 
use, process, display, create non-personal derivative works of, and transmit Customer Data to provide the Services. 
NEOGOV reserves the right to delete or disable Customer Data stored, transmitted or published by Customer using the 
Services upon receipt of a bona fide notification that such content infringes upon the intellectual property rights ofothers, 
or ifNEOGOV otherwise reasonably believes any such content is in violation of this Agreement. 

b) Platform Data. "Platform Data" shall mean any anonymized data reflecting the access to or use of the Services by or on 
behalf of Customer or any user, including statistical or other analysis and performance information related to the provision 
and operation of the Services including any end user visit, session, impression, clickthrough or click stream data, as well 
as log, device, transaction data, or other analysis, information, or data based on or derived from any of the foregoing. 
NEOGOV shall exclusively own all right, title and interest in and to all Platform Data. Customer acknowledges 
NEOGOV may compile Platform Data based on Customer Data input into the Services. Customer agrees that NEOGOV 
may use Platform Data to the extent and in the manner permitted under applicable law. Such anonymized data neither 
identifies Customer or its users, nor can Customer or any its users can be derived from such data. 

c) Data Processing Agreement. To the extent Customer uses the Services to target and collect personal information from 
users located in the European Union, European Economic Area, or Switzerland (the "EU") or the United Kingdom 
("UK"), or has Authorized Users accessing the Services from the EU or UK, the terms of :he NEOGOV Data 
Processing Addendum ("DPA") made available on the NEOGOV Site is hereby incorporated herein by reference and 
made part of this Agreement. 

d) Data Responsibilities. 

i) NEOGOV will maintain administrative, physical, and technical safeguards for protection of the security, 
confidential ity and integrity of the Customer Data. Those safeguards will include, but will not be limited to, 
measures for preventing access, use, modification or disclosure of Customer Data by NEOGOV personnel except 
(a) to provide the Services and prevent or address service or technical problems, (b) as compelled by applicable law, 
or (c) as Customer expressly permits in writing. Customer acknowledges and agrees that it is commercially 
reasonable for NEOGOV to rely upon the security processes and measures utilized by NEOGOV's cloud 
infrastructure providers. 

ii) Customer is solely responsible for the development, content, operation, maintenance, and use of Customer Data, 
including but not limited to compliance with applicable laws. NEOGOV will have no responsibility or liability for 
the accuracy of the Customer Data prior to receipt of such data into the Services. Without limit ing the foregoing, 
Customer shall be sole ly responsible for and shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations relating to (a) the 
accuracy and completeness of all information input, submitted, or uploaded to the Services, (b) the pri vacy of users 
of the Services, including, without limitation, providing appropriate notices to and obtaining appropriate consents 
from any individuals to whom Customer Data relates; and ( c) the collection, use, modification, alteration, extraction, 
retention, copying, external storage, disclosure, transfer, disposal, and other processing of any Customer Data. 
NEOGOV is not responsible for lost data caused by the action or inaction of Customer or Authorized Users. Unless 

4 
Page 125



NEOGOV™ P<!.>werDMS 
Digital Management Software 

A HEOGOV eom,,.n, 

otherwise mutually agreed in writing, Customer shall not maintain any financial , health, payment card, or similarly 
sensitive data that imposes specific data security or data protection obligations within the Services. Customer shall 
provide and institute all appropriate tools and procedures required to ensure the security of its own information 
system and, more specifically, to prevent, detect and destroy the occurrence of any viruses. 

e) Breach Notice. NEOGOY will notify Customer of unauthorized access to, or unauthorized use, loss or disclosure of 
Customer Data within its custody and control (a "Security Breach") within 72 hours ofNEOGOV's confirmation of the 
nature and extent of the same or when required by applicable law, whichever is earlier. Each party will reasonably 
cooperate with the other with respect to the investigation and resolution of any Security Breach. If applicable law or 
Customer's policies require notification of its Authorized Users or others of the Security Breach, Customer shall be 
responsible for such notification. 

f) Data Export, Retention and Destruction. Customer may export or delete Customer Data from the Services at any t ime 
during a Subscription Term, using the existing features and functionality of the Services. Customer is solely responsible 
for its data retention obligations with respect to Customer Data. If and to the extent Customer cannot export or delete 
Customer Data stored on NEOGOY's systems using the then existing features and functionality of the Services, 
NEOGOY wi ll, upon Customer's written request, make the Customer Data available for export by Customer or destroy 
the Customer Data. If Customer requires the Customer Data to be exported in a different format than provided by 
NEOGOY, such additional services will be subject to a separate agreement on a time and materials basis. Except as 
otherwise required by applicable law, NEOGOV will have no obligation to maintain or provide any Customer Data more 
than ninety (90) days after the expiration or termination of this Agreement. Customer acknowledges that it is solely 
responsible for determining any retention requirements with respect to the Customer Data as required by applicable law 
and NEOGOY disclaims all liability in connection with such determination. In addition, to the extent Customer requests 
that NEOGOY retain Customer Data beyond the expiration of the retention period required by applicable law, rule or 
regulation, NEOGOY disclaims a ll liability in in connection with retain ing such Customer Data including but not limited 
to any claims related to loss or destruction of such Customer Data. 

11. Third Party Services. The Services may permit Customer and its Authorized Users to access services or content provided by 
third parties through the Services ("Third Party Services"). Customer agrees that NEOGOV is not the original source and shall 
not be liable for any inaccuracies contained in any content provided in any of the Third Party Services. NEOGOY makes no 
representations, warranties or guarantees with respect to the Third Party Services or any content contained therein. NEOGOY 
may discontinue access to any Third Party Services through the Services if the relevant agreement with the applicable third 
party no longer permits NEOGOV to provide such access. If loss of access to any Third Party Services (to which Customer 
has a subscription under thi s Agreement) occurs during a Subscription Term, NEOGOV will refund to Customer any prepaid 
fees for such Third Party Services covering the remainder of the Subscription Term. 

12. Nondisclosure. 

a) Definition of Confidential Information. "Confidential Information" means all information disclosed by a party 
("Disclosing Party") to the other party ("Receiving Party"), whether orally or in writing, that is designated as confidential 
or that reasonably should be understood to be confidential given the nature of the information and the circumstances of 
disclosure. Customer's Confidential Information includes its Customer Data. NEOGOV Confidential Information 
includes the NEOGOY Intellectual Property and the Services. The Confidential Information of each party includes the 
terms and conditions of th is Agreement and all Order Forms (including pricing), as well as business and marketing plans, 
technology and technical informat ion, product plans and designs, and business processes disclosed by such party. 
However, Confidential Information does not include any information that (a) is or becomes generally known to the public 
without breach of any obligation owed to the Disclosing Party, (b) was known to the Receiving Party prior to its disclosure 
by the Disclosing Party without breach of any obligation owed to the Disclosing Party, (c) is received from a third party 
without breach of any obligation owed to the Disclosing Party, or (d) was independently developed by the Receiving 
Party. 

b) Obl igations. The Receiving Party will: (i) use the same degree of care it uses to protect the confidentiality of its own 
confidential information of like kind (but not less than reasonable care); (ii) not use any Confidential Information of the 
Disclosing Party for any purpose outside the scope of this Agreement and (iii) except as otherwise authorized by the 
Disclosing Party in writing, limit access to Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party to those of its employees 
and contractors who need access for purposes consistent with this Agreement and who have signed confidentiality 
agreements with the Receiving Party containing protections not less protective of the Confidential Information than those 
herein. 

c) Exceptions. The Receiving Party may disclose Confidential In formation of the Disclosing Party to the extent compelled 
by law to do so, provided the Receiving Party gives the Disclosing Party prior notice of the compelled disclosure (to the 

5 

Page 126



NEOGOV™ P<!>werDMS 
Digital Management Software 

A NEOGOV C..-,y 

extent legally permitted) and reasonable assistance, at the Disclosing Party's cost, if the Disclosing Party wishes to contest 
the disclosure. 

d) Equitable Relief. The parties recognize and agree there is no adequate remedy at law for breach of the provisions of the 
confidentiality obligations set forth in thi s Section 12, that such a breach would irreparably harm the Disclosing Party 
and the Disclosing Party is entitled to seek equitable relief ( including, without limitation, an injunction) with respect to 
any such breach or potential breach in addition to any other remedies available to it at law or in equity. 

13. Representations, Warranties, and Disclaimers. 

a) Mutual Representations. Each party represents and warrants to the other party that (i) it has full power and authority 
under all relevant laws and regulations and is duly authorized to enter into this Agreement; and (ii) to its knowledge, the 
execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by such party does not conflict with any agreement, instrument 
or understanding, oral or written, to which it is a party or by which it may be bound, nor violate any law or regulation of 
any court, governmental body or administrative or other agency having jurisdiction over it. 

b) Service Performance Warranty. NEOGOV warrants that it provides the Services using a commercially reasonable level 
of care and ski ll and in a professional manner in accordance with generally recognized industry standards for similar 
services. 

c) No Other Warranty. EXCEPT FOR THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES SET FORTH IN THIS WARRANTY SECTION, 
THE SERVICES ARE PROVIDED ON AN "AS IS" BASIS, AND CUSTOMER'S USE OF THE SERVICES IS AT 
ITS OWN RISK. NEOGOV DOES NOT MAKE, AND HEREBY DISCLAIMS, ANY AND ALL OTHER EXPRESS 
AND/OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, NONINFRINGEMENT AND TITLE, AND 
ANY WARRANTIES ARISING FROM A COURSE OF DEALING, USAGE, OR TRADE PRACTICE. NEOGOV 
DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE SERVICES WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED, ERROR-FREE, OR COMPLETELY 
SECURE, OR THAT ANY ERROR WILL BE CORRECTED. 

d) Disclaimer of Actions Caused by and/or Under the Control of Third Parties. NEOGOV DOES NOT AND CANNOT 
CONTROL THE FLOW OF DATA TO OR FROM THE NEOGOV SYSTEM AND OTHER PORTIONS OF THE 
INTERNET. SUCH FLOW DEPENDS IN LARGE PART ON THE PERFORMANCE OF INTERNET SERVICES 
PROVIDED OR CONTROLLED BY THIRD PARTIES. AT TIMES, ACTIONS OR INACTIONS OF SUCH THIRD 
PARTIES CAN IMPAIR OR DISRUPT CUSTOMER'S CONNECTIONS TO THE r-.lTERNET (OR PORTIONS 
THEREOF). ALTHOUGH NEOGOV WILL USE COMMERCIALLY REASONABLE EFFORTS TO TAKE ALL 
ACTIONS IT DEEMS APPROPRIATE TO REMEDY AND A VOID SUCH EVENTS, NEOGOV CANNOT 
GUARANTEE THAT SUCH EVENTS WILL NOT OCCUR. ACCORDINGLY, NEOGOV DISCLAIMS ANY AND 
ALL LIABILITY RESULTING FROM OR RELATED TO SUCH EVENTS OR WITH RESPECT TO ANY THIRD 
PARTY SERVICES. 

e) No Medical Advice. Through certain Services, NEOGOV may make certain telehealth related information available to 
Customer and/or facilitate user access to telemedicine, expert medical services, and/or emergency medical services. 
NEOGOV is independent from healthcare providers who provide telemedicine services and is not responsible for such 
healthcare providers' acts, omissions or for any content or communications made by them. The Services do not provide 
medical advice and do not create a healthcare provider/patient relationship between Customer and NEOGOV or 
otherwise. Any Services, or content accessed from the Services, are for informational purposes only and do not constitute 
medical advice. Customer should seek professional medical advice, diagnosis, and/or treatment for any and all medical 
conditions, whether as a result of using Services or otherwise. NEOGOV IS NOT RESPONSIBLE OR LIABLE FOR 
ANY ADVICE, COURSE OF TREATMENT, DIAGNOSIS OR ANY OTHER TREAT'.\1ENT OR INFORMATION 
THAT CUSTOMER OR ITS USERS MAY OBTAIN THROUGH THE USE OF THE SERVICES. 

14. Indemnification. 

a) Customer Indemnity. To the extent permitted by applicable law, Customer will defend and indemnify NEOGOV from 
and against any claim, demand, suit or proceeding made or brought against NEOGOV (i) by a third party alleging that 
any Customer Data infringes or misappropriates such third party's intellectual property rights, ( ii) in connection with 
Customer's violation of any applicable laws, or (iii) any claim or allegation by any third i:;arty resulting from or related 
to Customer's or any of its Authorized User's breach of Section 3 of this Agreement. 

6 

Page 127



NEOGOV™ P<!>werDMS 
Digital Management Software 

A IIEOGOV C-.-1 

b) NEOGOV Indemnity. Subject to subsections 14(b)(i) through 14(b)( iii) and 14(c) of this Section, ifa third party makes 
a claim against Customer that any NEOGOV intellectual property furnished by NEOGOV and used by Customer 
infringes a third party's intellectual property rights, NEOGOV will defend the Customer against the claim and indemnify 
the Customer from the damages and liabilities awarded by the court to the third-party claiming infringement or the 
settlement agreed to by NEOGOV. 

i) Alternative Resolution. lfNEOGOV believes or it is determined that any of the Services may have violated a third 
party's intellectual property rights, NEOGOV may choose to either modify the Services to be non-infringing or 
obtain a license to allow for continued use. If these a lternatives are not commercially reasonable, NEOGOV may 
end the subscription or license for the Services and refund a pro-rata portion of any fees covering the whole months 
that would have remained, absent such early termination, fo llowing the effective date of such early termination. 

ii) No Duty to Indemnify. NEOGOV will not indemnify Customer if Customer alters the Service or Service 
Specifications, or uses it outside the scope of use or if Customer uses a versic-n of the Service or Service 
Specifications which has been superseded, if the infringement claim could have been avoided by us ing an unaltered 
current version of the Services or Service Specifications which was provided to Customer, or if the Customer 
continues to use the infringing material after the subscription expires. NEOGOV will not indemnify the Customer 
to the extent that an infringement claim is based upon any information, design, speci:ication, instruction, software, 
data, or material not furnished by NEOGOV. NEOGOV will not indemnify Customer for any portion of an 
infringement claim that is based upon the combination of Service or Service Specifications with any products or 
services not provided by NEOGOV. NEOGOV will not indemnify Customer for infringement caused by Customer's 
actions against any third party if the Services as delivered to Customer and used in accordance with the terms of the 
Agreement would not otherwise infringe any third-party inte llectual property rights. 

iii) Exclusive Remedy. This Section provides the exclusive remedy for any intellectual property infringement claims or 
damages against NEOGOV. 

c) Indemnification Procedures. In order to receive the indemnities described hereunder, the indemnified party must: (i) 
promptly notify the indemnifying party, in writing, of any claim; (ii) cooperate reasonably with indemnifying party, at 
the indemnify ing party's expense, in the defense and/or settlement thereof; and (iii) allow the indemnifying party to 
control the defense and/or settlement thereof except that the indemnifying party may not, without the indemnified party's 
prior written consent, enter into any settlement that does not unconditionally release the indemnified party from liability. 
The indemnified party shall have the right to participate in any defense ofa claim and/or to be represented by counsel of 
its own choosing at its own expense, provided that ultimate control of such defense shall remain solely with the 
indemnifying party. 

15. Limitations of Liability. 

a) EXCLUSION OF DAMAGES. TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, IN NO 
EVENT WILL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE UNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR ITS 
SUBJECT MATTER UNDER ANY LEGAL OR EQUITABLE THEORY, INCLUDING BREACH OF CONTRACT, 
TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), STRICT LIABILITY, AND OTHERWISE, INCLUDING FOR ANY: (a) LOSS 
OF PRODUCTION, USE, BUSINESS, REVENUE, OR PROFIT OR DIMINUTION IN VALUE; (b) IMPAIRMENT, 
INABILITY TO USE OR LOSS, INTERRUPTION OR DELAY OF THE SERVICES; (c) LOSS, DAMAGE, 
CORRUPTION OR RECOVERY OF DATA, OR BREACH OF DATA OR SYSTEM SECURITY; (d) COST OF 
REPLACEMENT GOODS OR SERVICES; (e) LOSS OF GOODWILL, LOSS OF BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY OR 
PROFIT, OR LOSS OF REPUTATION; OR (f) CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, EXEMPLARY, 
SPECIAL, ENHANCED, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SUCH PERSONS WERE 
ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH LOSSES OR DAMAGES OR SUCH LOSSES OR DAMAGES WERE 
OTHERWISE FORESEEABLE, AND NOTWITHSTANDING THE FAILURE OF ANY AGREED OR OTHER 
REMEDY OF ITS ESSENTIAL PURPOSE. 

b) CAP ON MONETARY LIABILITY. EXCEPT FOR DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF LIABILITY WHICH CANNOT 
BE LAWFULLY EXCLUDED OR LIMITED, OR CUSTOMER'S OBLIGATIONS TO MAKE PAYMENT UNDER 
THIS AGREEMENT, THE TOTAL AGGREGATE LIABILITY OF EITHER PARTY FOR ANY AND ALL CLAIMS 
AGAINST THE OTHER PARTY UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, WHETHER ARISING UNDER OR RELATED TO 
BREACH OF CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), STRICT LIABILITY, OR ANY OTHER LEGAL 
OR EQUITABLE THEORY, SHALL NOT EXCEED THE AMOUNT OF ALL PAYMENTS ACTUALLY 
RECEIVED BY NEOGOV FROM CUSTOMER IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT IN THE 12 MONTH 
PERIOD PRECEDING THE DATE OF THE EVENT INITIALLY GIVING RISE TO SUCH LIABILITY. THE 
EXISTENCE OF ONE OR MORE CLAIMS WILL NOT ENLARGE THE LIMIT. 

7 

Page 128



NEOGOV™ P<!>werDMS 
Digital Management Software 

AHEOGOVeom,..ny 

16. Reimbursement of Costs in Third Party Litigation. With respect to any litigation or other court proceeding involv ing Customer 
and a third party, if any subpoena or other legally binding request related to such litigation or court proceeding is served to 
NEOGOV requesting copies of documents maintained by NEOGOV or otherwise requesting NEOGOV to appear as a witness 
in any capacity or provide testimony with respect to Customer's documentation, Customer shall reimburse NEOGOV for its 
out-of-pocket costs associated with compliance with such request. including but not limited to NEOGOV's reasonable 
attorneys' fees. 

17. Text Message Communications. NEOGOV may offer Personnel the opportunity to receive text messages regarding job 
application or hiring process reminders, applicant status updates, or other human resource related notices. Since these text 
message services depend on the functionality of third-party providers, there may be technical delays on the part of those 
providers. NEOGOV may make commercially reasonable efforts to provide alerts in a timely manner with accurate 
information, but cannot guarantee the delivery, timeliness, or accuracy of the content of any alert. NEOGOV shall not be liable 
for any delays, failure to deliver, or misdirected delivery of any alert; for any errors in the content ofan alert; or for any actions 
taken or not taken by you or any third party in reliance on an alert. NEOGOV cannot vouch for the technical capabilities of 
any third parties to receive such text messages. To the extent you utilize text messaging features, NEOGOV shall not be 
responsible for your use of such features, and you shall indemnify NEOGOV with respect to any damages resulting from your 
use including but not limited any violations of applicable law. NEOGOV MAKES NO WARRANTIES OR 
REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS, STATUTORY, OR IMPLIED AS TO: (i) THE AVAILABILITY OF 
TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES; (ii) ANY LOSS, DAMAGE, OR OTHER SECURITY INTRUSION OF THE 
TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES; AND (iii) ANY DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO THIRD PARTIES OR 
FAILURE TO TRANSMIT ANY DATA, COMMUNICATIONS, OR SETTINGS CONNECTED WITH THE SERVICES. 

18. Publicity. Unless otherwise provided in the applicable Order Form, NEOGOV may identify Customer as one of its customers 
and use Customer's logo for such purposes, subject to any trademark usage requirements specified by Customer. 

19. Force Majeure. Except for Customer's payment obligations to NEOGOV, neither party shall be liable for any damages, costs, 
expenses or other consequences incurred by the other party or by any other person or entity for any act. c ircumstance. event. 
impediment or occurrence beyond such party's reasonable control, including, without limitation: (a) acts of God; (b) changes 
in or in the interpretation of any law, rule, regulation or ordinance; (c) strikes, lockouts or other labor problems; (d) 
transportation delays; (e) unavailability of supplies or materials; (f) fire or explosion; (g) riot, pandemic, mil itary action or 
usurped power; (h) actions or fa ilures to act on the part of a governmental authority; (i) internet service interruptions or 
slowdowns, vandalism or cyber-attacks, or U) any other cause beyond the reasonable control of such party. 

20. Independent Contractor: No Third Party Beneficiary: Fulfillment Partners. The relationship of the parties shall be deemed to 
be that of an independent contractor and nothing contained herein shall be deemed to constitute a partnership between or a 
joint venture by the parties hereto or constitute either party the employee or agent of the other. Customer acknowledges that 
nothing in this Agreement gives Customer the right to bind or commit NEOGOV to any agreements with any third parties. 
This Agreement is not for the benefit of any third party and shall not be deemed to give any right or remedy to any such party 
whether referred to herein or not. NEOGOV may designate any third-party affi liate, or other agent or subcontractor (each a 
"Fulfillment Partner"), without notice to, or the consent of, Customer, to perform such tasks and functions to complete any 
Services. 

21. Entire Agreement: Amendment: Addendum. This Services Agreement, the Exhibits hereto, each Addendum (as may be 
applicable pursuant to the terms therein) and documents incorporated herein, the applicable Order Form, and Special 
Conditions (if any) constitute the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede 
all prior or contemporaneous oral and written statements of any kind whatsoever made by the parties with respect to such 
subj ect matter. It is expressly agreed that the terms of this Agreement and any NEOGOV Order Form shall supersede the 
terms in any non-NEOGOV purchase order or other ordering document. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any confl ict of terms 
shall be resolved by giving priority in accordance with the following order: I) Special Conditions (if any), 2) NEOGOV Order 
Form, 3) the NEOGOV Services Agreement, and 4) incorporated documents (including the Exhibits and each applicable 
Addendum). This Agreement supersedes the terms and conditions of any cl ickthrough agreement associated with the Services. 
This Agreement may not be modified or amended (and no rights hereunder may be waived) except through a written instrument 
signed by the parties to be bound. If you are subscribing for the HRIS or PowerEngage Plat:orm, you hereby specifically 
agree to the terms of the applicable Addendum set forth on the NEOGOV Site. 

22. General. 
a) Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the state 

of California, without giving effect to conflict of law rules. Any legal action or proceeding relating to this Agreement 
shall be instituted only in any state or federal court in Los Angeles, California. 

8 

Page 129



NEOGOV™ P<.!>werDMS 
Digital Management Software 

ANEOCOV~ 

b) Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal or unenforceable, such provision shall be limited or 
eliminated to the minimum extent necessary so that the remainder of this Agreement will continue in full force and effect. 
Provisions that survive termination or expiration are those relating to, without limitation, accrued rights to payment, 
acknowledgements and reservations of proprietary rights, confidentiality obligations, warranty disclaimers, and 
limitations of liability, and others which by their nature are intended to survive. 

c) Notices. All notices or other communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to 
have been duly given either when personally delivered, one ( I) business day following delivery by recognized overnight 
courier or electronic mail, or three (3) business days following deposit in the U.S. mail, registered or certified, postage 
prepaid, return receipt requested. All such communications shall be sent to (i) Customer at the address set forth in the 
Order Form and (ii) NEOGOV at the address specified in the applicable Order Form. 

d) Waiver. The waiver, express or implied, by either party of any breach of this Agreement by the other party will not waive 
any subsequent breach by such party of the same or a different kind. 

e) Electronic Delivery. Delivery ofa copy of this Agreement or an Order Form bearing an original signature by electronic 
mail or by any other electronic means will have the same effect as physical delivery of the paper document bearing the 
original signature. 

f) Assignment. Customer may not assign this Agreement without the express written approval ofNEOGOV Any attempt 
at assignment in violation of this Section shall be null and void. 

g) Construction. The parties intend this Agreement to be construed without regard to any presumption or rule requiring 
construction or interpretation against the party drafting an instrument or causing any instrument to be drafted. The 
exhibits, addendum, schedules, attachments, and appendices referred to herein are an integral part of this Agreement to 
the same extent as if they were set forth verbatim herein. 

9 
Page 130



NEOGOV™ 
Exhibit A 

Government Customer Addendum 

P<!>werDMS 
Digital Management Software 

A 11£000V Comt>ont 

If Customer is a Government Customer, the following Government Customer Addendum ("Government Addendum") forms part 
of the Services Agreement, and in the case of any confl ict or inconsistency between the terms and provisions of th is Addendum 
and any other provision of the Services Agreement, the terms of this Government Addendum shall control. For purposes hereof, a 
"Government Customer" means a Customer which is a (a) U.S. Federal agency, (b) state government, agency, department, 
or political subdivision (including a city, county or municipal corporation), or ( c) instrumentality of any of the foregoing (including 
a municipal hospital or municipal hospital district, police or fire department, public library, park district, state college or university, 
Indian tribal economic development organization, or port authority). 

1. Applicability. The provisions of this Addendum shall apply only if Customer is a Government Customer under the 
Services Agreement. 

2. Termination for Non-Appropriation of Funds. If Customer is subject to federal , state or local law which makes 
Customer's financial obligations under this Services Agreement contingent upon sufficient appropriation of funds by the 
applicable legislature (or other appropriate governmental body), and if such funds are not forthcoming or are insufficient 
due to failure of such appropriation, then Customer will have the right to terminate the Services Agreement at no 
additional cost and with no penalty by giving prior written notice documenting the lack offunding. Customer will provide 
at least thirty (30) days advance written notice of such termination. Customer will use reasonable efforts to ensure 
appropriated funds are available. It is expressly agreed that Customer shall not activate this non-appropriation provision 
for its convenience or to circumvent the requirements of this Agreement, but only as an emergency fiscal measure during 
a substantial fiscal crisis, which affects generally its fiscal operations. If Customer terminates the Services Agreement 
under this Section 2, Customer agrees not to replace the Services with functionally simi lar products or services for a 
period of one year after the termination of the Services Agreement. 

3. Indemnification. If Customer is prohibited by federal, state or local law from agreeing to hold harmless or indemnify 
third parties, Section 14(a) and the indemnification provision included in Section 17 of the Services Agreement shall not 
apply to Customer, to the extent disallowed by applicable law. 

4. Open Records. If the Customer is subject to federal or state public records laws, including laws styled as open records, 
freedom of information, or sunshine laws ("Open Records Laws") the confidentiality requirements of Section 12 of the 
Services Agreement apply only to the extent permitted by Open Records Laws applicable to the Customer. This Section 
is not intended to be a waiver of any of the provisions of the appl icable Open Records Laws, including, without limitation, 
the requirement for the Customer to provide notice and opportunity for NEOGOY to assert an exception to disclosure 
requirements in accordance with the applicable Open Records laws. 

5. Cooperative Purchasing. As permitted by law, it is understood and agreed by Customer and NEOGOV that any (i) 
federal, state, local, tribal, or other municipal government (including all administrative agencies, departments, and offices 
thereof); (ii) any business enterprise in which a federal, state, local, tribal or other municipal entity has a full, majority, 
or other controlling interest; and/or (iii) any public school (including without limitation K-12 schools, colleges, 
universities, and vocational schools) (collectively referred to as the "New Entity") may purchase the Services specified 
herein in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. It is also understood and agreed that each New 
Entity will establish its own contract with NEOGOV, be invoiced therefrom and make its own payments to NEOGOV in 
accordance with the terms of the contract established between the New Entity and NEOGOY. With respect to any 
purchases by a New Entity pursuant to this Section, Customer: (i) shall not be construed as a dealer, re-marketer, 
representative, partner or agent of any type of NEOGOY, or such New Entity; (ii) shall not be obligated, liable or 
responsible for any order made by New Entities or any employee thereof under the agreement or for any payment required 
to be made with respect to such order; and (iii) shall not be obliged, liable or responsible for any failure by any New 
Entity to comply with procedures or requirements of applicable law or to obtain the due authorization and approval 
necessary to purchase under the agreement. Termination of this Agreement shall in no way limit NEOGOV from 
soliciting, entering into, or continuing a contractual relationship with any New Entity. Any New Entity who purchases 
Services under this Section hereby represents that is has the authority to use th is Services Agreement for the purchase 
and that the use of the Services Agreement for the purchase is not prohibited by law or procurement regulations applicable 
to the New Entity. 

6. Subcontractors. For purposes of this Agreement, including any subsequent documentation requested by Customer 
pursuant to this Agreement, the term "subcontractors" shall exclude subcontractors (i) who perform routine software 
development and maintenance services which are not specific to the Customer, (ii) subcontractors who will not have any 

10 
Page 131



NEOGOV™ P<!>werDMS 
Digital Management Software 

AHEOGOVc.m.,.ny 

access to Customer Data, and (iii) subcontractors who have access to Customer Data solely within NEOGOV's or 
Customer's systems. 

11 
Page 132



NEOGOV™ 
Exhibit B 

Integration Terms Addendum 

P<!>werDMS 
Digital Management Software 

AHEOGOV~ 

NEOGOV offers integrations and platform APls for integrations to third party systems ("Integration Services"). Customer 
may use only those Integration Services purchased or subscribed to as listed within the NEOGOV Order Form. The following 
terms (the "Integration Terms Addendum") shall app ly to the extent that Customer utilizes a system integration between the 
Services and either: (a) an affiliated integrated service, including those found at 
https://api.neogov.com/connect/marketplace.html and/or https://apidocs.powerdms.com ("Affiliated API") or to the extent 
that Customer utilizes a system integration between the Services and an unaffiliated third-party service ("Customer 
Application") integrated using NEOGOV's open API ("Open API''). Integration Services are not available for HRIS Services 
and this Exhibit B shall not apply to HRIS Services. 

I. Provision of Integrations. Subject to and conditioned on compliance with all terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement, NEOGOV hereby grants Customer a limited, revocable, non-exclusive, non-transferable, non-sublicensable 
license during the applicable Term to use and/or access the Affiliated API as described in this Agreement, or the Open 
API for communication between Customer's human resource related third application(s) that wil l interoperate with 
NEOGOY Services ( collectively these uses shall be referred to as the "API" or "Integration"). Customer acknowledges 
there are no implied licenses granted under this Agreement. NEOGOV reserves all rights that are not expressly granted. 
Customer may not use the API for any other purpose without our prior written consent. Customer may not share the API 
with any third party, must keep the AP! and all log-in information secure, and must use the API key as Customer sole 
means of accessing the APL 

2. Integration Intellectual Property. All right, title, and interest in the AP! and any and all information, data, documents, 
materials, inventions, technologies, know-how, descriptions, requirements, plans, reports, works, intellectual property, 
software, hardware, systems, methods, processes, and inventions, customizations, enhancements, improvements and 
other modifications based on or derived from the API are and will remain, as appropriate, with NEOGOV. All right, title, 
and interest in and to the third-party materials, includingall intellectual property rights therein, are and will remain with 
their respective third-party rights holders subject to the terms and conditions of the applicable third-party license 
agreements. Customer has no right or license with respect to any third-party materials except as expressly licensed under 
such third-party license agreements. 

3. Integration Terms of Use. Except as expressly authorized under this Agreement, you may not remove any proprietary 
notices from the API; use the API in any manner or for any purpose that infringes, misappropriates, or otherwise violates 
any intellectual property rightor other right of any person, or that violates any applicable law; combine or integrate the 
API with any software, technology, services, or materials not authorized by NEOGOV; design or permit Customer 
Application(s) to disable, override, or otherwise interfere with any NEOGOY-implemented communications to end 
users, consent screens, user settings, alerts, warning, or the like; use the API in any of Customer Application(s) to 
replicate or attempt to replace the user experience of the Services; or attempt to cloak or conceal Customer identity or 
the identity of Customer Application(s) when requesting authorization to use the AP!. 

4. Customer Integration Responsibilities. Customer, Customer developed web or other software services or applications, 
and Customer third-party vendors that integrate with the API (collectively the "Customer Applications"), shall comply 
with all terms and conditions of this Agreement, all applicable laws, rules, and regulations, and all guidelines, standards, 
and requirements that may be posted on https://api.neogov.com/connect/index.html and/or 
https://apidocs.powerdms.com from time to time. In addition, Customer will not use the API in connection with or to 
promote any products, services, or materials that constitute, promote, or are used primarily for the purpose of dealing in 
spy ware, adware,or other malicious programs or code, counterfeit goods, items subject to U.S. embargo, unsolicited mass 
distribution of email ("spam"), multi-level marketing proposals, hate materials, hacking, surveillance, interception, or 
descrambling equipment, libelous, defamatory, obscene, pornographic, abusive, or otherwise offensive content, stolen 
products, and items used for theft, hazardous materials, or any illegal activities. 

5. Cooperation. If applicable, Customer shall timely provide such cooperation, assistance, and information as NEOGOV 
reasonab ly requests to enable the AP!. NEOGOV is not responsible or liable for any late delivery or delay or fa ilure of 
performance caused in wholeor in part by Customer's delay in performing, or failure to perform, any of its obligations 
under this Agreement. NEOGOV will provide Customer maintenance and support services for API issues arising from 
the information technology designed, developed, and under then current control ofNEOGOV. NEOGOV shall have no 
obligation to provide maintenance or support for issues ari sing from the inaction or action of Customer or third parties 
of which are outside NEOGOY control. 

6. Provision of Open APL In the event license fees or other payments are not due in exchange for the right to use and access 
the Open API , you acknowledge and agree that th is arrangement is made in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth 
in this Agreement, including, without limitation, the disclaimers, exclusions, and limitations of liability set forth herein. 

12 
Page 133



NEOGOV™ P<!>werDMS 
Digital Management Software 

A IIEOGOV Company 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, NEOGOV reserves the right to charge for access with effect from the start of each 
Renewal Term by giving Customer at least ninety (90) day notice prior to commencement ofa Renewal Term. 

7. AP[ Key. In order to use and access the Open API, you must obtain an Open AP! key through the registration process. 
Customer agreesto monitor Customer Applications for any activ ity that violates applicable laws, rules and regulation, or 
any terms and conditions of this Agreement, including any fraudulent, inappropriate, or potentially harmful behavior. 
This Agreement does not entitle Customer to any support for the Open APL You acknowledge that NEOGOV may 
update or modify the Open API from time to time and at our sole discretion and may require you to obtain and use the 
most recent version(s). You are required to make any such changes to Customer Applications that are required for 
integration as a result of such Update at Customer sole cost and expense. Updates may adversely affect how Customer 
Applications communicate with the Services. 

8. Efficient Processing. You must use efficient programming, which will not cause an overwhelming number ofrequests to 
be made in too short a period of time, as-determined solely by NEOGOV. If this occurs, NEOGOV reserves the right to 
throttle your AP! connections,or suspend or terminate your access to the Open APL NEOGOV shall use reasonable 
efforts to provide Customer notice and reasonable time to cure prior to taking such actions. 

9. Open AP! Limitations. TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED UNDER APPLICABLE LAW, IN NO EVENT 
WILL NEOGOVBE LIABLE TO CUSTOMER OR TO ANY THIRD PARTY UNDER ANY TORT, CONTRACT, 
NEGLIGENCE, STRICTLIABILITY, OR OTHER LEGAL OR EQUITABLE THEORY FOR ANY DIRECT, LOST 
PROFITS, LOST OR CORRUPTED DATA, COMPUTER FAILURE OR MALFUNCTION, INTERRUPTION OF 
BUSINESS, OR OTHER SPECIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OF ANY 
KIND ARISING OUT OF THE USE OR INABILITY TO USE THE OPEN AP!; OR ANY DAMAGES, IN THE 
AGGREGATE, IN EXCESS OF FIFTY DOLLARS, EVEN IF NEOGOV HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE 
POSSIBILITY OF SUCH LOSS OR DAMAGES AND WHETHER OR NOT SUCH LOSS OR DAMAGES ARE 
FORESEEABLE OR NEOGOV WAS ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. ANY CLAIM YOU 
MAY HA VE ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT MUST BE BROUGHT WITHIN ONE 
YEAR AFTER THE OCCURRENCE OF THE EVENT GIVING RISE TO SUCH CLAIM. 

10. Open AP! Termination. Notwithstanding the additional Termination rights herein, NEOGOV may immediately 
terminate or suspend Customer access to Open APls in our sole discretion at any time and for any reason, with or without 
notice or cause. In addition, your Open AP! subscription will terminate immediately and automatically without any 
notice if you violate any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

13 
Page 134



·NEOGOV 

Page 135



Exhibit A 
Order Form 

NEOGOV 

Governmentjobs.com, Inc. (dba "NEOGOV") 
2120 Park Pl, Suite 100 
El Segundo, CA 90245 
United States 
billing@neogov.com 
Sales Rep: Tyler Olsen 

Quote Valid From: 1/8/2024 
Quote Valid To: 2/16/2024 

Employee Count: 49 
Order Summary 

NEOGOV 
Customer: 

Livingston, City of (CA) 
1416 C Street 
Livingston, CA 95334 
USA 

Quote Number: Q-14150 
PaymentTerms: Annual.Net 30 
Subscription Term in Months: 12 

Year1 Year 1 licenses discounted 40%, Setups discounted from $7,260 to $5,500 

Service Description Start Date End Date Term Price (USD) 

Governmentjobs.com Subscription $504.00 

Insight Subscription $2,970.00 

Onboard Subscription $2,599.20 

Year 1 TOTAL: $6,073.20 

Year2 

Service Description Start Date End Date Term Price (USO) 

Governmentjobs.com Subscription $882.00 

Insight Subscription $5,197.50 

Onboard Subscription $4,548.60 

Year 2 TOTAL: $10,628.10 

Page 136



Year1 Year 1 licenses discounted 40%, Setups discounted from $7,260 to $5,500 

Service Description Start Date End Date Term Price (USD) 

Insight Setup $3,080.00 

Onboard Setup $2,420.00 

Year 1 TOTAL: $5,500.00 

ORDER TOTAL (USD): $22,201.30 

Page 137



A. Terms and Conditions 

1. Agreement. This Ordering Document and the Services purchased herein are expressly conditioned 
upon the acceptance by Customer of the terms of the NEOGOV Services Agreement either affixed 
hereto or the version most recently published prior to execution of this Ordering Form available at 
https://www.neogov.com/service-specifications. Unless otherwise stated, all capitalized terms used 
but not defined in this Order Form shall have the meanings given to them in the NEOGOV Services 
Agreement. 

2. Effectiveness & Modification. Neither Customer nor NEOGOV will be bound by this Ordering 
Document until it has been signed by its authorized representative (the "Effective Date"). Unless 
otherwise stated in this Ordering Document, all Saas Subscriptions shall commence on the 
Effective Date. This Ordering Document may not be modified or amended except through a written 
instrument signed by the parties. 

3. Summary of Fees. Listed above is a summary of Fees under this Order. Once placed, your order 
shall be non-cancelable and the sums paid nonrefundable, except as provided in the Agreement. 

4. Order of Precedence. This Ordering Document shall take precedence in the event of direct conflict 
with the Services Agreement, applicable Schedules, and Service Specifications. 

B. Special Conditions (if any). 

"Livingston, City of 
(CA)" 

Signature: 

Print Name: 

Date: 

Page 138



Page 139



~ 

e #1 public 
n job seekers 

, postings 
acking system 

likely to 
and 67% 

e every role 

Jstomizable 
form collection 

platform 
and 

·ocess with 
lidate lifecycle 

past hiring 

Virtual Recruiter 

OLANDA 

;:)\,, I'( CC l'I; 11'\I.::, I \.:J n I 

• Highlight your organization with a branded 
online career portal that accommodates complex 
applications and is accessible from your website 

• Same time screening candidates with auto-scoring 

• Modernize communication with text messaging, 
electronic offer letters, and a self-service portal 

• Generate reports for EEO, diversity and inclusion 
initiatives, and analyze time-to-hire 

• Integrates with multiple background check and 
assessment providers 

IN 

GJ 

To increase applicants, 
1blic sector HR folks, she's got a lot on 
anks to NEOGOV, it's all manageable. 

she boosts the posting to 
other job boards without 

leaving the platform. 

\\\\''" ··•1111. 
~,..... '.l/1: 
~ ½ 

-~ ~-

HIRE: ONBOARD 

• Accelerate the onboarding process by providing new hires 
access to online forms before their start date 

• Auto-assign tasks to multiple stakeholders and track completion 

• Reinforce job duties, expectations, and assign mentors 

• Schedule check-backs to drive engagement and address any 
concerns in the first 90 -120 days and increase retention 

• Automate offboarding tasks, document exit interviews, 
and formalize knowledge transfer from vacated positions 

• Simplify rehires and seasonal employee onboarding 

She notifies candidates to 
self-schedule a written 

exam. Text reminders are 
sent the day before . 

Thanks to an integration, 
a background check 
is processed for the 

top candidate . ~,,,,, .. • • • I I It. 
'.l/,1. 

~,,,,, .. • • , 't It. 
'.l/1: ~,,,,· 

~'\ 
.-S'- ½ ~-

~'\;, 
.-S'- ½ ~- ~ 

-~ 
Page 140



NEOGOV 

COMPLETE THE SUITE 

RECRUIT 

Accelerate time to hire by automating and centralizing the 
candidate attraction, selection, and onboarding process. 

DEVELOP 

Build a more capable workforce with professional development 
tools and customized training programs that maintain compliance. 

MANAGE 

Ensure HR stays organized and compliant by centralizing 
employee data, payroll, and benefits in a highly secure system. 

COMPLY 
Coniplctc the NEOGOV platform to 

support, the entire employee li_frcyclr. 
Manage, update, distribute, and track important documents, 
creating a single source of truth for all compliance needs. 

THE NEOGOV DIFFERENCE 

cmTih 
Public Sector-Focused i1] Shared Library of Global Resources 

We focus exclusively on the unique needs Save time by tapping into our global resource 
and compliance requirements of government library to leverage other organizations' 
agencies and higher ed inst itutions. detailed class specs, forms, and processes. 

® Online Community of Peers ~ Free Customer Support and Training 
©'® 

Join thousands of other public sector HR We're here to help. Contact a live customer 
leaders who participate in discussions and service agent with questions, attend free 
solve challenges together. training events, and access online courses. 

888.NEOGOV1 I CONTACT@NEOGOV.COM I NEOGOV.COM I @NEOGOV NEOGOV 
Intelligent HR 

Page 141



STAFF REPORT e . 
AGENDA ITEM: 

MEETING DATE: 

PREPARED BY: 

REVIEWED BY: 

Consideration of an Ordinance of the City Council of the City of 
Livingston Repealing Chapter 3, Underground Utility Districts, of 
Title 9 and Replacing it with Chapter 3, Underground, Utilities, of 
Title 9 of the City of Livingston Municipal Code. 

April 16, 2024 

Roy Santos, City Attorney 

Christopher Lopez, Interim City Manager 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Waive the Second Reading of the Ordinance by Title Only, Open the Public Hearing, Close the 
Public Hearing and Adopt the Ordinance as Presented. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 

In 2023, the Mayor and City Council directed the City Attorney's Office to amend the Municipal 
Code relating to Underground Utilities. The Council directed this item to comply with updated 
state laws as well as the previous code requiring undergrounding of utilities for infill lots, or in 
the event of rebuilding due to fire or other events outside of the control of the property owner. 
This requirement had the effect of adding substantial costs for infill development and for those 
projects in neighborhoods in which underground utilities were not previously done. 

The revised code requires new developments to underground utilities rather than by the use of 
poles and overhead lines while also in accordance with the California Public Utilities 
Commission rules and regulations. The requirement applies to electrical and 
telecommunications connections between utility company distribution lines and all proposed 
structures on a site, and all new installations that distribution utilities within a site. 

Exceptions to the undergrounding requirements apply to the following: 

1. New structures on parcels of five acres or larger, or requiring uninterrupted utility 
runs of five hundred feet or more; 

2. Public utility distribution service to the edge of the lot, except in an underground 
utility district or where seventy-five (75%) percent of the lots on the street within 
one thousand (1,000ft) feet of the site area already developed, and have overhead 
service from the utility company distribution source to the residences; 

3. Where underground installation may cause a substantial adverse environmental 
impact, as determined by the City; and 

4. Temporary overhead extensions for use during construction and/or for the purpose 
of testing the power supply. 

If the Council chooses not to adopt the proposed ordinance, applicants would be required to 
adhere to the existing ordinance which is attached as a reference. 

Page 1 of 2 

Page 142



Additional options for the Council to consider include the following: 

1. Not approving this ordinance. Applicants would be required to underground utilities 
per the existing ordinance. 

2. Directing the Attorney's Office to modify the proposed ordinance and bring back with 
modification. 

3. Other direction as provided by the Council. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

There is no fiscal impact with the adoption of the ordinance. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Ordinance 

Page 2 of2 

Page 143



ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON 
REPEALING AND REPLACING IN ITS ENTIRETY CHAPTER 3 OF TITLE 9 OF THE 

LIVINGSTON MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO UNDERGROUND UTILITIES 

WHEREAS, the City of Livingston ("the City") has the authority, under its police power, 
to enact regulations for the public peace, morals, and welfare of the City, California Constitution 
Article XI, section 7; and 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to enact regulations governing undergrounding of utilities at 
this time; and 

WHEREAS, absent clear regulation there is a potential threat to the public peace, health, 
and safety, and, unless the City takes action to regulate it, the secondary impacts; and 

WHEREAS, the City has a compelling interest in protecting the public health, safety, and 
welfare of its citizens, residents, visitors and businesses, and in preserving the peace and quiet of 
the neighborhoods within the City by regulating underground utilities; and 

WHEREAS, nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to: (1) allow any person to 
engage in conduct that endangers others or causes a public nuisance; or (2) allow any activity 
which is illegal under state or federal law. 

NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Livingston does hereby ordain as 
follows: 

SECTION 1. The above recitals are incorporated are hereby by reference. 

SECTION 2. The Ordinance is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
("CEQA") because it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that it will have a 
significant effect on the environment. (CEQA Guidelines § 1506l(b)(3).) It is also exempt 
because it consists of regulations and restrictions on activities to assure the maintenance, 
restoration, or enhancement of natural resources and the environment by prohibiting 
environmentally destructive components ofumegulated cannabis cultivation. (CEQA Guidelines 
§§ 15307 and 15308.) 

SECTION 3. Chapter 3, of Title 9, of the Livingston Municipal Code is repealed in its 
entirety and shall read as follows: 

Chapter3 

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES 

Section 9-3-1 Underground Utilities. 

Utilities serving new development shall be installed underground rather than by the use of 
poles and overhead lines, and where applicable shall be installed in accordance with California 
Public Utilities Commission rules and regulation. This requirement applies to electrical service 
and telecommunications (including cable TV, telephone and data transmission) connections 

01424.0001/971940.1 1 

Page 144



between utility company distribution lines and all proposed structures on a site, and all new 
installations that distribute utilities within a site. This section does not apply to the following: 

(a) New structures on parcels of five acres or larger, or requiring uninterrupted utility 
runs of five hundred feet or more; 

(b) Public utility distribution service to the edge of the lot, except in an underground 
utility district or where seventy-five (75%) percent of the lots on the street within 
one thousand (1,000ft) feet of the site area already developed, and have overhead 
service from the utility company distribution source to the residences; 

( c) Where underground installation may cause a substantial adverse environmental 
impact, as determined by the City; 

( d) Temporary overhead extensions for use during construction and/or for the purpose 
of testing the power supply. 

This section may require an applicant to underground utilities from the utility company 
distribution source to the site, as well as on the site itself. The utility service provider should be 
contacted for information on the Public Utility Commission's rules and regulations regarding the 
undergrounding of utilities. Poles and overhead lines other than those allowed by this section are 
allowable subject to Minor Use Permit approval, provided that the City first finds that either 
topographical, soil or similar physical conditions or the distance to the utility company distribution 
source make the use of underground utilities unreasonable or impractical. 

Section 9-3-2 Administrative Penalties. 

(a) The administrative citation penalty for all violations of this chapter, within a rolling 
twelve-month period, deemed misdemeanors under the Livingston Municipal Code 
shall be as follows: 

(I) First administrative citation: two hundred fifty dollars per violation; 

(2) Second administrative citation: five hundred dollars per violation; 

(3) Third administrative citation: one thousand dollars per violation; and 

(4) One thousand dollars per violation for each subsequent administrative citation. 

(b) The administrative citation penalty for all violations of this chapter, within a rolling 
twelve-month period, deemed infractions under the Livingston Municipal Code 
shall be as follows: 

01424.0001/971940.1 

(1) First administrative citation: one hundred dollars per violation; 

(2) Second administrative citation: two hundred dollars per violation; 

(3) Third administrative citation: five hundred dollars per violation; and 

( 4) Five hundred dollars per violation for each subsequent administrative citation. 

2 

Page 145



SECTION 6: EFFECTIVE DATE. 

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and after thirty (30) 
calendar days after its final passage and adoption. Within fifteen (15) calendar days after its 
adoption, the Ordinance, or a summary of the Ordinance, shall be published once in a newspaper 
of general circulation. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Ordinance was introduced by the City Council after 
waiving reading, except by Title, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 2nd day of April 2024, 
and adopted the Ordinance after the second reading at a regular meeting held on the __ day of 
______ 2024, by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

ATTEST 

Monica Cisneros, Deputy City Clerk 

CITY OF LIVINGSTON 

By:--------------
Jose Moran, Mayor 
of City of Livingston 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

By:--------------
Roy C. Santos, City Attorney 

I, _____________ , Deputy City Clerk of the City of Livingston, California, 
DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and accurate copy of the Ordinance passed 
and adopted by the City Council of the City of Livingston on the date and by the vote indicated 
herein. 

01424.0001/971940.1 3 

Page 146



AGENDA ITEM: 

MEETING DATE: 

PREPARED BY: 

REVIEWED BY: 

e 
STAFF REPORT 

Resolution Appointing Four (4) Parks Recreation and Arts 
Commissioners. 

April 16, 2024 

Jacquelyn Benoit, Recreation Superintendent 

Christopher Lopez, Interim City Manager 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution 2024-_, appointing four Parks 
Recreation and Arts Commissioners for the terms remaining on exiting commissioners. Alan 
Cadiente with the expiration of 1/31/2028, Darmeen Randhawa 1/31/2028, Cristy Pineda with 
the expiration of 1/31/28, and Anabel Perez expiration of 1/31/28. All four applicants are 
Livingston residents and have been involved in the Recreation Programs and understand the 
department's goals and philosophies. 

BACKGROUND: 

In 2023 commissioners Kenneth Abeloe, Stella Estrada and Linda Deol (alternate) resigned for 
various reasons. In January 2024 Jilda Lopez resigned and in March Ashely Gonzalez also 
resigned due to work and family commitments. None of the existing commissioners have 
completed their terms; however, since they were all appointed to fill uncompleted terms and not 
all commissioners currently have expired terms at the same time, staff is requesting council to 
appoint the four new commissioners with terms ending 1/31/2028. Vacancies have been posted 
for months and we now have enough applicants to bring to the council. The council has been 
notified through the Recreation Staff report regarding vacancies. Vacant positions have been 
publicized on the digital board and the website as well as Facebook. The application deadline is 
open until positions are filled. 

The city received a total of five applications; however, one applicant withdrew their application. 
Attached are the four applications. The parties have been asked to be in attendance at the 
Council meeting to answer any questions they may have. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

l . Resolution 
2. Applications: Darmeen Randhawa, Alan Cadiente, Cristy Pineda, Anabel Perez 

1 

Page 147



RESOLUTION 2024-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON 
APPOINTING ALAN CADIENTE, DARMEEN RANDHAWA, CRISTY PINEDA, AND ANABEL 

PEREZ TO THE PARKS RECREATION AND ARTS COMMISSION 

WHEREAS, In 2023 we lost 3 commissioners Kenneth Abeloe, Stella Estrada and Linda Deol 
(alternate) for various reasons, then in January 2024 Jilda Lopez resigned and in March Ashely 
Gonzalez also resigned due to work and family commitments, and 

WHEREAS, The city received a total of 5 applications; however, one applicant withdrew their 
application. ALAN CADIENTE, DARMEEN RANDHAWA, CRISTY PINEDA, and ANABEL 
PEREZ are all Livingston residents and have been involved in the Recreation Programs and 
understand the departments goals and philosophies, and 

WHEREAS, None of the existing commissioners have completed their terms; however, since 
they were all appointed to fill uncompleted terms and not all commissioners currently have 
expired terms at the same time, I am asking for the council to appoint the 4 new commissioners 
with terms ending 1/31/2028. Vacancies have been posted for months and now we have 
enough applicants to bring to the council, and 

WHEREAS, The council has been notified through the Recreation Staff report regarding 
vacancies. Vacant positions have been publicized on the digital board, word of mouth, the city 
website as well as Facebook. The application deadline is open until positions are filled; and 

WHEREAS, by appointing the 4 applicants the commission would have 8 regular members; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Livingston does hereby appoint ALAN 
CADIENTE, DARMEEN RANDHAWA, CRISTY PINEDA, and ANABEL PEREZ TO THE 
PARKS RECREATION AND ARTS COMMISSION. 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2024-_ is a full, true and correct copy of a 
resolution duly passed and adopted by City Council of the City of Livingston at a regular 
meeting thereof duly held on 16th day of April 2024, by the vote recorded as follows: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

By:-----------
Jose A. Moran, Mayor 
of the City of Livingston 

Page 148



ATTEST: 

Monica Cisneros, Deputy City Clerk 
of the City of Livingston 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM 

Roy C. Santos, City Attorney 

Page 149



Please return to: 

City of Livingston 

Attn: City Clerk 

1416 C Street 

Livingston, CA 95334 

(209)394-8041 ext 121 

City of Livingston 

Parks Recreation and Arts Commission 

Deadline for Submission September 1, 2023 at 4:30pm 

Supplemental Questionnaire 

" 

NOV LI LULJ 

Please print or type your answers to the following questions and submit them with your completed application. 

You may submit additional sheets, if necessary, to complete your answers. 

1) Have you ever attended a Parks Recreation and Arts Commission meeting? YES @ 
Date attended ___ _ 

2) How did you learn about the vacancy on the Parks Recreation and Arts Commission? 

"I: t.No-~ CJ>f'~o bi ,oh, o..f\c} JC>..t..~\e -'< orv-. Q.ec... 
o.'co.fe' "W\'-~ ~-...~C('i. 

3) Describe your involvement in community activities, volunteer and civic organizations: 
~'f \('.-.J~\-.tQ_~(\"l" 'tf'. (_C:,.fV\M->"- 1.""t--f l Vv\vl\1;'-(_,'(...f' "'-'\C, <;A\/~\. Q('_jc,,._1',"\...0-.."'"0t'\f 

CA'< Q. v-..~ ~\OvJ~ •• ltv-.c..\.-\ t-er \,--\+\~ K\~~ b: .. ~~.:~_,..\\ ~ Qi loo..Se.loc'-\,, 
Lt>-e.6 s~c....'- \ ~\t.>-"J-<.. (" la 'I-C ~( S f"\e_.cv \'-J . 

4) What is it about the Parks Recreation and Arts Commission that interests you? What qualities, experience 

and expertise would you bring to the Parks Recreation and Arts Commission? 
I ~\N:> r.'\CA.~'-~ ,,v~~S'\""or. ~c.. o.. 4>\c,.....L~ +or · 1.<...i.d.S ~ 
~ OvJ O'--r"\6 bt ~ 0'""\,\. -R.. \) \."'-~ Nj \J o....r: ~ ~ of.. ~ \:>Of'°H 

So~t-~ -"-~ ~-\ \f\~ Q.. ~ ~ . IY\-L- • .L ~~ \ ~Q. ""u f 11. \ Y\\)O\v<t t'V\ ~n-+-

v-..R.. ~\)(.. Ck Q\){ (j) ~~\) ~ '"'1 Ct-\- \'-'°'-) ) -e_ C\.." c-. \ s to l. -e..S ~ ~\C-~ 
~~ ·d~~ ~ CA..ct\'-'\~~ CA..f\.C. &-\-e,,._'-'§~ t>4"- ~ ~.e_e.t\' 
~ . \ k .Q. \ ~ \ t() \J \ 0- ~ '"'<-\ ~ \"-' ' °'UM, (),.. r--. ct t;v ~ ~ w O)U\O-l 

~~~- '"" ~ t,O\~ ~ , ""'-CJ--,"4-t .w t.'I'-~~ ~\ ~ ~~ ~cl- '""~\1nv,..') . 
Page 150



5) How would you see your role as a commissioner when recommending policy and working with the council? 

'\""\'y -c 0 \e. °'-"' <..c.=i;n,<;,c:"'"-r 1...>ov\o l::>e, lo\",~,~ 0\. I'\,;:_'-' -prc,sp~ot('-'!l.. 

-h<>....-.. "'- ~c.-J~..._.., °.:)-.:..J/'\-u--o-.....,;,c.,..., ~"' -\hJL U'fV'\"'-""'~I • :S"'"'-'--O"<t. ~"I:- ,c; 
c..t><,,<. \"-CXA'<!., Of "-<:.<..." "&,.~(It "'"-"<- "'lhc,..-\- \o""'- ..._.,_O \v• '·• ..• , 

, .,) _ Jc .J ' '- 'O.._-t,...,..._ 'tf"\vll\~ ti\ \-+...(_ 
<fl""""'• ,-h\ w~ ,.i.. w 0.5 '""-\\- \-'i,~nS<.hoo\ S~"'5 ~ , p\o-.~e.c,. '-\ '-\eCA.< & o.f-
\)o'l\~v,. ~ S~\\ ) °""C... ~ '-I e..o-.r:s c:+- bCAS'f-.c.."'n:x.>-\.\, , ..,._, 0-....5 IV"\\.lO\'-' c.o\ 

'" \t.O..e,v<6\·,\P ""'-S ~,, , $1> '-C-(_-<.-\ -¥,-._..,_',;- \~ ~•"-"'~ ._.,._., $ O{)pVrt·"(\; 

I 1,->o..i\c\ 'ot o-'ol.!l.. 't() '()qi'\✓ c>-.\o"'I- h ~ +<:;..i:,-.... =-~ d,.tl,'C\.lSS co .... s °'"''I 
f\."-..._. ~\i.C.'-1 0-<'-0- I Q.':)\l\c..~ O"- S, 

6) What are the current issues that the Parks Recreation and Arts Commission will face? 

G;,cr<t"'-~'; ·, ~(..-<:. \ v,.>Q 'k:,..c...Q.. ~,\Je.,~,\.y. NO\- O-.\o\- c~ -\->NL 
(.c::,M<.-A,;,0-\·•,:,1 •,S \r\vO\,,.e6 11\t..~ c),.,~c..,t"-~ Cl.>\~f-e.'t,. 

V-l ~ 60 '/"\O ~ Y'\A.~ ""->--~ '-k ' I'\-.) O \. '-l~ ~ 't" I.A.) \ ~ 

< CA\, "-'J e °bi',:;,~'() S . 

7 )If appointed, what specific goals would you like to see the Parks Recreation and Arts Commission 

achieve? \ \.)-.)CQ\.d.. \, 'f-.4. -'\"t:> <5<2..'2. ~°'-.f ¥;..._ t&, ~ 
,::,;; <-~ Q_V..Q. 00C>'t • \ WC'-J\~ \~ ~<:_ ""\"-C O"<- e_ 

'N'O'I ~ 'S \'t,r~ ' f'f',.~ v-e '~ \ o.e:i'-\,)' "'\:\ ~ 
'oi\~ "oto\.:>~h"t ti'-)-\ ~'- ---'if\.'t::,!::,..Q <J>Y\..0 

c)Q ~ ,,~~ &co~ 
' ~, s -0:.,, 

6,)Q.'( Cl..\\ '('fO\ ~ -, \ ~ ~ 

CD\ ~-.:; n '--\:-'f • 
.I 

Page 151



Committee/Commission Application 

l.h-t WlthlA Cit~ l.inoit< O«u1n,tion 
\) 

No 

Plr•1t dtstribt i ou hacl,i:round Rnrl quallOutions 

L\J N 

s 
fi 

Page 152



Please return to: 

City of Livingston 

Attn: City Clerk 

1416 C Street 

Livingston, CA 95334 

(209)394-8041 ext 121 

City of Livingston 

Parks Recreation and Arts Commission 

Deadline for Submission Open Until Filled 

Supplemental Questionnaire 

DATE: -,bf1UL \ l o'V~ 

0 

Please print or type your answers to the following questions and submit them with your completed application. 

You may submit additional sheets, if necessary, to complete your answers. 

1) Have you ever attended a Parks Recreation and Arts Commission meeting? YES €J 

Date attended _ __ _ 

2) How did you learn about the vacancy on the Parks Recreation and Arts Commission? 

\J\,\ A C-t('-\ ~lA?tu't Ee' 

3) Describe your irwol.vement in community activities, volunteer and c~yic ~rj ~nJ!ations: 
\)..Vtt--\~~ ·. ~ : 
_.e,uµ,.•,G\i,f\ ~~?~ P-0\JlSo<l w/ ~ ttS"" 1'fb\~ _ 

-'\v~ ~\~-r ~X.\N" ~ w)~~xl\-t~~ 
(.u,~. B\--f-\~ €--.'{N) ~\-"1\f W\L ~ ~ 

4) What is it about the Parks Recreation and Arts Commission that interests you? What qualities, experience 

and expertise would you bring to the Parks Recreation and Arts Commission? . ..-ru...-

.--j;M ~\..W~ \~~ \N t1et~'- A Vl~\.e.. tv\€M.~ of-- \\,\\:;. 

toMMVJJtt\.i ~E. k~O~)\'f\V~ 'ft>~ \~ ~ ~\J€~ ~ 
OuJl- '\O~-

- .I, ~Ll€Ve ~~ ~ \N \,:A:\AJ ~~l~6' ~~~ 
~o i0~ ~~,U{ kinv ~ w / 'itJJ1t\ eutoufs w llL- ~a.ov e: :r: 
~ ~ A:N ~ef 1b ~ Cc)f.A.MA 550)\.) , 

Page 153



5) How would you see your role as a commissioner when recommending policy and working with the council? 

-t<J~ 1 '"L J><M k~ ~ r ~~fu~ W~ CPN 
A:\)~S5 ~'i Gu~sno~s l CD..JC-6'L.N ~ oC:-~ ~u.L--. 
~ ~~ k 6?~\'5-Sl~, VJ~ ~ w~ w~~ A:S ~ 
ffct.let.- ,-v '?a..v\JtO~ \~$l&ttf ,~~~, Clo~~ ,-0 
~ /~~ "@.lOrz-p..."oi-,:,. 

6) What are the current issues that the Parks Recreation and Arts Commission will face? 

~~.w,l-l" - ~v,~"\) l't~i) ~.., 6~ ~o -5~ 

- M)O\\\O~M.. ~u~~ ~ \~~ ~\v'tn~s 
- \w,~c.,~ ~,t.. ~~v~ C-t.A:~s I ~t\Jt\\E"s 

- l><-00 t{1 ow M.-~ ~~ t1\~, -\\t\~~~ ~ ~ r'w\/t (}~ 
U>~. ~t--\V~t~~~I OlL- ~\)~~\ "fen,_. ~L\l.S 

V~\""- t"'~ ?~Lfl) 

7 )If appointed, what specific goals would you like to see t he Parks Recreation and Arts Commission 
achieve? 

- oc tl\J\.\.,, ~o \l1(\Je ~~\oN A.s A- nn.ovf 
'V 

- YLC~~l:\ ~ ~ \£\e;w~, Qo~T5/~S11oNiS 

--f$£ytokC{l\/Q.
1 
NO( 'fx> ~Ok ~~c:(\v~ 

Page 154



Committee/Commission Application 

A 
.\ddrus Con~11eo/Conu11lufon Applyln~ For 

Un Wllhln City f.ln,lls 

No 
D 

l 

Page 155



Please return to: 

City of Livingston 

Attn: City Clerk 

1416 C Street 

Livingston, CA 95334 

(209)394-8041 ext 121 

City of Livingston 

Parks Recreation and Arts Commission 

Deadline for Submission Open Until Filled 

Supplemental Questionnaire 

NAME: Cristy Freitas 

DATE: 03/28/24 

Please print or type your answers to the following questions and submit them with your completed application. 

You may submit additional sheets, if necessary, to complete your answers. 

1) Have you ever attended a Parks Recreation and Arts Commission meeting? 0 NO 

Date attended ....:N_.:....:./ A_;__ _ _ 

2) How did you learn about the vacancy on the Parks Recreation and Arts Commission? 

City of Livingston Website/Jacquie Bennoit 

3) Describe your involvement in community activities, volunteer and civic organizations: 

I am involved in community activities through my child's participation in sports such 
as basketball, softball, basketball, and flag football. I also participate in the co-ed 
softball recreational league. 

4) What is it about the Parks Recreation and Arts Commission that interests you? What qualities, experience 

and expertise would you bring to the Parks Recreation and Arts Commission? 

Since my child partakes in different sports and I coach my softball team, I'd like to be 
involved in being part of the Parks Recreation and Arts Commission to help out our 
community. If chosen for this opportunity I would bring an energetic attitude to help 
our community grow our recreational opportunities. 

Page 156



5) How would you see yot1r role as a commissioner when recommending policy and working with the council? 

I would see it as an important role that helps out our community by advising council 
on how our Parks Recreation and Arts Commission can improve or have better 
opportunities for our residents. I believe that the insight of member of the 
community is helpful because I care about our city and the opportunities that we give 
to our residents. 

6) What are the current issues that the Parks Recreation and Arts Commission wm face? 

I don't see any issues that the Parks Recreation and Art Commission is currently 
facing, but with my involvement I could learn and see if there are any foreseeable 
issues that I can advise on. 

7 )if appointed, what specific goals would you like to see the Parks Recreation and Arts Commission 
achieve? 

If appointed, I would like to see more opportunities for recreational and athletic 
opportunities to be offered to adults so more of our residents can be involved in our 
community. I would also like to see more promoting of the opportunities we offer so 
residents can be more involved and be proud to be a residents of the City of Livingston. 

Page 157



Committee/Commission Application 

--.\ddrrn 

Cristy Freitas Parks Recreation and Arts Commission 

Lh t \\ hhin Cit) l.imits OcrupJtion 

No QA Supervisor 

Pl•••• d"rribt ) •• b..,kgrou•d 11nd quallfi<ahons 

I have lived in Livingston since I was 6 ears old. I feel proud to sa that Livingston is my hometown 

and have alwa s wanted to be more involved in m communit . This would be a reat start to bein 

involvement of our residents and assist our Parks Recreation and Arts Commission in doing so. 

------------ -

Page 158



... 

Please return to: 

City of Livingston 

Attn: City Clerk 

1416 C Street 

Livingston, CA 95334 

(2091394-8041 ext 121 

City of Livingston 

Parks Recreation and Arts Commission 

Deadline for Submission Open Until Filled 

Supplemental Questionnaire 

NAME: _ A-na.la.J Pe..Ye_,-z.., 

e 

Please print or type your answers to the following questions and submit them with your completed application. 

You may submit additional sheets, if necessary, to complete your answers. 

1} Have you ever attended a Parks Recreation and Arts Commission meeting? YES ~ 
Date attended ___ _ 

2) How did you learn about the vacancy on the Parks Recreation and Arts Commission? 

:r::."'-- ~W--f S~'~ v>:~ ~llr'W 

£,,~ p I (j(' ,t,,, v a_), t' ,-.( ov ~-

3) Describe your involvement in community activities, volunteer and civic organizations: 

I ~ ()..-A- a.d.v:s-o-r -h'n-- +{e., L.f>b £,J'P /,sy~ v-s. 
J: +~ C.~~:-s ""- +; ~~~~ S~ki-..r 

~ V""-'~ ChJ.,.v-c;..J._. i o..-~ ~ VV'~b-L,y c)-f ~ 
A )~ so"' ~~f-'e- -We..- c{.e..c, o-ra..k ~ c.h.uv-ch.- 5 oY~"u.- e.v~ ~ . 

4) What is it about the Parks Recreation and Arts Commission that interests you? What qualities, experience 

and expertise would you bring to the Parks Recreation and Arts Commission? t<JJ-.c_)... 
~ ()..,. ~A,(~ D f C,¼_·\ l ol\"" ~ w ~ "'-~ p µ-+-,' c..' (.J • 

l ,A. ~{l..~ O,...C..~V~ ~-<...S -t-le.. (!...:~ r rov ~d.tt..s ~ a.-~ 

; .,.....\..-c_.~-<--s"'--<--J. 'i ~ "' o" ;~ ~ :lli.f>'4X ~ '-td r rod~c.-ts 
~ ~ ~ v\., ~~ -l Ak ,s. A--< ~ S' f ~-,cJ. be;,(, uca.::l-1 ~ 

-+~ -~r~ ""t' h-1>P~ -fo Dri)v~cl~ ~ VDic.L ~ .C.U11 tncfu5i0h -
Page 159



5) How would you see your role as a commissioner when recommending policy and working with the council? 

:C. >e,,,~ f1A-~ ro k- ~5 Ctlt\,~ ~Spe-<::..h\fe.. 
C\.c;. '",+ r~ 4-o a,k·.ldren. 1 5p<-~;.f2;ca..U't' 

C)v\. ·- \ J...-A.- ""--- \.,µ ·, +k s p-ec:..: a... l n.-e..LJ s: 

6) What are the current issues that the Parks Recreation and Arts Commission will face? 

.:I- ~~ ~ ~ 
v-.> :\\ k r.e-es W f ,~J 
M ~ s-J a_+!-J:., '--,--.s~~ ::r. 

~-e..- ~ o-+ ~ l..f~. 

7 )If appointed, what specific goals would you like to see the Parks Recreation and Arts Commission 
achieve? 

'-A.I~ 

~ ..>~ AJ:- ~)-

b }- , .. ,,, c/ 01 V *~ -f-lv_ 

5 Ct,.__\::, $ Lt. c.-k.., a.-s; C.O--,k, ,,......_ ~ ~ 'f-L 
5 w ..d- f t>+a+.. -(ls i;'-.i-o...l \ 't{,._.., +4 + 
~ clv o ( 13~ Rv~c.~~ 

~---r ..J ... ~" ~ o Iv ; V\. &' '--1--{_._ <!. o ,..,,..,'-'-"-' y 
,,..,..j a_,.,.._ : "l.. ~ > ~ ~ • 

Page 160



Committee/Commission Application 

Address Commiu c"°fCon1mi5sinn Appl~ in~ t-or 

- --------? C.t"i:, 't.-

Occupation 

No 
- ------- ------! 

Please describe you backitround and qumllflca1ions 

:r-
$ ~~al 6~c~~ +~ ____ _.._ _______ _ M 

., 1 (' ~ ~ ~ ~y' +-; c... ~ a..!-J 

i----=....,,v kH:~l!-~ ---1.J~ !....JC,,o~ll...--- ~..:;;,...,;::~ ___:~=-~~~---'-:---=~ 

1-----!l.~ ~ <.J.._1--..IQ!~~~.a-_-=..1,..~ --~ ::..._~~~~~L..llc::~- ~ :..!...-----1 

5e..'<\S 

l 

Page 161



STAFF REPORT 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion and Direction on City of Livingston Fire Services 
   
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2024 
 
FROM:  Christopher Lopez, Interim City Manager 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Discussion and Direction on City of Livingston Fire Services 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On February 7, 2023, the Livingston City Council was scheduled to discuss an agreement with 
Merced County for enhanced staffing at Station 96 in the City of Livingston. The agenda item 
proposed staffing at a 2-0 level at a cost of $399,903 to the city for the increased staffing. The 
proposed cost to the City of Livingston was proposed based on the call for service volume and 
was the rationale for the City’s proportion of costs. That evening, the then Acting City Manager 
pulled the agenda item from discussion.  
 
Within a couple of months, Merced County notified the City that it was increasing the contract 
amount to $750,000 (from $399,903). Currently, Livingston residents contribute approximately 
$1,007,010 in fire parcel tax revenues to the County which it currently retains. The Livingston 
parcel tax revenues in excess of $1M plus the proposed $750,000 would mean Livingston 
resident contributions would total $1.8M. Based on total station costs of approximately $2.3M, 
city residents would be required to pay nearly 80% of the total station costs. Station 96 currently 
responds to Livingston calls for service as well as County calls for service. In 2022, the total 
calls for service totaled 61% Livingston calls, and 39% County resident calls.   
 
Once presented with this information of the increase to $750,000, the City Manager’s Office 
questioned why the City of Livingston would be paying nearly 80% of the costs ($1M parcel tax 
+ $750,000) when Station 96 personnel responds to city and county calls.  
 
Ideally, the City would pay for its fair proportion of calls, and the County would pay for its fair 
share. Legally, the City has an obligation to its tax payers to ensure it is not covering costs in 
excess of what it should be paying.  
 
In late January 2024, the City was notified that the County had “drafted” a proposal to potentially 
close the Livingston station as well as numerous other stations. This document was provided as 
an attachment to the February 6, 2024, meeting of the Mayor and City Council to undertake 
community wide polling for a potential sales tax measure since the City does not have an 
additional $750,000 in revenues. The City Council approved the requested action, and the City 
will soon kickoff the community wide polling.  
 
The City of Livingston has always understood the need for additional funding necessary for a 
higher level of staffing and remains open to discussing an equitable arrangement which does 
not unfairly burden Livingston taxpayers.  

Page 162



DISCUSSION: 
 
On April 9, 2024, the Merced County Board of Supervisors had a discussion related to the 
potential closure of Livingston Station 96. The Board of Supervisors ultimately continued the 
conversation until May 7, 2024.  
 
At this Board meeting, the City Manager’s Office and City Council members voiced their 
concern, thoughts, and questions to the Board of Supervisors related to the potential action.  
 
CITY OF LIVINGSTON PROPOSALS: 
 
Since the April 9, 2024, Board meeting, the City Manager’s Office has provided the County 
CEO’s Office with two proposals to keep Station 96 operational.  
 
The City’s proposals to the County include the following:  
 

1. Stop gap funding via overtime from July 1, 2024—Safer Grant determination to avoid 
potential station closure. 

a. The County should run the analyses to provide an estimated cost  
i. Cal Fire staff has provided estimated total overtime costs totaling 

approximately $28,000--$30,000 per month.  
b. The County should provide their rationale for their funding contribution.  
c. The City would provide its faire share of OT costs 

2. Station 96 Cost split via calls for service listed below which takes the total Station 
cost of $2.3M and splits it 61% City, 39% County  

a. The City’s portion would be $409,441/year after factoring in fire parcel tax 
revenue. 

 
It should be noted that Merced County has submitted a SAFER Grant which would cover the 
costs for additional personnel for a period of three years. The County should receive notification 
of whether it was awarded the grant sometime in the fall of 2024. Proposed Option One would 
provide a mechanism to get to that point, which would also allow the city to discuss an 
agreement in the event the County does not receive the SAFER Grant.  
 
The City Manager’s Office has discussed the options with Cal Fire personnel to assess the 
viability of both options as well as with Cal Fire Management. Cal Fire Management has 
conveyed their support for proposed Option One to keep Station 96 operational and enhance 
the level of service.   
 
Finally, the City Manager’s Office and Councilmembers Jason Roth and JT Mann will be 
travelling to Washington D.C. with the MCAG OneVoice delegation in May to lobby federal 
agencies for various priorities, and the SAFER Grant is a top priority.  
 
 
 
 

Page 163



    STAFF REPORT 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Consideration of a Resolution Approving an Administrative Fee for billing 
processing for Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials, and Organic Waste 
Collection Services within the City of Livingston. 

 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2024 
 
PREPARED BY: Anthony Chavarria, Director of Public Works  
 
REVIEWED BY: Christopher Lopez, Interim City Manager 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution Establishing an Administrative Fee for Solid 
Waste, Recycling and Organics Collection Services Processing Maintenance and Enforcement. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
 
On March 19, 2024, the City Council approved Resolution No. 2024-14 approving a Franchise Agreement 
for Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials, and Organic Waste Collection Services between the City of 
Livingston and Gilton Solid Waste Management, Inc (Gilton). The term of the agreement was initiated 
April 1, 2024, and is for a ten (10) year initial term with option of two- five (5) year extensions. 
 
The City granted Gilton the exclusive franchise, right and privilege to collect all Solid Waste, Organic 
Waste and Recyclables for all residential and commercial premises located within the Franchise Area 
and to transport the same to a High Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facility, sanitary landfill, transfer 
station, compost/mulching site, or waste-to-energy facility outside the City.  
 
Based on the agreement, Gilton shall furnish all labor, supervision, materials, permits, licenses, and 
equipment necessary to provide residential and commercial refuse collection services for customers 
within the franchise area of City. Gilton shall also perform its obligations under the Franchise Agreement 
in accordance with all applicable local, state, or federal laws and in a manner that maximizes the City’s 
Solid Waste diversion rate to the extent possible.   
 
The highlights of the agreement are as follows: 
 

• 10 year initial term with option of two 5 year extensions. 
• City will receive a 15% Franchise Fee from Collectors gross revenues from residential, 

commercial, and industrial accounts. 
• City will adjust the maximum rates under this agreement to reflect annual changes in the 

consumer price index for all urban consumers (CPI). 
• Collector will provide for two (2) curbside bulky item collection events per calendar year from 

residential customers. 
• Collector shall collect, recycle, or dispose of specified E-Waste (as defined in Exhibit F in the 

attached agreement) from residential customers up to four (4) times per calendar year. 
• Collector will provide a residential Christmas tree collection and recycling program. Each year, 

during the first two full weeks of January, Collector will pick up Christmas trees from the front of 
residential properties in the City. 

Page 164



• Collector shall provide Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Organic Waste collection services to all 
City owned and operated facilities and parks at no additional charge to the City. 

• At the City's request, Collector will provide waste containers, plus Solid Waste, Organic Waste 
and Recyclables removal and disposal services for three community events per year. 

• No less than twice per year, if requested by City, Collector will distribute informational flyers or 
brochures to City Customers regarding the importance of recycling and separating wastes in 
order to achieve greater waste diversion, as well as the applicable commercial recycling 
requirements set forth in AB 341, AB 1826, and SB 1383. In addition, Collector will provide 
technical support and assistance to City Staff in preparation of articles or newsletters related to 
organic waste reduction, reuse, and recycling. 

• Collector agrees to assist the City in meeting SB 1383 mandates by performing the additional 
services (as detailed in Exhibit G in the attached agreement). 
 

City of Livingston personnel perform the administrative duties to process all billing for refuse services. 
Administrative duties for City Hall staff typically involve tasks like managing customer accounts, 
processing payments, handling billing inquiries and maintaining accurate records. Public Work staff 
duties include handling customer inquiries, scheduling illegal dumping pick-ups, cleaning debris from 
streets and alleys. The Public Works street sweeper duties include driving a motorized street sweeper to 
clean City’s streets, parking lots and alleys along an assigned route and cleaning trash debris from 
gutters. The Public Safety Code Enforcer performs enforcement duties such as educating residents, 
issuing violation notices and citations to assure compliance and enforce State laws and local ordinances.  
 
The City has projected the required administrative fee that needs to be collected to perform the billing 
process and other related duties within the Refuse Enterprise.  
 
The projected administrative fee is inclusive of the following: 

• Employee allocations consist of: 
o City Staff time to perform billing tasks for Solid Waste customers. 
o Staff time is inclusive of employee benefits.  
o Staff time for sweeping of street gutters to remove trash and debris. 
o Staff time to perform enforcement activities. 

• Expenses in the Refuse budget to account for vehicle operations & maintenance consist of 
o OPEB Trust Contributions 
o Physical Examinations: 

  Cost share for annual DOT exams for employees 
o Contracted Services- IT 

 Cost share for Microsoft 365 and annual IT contract 
o Contract Service: 

 Consultant fee to assist with compliance of SB 1383, AB939 and AB1826 
 Cost share for ABS Direct, Inc. (printing utility statements, termination notices and 

postage) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 165



 Cost share for computer and printer lease, annual work order subscription, annual 
web hosting fee, GovInvest training and annual subscription for TimeClock 
software and credit checks 

o Contract Services- Legal 
 Cost share to perform legal reviews 

o City Audit 
 Cost share for city annual audit 

o Computer Support Agreements 
 Cost share for annual Springbrook and Civic Pay software (online payment portal) 

o Vehicle O/M 
 Cost share for fuel, diesel, and vehicle maintenance for street sweeper 

o Equipment O/M 
 Cost share for trailer maintenance/ backhoe, repair and maintenance 

o Insurance 
 Cost share for annual liability program 

o Comm/Cell Phones/ Telephone 
 Cost share for employee cell phone, laptop, and landlines 

o Printing 
 Cost share for payroll checks and door hangers 

o Bank Services Fee Agreement 
 Cost share for bank services 

o Small Tool/ Equipment 
 Cost share for safety equipment needed by staff  

o Office Supplies 
 Cost share for office supplies 

o Postage 
 Cost share for mailings not provided by ABS Direct Inc. such delinquent notices 

and final billing 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 166



ANALYSIS: 
 
EMPLOYEES ALLOCATIONS WITH BENEFITS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENT EMPLOYEE TITLE REFUSE TIME 
ALLOCATION % 
FROM TOTAL 

SALARY 

TOTAL AMOUNT 
ALLOCATED 

FROM REFUSE FUND 

PUBLIC WORKS PW DIRECTOR 10% $20,899.00 
PUBLIC WORKS PW SUPERINTENDENT 10% $15,426.33 
PUBLIC WORKS SR. ADMIN. ANALYST 20% $30,856.56 
PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN. ANALYST 15% $14,897.49 
PUBLIC WORKS PW ACCOUNT CLERK 15% $10,154.04 
PUBLIC WORKS STREET SWEEPER 10% $14,220.06 
PUBLIC WORKS LEAD MAINT. WORKER 10% $15,824.77 
PUBLIC WORKS MAINTENANCE WORKER I 15% $16,184.15 
PUBLIC WORKS MAINTENANCE WORKER II 15% $16,333.71 
PUBLIC WORKS MAINTENANCE WORKER II 5% $6,525.71 
    
CITY HALL INTERIM CITY MANAGER 10% $22,875.56 
CITY HALL FINANCE DIRECTOR/ACM 10% $19,242.10 
CITY HALL SR.  ACCOUNTANT 10% $16,680.98 

CITY HALL ACCOUNTANT I 10% $10,377.41 
CITY HALL ACCOUNTANT II 10% $10,604.68 
CITY HALL ACCOUNTING TECHNICIAN 22% $22,049.65 
CITY HALL EX. ASST./DEPUTY CITY 

CLERK 
15% $15,430.19 

CITY HALL ASST. TO DEPUTY CITY 
CLERK/RECORDS 
MANAGEMENT 

15% $10,950.24 

CITY HALL HR COORDINATOR 10% $12,253.38 

CITY HALL ACCOUNT CLERK 35% $25,270.01 
CITY HALL ACCOUNT CLERK 25% $14,543.13 
CITY HALL OFFICE ASSISTANT I 26% $20,119.29 
PUBLIC SAFETY CODE COMPLIANCE 

OFFICER 
10% $14,111.56 

  TOTAL $375,830.00 

    

Page 167



 
PART TIME AND OVER TIME 
 

LIABILITY TOTAL 

PART TIME SALARIES $11,939.00 
OVER TIME SALARIES $4,438.00 
TOTAL $16,377.00 

 
 
LIABILITY  
 

LIABILITY TOTAL 

OPEB TRUST CONTRIBUTION $1,267.00 
 
 
 
 
 
REFUSE BUDGET 
 

REFUSE OPERATION/MAINTENANCE 
BUDGET 

TOTAL 

PHYSICALS EXAMINATIONS $60.00 
CONTRACTED SERVICES - IT $6,292.00 
CONTRACT SERVICES $42,000.00 
CONTRACTED SERVICES-LEGAL $8,000.00 
CITY AUDIT $23,568.00 
COMPUTER SUPPORT AGREEMENTS $25,000.00 
VEHICLE O/M $6,981.00 
EQUIPMENT O/M $500.00 
INSURANCE  $13,705.00 
COMMS/CELL PHONES/TELEPHONE $2,500.00 
PRINTING $400.00 
BANK SERVICE FEE AGREEMENTS $6,461.00 
SMALL TOOLS/EQUIPMENT $808.00 
OFFICE SUPPLIES $700.00 
POSTAGE $100.00 
TOTAL  $137,075.00 

 

Page 168



 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE FEE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
City staff recommends approving an Administrative Fee for billing processing for Solid Waste, 
Recyclables Materials and Organic Waste Collection Services within the City of Livingston. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
 

(1) Council can choose Not to adopt the Administrative Fee and direct staff to determine whether 
Gilton will be receptive to opening up the franchise agreement and assuming all components of 
the administrative fee. This will result in a revenue decrease that may impact employee positions 
and will trigger the meet and confer process with labor unions. 

(2) Council can use an alternative funding source such as the general fund to cover the administrative 
fee however no analysis has been performed to reflect the impact of the general fund covering 
the $530,549 administrative cost. 

(3) Council can choose alternative action and direct City staff. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Projected revenue of $530,549 from Administrative Fee to cover City’s cost of administering Solid 
Waste Services to be directed to the Refuse Fund 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1.  Resolution  
2.  Exhibit “A” Franchise Agreement 
 
 

EMPLOYEE ALLOCATIONS $375,830.00 
PART TIME & OVER TIME 
SALARIES 

$16,377.00 

OPEB TRUST CONTRIBUTION $1,267.00 
OPERATION/MAINTENANCE $137,075.00 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $530,549.00 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $530,549.00 
REFUSE ACCOUNTS 3,500 
ANNUAL CHARGE PER 
ACCOUNT 

$151.58 

MONTHLY ADMINISTRATIVE 
FEE PER ACCOUNT 

$12.63 

Page 169



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON 
ESTABLISHING AN ADMINISTRATIVE FEE FOR SOLID WASTE, RECYCLING AND 

ORGANICS COLLECTION SERVICES PROCESSING MAINTENANCE AND 
ENFORCEMENT 

 
WHEREAS, the California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989 (Public Resources Code 
sections 40000 et seq.) requires local agencies to make adequate provision for Solid Waste 
handling within their jurisdictions; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Livingston Municipal Code authorizes the City to enter into exclusive 
franchise agreements for the handling, collection, transportation and disposal of solid waste, 
recycling and organics; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council, upon completion of the competitive bidding process, awarded 
Gilton an exclusive solid waste franchise for collecting, transferring, recycling, composting, and 
disposing solid waste from all residential and/or commercial premises in the City; and  

 
WHEREAS, Payment of the franchise fee grants Gilton the exclusive right to collect, transfer, 
recycle, compost, and dispose of solid waste, including receiving exclusive access to operate 
heavy equipment upon city streets and rights-of-way and the exclusive right to place their multiple 
waste containers upon city streets and rights-of-way, within the City.  

 
WHEREAS, City personnel perform the administrative duties to process all billing for refuse 
services and since the State of California’s adoption of AB 939, AB 341, AB 1826 and SB 1383 
requires additional services by City staff and consultants; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City administrative fee includes of the following proportional costs incurred by the 
City to provide solid waste, recycling and organics services for the customers of the franchisee: 

• City Staff time to perform billing tasks for Solid Waste customers 
• Staff time is inclusive of employee benefits 
• Expenses in the Refuse budget to account for vehicle operations & 

maintenance 
• Staff time for sweeping of street gutters to remove trash and debris. 
• Staff time to perform enforcement activities 
• Consultant fee to assist with compliance of SB 1383 

 
WHEREAS, the City believes the administrative fee is a reasonably proportionate estimate of the 
cost of the services being provided to solid waste customers; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City now wishes to establish an administrative fee to cover the costs of providing 
solid waste, recycling and organics services to the residents and businesses within the City of 
Livingston.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Livingston as follows: 
 

SECTION 1.  The above recitals are incorporated are hereby by reference. 
 

SECTION 2.  The resolution is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”) because it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that it will have a 

Page 170



significant effect on the environment.  (CEQA Guidelines § 15061(b)(3).)  Further, the adoption 
and implementation of this Ordinance is not a project, as defined in CEQA Guidelines section 
15378, because it has no potential for resulting in physical change to the environment, either 
directly or indirectly, and is therefore not subject to environmental review under CEQA pursuant 
to CEQA Guidelines section 15060(c)(3). 

 
SECTION 3.  The City Council of the City of Livingston hereby establishes an 

administrative fee in the amount of twelve dollars and sixty-three cents ($12.63). 
 
SECTION 4.   The City may adjust the administrative fee to reflect annual changes in the 

Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (“CPI”) published by the U.S. Department of 
Labor for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose, CA statistical area. The adjustment shall become 
effective on the anniversary of the Effective Date of this Resolution and be based on the previous 
twelve-month index analysis based on the Effective Date of this Resolution.  

 
SECTION 5.   This Resolution will become effective immediately. 
  

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2024-____ is a full, true and correct copy of a 
resolution duly passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Livingston at a regular 
meeting thereof duly held on the 16th day of April 2024, by the vote recorded as follows: 
 
AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:  
 

 
 
By:   

Jose A. Moran, Mayor 
of City of Livingston 

 

ATTEST 

  
Monica Cisneros, Deputy City Clerk 
Of the City of Livingston 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM 
 
 
________________________ 
Roy C. Santos, City Attorney 
 

Page 171



EXHIBIT A 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

THIS FRANCHISE AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into this 1st day 
of April 2024 (the "Effective Date") by and between the City of Livingston ("City"), a municipal 
corporation of the State of California, and Gilton Solid Waste Management, Inc., a California 
corporation ("Collector"). The parties to this Agreement may each be referred to individually as a 
"Party" or collectively as the "Parties". There are no other parties to this Agreement. 

RECITALS 

A. The California State Legislature enacted the Califonm. Integrated Waste 
Management Act of 1989 ("AB 939") which authorizes local jurisdictions to make adequate 
provisions for solid waste handling within their jurisdictions; and 

B. On October 6, 2011, the Legislature passed Assembly Bill 341 ("AB 341 "), 
amending the California Public Resources Code (the "Public Resources Code") therein requiring 
cities to encourage and document commercial solid waste recycling prograrr:s; and 

C. On September 28, 2014, the Legislature passed Assembly Bill 1826 ("AB 1826"), 
approved by the Governor of the State of California which added Chapter 12.9 (commencing with 
Section 42649.8) therein requiring cities to require businesses to separate their organic waste from 
the municipal waste stream for composting; and 

D. On November 10, 2020, the Legisl'ature passed Senate Bill 1383, Short-Lived 
Climate Pollutants (SLCP): Organic Waste Methane Emissions Reductions ("SB 1383"), 
establishing a statewide target to decrease methane emissions at landfills by reducing the disposal 
of organic waste by 50% below 2014 levels by 2022 and by 75% below 2014 levels by 2025. SB 
1383 establishes regulatory requirements for jurisdictions, generators, haulers, solid waste 
facilities, and other entities to support achievement of State-wide Organic Waste Disposal 
reduction targets and requires Jurisdictions to implement collection programs, meet processing 
facility requirements, conduct contamination monitoring, provide education, maintain records, 
submit reports, monitor compliance, conduct enforcement, and fulfill other requirements; and 

E. The collection and disposition of garbage, refuse and waste is governed and 
regulated by applicable provisions set forth in Title 8; Chapter 2 Municipal Code (the "Code"), 
which may be amended from time to time and is incorporated herein by this reference; and 

F. The City previously entered into a franchise agreement with Collector on April 2, 
2013, wherein the City selected Collector to provide services for the collection, recycling, and 
disposal of solid waste within the City; and 

G. The existing Agreement provides that the tenn of the agreerr:ent may be extended 
by mutual agreement of the Parties; and 

H. The City and Collector now desire to update and extend the tern1 of the existing 
Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall be in 

Page 172



force for IO calendar years; and 

I. It is the City's objective to continue to engage Collector to provide refuse collection 
and disposal services for residential and commercial collection. By entering into this Agreement 
Collector shall assist City in meeting its AB 939, AB 341, AB 1826, and SB 1383 requirements; 
and 

J. The City's refuse program shall be consistent with the County Solid Waste and 
Integrated Waste Management Plan and comply with all regulations promulgated by the local 
Merced County enforcement agency and the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery; 
and • 

K. The Parties desire to rescind the existing Agreement which s:J.all be fully replaced 
and superseded by this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and 
other good and sufficient consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

Section 1. Recitals. The recitals set forth above (the "Recitals") are incorporated herein by this 
reference and made a part of this Agreement. In the event any inconsistencies arise as between the 
Recitals and Sections I through 34 of this Agreement, Sections I through 34 shall prevail. 

Section 2. Definitions. Unless otherwise noted in this Agreement, capitalized terms herein shall 
have the meanings set forth in Exhibit A. Whenever any term used in this Agreement has been 
defined by Division 30, Part I, Chapter 2 of the Public Resources Code or the City's Code, those 
definitions shall apply unless the term is otherwise defined in Exhibit A. b. the event there is a 
discrepancy between the definitions contained in the Public Resources Code and the City's Code, 
the definitions set forth in the Public Resources Code shall supersede all other definitions. 

Section 3. Termination of Existing Agreement. This Agreement hereby supersedes and replaces 
any existing agreement(s), whether written or oral, by mutual agreement and consent of the Parties 
as of the Effective Date of this Agreement. Hereafter all previous agreements shall terminate and 
be of no further force and effect except with respect to covenants therein for acts and omissions 
occurring prior to the Effective Date. 

Section 4. Franchise Area. 

4.1 Franchise Area Defined. The franchise area granted by this Agreement shall be 
all residential and commercial premises located within city limits of City, as more particularly 
shown on Exhibit B ("Franchise Area"). As provided below, the Franchise Area may be changed 
by annexation, de-annexation, or re-organization. 

4.2 Annexation Covered by Existing Franchise. All territories annexed during the Term 

2 

Page 173



of this Agreement may be subject to this Agreement. However, properties served by another 
collector at the time of annexation, shall continue to be served by collecto: for 1 year. All new 
construction in the annexed area will be serviced by Gilton Solid Waste (Gilton). 

Section 5. Waste Collection and Disposal. 

5.1 Scope of Services. Except as set in Section 5.4, the City he:eby grants Collector 
the exclusive franchise, right and privilege to collect all Solid Waste, Organic Waste and 
Recyclables within the Franchise Area and to transport the same to a High Diversion Organic 
Waste Processing Facility, sanitary landfill, transfer station, compost/mulcl:ing site, or waste-to
energy facility outside the City, which has been approved by the governmental agency having 
jurisdiction of the territory in which said site is located (the "Services";. When transporting 
collected material out of Merced County, after processing, Collector will re:urn an amount equal 
to the residual municipal solid waste portion to a Merced County Regional Waste Management 
Authority (R WA) facility as required by the R WA' s flow control. Waiver requests for recyclables 
and organic materials must be submitted to the R WA for approval. City may designate alternative 
processing facilities if public health, safety, or fiscal interest is required, or compliance with 
applicable law necessitates the alternative and will be at cost to the Collector. Collector shall 
furnish all labor, supervision, materials, permits, licenses, and equipment necessary to provide 
residential and commercial refuse collection Services for Customers within the Franchise Area of 
City. Collector shall perform its obligations under this Agreement in accordance with all applicable 
local, state, or federal laws and in a manner that maximizes the City's Solid Waste diversion rate 
to the extent possible. 

5.2 Residential Service. Collector shall provide Solid Waste and Organic Waste 
collection services to all residential premises within the City. Collector may provide Recyclables 
collection services to residential premises within the City. If the City elects to make residential 
Recyclables collection service mandatory, Collector shall provide such ser1ice to all residential 
premises and shall charge rates that will be amended for such services. 

5.3 Commercial Service. Collector may provide Solid Waste collection services to all 
commercial premises within the City. In addition, pursuant to the requirements set forth in AB 
341, AB 1826, and SB 1383, Collector shall provide recycling collection se:vices and/or organic 
collection service to any business that meets the mandatory threshold of each legislation. 

5.4 Excepted Services. Collector's exclusive franchise in this Agreement shall not 
include governmental entities if and to the extent the City has no legal power to require such 
entities to use Collector's Services. The provisions of this franchise shall not preclude or prohibit 
the City or any officer or employee thereof or any employee of the State, :ir any governmental 
subdivision thereat; from collecting, removing, and disposing of Solid Waste, Recyclables, or 
Organic Waste from the City or State facilities. 

Section 6. Collection and Bins. 

6.1 Provision of Receptacles. Collector agrees to continue to provide and maintain all 
Carts, Bins and Roll-Off Boxes for the proper and secure storage of Solid Waste, Organic Waste 

3 

Page 174



or Recyclables for all residential and commercial Customers. All residential Cart Customers shall 
be serviced once per week and commercial Bin Customers shall be serviced from one (I) to six 
(6) times per week as requested by the Customer. Roll-Off box Customers will be serviced as 
arranged between the Customer and Collector. 

6.2 Hours of Collection, Collection service of all Carts, Bins, and Roll-Off Boxes in 
residential areas and from commercial premises adjacent to residential areas shall not start before 
6:00 a.m. or continue after 6:00 p.m., subject to change by resolution of the Livingston City 
Council ("City Council"). However, the hours of collection may be extended temporarily as a 
result of extraordinary circumstances or conditions with the prior consent of the Livingston City 
Manager ("City Manager"). 

6.3 Receptacle Replacement. Collector, without expense to City or any Customer, 
will replace stolen carts when a police report has been filed within seventy-two (72) hours. 
Collector shall clean, paint over or replace, at its discretion, graffiti-tagged Carts as needed. 
Collector shall replace Carts damaged due to normal wear and tear within the time frame of one 
collection cycle. Collector shall maintain records oflost, stolen, damaged and graffiti-tagged Carts 
by specific address. Collector may charge for additional replacement Carts bE.Sed on the actual cost 
of the Carts and their delivery. 

Section 7. Term of Agreement. The te1m of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective 
Date and shall remain in full force and effect for ten ( I 0) calendar years. This Agreement may be 
extended at the sole option of the City via two options for a five ( 5) -year extension. The City may 
in its sole discretion advertise for competitive bids for solid waste franchise collection services 
with such services to commence after the expiration of the contract term of this Agreement. 
Nothing herein shall be deemed or construed to impair the rights of the City to immediately 
terminate this Agreement with Collector due to Collector's substantial failure to perform the 
services and responsibilities specified and agreed to in this Agreement. 

Section 8. Acceptance; Waiver. Collector agrees to be bound by and comply with all the 
requirements of this Agreement. Collector waives any right or claim to serve the City or any part 
of the City under any prior grant of franchise, contract, license, or permit issued or granted by any 
governmental entity including any right under Section 49520 of the Public Resources Code. 

Section 9. Maximum Rates and Fees. 

9.1 Rates. The maximum rates to be charged by Collector are set forth in Exhibit C 
("Rate" or "Rates") and the maximum rates may be adjusted by resolution of the City Council. For 
the first year of the Agreement, Collector shall charge rates that are no greater than the maximum 
rates as established by the City. The City will establish a separate administration fee for processing 
solid waste billing. In the remaining years of the Agreement Term, the City will adjust the 
maximum rates under this Agreement to reflect annual changes in the Consumer Price Index for 
All Urban Consumers ("CPI") published by the U.S. Department of Labor for the San Francisco
Oakland-San Jose, CA statistical area. The adjustment shall become effective on the anniversary 
of the Effective Date of this Agreement and be based on the previous twelve-month index analysis 
based on the Effective Date of this Agreement. In all subsequent years, the Collector may request, 

4 

Page 175



and the City Council shall consider, rate adjustments based on other adjustments provided for 
under subsections 9.3. and 9.4. 

9.2 Tipping Fees. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the milXimum rates include 
compensation to Collector for tipping, gate or other disposal fees charged by any applicable 
disposal facilities. Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary, Collector, 
except in the case of Roll-Off Box Customers, shall not be entitled to rece:ve from City, or any 
Customer, a separate or additional payment for tipping or gate fees. In addition to any other rate 
adjustments to which Collector may be entitled, Collector may request to iccrease its rates to the 
extent necessary to recover increased landfill, waste-to-energy facility, transfer station, and 
material 'recovery facility tipping or gate fees. Collector shall provide Ci:y with notice of the 
proposed new rates within thirty (30) days of such notice being received from Merced County or 
other applicable authority and shall provide the City with a copy of any notice regarding an 
increase in landfill or waste-to-energy facility tipping or gate fees. Collector shall not increase the 
Rates to recover increased tipping or gate fees, without prior written approval from City. 

9.3 Extraordinary Cost Increases. Collector may petition City for an extraordinary 
rate adjustment or adjustments at any time during the Term of this Agreement, provided that such 
petition may be made based only upon increases in fuel costs or increased costs as a result of 
federal, state, county mandates, increased insurance costs or other documented impacts, which 
require changes in Collector's Services or operations under this Agreement. Collector shall include 
in its petition a financial presentation which demonstrates the extraordinary increase in operating 
costs. Any petition shall be considered by the City Council at a public hearing held after providing 
any required notices pursuant to this Section and applicable law. The City Council may grant or 
reject any such petition in its sole and complete discretion. 

Section 10. Additional Services. In exercising the right and privilege to collect Solid Waste, 
Organic Waste or Recyclables within the boundaries of City as herein granted, Collector agrees to 
act in accordance with the following: 

Collector agrees to provide without additional charge to the City or its custo:ners: 

10.1 Curbside Bulky Item Collection Program. Collector shall collect and dispose of 
bulky item wastes, as defined in Exhibit D, from residential Customers up to two (2) times per 
calendar year. Such collections will be made by appointment as arranged between Customer and 
Collector. 

10.2 Curbside E-Waste Collection Program. Collector shall collect, recycle, or 
dispose of specified E-Wastes (as defined in Exhibit F) from residential CuEtomers up to four (4) 
times per calendar year. Such collections will be made by appointment as arranged between the 
Customer and Collector. 

10.3 Christmas Tree Program. Collector will provide a residential Christmas tree 
collection and recycling program. Each year, during the first two (2) fuil weeks of January, 
Collector will pick-up Christmas trees from the front of residential properties in the City. 
Collections will be scheduled to coincide with the normal waste collection days. 

5 

Page 176



10.4 City Facilities. Collector shall provide Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Organic 
ytaste collection services to all City owned and operated facilities and parks at no additional charge 
to the City. This does not include C&D Debris generated from City owned and operated facilities. 
In addition, Gilton will continue to provide recycling collection for city residents at city 
corporation yard. 

10.5 Community Events. At the City's request, Collector will provide waste 
containers, plus Solid Waste, Organic Waste and Recyclables removal and disposal services for 
three community events per year. 

10.6 Promotional/Educational Support. No less than twice per year, if requested by 
City, Collector will distribute informational flyers or brochures to City Customers regarding the 
importance of recycling and separating wastes in order to achieve greater waste diversion, as well 
as the applicable commercial recycling requirements set forth in AB 341, AB 1826, and SB 13 83. 
In addition, Collector will provide technical support and assistance to City Staff in preparation of 
articles or newsletters related to organic waste reduction, reuse and recycling. 

10. 7 Commercial Recycling Programs. Collector will fully coo;ierate with and assist 
the City with the implementation of any State mandated commercial recycling programs. 

10.8 AB 939 Data. Collector agrees to continue to assist City in data collection and 
reporting pertaining to compliance with the Integrated Waste Management Act (AB 939), 
including any State required waste composition studies. 

10.9 C&D Diversion Policy. When properly notified, Collector will assist City 
customers in their compliance with the City's C&D Debris Diversion Policy, attached at Exhibit 
E, as it may be amended. Collector shall comply with the City's C&D Debris Diversion Policy as 
applicable. 

10.10 SB 1383 Services. Collector agrees to assist the City in meeti:ig SB 1383 mandates 
by performing the additional services as detailed in Exhibit G. 

Section 11. Specific Service Requirements. 

11.1 Collector Duty of Care and Diligence. Collector and Collector's employees, 
contractors, sub-contractors, operators, officers, directors, supervisors, owr:ers, board members, 
representatives, and agents ("Collector's Agents") shall exercise all reasonable care and diligence 
in performing their obligations under this Agreement. Every effort will be made to prevent spilling, 
scattering or dropping Refuse during the collection or transportation process. However, in the 
event that Refuse is spilled, scattered or dropped, the truck operator shall immediately clean up 
the material and place it in the truck. Every Cart, Bin and Roll-Off Box ( collectively, "Container") 
must be replaced in an upright position. It shall be fu1ther noted that Refuse collection easements 
are frequently co-located with other utility easements. Particular attention must be given to the 
location of water meters, transformers, guy wires, utility poles and irrigation structures. 
Authorization to use the easement does not abrogate Collector's responsibili:y to exercise caution 

6 

Page 177



to not infringe upon, damage, or trespass the property rights of other authorized users or property 
owners. Collector shall be familiar with and operate within the guidelines set forth by the 
Occupational Safety Health Act (29 U.S.C. section 651 el. seq.). Collector is granted the right to 
use dedicated streets, alleys and refuse collection easements for the purpose of performing the 
Services, but this right is not exclusive. The Collector shall handle the Sen, ices in a manner that 
will cause the least inconvenience or annoyance to the general public and to property owners. 

11.2 Hazardous Waste. Under no circumstance shall Collector's employees knowingly 
collect Hazardous Waste or remove unsafe or poorly containerized Hazardous Waste from 
Customer premises. If Collector determines that material placed in a container for collection is 
Hazardous Waste, Excluded Waste, or other material that may not be legally accepted at an 
approved sanitary landfill, transfer station, compost/mulching site, waste-to-energy facility or 
other permitted disposal facility or that presents a hazard to Collector employees, Collector shall 
have the right to refuse to accept such material. Collector shall leave, at the time of non-collection, 
a non-collection notice with Customers indicating the reason for refusing the material. Collector 
shall contact the generator and request that the generator arrange for proper c.isposal service. If the 
Hazardous Waste, Excluded Waste, or other objectionable material is identified at time of delivery 
to the approved sanitary landfill, transfer station, compost/mulching site, WE.Ste-to-energy facility 
or other permitted disposal facility and the generator cannot be identified, Ccllector shall be solely 
responsible for handling and arranging transport and disposition of the Hazardous Waste, Excluded 
Waste, or other objectionable material. 

11.3 Force Majeure. Collector shall not be in default under this Agreement in the event 
that the collection transportation, recycling and disposal services of Collector are temporarily 
interrupted or discontinued due to a "Force Majeure" event which is defined as: riots, wars, 
sabotage, civil disturbances, insurrections, explosion, natural disasters such ES floods earthquakes, 
landslides and fires, strikes, lockouts and other labor disturbances or other catastrophic events, 
which are beyond the reasonable control of Collector. Force Majeure does nc-t include: Collector's 
financial inability to perform; Collector's failure to obtain any necessary permits or licenses from 
other governmental agencies; or Collector's failure to obtain the right to use the facilities of any 
public utility where such failure is due solely to the acts or omissions of the Collector. 

11.4 Independent Contractor. Collector is an independent contractor and not an 
officer, agent, servant or employee of City. Collector is solely responsible for the acts and 
omissions of its officers, agents, employees, contractors, and sub-grantees. Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be construed as creating a partnership or joint venture between City and Collector. 
Neither Collector nor its officers, employees, agents or sub-grantees shall obtain any right to 
retirement or other benefits or right which accrue to City employees. 

11.5 Property Damage. Collector shall be responsible for any damage to City's driving 
surfaces, whether or not paved, resulting from vehicles providing Services under this Agreement. 
Collector shall be responsible for repairing or replacing any private or public property which is 
damaged due to the acts or omissions of employees, contractors, or agents of Collector to private 
or public property shall be repaired or replaced. 

7 

Page 178



11.6 Right of Entry. Collector shall have the right, to enter or drive on any private 
street, court, place, easement, or other private property for the purpose of collecting or transporting 
Refuse pursuant to this Agreement. This right or entry shall last until the soo:ier of the termination 
of this Agreement or receipt by Collector of a written notice from City revo~ing Collector's right 
of entry. This right of entry is limited to carrying out the Services required by this Agreement. 

Section 12. Customer Service Requirements. 

12.1 Availability of Representatives. A responsible representa:ive for the Collector 
who is qualified to respond to public inquiries shall be available at Collector's office during office 
hours, excluding lunchtime closure, for communication with City, Customers or the public. 

12.2 Employees. Collector shall exercise reasonable care to hire responsible employees, 
to supervise the work of such employees, and to discipline and, if necessary, discharge an 
employee failing to meet reasonable standards for performance of work set forth in this Agreement. 

Collector shall comply with applicable state and federal law pertaining to employment, including, 
but not limited to, applicable equal opportunity employment and affirmative action requirements. 

12.3 Manner of Collection. Collector shall perform all collection services in a quiet 
and courteous manner and ensure that all Carts are placed on the premises from which they were 
removed in an upright position, with lids closed, and within five (5) feet of where they were 
originally placed before collection. 

12.4 Office Hours. Collector's office hours shall be, at a minfmum, from 8 a.m. to 5 
p.m. daily, except for a lunch hour and closed on Saturdays, Sundays, and federal or State 
recognized holidays. A representative of Collector shall be available dujng office hours for 
communication with the public at Collector's principal place of business. 

12.S Service Complaints. All Service complaints shall be directed to Collector. 
Collector shall respond to all complaints, other than missed pickups, within tVventy-four (24) hours 
if the twenty-four (24) hour period ends during the office hours specified in subsection 12.5, 
otherwise on the next business day. Collector shall be responsible for the prompt and courteous 
attention to, and prompt and reasonable resolution of, all complaints and sh;ill use its best efforts 
to resolve any complaints within the two (2) business days following the date on which such 
complaint is received. Complaints that cannot be reasonably resolved may be appealed to the City 
Manager or designee for final resolution. 

12.6 Complaint Log. Collector agrees to maintain a log of all oral and written service 
complaints registered with Collector from Customers or the public within :he City ("Complaint 
Log"). Collector shall record in the log all written and oral complaints, noting the name and address 
of the complainant, date and time of complaint, nature of complaint, and method and date of 
resolution. Such log shall be kept so that representatives of the City, upon request, may 
conveniently inspect it. Collector shall deliver, along with the quarterly repor:s specified in Section 
13 or otherwise upon request of the City, a summary of complaints by number and type and 
excerpts from the log reflecting action to date. 

8 

Page 179



12.7 Missed Pickups. In the event of a missed pickup, Collector shall complete the 
pickup the same day if the complaint is received by 12:00 p.m. or by 12:00 p.m. the following 
business day if the complaint is received after 12:00 p.m. 

Section 13. Reports. Collector shall provide the City with annual reports detailing Collector's 
operations within City during that time. Reports will contain the information required by the City 
for compliance with AB 939, AB 341, AB 1826 and SB 1383 and for City to measure Collector's 
performance of items in this Agreement. Collector agrees to provide additional reports regarding 
its collection services as may be reasonably requested by the City to meet future reporting 
requirements of the City or the State. City or a consultant to City, on request, shall have the right 
to review the collection records of Collector at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice. 

Section 14. Vehicles. 

14.I Compliance with Applicable Regulations. Collector shall at all times comply 
with all applicable rules, statutes, orders, and requirements adopted by any governmental agency 
with jurisdiction over air quality, including, but not limited to, the California Air Resources Board 
and the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District. In addition to any indemnification · 
obligations set forth in this Agreement, Collector shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 
City against any fines, penalties, losses, or claims arising out of Collector's failure to comply with 
this Section. All vehicles used by Collector under this Agreement shall be registered with the 
Department of Motor Vehicles of the State of California, be kept clean and in good repair, shall be 
uniformly painted, and shall be washed at least once every seven (7) calendar days. Collector's 
name, phone number, and vehicle number shall be prominently displayed on its vehicles. 

14.2 Fluids and Waste. Collector shall immediately clean up any fluids or waste spilled 
from collection vehicles and shall deploy and remove absorbent materials to the extent necessary 
to absorb all fluids. Collector shall provide the City with a copy of any spill report that Collector 
is required to provide, and at the same time it is provided, to the State Office of Spill Prevention 
and Response. When necessary, Collector shall apply a suitable cleaning agent to the street surface 
or shall employ hydraulic steam cleaning to provide adequate cleaning. Collector shall comply at 
all times with all reconunendations or limitations concerning laden weight of collection vehicles 
established by the State or any government agency, or the vehicle manufacturer. 

Section 15. Collector's Employees. 

15.1. Prohibition of Drugs or Alcohol. Collector will prohibit the use of intoxicating 
substances by Collector's Agents, including its drivers and crewmembers, while on duty or in the 
course of performing the Services. Upon request by City, Collector will demonstrate compliance 
with the federal alcohol and drug testing statutes and regulations. 

15.2 Employee Uniform. Collector's employees shall be required to wear a clean 
uniform bearing Collector's name. Employees who normally and regularly come into direct 
contact with Customers, including drivers, shall bear some means of individual identification such 
as a name tag or identification card. 

9 

Page 180



15.3 Identification Required. Collector shall provide every employee, contractor, 
grantees, or sub-grantees that are in contact with the public with identification cards and badges. 
Upon request of City, Collector shall notify all Customers of the form of identification that each 
employee shall be carrying or displaying so that all Customers may easily identify one of 
Collector's employees. Collector shall provide City with a list of current employees, contractors, 
grantees, and sub-contractors to City upon request. 

15.4 Valid Driver's License. Employees driving Collector's vehicles shall at all times 
possess and carry a valid and appropriate vehicle operator's license issued by the State of 
California, including a commercial driver's license, if required. 

15.5 No Employment Relationship with City. Collector's Agents are not and shall not 
identify themselves as being employees of the City at any time, for any reason. 

15.6 Employee Behavior. All contact by Collector with Custon:ers will be done with 
courtesy and respect. Any incident with a Customer must be reported immediately to the City. 

15. 7 Employee Conduct. All superintendents, foremen and workers, or contractors 
employed by the C9llector shall be capable and safety conscious workers, skiJed in their respective 
trades. Collector shall not employ any person who is incapable or negligent in the due and proper 
performance of his or her duties. Collector shall furnish such supervision, labor and equipment as 
is considered necessary for the fulfillment of the Services in an acceptable rrumner at a satisfactory 
rate of progress. City reserves the right to request for any worker of Collector to be prohibited 
from providing Services to City without cause for any reason. 

15.8 Supervision. It is the Collector's responsibility to supervise the Services rendered 
and to provide direction to its employees and agents in the field. While City employees may 
suggest possible solutions to problems or unusual situations, Collector retains the responsibility 
for all Services and how the Services will be delivered and conducted to the City and the 
Customers. 

Section 16. Franchise Fees, Billing and Reports. 

16.1 Franchise Fees. Collector and the City agree that for the exclusive rights herein 
granted to Collector, City shall retain a sum equal to fifteen percent (15%) -:if the gross revenues 
from residential, commercial, and industrial accounts. Gross Revenues for :his computation will 
exclude the City established Administration Fee. Further, the Parties hereby agree to the fifteen 
percent (15%) franchise fees is a reasonable estimate of the value of the City's franchise given the 
number of exclusive customers being provided to the Collector as the franchise hauler. The 
Collector shall also pay the City fifteen percent (15%) of the gross revenues from the Collector's 
Debris Box and/Roll-Off container services. 

16.2 Billing. The City shall provide regular billing statements to residential, commercial 
and industrial customers that have cart and bin service. The Collector shall provide billing 
statements to Debri Box/Roll-off customers. 

IO 

Page 181



16.3 City and Collector Billing. As of the commencement of this Agreement, the 
Parties acknowledge that the City is responsible and will continue to bill residential, commercial 
and industrial customers that have cart and bin service. The Collector shall bill all customers that 
have Debris Box and/or Roll-Off Container service. 

Section 17. Collector's Books and Records: Audits. The books and records of Collector shall 
be subject to audit and inspection for the purpose of reviewing billing operations, accounts 
receivable and customer service, by City, its auditors or agents. Collector sha] maintain all records 
relating to the Services, including, but not limited to, Customer lists, billing records, maps, AB 
939 compliance records, AB 34 1 compliance records, and Customer complaints (collectively, the 
"Records"), for no less than three (3) years after the termination or expirati::m of the Term, or as 
may or any longer period required by applicable law. City shall have the right, upon five (5) 
business days advance notice, to inspect all Records, and other like materials of Collector which 
reasonably relate to Collector's compliance with the provisions of this Agreement. 

Collector's Records shall be made available to City at a City facility, if reasonably practicable, or 
at Collector's regular place of business during regular business hours. If such audit discloses an 
underpayment of the Franchise Fees or other sums due under this Agreement, Collector shall 
promptly tender to the City the amount of such underpayment. 

Section 18. Indemnification. 

18.1. Indemnification of City. Collector agrees that it shall protect, defend, indemnify 
and hold harmless City, its elected and appointed councils, commissions, directors, officers, 
employees, agents, and representatives ("City's Agents") from and against any claim, action or 
proceeding that arises from this Agreement or any Services performed pursuant to or in connection 
with this Agreement ("Claim"), including but not limited to all losses, liabilities, fines, penalties, 
claims, damages, liabilities, judgments, attorney's fees, costs incurred for staff time, court costs, 
other expenses of litigation, or expenses of litigation awarded to the prevailing Party or Parties. 
This indemnification does not include gross negligence or willful acts of the City, or City's Agents. 
At City's discretion, Collector shall satisfy the obligation of this Section by reimbursing City for 
tendering its own defense. If Collector undertakes the defense of a Claim by providing City
approved representation, City may, participate in the defense of any such Claim. 

To the extent permitted by Public Resources Code Section 40059.1, and to the extent 
noncompliance is caused by Collector's breach of or noncompliance with a provision of this 
Agreement, Collector agrees to protect and defend City or City's Agents, witli. counsel selected by 
the City, and to indemnify and hold harmless City or City's Agents from and against all fines or 
penalties imposed by the State if the waste diversion goals specified in the Public Resources Code 
arc not met by the City with respect to the Solid Waste collected by Collector under this 
Agreement. Collector shall indemnify, defend with counsel acceptable to the City, protect and hold 
harmless the City and City's Agents from and against all claims, damages (including but not 
limited to special, consequential, and natural resources damages), injuries, response mediation and 
removal costs, losses, demands, debts, liens, liabilities, causes of ac:ion, suits, legal or 
administrative proceedings, interest, fines, charges, penalties, and attorney and expert fees for the 

11 

Page 182



adverse party and expenses (including but not limited to attorney's and expert witness fees and 
costs incurred in connection with defending against any of the forgoing or in enforcing this 
indemnity) of any kind whatsoever paid, incurred or suffered by, or asserted against, the City or 
City's Agents arising from or attributable to the negligence or willful misconduct of Collector or 
its affiliates and their respective officers, directors, employee and shareholders in handling 
Hazardous Waste either knowingly or under circumstances in which a reaso:iable person would or 
should have known that Hazardous Waste was being handled. The foregcing indemnity is also 
intended to operate as an agreement pursuant to Section I 07(e) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. Section 
9607(c) and California Health and Safety Code Section 25364, lo defend, insure, protect, hold 
harmless and indemnify the City from liability. 

18.2. Indemnification of Collector. City shall indemnify, defend and hold Collector, 
its affiliates and their respective officers, directors, employees and shareholders harmless from and 
against any and all liabilities, losses, damages, claims, actions and causes of action, costs and 
expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees) arising from or in any mar_ner arising out of the 
negligent acts of the City or the City's employees. Subject to this indemnification, and upon 
demand of Collector, made by and through Collector's counsel, City shall appear in defense of 
Collector, and its officers, employees and agents in any claims or actions, whether judicial, 
administrative, or otherwise arising out of the exercise of this Agreement. Nothing in this 
Agreement shall alter the requirements of the Government Tort Claims Act as established within 
the Government Code and/or any indemnities provided to the City pursuant to any state, federal 
or local law, statue, or ordinance. 

Section 19. Insurance. Collector will continue to carry insurance, which shall be placed with 
insurers with a current AM Best's rating of no less than A VII, and which shall include all of the 
following: 

19.1 Required Insurance. 

19.1.1 Worker's Compensation. Collector shall obtain and maintain in full force 
and effect throughout the Term, worker's compensation insurance in accor:i with the provisions 
and requirements of the California Labor Code. Endorsements that implement the required 
coverage shall be filed and maintained with the City Clerk throughout the Term. The policy 
providing coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits, 
except after thiliy (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has 
been given to the City. The policy shall also be amended to waive all rights cf subrogation against 
the City, its elected or appointed officials, employees, agents or representatives for losses which 
arise from the Services performed by the Collector pursuant to this Agreement. 

19.1.2 General Commercial Liability Insurance. Collector shall carry 
commercial or comprehensive general liability insurance with a combined single limit of Two 
Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per occurrence/ aggregate for bodily injury, personal injury and 
property damage. Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office Commercial 
General Liability coverage (occurrence form GG 00 01 11 88). 

12 

Page 183



19.1.3 Automobile Liability Insurance. Collector shall carry automobile 
insurance with a combined single limit of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per occurrence for 
bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage, and which shall provide coverage for rented 
and non-owned vehicles. Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Service form number 
CA 00 010692 covering Automobile Liability, code I (any auto). 

19.1.4 Public Liability Insurance. Collector shall carry public liability insurance 
with a combined single limit of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per occurrence for bodily 
injury, personal injury, and property damage. 

19.1.5 Pollution or Environmental Liability Insurance. Collector shall carry 
Environmental or Pollution liability coverage appropriate for the waste activity contemplated in 
this Agreement, including sudden and accidental upset pollution liability for the amount of One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per claim or occurrence and One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) 
in the aggregate. 

19.2 Additional Insurance Requirements. Within five (5) days '.)fthe Effective Date, 
Collector shall provide City with certificates of insurance for all of the policies required under this 
Section 19 ("Certificates"), excluding the required worker's compensatior: insurance. With the 
exception of the worker's compensation insurance, all of the insurance po:icies required in this 
Section 19 shall: provide that the policy will not be cancelled, allowed to expire, or materially 
reduced in coverage without at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice, or ten (I 0) days' in the 
case of non-payment of premium by Collector ( as per insurance industry star:dard), to City of such 
cancellation, expiration, or reduction and each policy shall be endorsed to state such; name City, 
and City's Agents as additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of automobiles owned, 
leased, hired, or borrowed by or on behalf of Collector or operations performed by or on behalf of 
the Collector to perform the Services including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in 
connection with the Services or operations by endorsement; be primary, with respect to any 
insurance or self-insurance programs covering City or City's Agents and any insurance or self
insurance maintained by City or City's Agents shall be excess of Collector's insurance and shall 
not contribute to it; and contain standard separation of insured provisions. 

19.3 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductbles or self-insured 
retentions must be declared to and approved by City. At the option of City, either the insurer shall 
reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to City and City's 
Agents, or Collector shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to City guaranteeing payment 
of loss related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses. 

19.4 Verification of Coverage. Before the Services commence, Collector shall furnish 
City with original Certificates and endorsements affecting coverage required by this Section 19. 
The endorsements shall be on forms approved by the City which contain 2.ll of the information 
required in Section 19. 

19.5 Subcontractors. Collector shall include all subcontractors as additional insured 
under its policies or shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. 
All coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all the requirements stated in this Section 19. 

13 

Page 184



Said insurance shall protect C,ollector and City from any claim for damages for bodily injury, 
including accidental death, as well as from any claim for property damage which may arise from 
the Services, whether such operations be by Collector itself, or by its agents, employees, 
contractors or sub-grantees. Copies of the policies or endorsements evidencing the above insurance 
coverage shall be filed with the City Clerk. All of the following endorsements are required to be 
made a part of the insurance policies required by this Agreement. 

19.6 Increase in Coverage Requirements. The limits for the insurance coverage 
required under this Section 19 and the ratings required for insurance companies shall be subject to 
review and approval by the City Attorney every year mid may be increased a: that time, at the City 
Attorney's discretion, to match the coverage provided by the City's own liability insurance policy. 

Section 20. Title to Solid Waste. All Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Organic Waste collected 
pursuant to this Agreement shall remain the property of the Customer until such time as it is 
collected for disposal. It is expressly understood that all Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Organic 
Waste collected under this Agreement becomes the property of Collector upon collection, subject 
to the requirement of delivery to an appropriate disposal site. Collector is he~eby granted the right 
to retain, dispose of, and otherwise use such Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Organic Waste, or any 
part thereof, in any fashion or for any lawful purpose desired by Collector, and to retain any benefit 
or profit resulting therefrom. Solid Waste which is disposed of at a disposal site shall become the 
property of the owner or operator of the disposal site once deposited there by Collector. 

Section 21. Rights of City to Perform During an Emergency. Should Collector, for any reason 
whatsoever, excluding a Force Majeure as defined in Section 11.2, be unable to perform any of 
the Services required by this Agreement, for a period of more than seventy-two (72) hours, and 
the City Manager reasonably finds that the resulting accumulation of Refuse in City endangers or 
menaces the public health, safety or welfare, then, City shall have the right to temporarily take 
possession of and use Collector's Equipment to carry out Collector's ooligations under this 
Agreement, upon twenty-four (24) hour prior written notice to Collector. Collector agrees that in 
such event it will fully cooperate with City to affect such a transfer of possession for City's use. 

Collector agrees that, in such event, City may take temporary possessioi: of and use all said 
Equipment and facilities without paying Collector any rental or other charge, provided that when 
City takes possession of Collector's Equipment and facilities under this Section 21, City shall 
assume complete responsibility for the proper and normal use of such Equ:pment and facilities. 
City agrees that it shall immediately relinquish possession of all of the above-mentioned property 
to Collector upon receipt of written notice from Collector stating it is able to resume its normal 
responsibility under this Agreement. 

Section 22. Customer Confidentiality. Collector shall strictly observe and protect the right of 
privacy of the Customers. Information identifying individual Customers, or the composition or 
contents of a Customer's Refuse, shall not be revealed to m1y person, governmental unit, private 
agency or company, unless upon the authority of a court of law, by sutute, or upon valid 
authorization of the Customer. This provision shall not be construed to predude Collector from 
preparing, participating in, or assisting in the preparation of waste characterization studies or waste 

14 

Page 185



stream analyses which may be required by AB 93 9 or SB I 3 83. 

Collector shall not market or distribute, without City's advance written consent, which City may 
withhold in its sole and absolute discretion, mailing lists with the names or addresses of Customers. 

The rights accorded Customers pursuant to this Section shall be in addition to any other privacy 
right accorded Customers pursuant to federal or state law. 

Section 23. Reports and Adverse Information. 

23.1 Reports. Within ninety (90) days after the close of Ccllector's fiscal year, 
Collector shall submit a written annual report, in a form approved by City, including, but not 
limited to, the following information: 

23.1.1 A report on City's progress in meeting and maintaining its ability to meet 
its goals under AB 939 and SB 1383 as applied to the Franchise Area, along with any 
recommended changes. Collector shall also provide the City's Public Works Director with 
quarterly reports on the quantity (by weight) of all Commercial Solid Waste, Residential Solid 
Waste, Recyclables, and Organic Waste collected. 

23.1.2 A list of Collector's officers and members of its board of directors. 

23.1.3, A list of stockholders or other equity investors holding five percent (5%) or 
more of the voting interest in Collector and any subsidiaries. 

23.1.4 The most current annual audited financial statement, upon request. To the 
extent permitted by the Public Records Act, this document shall remain confidential. 

23.1.5 A current financial statement, upon request. 

23.2 Adverse Information. Collector shall provide City two (2) copies of all reports, 
or other material adversely affecting this Agreement, which Collector submits to: the State or 
federal Environmental Protection Agency; the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery; 
or any other federal, State, or local agency. Copies shall be submitted to City simultaneously with 
Collector's filing of such matters with said agencies. Collector's routing correspondence to said 
agencies need not be automatically submitted to City but shall be made available to City upon 
written request. 

Collector shall submit to City copies of all pleadings, applications, notifications, communications 
and documents of any kind, submitted by Collector to any federal, state and local courts, regulatory 
agencies and other government bodies relating to Collector's performance of Services pursuant to 
this Agreement, as well as copies of all decisions, correspondence and actions by such agencies. 
Any confidential data exempt from public disclosure shall be retained in confidence by City or its 
authorized agents and shall only be made available for public inspections, ao required by law. 

15 

Page 186



Collector shall submit to City such other information or reports in such forn:.s and at such times as 
City may reasonably request or require. 

All reports and records required under this, or any other section herein shall be furnished to City 
at the sole expense of Collector. 

23.3 Failure to Report. The refusal, failure, or neglect of Collector to file any report 
required may be deemed a material breach of this Agreement if not corrected by Collector within 
ninety (90) days, and may subject Collector to all remedies, legal or equitable, which are available 
to City under this Agreement or otherwise. 

Section 24. Bonds and Security. 

24.1 Performance Bonds. Contemporaneously with the execution of this Agreement, 
Collector shall secure and execute a performance bond to be held by the City (the "Performance 
Bond") to ensure performance of Collector in an amount equal to twenty-five percent (25%) of the 
City's estimate of the Contractor's annual gross revenue under the Agreement. The Performance 
Bond shall be on terms and in a form acceptable to the City Attorney anc shall be issued by a 
California admitted insurer. The Performance Bond shall serve as security for the faithful 
performance by Collector of all the provisions and obligations of this Agreement. 

Thirty (30) days following Collector's failure to pay City an amount owed under this Agreement, 
if ever, the Performance Bond may be assessed by City upon five (5) days prior written notice to 
Collector for purposes including, but not limited to: 

A. Failure of Collector to pay City any sums due under the terms of the 
Agreement. 

B. Reimbursement of costs borne by City to correct violations of this Agreement, after 
five (5) days' advance written notice to Collector. 

C. Monetary remedies or damages assessed against Collector d·1e to a breach of this 
Agreement. 

Section 25. Breach of Agreement. 

25.1 Determination of Breach. If the City Manager reasonably determines that 
Collector's performance pursuant to this Agreement has not been in conformity with reasonable 
industry standards obtained in similar cities in Central California, the provisions of this Agreement, 
the requirements of the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery, including, but not 
limited to, requirements for source reduction and recycling (as to the waste stream subject to this 
Agreement) or any other applicable federal, state or local law or regulation, including but not 
limited to the laws governing transfer, storage or disposal of Hazardous Waste, the City Manager 
may advise Collector in writing of such deficiencies. If Collector commits a material breach of 
this Agreement ("Breach"), City may terminate this Agreement, impose Liquidated Damages, or 
avail itself of any and all remedies set forth in Section 26 of this Agreement, in addition to all other 

16 

Page 187



remedies available to the City in Jaw or equity. 

25.2 Events that Constitute a Breach. A Breach includes but is not limited to the 
following: 

25.2.1 Misrepresentation. Collector commits, or attempts to commit, any fraud, 
intentional material misrepresentation or deceit upon the City in relation to this Agreement or in 
the statements or materials submitted to City by Collector in connection with this Agreement as of 
the time the representation or disclosure is made. 

25.2.2 Seizure or Attachment of Equipment. There is a seizure or attachment 
( other than a prejudgment attachment) of, or levy affecting possession on, the operating Equipment 
of Collector, including without limit its vehicles, maintenance or office facilities, or any part 
thereof of such proportion as to impair Collector's ability to perform under this Agreement and 
which cannot he released, bonded, or otherwise lifted within forty-eight (48) hours excluding 
weekends and City-approved holidays. 

25.2.3 Collector Bankruptcy. Collector files a voluntary petition for debt relief 
under any applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, debtor relief, or other similar law now or hereafter 
in effect, or consents to the appointment of or taking of possession by a receiver, liquidator, 
assignee ( other than as a part of a transfer of equipment no longer useful to Collector or necessary 
for this Agreement), trustee ( other than as security for an obligation under a deed of trust), 
custodian, sequestrator, or similar official of Collector for a part of Collecto:' s operating assets or 
any substantial part of Collector's property, or shall make any general assignment for the benefit 
of Collector's creditors, or shall fail generally to pay Collector's debts as they become due. 

25.2.4 Court Order or Decree. Any court having jurisdiction enters a decree or 
order for relief with respect to Collector, in any involuntary case brought under any bankruptcy, 
insolvency, debtor relief, or similar law now or hereafter in effect, or Collector consents to or fails 
to oppose any such proceeding, or any such court enters a decree or order appointing a receiver, 
liquidator, assignee, custodian, trustee, sequestrator, or similar official of Collector or for any part 
of Collector's operating equipment or assets, or order the winding up or liq:iidation of the affairs 
of Collector. 

25.2.5 Failure to Notify City. Collector fails to notify City in a timely manner of 
any receipt of notice of violation or official communication from those regulatory agencies 
regulating Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Organic Waste collection, transport, processing, or 
disposal activities. 

25.2.6 Lapse of Financial Requirement. If Collector fails to provide or maintain 
in full force and in effect, the following: any of the insurance policies required pursuant to Section 
16 herein; the full amount of the Performance Bond required under Section 24.1 herein; or the full 
amount of the Payment Bond required under Section 24.2 herein. 

25.2. 7 Regulatory Violation. Collector violates any orders or filings of any 
regulatory body having jurisdiction over Collector relative to this Agreement, provided Collector 

17 

Page 188



may contest any such orders or filings by appropriate proceedings conducted in good faith, in 
which case no breach of this Agreement shall be deemed to have occurred. 

25.2.8 Cessation of Services. Collector ceases to provide collection, 
transportation, processing, or recycling services as required under this Agreement for a period of 
three (3) consecutive business days or more, for any reason within the contr-)1 of Collector. 

25.2.9 Failure to Meet Payment or Reporting Requirements. Collector fails to 
make any payment required under this Agreement or refuses to provide City with required 
information, reports, or records in a timely manner as provided for in the Agreement. 

25.2.10 Violation of AB 939 or SB 1383. Any other act or omission by Collector, 
which materially violates the terms, conditions or requirements of AB 939 and SB 1383 as may be 
amended from time to time; or any other directive rule or regulation issued thereunder; unless the 
violation is corrected or remedied within the time set on the written notice of violation; or if 
Collector cannot reasonably correct or remedy the violation within the time set forth in such notice, 
Collector commences to correct or remedy such violation within the time set forth in such notice 
and diligently and in good faith continues to cure, correct, or remedy such violation thereafter. 

25.2.11 Unremedied Acts or Omissions. Collector commi,s any act or omission 
which violates the terms, conditions, or requirements of this Agreement, or any other applicable 
laws and which is not corrected or remedied within the time set in the written notice of the violation 
or, if Collector cannot reasonably correct or remedy the breach within the time set forth in such 
notice, Collector should fail to commence to correct or remedy such violation within the time set 
forth in such notice and diligently effect such correction or remedy thereafter. 

25.2.12 Failure to Correct Breach. Collector fails to correct any Breach within 
the applicable Cure Period. 

25.3 Cure Rights. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 25 to the 
contrary, City shall provide Collector with reasonable notice of and a reasonable opportunity to 
cure any Breach of this Agreement during the time periods set forth below (the "Cure Period"). 
Collector shall begin cure of any Breach as soon as it becomes aware of the Breach, whether 
discovered by Collector or through notice from the City. Upon becoming cognizant of the Breach, 
Collector shall proceed to cure such Breach as follows: 

25.3.1 Immediately, if the City determines the Breach endangers the health, safety, 
or welfare of the public; or 

25.3.2 Within fifteen (15) days of giving or rece1vmg n:itice of the Breach, 
provided that if the nature of the breach is such that it will reasonably require more than fifteen 
(15) days to cure, Collector shall have such additional time as is reasonably needed, no longer than 
thirty (30) days to expeditiously complete a cure. During any Cure Period, Collector shall provide 
City weekly written status updates infomling City of Collector's progress curing the Breach. 

18 

Page 189



25.4 Right to Appeal. Collector may submit a response to clairr:s of Breach contained 
in any written notice from the City within ten (I 0) days ofreceipt of such notice. The City Manager 
shall review Collector's response and refer the matter to the City Council or decide the matter and 
notify Collector of that decision, in writing. A decision or order of City Manager shall be final and 
binding on Collector. Unless a governing ordinance or statute provides otherwise, if the Collector 
seeks further relief, the Collector shall file a petition for writ of mandate in superior court pursuant 
to Code of Civil Procedure Sections 1094.5 and 1094.6 within ninety (90) calendar days of the 
date of the decision or order. 

Section 26. Termination, Liquidated Damages and other Remedies. 

26.1 Termination. In the event Collector commits a Breach of this Agreement, City 
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement ("Termination"). 

26.2 Liquidated Damages. 

26.2.1 City finds, and Collector agrees, that as of the Effective Date of this 
Agreement, it is impractical, if not impossible to reasonably ascertain the extent of damages which 
will be incurred by City as a result of a Breach by Collector of its obligations under this Agreement. 
Some reasons for the impracticability of ascertaining damages include but are not limited to: the 
difficulty in estimating the substantial damage that results to Customers who are denied Solid 
Waste disposal services or denied quality or reliable service; and the difficul:y valuing the damage 
caused from the inconvenience, anxiety, frustrations and deprivation of the benefits provided under 
the Agreement to individual members of the general public for whose benefit this Agreement 
exists. The Parties agree that these damages manifest in subjective ways and in varying degrees of 
intensity and are incapable of measurement in precise monetary terms. The Parties agree that any 
remedy for such breaches, including the te1mination of this Agreement are, at best, a means of 
future correction and not remedies, which can adequately make the public whole for past breaches. 

26.2.2 The City Council may, at its discretion, assess liquidated damages not to 
exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000) per day, for each calendar day that the Services 
are not provided by Collector in accordance with this Agreement for a period not to exceed forty
five (45) days ("Liquidated Damages"). In addition, the City Council rr:ay order assessment 
against the Performance Bond and Payment Bonds required by Section 24 as set fotlh herein, the 
termination of this Agreement, or both. 

26.2.3 The City finds, and Collector acknowledges and agrees that the above
described liquidated damages provision represents a reasonable sum in light of all the 
circumstances. Said liquidated damage sums shall be applicable to each calendar day of delay 
during which Collector has been found by the City Council to be in Breach pursuant to Section 25. 
Collector shall pay any Liquidated Damages assessed by the City Council ½ithin thirty (30) days 
after they are assessed. If they are not paid within the thirty-day (30) period, City may withdraw 
said amount from the Performance Bond or Payment Bond, as appropriate, pursuant to Section 24, 
order the Termination of the Franchise granted by this Agreement, or both. 

19 

Page 190



26.3 Remedies Not Exclusive. The right of Termination or to impose Liquidated 
Damages are in addition to all other rights of City upon a failure of Collector to perform its 
obligations under this Agreement, including but not limited to the rights provided in Section 27. 

Section 27. City's Additional Remedies. In the event Collector commits a Breach of this 
Agreement, and the City has tenninated this Agreement, in addition to the remedies set forth in 
Section 26, City shall have the following rights: 

27.1 Rental of Collector Equipment. Notwithstanding the provisions set forth in 
Section 21 of this Agreement, City shall have the right to rent or lease Equipment from Collector 
for the purpose of collecting, transp011ing and disposing of Refuse which Collector is obligated to 
collect, transport and dispose of pursuant to this Agreement, for a period not to exceed six ( 6) 
months. If such Equipment is not owned by Collector, Collector shall assign to City, to the extent 
possible, the right to possess the Equipment. If City exercises its rights under this Section, City 
shall pay to Collector the reasonable rental value of the Equipment so taken for the period of City's 
possession thereof. 

27.2 Right to License others to Provide Disposal Services for the City. City shall 
have the right to license others to perform the Services otherwise to be performed by Collector 
hereunder, or to perform such Services itself. 

27.3 Right to Other Damages. City shall have the right to obtain damages or injunctive 
relief. The Parties recognize and agree that in the event of Breach by Collector, City may suffer 
irreparable injmy and incalculable damages sufficient to support injunctive relief, to enforce the 
provisions of this Agreement by Collector and to enjoin the Breach thereof. 

Section 28. Compliance with Applicable Law. 

Collector agrees that it shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and 
regulations, expressly including the provisions set forth in the Code which are applicable to the 
work or business in which it is herein franchised, and with any and all amendments to such 
applicable provisions during the Term. 

Section 29. Assignment. 

The Franchise granted by this Agreement shall not be transferred, sold, hypothecated, sublet or 
assigned, nor shall any of the rights or privileges herein be hypothecated, leased, assigned, sold or 
transferred, either in whole or in part nor shall title thereto, either legal or equitable, or any right, 
interest or property therein, pass to or vest in any person, except Collector, either by act of the 
Collector or by operation oflaw, without the prior written consent of City expressed by a resolution 
or ordinance approved by the City Council, which may be withheld for any reason, conditioned or 
granted in the City's sole discretion. Any attempt by Collector to assign this Franchise without the 
consent of City shall be null and void. 

If Collector attempts to transfer the Franchise prior to obtaining City consent, all of the profits or 
twenty-five percent (25%) of the gross revenues received pursuant to the Services provided under 

20 

Page 191



this Agreement, from the date of attempted transfer until the date of City consent, whichever is 
greater, shall be returned to City. 

Section 30 . Franchise Transfer: Fees. 

Any application for a Franchise transfer shall be made in a manner prescribed by the City Manager. 
The application shall include a transfer fee in an amount to be set by the City by resolution or 
ordinance of the City Council, to cover the cost of all direct and indirect adr:iinistrative expenses, 
including consultants and attorneys, necessary to adequately analyze the application and to 
reimburse City for all direct and indirect expenses. In the event that City's actual costs exceed the 
amount of the transfer fee, Collector shall reimburse City for all additional costs which are not 
covered by the transfer fee, up to, but not exceeding Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00). Bills shall 
be supported with evidence of the expense or cost incurred. The applicant, for any such transfer, 
shall pay such bills within thirty (30) days of receipt. The Franchise transfer fees detailed in this 
Section are over and above any franchise fees specified in the other portions of this Agreement. 

Section 31. City Must Approve Change in Control of Collector. 

City consent is required for any change in control of Collector. Collector is a corporation, and any 
acquisition of more than forty-five percent ( 45%) of Collector's voting stock by a person, or group 
of persons acting in concert shall be deemed a change in control. Any change in control of the 
Collector occurring without prior City approval shall constitute a material breach of this 
Agreement. 

Section 32. Amendment to Agreement. 

This Agreement is intended to cany out City's obligations to comply with the provisions of AB 
939 and SB 1383 and implemented by regulations of the Department of Resources Recycling and 
Recovery ("Regulations"), as they may from time to time be amended. In tl:e event that AB 939, 
SB 13 83 or other state or federal laws or regulations enacted after the Effective Date, prevent or 
preclude compliance with one or more provisions of this Agreement, such provisions of this 
Agreement shall be modified or suspended as may be necessary to comp;y with such state or 
federal laws or regulations. Except for Rate adjustments made pursuant to Section 9, this 
Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written agreement duly authorized and executed 
by both the City and Collector. 

Section 33. General Provisions. 

33.1 Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California. Venue for all legal proceedings arising from 
this Agreement shall be in the Superior Court for the County of Stanislaus in the State of California. 
In the event of litigation in a U.S. District Court, exclusive venue shall lie in the Eastern District 
of the State of California. • 

33.2 Notices. Any notice or communication required hereunder between City and 
Collector must be in writing, and may be given either personally, by facsimile (with original 

21 

Page 192



forwarded by regular U.S. Mail), by registered or ce Itified mail (return receipt requested), or by 
Federal Express, UPS or other similar couriers providing overnight delivery. If personally 
delivered, a notice shall be deemed to have been given when delivered to the Party to whom it is 
addressed. If given by facsimile transmission, a notice or communication s!Bll be deemed to have 
been given and received upon actual physical receipt of the entire document by the receiving 
Party's facsimile machine. Notices transmitted by facsimile after 5:00 p.m. on a normal business 
day or on a Saturday, Sunday or holiday shall be deemed to have been given and received on the 
next normal business day. If given by registered or certified mail, such notice or communication 
shall be deemed to have been given and received on the first to occur of actual receipt by any of 
the addressees designated below as the party to whom notices are to be sent or five (5) days after 
a registered or ce 1 tified letter containing such notice, properly addressed, w:th postage prepaid, is 
deposited in the United States mail. If given by Federal Express or similar courier, a notice or 
communication shall be deemed to have been given and received on the da~e delivered as shown 
on a receipt issued by the courier. Any Party hereto may at any time, by giving ten (I 0) days 
written notice to the other Party hereto, designate any other address in substitution of the address 
to which such notice or communication shall be given. Such notices or communications shall be 
given to the Parties at their addresses set forth below: 

To City: 

With courtesy copy to: 

To Collector: Gilton Solid Waste Management, Inc. 
755 S. Yosemite Ave. 
Oakdale CA 9536 I 
Attention: President 

33.3 Severability. If this Agreement in its entirety is determined by a court to be invalid 
or unenforceable, this Agreement shall automatically terminate as of the date of final entry of 
judgment. If any provision of this Agreement shall be determined by a court to be invalid or 
unenforceable, or if any provision of this Agreement is rendered invajd or unenforceable 
according to the terms of any federal or state statute, which becomes effective after the Effective 
Date, the remaining provisions shall continue in full force and effect and shall be construed to give 
effect to the intent of this Agreement. 

33.4 Exhibits Incorporated. The following "Exhibits" are attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference: 

Exhibit Designation 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Exhibit C 
Exhibit D 
Exhibit E 
Exhibit F 
Exhibit G 

Exhibit Title 
Definitions 
Franchise Area 
Rates 
Bulky Item Collection Program 
C&D Debris Diversion Policy 
Specified E-Waste 
SB 13 83 Additional Services 

22 

Page 193



33.5 Time of Essence. Time is of the essence for the Agreement and each provision 
contained within and each provision is made and declared to be a material, necessary and essential 
part of the Agreement. 

33.6 Authority. All Parties to the Agreement warrant and represent that they have the 
power and authority to enter into the Agreement and the names, titles and capacities herein stated 
on behalf of any entities, persons, states or firms represented or purportec to be represented by 
such entities, persons, states or firms and that all former requirements necessary or required by the 
state or federal law in order to cuter into the Agreement. By entering into ti-is Agreement, neither 
Party hereto shall have breached the terms or conditions of any other contract or agreement to 
which such Party is obligated, which such breach would have a material effuct hereon. 

33. 7 Drafting and Ambiguities. Each Party acknowledges that it has reviewed this 
Agreement with its own legal counsel, and based upon the advice of that counsel, freely entered 
into this Agreement. Each Party has participated fully in the review and revision of the Agreement. 
Any rule of construction that ambiguities are to be resolved against the d~afting party does not 
apply in interpreting this Agreement. 

33.8 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with its specific references, 
attachments and Exhibits, constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties with respect to the subject 
matters hereof, and supersedes any and all prior negotiations, understanding and agreements with 
respect hereto, wh_ether oral or written. 

33.9 Supersedes Prior Agreement. It is the intention of the Parties hereto that this 
Agreement shall supersede any prior agreements, discussions, commitments, representations, or 
agreements, written, electronic or oral, between the Parties with respect to the subject matter of 
this Agreement. 

33.10 Captions. The captions of this Agreement are for convenience and reference only 
and the words contained therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify, or aid in the 
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this Agreement. 

33.11 Mandatory and Permissive. "Shall" and "will" and "agrees" are mandatory. 
"May" and '~can" are permissive. 

33.12 Successors and Assigns. All representations, covenants, and warranties 
specifically set forth in this Agreement, by or on behalf of, or for the beneft of, any or all of the 
Parties hereto, shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of such Party, its successors and 
assigns. 

33.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed simultane0usly and, in several 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but which together shall constitute one 
and the same instrument. 

23 

Page 194



33.14 Attorney's Fees and Costs. If any action at law or in equity, including action for 
declaratory relief, is brought to enforce or interpret provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing 
Party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees and costs, which may be set by the court in the 
same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose, in addition to any other relief to which 
such Party may be entitled. 

33.15 Necessary Acts and Further Assurances. The Parties shall at their own cost and 
expense execute and deliver such further documents and instruments and shall take such other 
actions as may be reasonably required or appropriate to evidence or carry out the intent and 
purposes of the Agreement. 

33.16 Waiver. No covenant, term, or condition or the breach thereof shall be deemed 
waived, except by written consent of the Party against whom the waiver is claimed, and any waiver 
of the breach of any covenant, te lm, or condition shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any 
preceding or succeeding breach of the same or any other covenant, term, or condition. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been entered into by and between City and 
Collector as of the Effective Date. 

CITY OF LIVINGSTON 

By: _________ _ 
Christopher Lopez 
Interim City Manager 

Date: ----------

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 

By: -----------Roy C. Santos, City Attorney 

Date: ----------

GIL TON SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT, 
INC. 

By:----------
Richard Gilton, President 

Date: ----------

24 

Page 195



EXHIBIT A 
Definitions 

Capitalized words in the Agreement shall have the following meanings: 

I. "AB" shall mean an Assembly Bill of the California Legislature. 

2. "AB 341" shall mean the amendments to the California Integrated Waste Management 
Act of 1989 (Division 30 of the California Public Resources Code), Chapter 476, as 
amended, supplemented, superseded, and replaced from time to time. 

3. "AB 939" shall mean the California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989 
(Division 30 of the California Public Resources Code), as amended, supplemented, 
superseded, and replaced from time to time. 

4. "AB 1826" shall mean the Assembly Bill approved by the Governor of the State of 
California on September 28, 2014, which added Chapter 12.9 (commencing with Section 
42649.8) to Part 3 of Division 30 of the Public Resources Code, relating to Solid Waste, as 
amended, supplemented, superseded, and replaced from time to time. 

5. "Agreement" shall mean this Franchise Agreement between the City and Collector, 
including all exhibits and future amendments. 

6. "Bin" or "Bins" shall mean receptacles provided by Collector for customers which are 
picked up by Collection trucks by means of a front-loading apparatus. 

7. "Bulky Items" shall mean large items of Solid Waste such as appliances, furniture, 
branches, and other oversize wastes whose large size precludes or complicates their 
placement in containers or handling by normal collection, processing, or disposal methods, 
but excluding Excluded Waste; items larger than five cubic yards or heavier than 500 
pounds; and items of excessive size or density, such as engine blocks, spas, boats, and 
trailers. A list of acceptable and unacceptable Bulky Items is attached as Exhibit D. 

8. "Breach" shall be as defined in Section 26.1 of this Agreement. 

9. "Cart" or "Carts" shall mean industry standard receptacles for disposal of Solid Waste, 
Organic Waste, and Recyclables, in a range of sizes. A Cart has wheels, a handle for 
ease of movement, and a light-fitting, attached lid and is designed to be dumped manually 
or mechanically into a Solid Waste collection vehicle. 

10. "Certificates" shall be as defined in Section 19.2 of this Agreemen:. 

1 I. "City" shall mean the City of Livingston, Merced County, State of California. 

12. "City's Agents" shall be as defined in Section 18.1 of this Agreen:ent. 

Page 196



13. "City Attorney" shall mean the city attorney for the City of Livingston. 

14. "City Council" shall mean the City Council of the City of Livingston. 

15. "City Engineer" shall mean the city engineer for the City of Livingston. 

16. "City Manager" shall mean the city manager for the City of Livingston. 

17. "Claim"shall be as defined in Section 18.1 of this Agreement. 

18. "Collector" shall be as defined in the Preamble to this Agreement. 

19. "Construction_ and Demolition Debris" or "C&D Debris' shall nean waste building 
materials, packaging, and rubbish resulting from construction, remodeling, repair, and 
demolition operations on pavements and on houses, commercial buildings, and other 
structures, but not including any Excluded Waste. 

20. "Container" or "Containers" shall be as defined in Section 11.1 of this Agreement. 

21. Contamination Monitoring shall be monitoring for prohibited container contaminants 
and notifying generators if contamination is found. 

22. "Cure Period" shall be as defined in Section 26.3. of this Agreement. 

23. "Customer" or "Customers" shall mean an individual(s), emity or entities that 
receive any services provided by Collector pursuant to this Agreement. Customer 
shall also mean the person, organization, or corporation receiving services to which 
billing statements are sent. 

24. "Effective Date" shall be as defined in the Preamble to the Agreement. 

25. "Electronic Waste" or "E-Waste" shall mean waste containing or consisting of 
electronic devices and components, such as computers, monitors, terminals, computer 
cards and components, computer peripheral devices, main frame computers, 
keyboards, mice, printers and scanners, mini-systems, power supply units, servers, 
connectors/cables, storage discs, consumer electronics, printed circuit boards, 
televisions, chips and components, cellular and other phones, telecommunications 
equipment, and fax machines and copiers, but not including Excbded Waste. 

26. "Equipment" shall mean Collector's vehicles, tools, and equipn:ent for the Services 
for which it is responsible under this Agreement. 

27. "Excluded Waste" shall mean Hazardous Waste; Medical and Infectious Waste; liquid 
wastes; volatile, corrosive, biomedical, infectious, biohazardous, an:! toxic substances or 
material; waste that Collector reasonably believes would, as a result of or upon disposal, 
be a violation of local, state, or federal law, regulation, or ordinance, including land use 

Page 197



restrictions or conditions; waste that cannot be disposed of in Class III landfills; waste that 
in Collector's reasonable opinion would present a significant risk to human health or the 
environment, cause a nuisance, or otherwise create or expose Collector or the City to 
potential liability. Excluded Waste does not include de minimis volumes or concentrations 
of waste of a type and amount normally found in residential Solid Waste after 
implementation of programs for the safe collection, recycling, treatment, and disposal of 
Household Hazardous Wastes in compliance with Sections 41500 and 41802 of the Public 
Resources Code. 

28. "Exhibits" shall be as defined in Section 34.4. of this Agreement. 

29. "Force Majeure" shall be as defined in Section 11.2. of this Agreement. 

30. "Franchise Area'' shall be as defined in Section 4.1. of this Agreement. 

31. "Franchise Fees" shall mean both the fees retained by City and paid by Collector to City 
as defined in Section 16.1. 

32. "Hazardous Waste" shall mean a waste, or combination of wastes, which, because of 
its quantity, concentration, or physical, chemical, or infectious characteristics, may do 
either of the followjng: 

a. Cause, or significantly contribute to, an increase in mortality or an increase in 
serious irreversible or incapacitating reversible illness. 

b. Pose a substantial present or potential hazard to human health or environment when 
improperly treated, stored, transported, or disposed of, or otherwise managed. 
(Public Resources Code Section 40141.) 

33. "HDPE (High Density Polyethylene)" shall mean a recyclable plastic that includes, but is 
not limited to, milk jugs. 

34. High Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facility shall mean a facility that is in 
compliance with the repo1ting requirements of SB 1383 and meets or exceeds an annual 
average mixed waste organic content recovery rate of 50 percent (50%) between January 
I, 2022, and December 31, 2024, and 75 percent (75%) after January I, 2025, as 
calculated pursuant to SB 1383 for Organic Waste received from the Mixed Waste. 

35. "Household Hazardous Waste" shall maintain the meaning set forth in Title 14, California 
Code of Regulations, Section 18502 or successor laws and regulations as may be amended 
from time to time. 

36. "Liquidated Damages" shall be as defined in Section 27.2.1 of this Agreement. 

37. "Medical and Infectious Waste" shall mean biomedical waste generated at residences in 
excess of legal limits or at hospitals, public or private medical clinics, dental 

Page 198



offices, research laboratories, pharmaceutical industries, blood banks, mortuaries, 
veterinary facilities, and other similar establishments. 

38. "Notice or Appeal" shall be as defined in Section 26.4 of this Agreement. 

39. "Organic Waste" shall be all tree and plant trimmings, grass cuttings, dead plants, weeds, 
leaves, branches, and similar plant materials, (but not including palm fronds or items longer 
than five (5) feet or with a diameter greater than six (6) inches), food, food scraps, food 
soiled paper, wood waste, paper and cardboard. 

40. "Party" or "Parties" shall be as defined in the Preamble to this Agreement. 

41. "Payment Bond" shall be as defined in Section 25.2 of this Agreement. 

42. "Performance Bond" shall be as defined in Section 25.1 of this Agreement. 

43. "PET (Polyethylene Terephthalate)" PET means a recyclable plastic that includes, but 
is not limited to, 2-liter soda bottles. 

44. "Rates" shall mean the rates charged by Collector or City to Customers within the 
City as set forth in Section 9 .I. 

45. "Recitals" shall be as defined- in Section I of this Agreement. 

46. "Records" shall be as defined in Section 13 or this Agreement. 

4 7. "Recyclable Materials" or "Recyclables" shall mean those ma:erials that may be 
separated on a commercially reasonable basis from Solid Waste and returned to the 
economic mainstream in the fonn of raw material for new, rei:sed, or reconstituted 
products which meet the quality standards necessary to be used in the marketplace. 
Subject to mutually agreed revision by the Parties, Recyclable Materials or Recyclables 
include, newspaper (including inserts, coupons, and store advcl liscments), corrugated 
card-board, mixed waste paper (including office paper, computer pcper, magazines, junk 
mail, catalogs, Kraft bags and Kraft paper, paperboard, egg containers, phone books, 
brown paper, grocery bags, colored paper, construction paper, envelopes, legal pad 
backings, shoe boxes, and cereal and other similar food boxes), glass containers 
(including colored glass bottles and jars), aluminum (including beverage containers, foil, 
food containers, and small scrap metal), plastic milk and juice containers, steel or tin cans, 
small scrap metal, PETE and HDPE plastic containers (natural and colored), used motor 
oil and oil filters, and any other commercially viable recyclable materials mutually agreed 
to by Collector and the City. 

48. "Refuse" shall mean general term for waste, including Solid Waste, 

49. "Regulations" shall be as defined- in Section 33 of this Agreement. 

Page 199



50. "Roll-Off Box" shall mean a container, with a minimum capacity of ten cubic yards, 
designed for mechanical emptying with a vehicle, and used for the storage and 
transportation of solid waste, Organic Waste, recyclables, and other commodities. 

51. Route Review shall mean inspection and compliance review of a random sample to 
determine compliance and generate an electronic or written recod for each inspection. 

52. "SB 1383" shall mean Senate Bill 1383, Short-Lived Climate Pollutants (SLCP): 
Organic Waste Methane Emissions Reductions ("SB 1383"), establishing a statewide 
target to decrease methane emissions at landfills by reducing the disposal of organic 
waste by 50% below 2014 levels by 2022 and by 75% below 2014 levels by 2025. 

53. "Services" shall be as defined in Section 5.1 of this Agreement. 

54. "Solid Waste" shall mean and include all forms of residential and commercial 
waste generated within City limits and intended for disposal. Solid Waste as 
defined in Public Resources Code, Section 40191 and regulations promulgated 
thereunder and without limitation includes all putrescible and non-putrescible 
solid, semisolid, and liquid wastes, including garbage, trash, Refuse, rubbish, 
ashes, industrial wastes, demolition and construction wastes, abandoned vehicles 
and parts thereof, discarded home and industrial appliances, dewatered, treated, or 
chemically fixed sewage sludge which is not hazardous waste, manure, vegetable 
or animal solid or semisolid wastes, and other discarded solid and semisolid wastes. 
Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, "Solid Waste" may include de 
minim is volumes or concentrations of waste of a type and amount normally found in 
residential solid waste after implementation of programs for the safe collection, recycling, 
treatment, and disposal ofHousehold Hazardous Waste in compliance with Sections 
41500 and 41802 of the Resources Code. For the purposes of this Agreement the 
Collector may, but is not required, to collect, haul, dispose or recycle any liquid wastes, 
abandoned vehicles, and parts thereof, industrial appliances; dewatered, treated or 
chemically fixed sewage sludge or manure. 

55. "State" shall mean the State of California. 

56. "Term" shall be as defined in Section 7 of this Agreement. 

57. "Termination" shall he as defined in Section 27.1 of this Agreement. 

58. "Universal Waste" shall mean any waste matter which the State of California classifies 
as 'universal waste,' including, but not limited to, items and materials listed in 22 CCR 
6626 I. 9, as it may be amended, as well as any items listed below not classified by the 
State of California as 'universal waste.' Universal Waste includes, but is not limited 
to, the following: 

• E-Waste; 
• Batteries ( except automobile batteries); 
• Thermostats; 

Page 200



• 

• 
• 
• 

• 

Lamps with fluorescent tubes, high intensity discharge lamps, sodium vapor 
lamps, and other lamps with hazardous waste characteristics; 
Cathode ray tubes; 
Aerosol cans; 
Mercury-containing items, including light switches, pressure gauges, and 
thermometers; 
Appliances, devices, and other objects containing electronic components, including 
(but not limited to) computers, computer monitors, cellular telephones, copiers, fax 
machines, DVD players, VCRs, and televisions. 

Page 201



irN'W1,")t)t 

............... t 

t--.'---1 S~ .. - ---.....1 

EXHIBIT B 
Franchise Area 

I '-' 

Page 202



Exhibit 1 

Gilton Solid Waste Management~ Inc. 
Revised Proposal for City of Livingston 

Agreement for Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials, & Organic Waste Collection Services 

Based on Increased Passthrough costs 03/01/2024 

STANDARD SERVICE - WEEKLY COLLECTION ALL CONTAINERS 

Tw0 (2) Carts (1,) MSW/ Recycle .(1~ Organks,, 
96 Gallon Carts 

Basic Bundled Service 

Additional carts availble at a Monthly rate of $10.00 per cart 
Carts are replaced as needed. 

Standard Service Per Bin 

Bin Collection Monthly 
Size FrequencVt R.ate 

1 Cubic Yard 1 $67.35 
1 Cubic Yard 2 $134.65 
1 Cubic Yard 3 $201.93 
1 Cubic Yard 4 $269.21 
1 Cubic Yard 5 $336.49 
1 Cubic Yard 6 $403.85 

2 Cubic Yard 1 $134.26 
2 Cubic Yard 2 $266.1 1 
2 Cubic Yard 3 $401.23 
2 Cubic Yard 4 $535.41 
2 Cubic Yard 5 $669.59 
2 Cubic Yard 6 $803.85 

3 Cubic Yard 1 $198.90 
3 Cubic Yard 2 $376.21 
3 Cubic Yard 3 $566.86 
3 Cubic Yard 4 $764.64 
3 Cubic Yard 5 $961.43 
3 Cubic Yard 6 $1,160.33 

4 Cubic Yard 1 $254.58 
4 Cubic Yard 2 $496.10 
4 Cubic Yard 3 $775.89 
4 Cubic Yard 4 $1,025.84 
4 Cubic Yard 5 $1,276.65 
4 Cubic Yard 6 $1,452.41 

6 Cubic Yard 1 $357.95 
6 Cubic Yard 2 $697.76 
6 Cubic Yard 3 $1,067.07 
6 Cubic Yard 4 $1,419.66 
6 Cubic Yard 5 $1 ,776.83 
6 Cubic Yard 6 $2,134.78 

96 Gallon carts are available to commercial customers 
The rate for this service is $ 30 per container per month. 

Mhrthty Rate 
$35.25 

Page 203



EXHIBITD 

RESIDENTIAL BULKY ITEM COLLECTION PROGRAM 

• Scheduled by appointment only. To arrange a pickup, please call our office at (209) 527-
3781 

• Program available to residents who currently subscribe to garbage service* 
• Qualifying residents can have bulky item picked up at their home two times per year 
• Verify that items you want to set out for pick up are Acceptable Items (see lists below) 
• Once appointment for pick up has been scheduled, items must be set out in front of home 

after 6:00 p.m. the day before scheduled appointment. Place items on the street one 
foot from curb. Do NOT block sidewalks, driveways or mailboxes. Items should be at 
least 3 feet away from garbage cart 

• Do NOT place pile under low hanging wires or low hanging tree branches 
• Items set out for collection should not exceed a dimension of 6 feet tall, 6 feet wide and 6 

feet deep 
• Items will be picked up after 6:00 a.m. on scheduled pick up day 

ACCEPTABLE ITEMS 
✓ Refrigerators & Freezers - Doors taped shut or doors removed - Limit I 
✓ Washers & Dryers - Limit I of each 
✓ Water Heaters, Water Softener - drained - Limit I of each 
✓ Air Conditioning Units - Limit I 
✓ Dishwashers - Limit 1 
✓ Toilets, Sinks, Bathtubs 
✓ Hot Tubs - Limit 1 
✓ Couches, Sofas, Recliners 
✓ Table and Chairs 
✓ Dressers, Desks 
✓ Mattress, Box Springs, Bed Frame - Limit 2 
✓ Barbeques, Grills - remove propane tank 
✓ Patio Furniture 
✓ Doors 
✓ Ladders 
✓ Lawn Mowers - gas & oil removed 
✓ Bicycles 
✓ Exercise Equipment 
✓ Plywood Sheets - limit 2 
✓ Wood - limit IO pieces no longer than 8 feet 
✓ Carpet - rolled up 
✓ Dry, flattened cardboard- Bundled 

UNACCEPTABLE ITEMS 
✓ Tires 
✓ Automobile Parts 
✓ Household Garbage-No bags, boxes or containers with small items inside 

Page 204



✓ Hazardous Waste, Chemicals, Toxic Materials 
✓ Liquids, Paints, Solvents 
✓ Plate Glass 
✓ TVs 
✓ Computer Monitors 
✓ Concrete, Asphalt, Sheetrock 
✓ Construction & Demolition Debris 
✓ Fencing, Treated Wood 
✓ Yard Waste 
✓ Tree Stumps 
✓ Items Associated with Business 
✓ Dead Animals 
✓ Fluorescent Light Tubes 
✓ Sod, Dirt 
✓ Glass, Mirrors 
✓ Items Small Enough to Fit in Garbage Can 

Page 205



EXHIBITE 

Construction & Demolition Debris Policy 

The 2013 California Green Building Standards Code (CALGreen) instructs local jurisdictions to 
require contractors to develop and maintain a waste management plan, among other things, to 
verify a minimum 50 percent waste diversion. CALGreen further specifies for the WMP to be 
updated as necessary and shall be available for examination during construction. Sample WMP is 
provided in the actual CALGreen code publication under the Compliance Forms and Worksheets 
section. The California Department of Housing and Development's website also provides sample 
WMP for residential C&D projects. 

Page 206



EXHIBITF 

Acceptable E-Waste for Curbside Collection Program 

Computers 

Printers 

Copiers 

Scanners 

Fax Machines 

Telephones 

Cellular Telephones Stereos 

DVD Units 

Televisions (Cathode Ray Tubes) 

Computer Monitors 

Flat Screen Televisions 

Lap Top Computers 

Networking Equipment 

Printed Circuit Boar\ls 

Computer Servers 

Computer Main Frame 

Page 207



EXHIBITG 

SB 1383 Additional Services 

• Gilton staff to attend city public events providing outreach and education on SB 1383 
• No less than twice per year, direct mail SB 1383 requirements to both residential and 

commercial customers. Fliers will be in English, Spanish and Punjabi. 
• Annual route reviews for residential customers 
• Cart and bin labels reinforcing proper separation of materials, by listing out which 

materials are accepted inside the container, and which are not accep:ed. 
• Contamination Monitoring - contractor shall perform contamir:ation inspections by 

utilizing on-board monitoring systems or physical container inspections. 
• Cart contamination tags to inform customers of contamination issues and educate with 

solutions to resolve. 
• Procurement- Contractor to provide Organic Waste Products (OWP, such as mulch and/or 

compost) to the City, to meet the annual Target Goal issued by CalRecycle to the City for 
that reporting year. 

• Reporting - contractor will provide the data or prepare reports required to meet SB 1383 
requirements which include: 
o The number of generators that receive organic waste collection service. 
o The number of route reviews conducted for prohibited container contamination. 
o The number of times notices, violations or targeted education materials were issued to 

generators for prohibited container contaminants. 

Page 208



                      STAFF REPORT 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution Establishing a City-Wide Franchise Fee for Solid Waste, 
Recyclable Materials, and Organic Waste Collection.  

 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2024 
 
PREPARED BY: Anthony Chavarria, Director of Public Works  
 
REVIEWED BY: Christopher Lopez, Interim City Manager 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends that the city Council adopt a Resolution Establishing a Fifteen (15%) Percent 
Franchise Fee for Exclusive Access to City Solid Waste, Recycling and Organics Collection Services 
and Exclusive access to City Streets and Right-of-Way. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
 
In anticipation of the expiration of an agreement with Gilton Solid Waste Management, Inc. (Gilton), City 
Staff released a Request for Proposals (RFP) for an Agreement for Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials, 
and Organic Waste Collection Services on December 2, 2022. This RFP included provisions necessary 
to assist the City in complying with the state mandates and CalRecyle regulations governing 
management of recyclable materials and organic waste. Assembly Bill 341 (AB 341) mandates that all 
commercial customers participate in a recyclable diversion program. Senate Bill 1383 (SB 1383) 
mandates that all customers must actively participate in an organic waste diversion program to 
substantially reduce organic waste being sent to landfills.  
 
In order to allow for the RFP process to run its course, the City Council approved extensions with Gilton 
to ensure continuity of solid waste collection services.  
 
The RFP included a franchise fee component that anticipated the Contractor to pay a Franchise Fee to 
the City that is 15% of the Contractor’s gross revenues from all operations in the franchise area within 
the City pursuant to the agreement for each monthly period (“Franchise Fee”). 
 
There were three proposals submitted (1) Gilton Solid Waste Management, Inc. (Gilton), (2) Mid Valley 
Disposal (Mid valley), and (3) Modesto Garbage Company, Inc (WM). An evaluation team made up of 
City Staff and HF&H Consultants, LLC evaluated the three proposals and ranked Gilton as the top-
ranked company.  
 
On December 5, 2023, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2023-83 selecting the desired SB-1383 
compliant two cart collection system and selecting proposal option 2B, authorized the Interim City 
Manager to negotiate a new franchise agreement with Gilton for the Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials 
and Organic Waste Collection Services, approved an amendment to the agreement with Gilton for an 
additional two (2) months and authorized the Interim City Manager to negotiate minor adjustments to 
the contract extension. When identifying the new rates being proposed by Gilton, the exhibits included 
the 15% franchise fee. 
 

Page 209



On March 19, 2024, the City Council approved Resolution No. 2024-14 approving a Franchise 
Agreement for Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials, and Organic Waste Collection Services between the 
City of Livingston and Gilton Solid Waste Management, Inc. The agreement included a 15% Franchise 
Fee excluding the City’s established Administration Fee.  
 
The highlights of the agreement are as follows: 

• 10 year initial term with option of two 5 year extensions. 
• City will receive a 15% Franchise Fee from Collectors gross revenues from residential, 

commercial, and industrial accounts. 
• City will adjust the maximum rates under this agreement to reflect annual changes in the 

consumer price index for all urban consumers (CPI). 
• Collector will provide for two (2) curbside bulky item collection events per calendar year from 

residential customers. 
• Collector shall collect, recycle, or dispose of specified E-Waste (as defined in Exhibit F in the 

attached agreement) from residential customers up to four (4) times per calendar year. 
• Collector will provide a residential Christmas tree collection and recycling program. Each year, 

during the first two full weeks of January, Collector will pick up Christmas trees from the front of 
residential properties in the City. 

• Collector shall provide Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Organic Waste collection services to all 
City owned and operated facilities and parks at no additional charge to the City. 

• At the City's request, Collector will provide waste containers, plus Solid Waste, Organic Waste 
and Recyclables removal and disposal services for three community events per year. 

• No less than twice per year, if requested by City, Collector will distribute informational flyers or 
brochures to City Customers regarding the importance of recycling and separating wastes in 
order to achieve greater waste diversion, as well as the applicable commercial recycling 
requirements set forth in AB 341, AB 1826, and SB 1383. In addition, Collector will provide 
technical support and assistance to City Staff in preparation of articles or newsletters related to 
organic waste reduction, reuse, and recycling. 

• Collector agrees to assist the City in meeting SB 1383 mandates by performing the additional 
services (as detailed in Exhibit G in the attached agreement) 

 
The franchise area granted by this Agreement shall be all residential and commercial premises located 
within city limits of City, as more particularly shown on Exhibit B. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
  
The City Council, upon completion of the competitive bidding process, awarded Gilton an exclusive 
solid waste franchise for collecting, transferring, recycling, composting, and disposing solid wastes from 
all residential and/or commercial premises in the City. Payment of the franchise fee authorizes Gilton to 
collect, transfer, recycle, compost, and dispose of solid waste, including receiving exclusive access to 
operate heavy equipment upon city streets and rights-of-way and the exclusive right to place their 
multiple waste containers upon city streets and rights-of-way.  
 
Further, the City believes the franchise fee as proposed of 15% is a reasonable estimate of the value of 
the franchise based upon the exclusive access to city property by the franchisee, the size of the City, 
potential expansion of the City, and exclusive access to the franchisee of approximately 3,500 paying 
solid waste customers.   
 
Lastly, neither the franchise agreement nor franchise fee authorizes Gilton to provide any other 
services or grant any other exclusive access within the City. 

Page 210



 
 
City staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution of the City of Livington establishing the 
Franchise Fee at 15%.  
 
ALTERNATIVE: 
 

(1) City Council may deny the Franchise Fee Resolution. 
(2) Council could provide alternative direction.    

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Projected Franchise Fee revenue is estimated to be $305,000 to be directed to the General Fund. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1.  Resolution  
2.  Exhibit “A” Franchise Agreement 
3.  Exhibit “B” Franchise Area Map 
 

Page 211



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON 
ESTABLISHING A FIFTEEN (15%) PERCENT FRANCHISE FEE FOR EXCLUSIVE 
ACCESS TO CITY SOLID WASTE, RECYCLING AND ORGANICS COLLECTION 

SERVICES AND EXCLUSIVE ACCESS TO CITY STREETS AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY 

WHEREAS, the California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989 (Public Resources 
Code sections 40000 et seq.) requires local agencies to make adequate provision for Solid Waste 
handling within their jurisdictions; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Livingston Municipal Code authorizes the City to enter into 
exclusive franchise agreements for the handling, collection, transportation and disposal of solid 
waste, recycling and organics; and 

WHEREAS, The City Council, upon completion of the competitive bidding process, 
awarded Gilton an exclusive solid waste franchise for collecting, transferring, recycling, 
composting, and disposing solid waste from all residential and/or commercial premises in the City; 
and 

WHEREAS, Payment of the franchise fee grants Gilton the exclusive right to collect, 
transfer, recycle, compost, and dispose of solid waste, including receiving exclusive access to 
operate heavy equipment upon city streets and rights-of-way and the exclusive right to place their 
multiple waste containers upon city streets and rights-of-way, within the City. 

WHEREAS, the City believes the franchise fee of fifteen (15%) percent is a reasonable 
estimate of the value of the franchise based upon the exclusive access to city property (including 
by not limited to city streets and rights-of-way) by the franchisee, the size of the City, potential 
expansion of the City, and exclusive access to the franchisee of approximately 3,500 paying solid 
waste customers; and 

WHEREAS, the City granted to Gilton an exclusive franchise commencing April_, 2024, 
for the handling, collection, transportation, recycling, organics, and disposal of solid waste within 
the City, and the City now desires to establish and charge the franchisee a franchise fee of fifteen 
(15%) percent of franchisee's Gross Revenues over the life of the franchise. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Livingston as follows: 

SECTION 1. The above recitals are incorporated are hereby by reference. 

SECTION 2. The resolution is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
("CEQA") because it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibiity that it will have a 
significant effect on the environment. (CEQA Guidelines§ 15061(b)(3) . .) Further, the adoption 
and implementation of this Ordinance is not a project, as defined in CECA Guidelines section 
15378, because it has no potential for resulting in physical change to the environment, either 
directly or indirectly, and is therefore not subject to environmental review under CEQA pursuant 
to CEQA Guidelines section 15060(c)(3). 

SECTION 3. The City Council of the City of Livingston hereby estaclishes a franchise fee 
in the amount of fifteen (15%) percent of the franchisee's gross revenues for the collection, 
transferring, recycling, organics, and disposal of solid waste, including recei'Jing exclusive access 

01424.0001/976068.1 Page 1 of 2 
Page 212



to operate heavy equipment upon city streets and rights-of-way and the exclusive right to place 
their multiple waste containers upon city streets and rights-of-way. 

SECTION 4. This Resolution will become effective immediately. 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2024-__ is a full, true and correct copy of a 
resolution duly passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Livingston at a regular 
meeting thereof duly held on the 16th day of April 2024, by the vote recorded as follows: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST 

Monica Cisneros, Deputy City Clerk 
Of the City of Livingston 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM 

Roy C. Santos, City Attorney 

01424.0001/976068. I 

By:---.,....-,------
Jose A. Moran, Mayor 
of City of Livingston 

Page 2 of 2 
Page 213



EXHIBIT A 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

THIS FRANCHISE AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into this 1st day 
of April 2024 (the "Effective Date") by and between the City of Livingston ("City"), a municipal 
corporation of the State of California, and Gilton Solid Waste Management, Inc., a California 
corporation ("Collector"). The parties to this Agreement may each be referred to individually as a 
"Party" or collectively as the "Parties". There are no other parties to this Agreement. 

RECITALS 

A. The California State Legislature enacted the Califonm. Integrated Waste 
Management Act of 1989 ("AB 939") which authorizes local jurisdictions to make adequate 
provisions for solid waste handling within their jurisdictions; and 

B. On October 6, 2011, the Legislature passed Assembly Bill 341 ("AB 341 "), 
amending the California Public Resources Code (the "Public Resources Code") therein requiring 
cities to encourage and document commercial solid waste recycling prograrr:s; and 

C. On September 28, 2014, the Legislature passed Assembly Bill 1826 ("AB 1826"), 
approved by the Governor of the State of California which added Chapter 12.9 (commencing with 
Section 42649.8) therein requiring cities to require businesses to separate their organic waste from 
the municipal waste stream for composting; and 

D. On November 10, 2020, the Legisl'ature passed Senate Bill 1383, Short-Lived 
Climate Pollutants (SLCP): Organic Waste Methane Emissions Reductions ("SB 1383"), 
establishing a statewide target to decrease methane emissions at landfills by reducing the disposal 
of organic waste by 50% below 2014 levels by 2022 and by 75% below 2014 levels by 2025. SB 
1383 establishes regulatory requirements for jurisdictions, generators, haulers, solid waste 
facilities, and other entities to support achievement of State-wide Organic Waste Disposal 
reduction targets and requires Jurisdictions to implement collection programs, meet processing 
facility requirements, conduct contamination monitoring, provide education, maintain records, 
submit reports, monitor compliance, conduct enforcement, and fulfill other requirements; and 

E. The collection and disposition of garbage, refuse and waste is governed and 
regulated by applicable provisions set forth in Title 8; Chapter 2 Municipal Code (the "Code"), 
which may be amended from time to time and is incorporated herein by this reference; and 

F. The City previously entered into a franchise agreement with Collector on April 2, 
2013, wherein the City selected Collector to provide services for the collection, recycling, and 
disposal of solid waste within the City; and 

G. The existing Agreement provides that the tenn of the agreerr:ent may be extended 
by mutual agreement of the Parties; and 

H. The City and Collector now desire to update and extend the tern1 of the existing 
Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall be in 

Page 214



force for IO calendar years; and 

I. It is the City's objective to continue to engage Collector to provide refuse collection 
and disposal services for residential and commercial collection. By entering into this Agreement 
Collector shall assist City in meeting its AB 939, AB 341, AB 1826, and SB 1383 requirements; 
and 

J. The City's refuse program shall be consistent with the County Solid Waste and 
Integrated Waste Management Plan and comply with all regulations promulgated by the local 
Merced County enforcement agency and the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery; 
and • 

K. The Parties desire to rescind the existing Agreement which s:J.all be fully replaced 
and superseded by this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and 
other good and sufficient consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

Section 1. Recitals. The recitals set forth above (the "Recitals") are incorporated herein by this 
reference and made a part of this Agreement. In the event any inconsistencies arise as between the 
Recitals and Sections I through 34 of this Agreement, Sections I through 34 shall prevail. 

Section 2. Definitions. Unless otherwise noted in this Agreement, capitalized terms herein shall 
have the meanings set forth in Exhibit A. Whenever any term used in this Agreement has been 
defined by Division 30, Part I, Chapter 2 of the Public Resources Code or the City's Code, those 
definitions shall apply unless the term is otherwise defined in Exhibit A. b. the event there is a 
discrepancy between the definitions contained in the Public Resources Code and the City's Code, 
the definitions set forth in the Public Resources Code shall supersede all other definitions. 

Section 3. Termination of Existing Agreement. This Agreement hereby supersedes and replaces 
any existing agreement(s), whether written or oral, by mutual agreement and consent of the Parties 
as of the Effective Date of this Agreement. Hereafter all previous agreements shall terminate and 
be of no further force and effect except with respect to covenants therein for acts and omissions 
occurring prior to the Effective Date. 

Section 4. Franchise Area. 

4.1 Franchise Area Defined. The franchise area granted by this Agreement shall be 
all residential and commercial premises located within city limits of City, as more particularly 
shown on Exhibit B ("Franchise Area"). As provided below, the Franchise Area may be changed 
by annexation, de-annexation, or re-organization. 

4.2 Annexation Covered by Existing Franchise. All territories annexed during the Term 

2 

Page 215



of this Agreement may be subject to this Agreement. However, properties served by another 
collector at the time of annexation, shall continue to be served by collecto: for 1 year. All new 
construction in the annexed area will be serviced by Gilton Solid Waste (Gilton). 

Section 5. Waste Collection and Disposal. 

5.1 Scope of Services. Except as set in Section 5.4, the City he:eby grants Collector 
the exclusive franchise, right and privilege to collect all Solid Waste, Organic Waste and 
Recyclables within the Franchise Area and to transport the same to a High Diversion Organic 
Waste Processing Facility, sanitary landfill, transfer station, compost/mulcl:ing site, or waste-to
energy facility outside the City, which has been approved by the governmental agency having 
jurisdiction of the territory in which said site is located (the "Services";. When transporting 
collected material out of Merced County, after processing, Collector will re:urn an amount equal 
to the residual municipal solid waste portion to a Merced County Regional Waste Management 
Authority (R WA) facility as required by the R WA' s flow control. Waiver requests for recyclables 
and organic materials must be submitted to the R WA for approval. City may designate alternative 
processing facilities if public health, safety, or fiscal interest is required, or compliance with 
applicable law necessitates the alternative and will be at cost to the Collector. Collector shall 
furnish all labor, supervision, materials, permits, licenses, and equipment necessary to provide 
residential and commercial refuse collection Services for Customers within the Franchise Area of 
City. Collector shall perform its obligations under this Agreement in accordance with all applicable 
local, state, or federal laws and in a manner that maximizes the City's Solid Waste diversion rate 
to the extent possible. 

5.2 Residential Service. Collector shall provide Solid Waste and Organic Waste 
collection services to all residential premises within the City. Collector may provide Recyclables 
collection services to residential premises within the City. If the City elects to make residential 
Recyclables collection service mandatory, Collector shall provide such ser1ice to all residential 
premises and shall charge rates that will be amended for such services. 

5.3 Commercial Service. Collector may provide Solid Waste collection services to all 
commercial premises within the City. In addition, pursuant to the requirements set forth in AB 
341, AB 1826, and SB 1383, Collector shall provide recycling collection se:vices and/or organic 
collection service to any business that meets the mandatory threshold of each legislation. 

5.4 Excepted Services. Collector's exclusive franchise in this Agreement shall not 
include governmental entities if and to the extent the City has no legal power to require such 
entities to use Collector's Services. The provisions of this franchise shall not preclude or prohibit 
the City or any officer or employee thereof or any employee of the State, :ir any governmental 
subdivision thereat; from collecting, removing, and disposing of Solid Waste, Recyclables, or 
Organic Waste from the City or State facilities. 

Section 6. Collection and Bins. 

6.1 Provision of Receptacles. Collector agrees to continue to provide and maintain all 
Carts, Bins and Roll-Off Boxes for the proper and secure storage of Solid Waste, Organic Waste 

3 

Page 216



or Recyclables for all residential and commercial Customers. All residential Cart Customers shall 
be serviced once per week and commercial Bin Customers shall be serviced from one (I) to six 
(6) times per week as requested by the Customer. Roll-Off box Customers will be serviced as 
arranged between the Customer and Collector. 

6.2 Hours of Collection, Collection service of all Carts, Bins, and Roll-Off Boxes in 
residential areas and from commercial premises adjacent to residential areas shall not start before 
6:00 a.m. or continue after 6:00 p.m., subject to change by resolution of the Livingston City 
Council ("City Council"). However, the hours of collection may be extended temporarily as a 
result of extraordinary circumstances or conditions with the prior consent of the Livingston City 
Manager ("City Manager"). 

6.3 Receptacle Replacement. Collector, without expense to City or any Customer, 
will replace stolen carts when a police report has been filed within seventy-two (72) hours. 
Collector shall clean, paint over or replace, at its discretion, graffiti-tagged Carts as needed. 
Collector shall replace Carts damaged due to normal wear and tear within the time frame of one 
collection cycle. Collector shall maintain records oflost, stolen, damaged and graffiti-tagged Carts 
by specific address. Collector may charge for additional replacement Carts bE.Sed on the actual cost 
of the Carts and their delivery. 

Section 7. Term of Agreement. The te1m of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective 
Date and shall remain in full force and effect for ten ( I 0) calendar years. This Agreement may be 
extended at the sole option of the City via two options for a five ( 5) -year extension. The City may 
in its sole discretion advertise for competitive bids for solid waste franchise collection services 
with such services to commence after the expiration of the contract term of this Agreement. 
Nothing herein shall be deemed or construed to impair the rights of the City to immediately 
terminate this Agreement with Collector due to Collector's substantial failure to perform the 
services and responsibilities specified and agreed to in this Agreement. 

Section 8. Acceptance; Waiver. Collector agrees to be bound by and comply with all the 
requirements of this Agreement. Collector waives any right or claim to serve the City or any part 
of the City under any prior grant of franchise, contract, license, or permit issued or granted by any 
governmental entity including any right under Section 49520 of the Public Resources Code. 

Section 9. Maximum Rates and Fees. 

9.1 Rates. The maximum rates to be charged by Collector are set forth in Exhibit C 
("Rate" or "Rates") and the maximum rates may be adjusted by resolution of the City Council. For 
the first year of the Agreement, Collector shall charge rates that are no greater than the maximum 
rates as established by the City. The City will establish a separate administration fee for processing 
solid waste billing. In the remaining years of the Agreement Term, the City will adjust the 
maximum rates under this Agreement to reflect annual changes in the Consumer Price Index for 
All Urban Consumers ("CPI") published by the U.S. Department of Labor for the San Francisco
Oakland-San Jose, CA statistical area. The adjustment shall become effective on the anniversary 
of the Effective Date of this Agreement and be based on the previous twelve-month index analysis 
based on the Effective Date of this Agreement. In all subsequent years, the Collector may request, 

4 

Page 217



and the City Council shall consider, rate adjustments based on other adjustments provided for 
under subsections 9.3. and 9.4. 

9.2 Tipping Fees. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the milXimum rates include 
compensation to Collector for tipping, gate or other disposal fees charged by any applicable 
disposal facilities. Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary, Collector, 
except in the case of Roll-Off Box Customers, shall not be entitled to rece:ve from City, or any 
Customer, a separate or additional payment for tipping or gate fees. In addition to any other rate 
adjustments to which Collector may be entitled, Collector may request to iccrease its rates to the 
extent necessary to recover increased landfill, waste-to-energy facility, transfer station, and 
material 'recovery facility tipping or gate fees. Collector shall provide Ci:y with notice of the 
proposed new rates within thirty (30) days of such notice being received from Merced County or 
other applicable authority and shall provide the City with a copy of any notice regarding an 
increase in landfill or waste-to-energy facility tipping or gate fees. Collector shall not increase the 
Rates to recover increased tipping or gate fees, without prior written approval from City. 

9.3 Extraordinary Cost Increases. Collector may petition City for an extraordinary 
rate adjustment or adjustments at any time during the Term of this Agreement, provided that such 
petition may be made based only upon increases in fuel costs or increased costs as a result of 
federal, state, county mandates, increased insurance costs or other documented impacts, which 
require changes in Collector's Services or operations under this Agreement. Collector shall include 
in its petition a financial presentation which demonstrates the extraordinary increase in operating 
costs. Any petition shall be considered by the City Council at a public hearing held after providing 
any required notices pursuant to this Section and applicable law. The City Council may grant or 
reject any such petition in its sole and complete discretion. 

Section 10. Additional Services. In exercising the right and privilege to collect Solid Waste, 
Organic Waste or Recyclables within the boundaries of City as herein granted, Collector agrees to 
act in accordance with the following: 

Collector agrees to provide without additional charge to the City or its custo:ners: 

10.1 Curbside Bulky Item Collection Program. Collector shall collect and dispose of 
bulky item wastes, as defined in Exhibit D, from residential Customers up to two (2) times per 
calendar year. Such collections will be made by appointment as arranged between Customer and 
Collector. 

10.2 Curbside E-Waste Collection Program. Collector shall collect, recycle, or 
dispose of specified E-Wastes (as defined in Exhibit F) from residential CuEtomers up to four (4) 
times per calendar year. Such collections will be made by appointment as arranged between the 
Customer and Collector. 

10.3 Christmas Tree Program. Collector will provide a residential Christmas tree 
collection and recycling program. Each year, during the first two (2) fuil weeks of January, 
Collector will pick-up Christmas trees from the front of residential properties in the City. 
Collections will be scheduled to coincide with the normal waste collection days. 

5 

Page 218



10.4 City Facilities. Collector shall provide Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Organic 
ytaste collection services to all City owned and operated facilities and parks at no additional charge 
to the City. This does not include C&D Debris generated from City owned and operated facilities. 
In addition, Gilton will continue to provide recycling collection for city residents at city 
corporation yard. 

10.5 Community Events. At the City's request, Collector will provide waste 
containers, plus Solid Waste, Organic Waste and Recyclables removal and disposal services for 
three community events per year. 

10.6 Promotional/Educational Support. No less than twice per year, if requested by 
City, Collector will distribute informational flyers or brochures to City Customers regarding the 
importance of recycling and separating wastes in order to achieve greater waste diversion, as well 
as the applicable commercial recycling requirements set forth in AB 341, AB 1826, and SB 13 83. 
In addition, Collector will provide technical support and assistance to City Staff in preparation of 
articles or newsletters related to organic waste reduction, reuse and recycling. 

10. 7 Commercial Recycling Programs. Collector will fully coo;ierate with and assist 
the City with the implementation of any State mandated commercial recycling programs. 

10.8 AB 939 Data. Collector agrees to continue to assist City in data collection and 
reporting pertaining to compliance with the Integrated Waste Management Act (AB 939), 
including any State required waste composition studies. 

10.9 C&D Diversion Policy. When properly notified, Collector will assist City 
customers in their compliance with the City's C&D Debris Diversion Policy, attached at Exhibit 
E, as it may be amended. Collector shall comply with the City's C&D Debris Diversion Policy as 
applicable. 

10.10 SB 1383 Services. Collector agrees to assist the City in meeti:ig SB 1383 mandates 
by performing the additional services as detailed in Exhibit G. 

Section 11. Specific Service Requirements. 

11.1 Collector Duty of Care and Diligence. Collector and Collector's employees, 
contractors, sub-contractors, operators, officers, directors, supervisors, owr:ers, board members, 
representatives, and agents ("Collector's Agents") shall exercise all reasonable care and diligence 
in performing their obligations under this Agreement. Every effort will be made to prevent spilling, 
scattering or dropping Refuse during the collection or transportation process. However, in the 
event that Refuse is spilled, scattered or dropped, the truck operator shall immediately clean up 
the material and place it in the truck. Every Cart, Bin and Roll-Off Box ( collectively, "Container") 
must be replaced in an upright position. It shall be fu1ther noted that Refuse collection easements 
are frequently co-located with other utility easements. Particular attention must be given to the 
location of water meters, transformers, guy wires, utility poles and irrigation structures. 
Authorization to use the easement does not abrogate Collector's responsibili:y to exercise caution 

6 

Page 219



to not infringe upon, damage, or trespass the property rights of other authorized users or property 
owners. Collector shall be familiar with and operate within the guidelines set forth by the 
Occupational Safety Health Act (29 U.S.C. section 651 el. seq.). Collector is granted the right to 
use dedicated streets, alleys and refuse collection easements for the purpose of performing the 
Services, but this right is not exclusive. The Collector shall handle the Sen, ices in a manner that 
will cause the least inconvenience or annoyance to the general public and to property owners. 

11.2 Hazardous Waste. Under no circumstance shall Collector's employees knowingly 
collect Hazardous Waste or remove unsafe or poorly containerized Hazardous Waste from 
Customer premises. If Collector determines that material placed in a container for collection is 
Hazardous Waste, Excluded Waste, or other material that may not be legally accepted at an 
approved sanitary landfill, transfer station, compost/mulching site, waste-to-energy facility or 
other permitted disposal facility or that presents a hazard to Collector employees, Collector shall 
have the right to refuse to accept such material. Collector shall leave, at the time of non-collection, 
a non-collection notice with Customers indicating the reason for refusing the material. Collector 
shall contact the generator and request that the generator arrange for proper c.isposal service. If the 
Hazardous Waste, Excluded Waste, or other objectionable material is identified at time of delivery 
to the approved sanitary landfill, transfer station, compost/mulching site, WE.Ste-to-energy facility 
or other permitted disposal facility and the generator cannot be identified, Ccllector shall be solely 
responsible for handling and arranging transport and disposition of the Hazardous Waste, Excluded 
Waste, or other objectionable material. 

11.3 Force Majeure. Collector shall not be in default under this Agreement in the event 
that the collection transportation, recycling and disposal services of Collector are temporarily 
interrupted or discontinued due to a "Force Majeure" event which is defined as: riots, wars, 
sabotage, civil disturbances, insurrections, explosion, natural disasters such ES floods earthquakes, 
landslides and fires, strikes, lockouts and other labor disturbances or other catastrophic events, 
which are beyond the reasonable control of Collector. Force Majeure does nc-t include: Collector's 
financial inability to perform; Collector's failure to obtain any necessary permits or licenses from 
other governmental agencies; or Collector's failure to obtain the right to use the facilities of any 
public utility where such failure is due solely to the acts or omissions of the Collector. 

11.4 Independent Contractor. Collector is an independent contractor and not an 
officer, agent, servant or employee of City. Collector is solely responsible for the acts and 
omissions of its officers, agents, employees, contractors, and sub-grantees. Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be construed as creating a partnership or joint venture between City and Collector. 
Neither Collector nor its officers, employees, agents or sub-grantees shall obtain any right to 
retirement or other benefits or right which accrue to City employees. 

11.5 Property Damage. Collector shall be responsible for any damage to City's driving 
surfaces, whether or not paved, resulting from vehicles providing Services under this Agreement. 
Collector shall be responsible for repairing or replacing any private or public property which is 
damaged due to the acts or omissions of employees, contractors, or agents of Collector to private 
or public property shall be repaired or replaced. 

7 

Page 220



11.6 Right of Entry. Collector shall have the right, to enter or drive on any private 
street, court, place, easement, or other private property for the purpose of collecting or transporting 
Refuse pursuant to this Agreement. This right or entry shall last until the soo:ier of the termination 
of this Agreement or receipt by Collector of a written notice from City revo~ing Collector's right 
of entry. This right of entry is limited to carrying out the Services required by this Agreement. 

Section 12. Customer Service Requirements. 

12.1 Availability of Representatives. A responsible representa:ive for the Collector 
who is qualified to respond to public inquiries shall be available at Collector's office during office 
hours, excluding lunchtime closure, for communication with City, Customers or the public. 

12.2 Employees. Collector shall exercise reasonable care to hire responsible employees, 
to supervise the work of such employees, and to discipline and, if necessary, discharge an 
employee failing to meet reasonable standards for performance of work set forth in this Agreement. 

Collector shall comply with applicable state and federal law pertaining to employment, including, 
but not limited to, applicable equal opportunity employment and affirmative action requirements. 

12.3 Manner of Collection. Collector shall perform all collection services in a quiet 
and courteous manner and ensure that all Carts are placed on the premises from which they were 
removed in an upright position, with lids closed, and within five (5) feet of where they were 
originally placed before collection. 

12.4 Office Hours. Collector's office hours shall be, at a minfmum, from 8 a.m. to 5 
p.m. daily, except for a lunch hour and closed on Saturdays, Sundays, and federal or State 
recognized holidays. A representative of Collector shall be available dujng office hours for 
communication with the public at Collector's principal place of business. 

12.S Service Complaints. All Service complaints shall be directed to Collector. 
Collector shall respond to all complaints, other than missed pickups, within tVventy-four (24) hours 
if the twenty-four (24) hour period ends during the office hours specified in subsection 12.5, 
otherwise on the next business day. Collector shall be responsible for the prompt and courteous 
attention to, and prompt and reasonable resolution of, all complaints and sh;ill use its best efforts 
to resolve any complaints within the two (2) business days following the date on which such 
complaint is received. Complaints that cannot be reasonably resolved may be appealed to the City 
Manager or designee for final resolution. 

12.6 Complaint Log. Collector agrees to maintain a log of all oral and written service 
complaints registered with Collector from Customers or the public within :he City ("Complaint 
Log"). Collector shall record in the log all written and oral complaints, noting the name and address 
of the complainant, date and time of complaint, nature of complaint, and method and date of 
resolution. Such log shall be kept so that representatives of the City, upon request, may 
conveniently inspect it. Collector shall deliver, along with the quarterly repor:s specified in Section 
13 or otherwise upon request of the City, a summary of complaints by number and type and 
excerpts from the log reflecting action to date. 

8 

Page 221



12.7 Missed Pickups. In the event of a missed pickup, Collector shall complete the 
pickup the same day if the complaint is received by 12:00 p.m. or by 12:00 p.m. the following 
business day if the complaint is received after 12:00 p.m. 

Section 13. Reports. Collector shall provide the City with annual reports detailing Collector's 
operations within City during that time. Reports will contain the information required by the City 
for compliance with AB 939, AB 341, AB 1826 and SB 1383 and for City to measure Collector's 
performance of items in this Agreement. Collector agrees to provide additional reports regarding 
its collection services as may be reasonably requested by the City to meet future reporting 
requirements of the City or the State. City or a consultant to City, on request, shall have the right 
to review the collection records of Collector at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice. 

Section 14. Vehicles. 

14.I Compliance with Applicable Regulations. Collector shall at all times comply 
with all applicable rules, statutes, orders, and requirements adopted by any governmental agency 
with jurisdiction over air quality, including, but not limited to, the California Air Resources Board 
and the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District. In addition to any indemnification · 
obligations set forth in this Agreement, Collector shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 
City against any fines, penalties, losses, or claims arising out of Collector's failure to comply with 
this Section. All vehicles used by Collector under this Agreement shall be registered with the 
Department of Motor Vehicles of the State of California, be kept clean and in good repair, shall be 
uniformly painted, and shall be washed at least once every seven (7) calendar days. Collector's 
name, phone number, and vehicle number shall be prominently displayed on its vehicles. 

14.2 Fluids and Waste. Collector shall immediately clean up any fluids or waste spilled 
from collection vehicles and shall deploy and remove absorbent materials to the extent necessary 
to absorb all fluids. Collector shall provide the City with a copy of any spill report that Collector 
is required to provide, and at the same time it is provided, to the State Office of Spill Prevention 
and Response. When necessary, Collector shall apply a suitable cleaning agent to the street surface 
or shall employ hydraulic steam cleaning to provide adequate cleaning. Collector shall comply at 
all times with all reconunendations or limitations concerning laden weight of collection vehicles 
established by the State or any government agency, or the vehicle manufacturer. 

Section 15. Collector's Employees. 

15.1. Prohibition of Drugs or Alcohol. Collector will prohibit the use of intoxicating 
substances by Collector's Agents, including its drivers and crewmembers, while on duty or in the 
course of performing the Services. Upon request by City, Collector will demonstrate compliance 
with the federal alcohol and drug testing statutes and regulations. 

15.2 Employee Uniform. Collector's employees shall be required to wear a clean 
uniform bearing Collector's name. Employees who normally and regularly come into direct 
contact with Customers, including drivers, shall bear some means of individual identification such 
as a name tag or identification card. 

9 

Page 222



15.3 Identification Required. Collector shall provide every employee, contractor, 
grantees, or sub-grantees that are in contact with the public with identification cards and badges. 
Upon request of City, Collector shall notify all Customers of the form of identification that each 
employee shall be carrying or displaying so that all Customers may easily identify one of 
Collector's employees. Collector shall provide City with a list of current employees, contractors, 
grantees, and sub-contractors to City upon request. 

15.4 Valid Driver's License. Employees driving Collector's vehicles shall at all times 
possess and carry a valid and appropriate vehicle operator's license issued by the State of 
California, including a commercial driver's license, if required. 

15.5 No Employment Relationship with City. Collector's Agents are not and shall not 
identify themselves as being employees of the City at any time, for any reason. 

15.6 Employee Behavior. All contact by Collector with Custon:ers will be done with 
courtesy and respect. Any incident with a Customer must be reported immediately to the City. 

15. 7 Employee Conduct. All superintendents, foremen and workers, or contractors 
employed by the C9llector shall be capable and safety conscious workers, skiJed in their respective 
trades. Collector shall not employ any person who is incapable or negligent in the due and proper 
performance of his or her duties. Collector shall furnish such supervision, labor and equipment as 
is considered necessary for the fulfillment of the Services in an acceptable rrumner at a satisfactory 
rate of progress. City reserves the right to request for any worker of Collector to be prohibited 
from providing Services to City without cause for any reason. 

15.8 Supervision. It is the Collector's responsibility to supervise the Services rendered 
and to provide direction to its employees and agents in the field. While City employees may 
suggest possible solutions to problems or unusual situations, Collector retains the responsibility 
for all Services and how the Services will be delivered and conducted to the City and the 
Customers. 

Section 16. Franchise Fees, Billing and Reports. 

16.1 Franchise Fees. Collector and the City agree that for the exclusive rights herein 
granted to Collector, City shall retain a sum equal to fifteen percent (15%) -:if the gross revenues 
from residential, commercial, and industrial accounts. Gross Revenues for :his computation will 
exclude the City established Administration Fee. Further, the Parties hereby agree to the fifteen 
percent (15%) franchise fees is a reasonable estimate of the value of the City's franchise given the 
number of exclusive customers being provided to the Collector as the franchise hauler. The 
Collector shall also pay the City fifteen percent (15%) of the gross revenues from the Collector's 
Debris Box and/Roll-Off container services. 

16.2 Billing. The City shall provide regular billing statements to residential, commercial 
and industrial customers that have cart and bin service. The Collector shall provide billing 
statements to Debri Box/Roll-off customers. 

IO 

Page 223



16.3 City and Collector Billing. As of the commencement of this Agreement, the 
Parties acknowledge that the City is responsible and will continue to bill residential, commercial 
and industrial customers that have cart and bin service. The Collector shall bill all customers that 
have Debris Box and/or Roll-Off Container service. 

Section 17. Collector's Books and Records: Audits. The books and records of Collector shall 
be subject to audit and inspection for the purpose of reviewing billing operations, accounts 
receivable and customer service, by City, its auditors or agents. Collector sha] maintain all records 
relating to the Services, including, but not limited to, Customer lists, billing records, maps, AB 
939 compliance records, AB 34 1 compliance records, and Customer complaints (collectively, the 
"Records"), for no less than three (3) years after the termination or expirati::m of the Term, or as 
may or any longer period required by applicable law. City shall have the right, upon five (5) 
business days advance notice, to inspect all Records, and other like materials of Collector which 
reasonably relate to Collector's compliance with the provisions of this Agreement. 

Collector's Records shall be made available to City at a City facility, if reasonably practicable, or 
at Collector's regular place of business during regular business hours. If such audit discloses an 
underpayment of the Franchise Fees or other sums due under this Agreement, Collector shall 
promptly tender to the City the amount of such underpayment. 

Section 18. Indemnification. 

18.1. Indemnification of City. Collector agrees that it shall protect, defend, indemnify 
and hold harmless City, its elected and appointed councils, commissions, directors, officers, 
employees, agents, and representatives ("City's Agents") from and against any claim, action or 
proceeding that arises from this Agreement or any Services performed pursuant to or in connection 
with this Agreement ("Claim"), including but not limited to all losses, liabilities, fines, penalties, 
claims, damages, liabilities, judgments, attorney's fees, costs incurred for staff time, court costs, 
other expenses of litigation, or expenses of litigation awarded to the prevailing Party or Parties. 
This indemnification does not include gross negligence or willful acts of the City, or City's Agents. 
At City's discretion, Collector shall satisfy the obligation of this Section by reimbursing City for 
tendering its own defense. If Collector undertakes the defense of a Claim by providing City
approved representation, City may, participate in the defense of any such Claim. 

To the extent permitted by Public Resources Code Section 40059.1, and to the extent 
noncompliance is caused by Collector's breach of or noncompliance with a provision of this 
Agreement, Collector agrees to protect and defend City or City's Agents, witli. counsel selected by 
the City, and to indemnify and hold harmless City or City's Agents from and against all fines or 
penalties imposed by the State if the waste diversion goals specified in the Public Resources Code 
arc not met by the City with respect to the Solid Waste collected by Collector under this 
Agreement. Collector shall indemnify, defend with counsel acceptable to the City, protect and hold 
harmless the City and City's Agents from and against all claims, damages (including but not 
limited to special, consequential, and natural resources damages), injuries, response mediation and 
removal costs, losses, demands, debts, liens, liabilities, causes of ac:ion, suits, legal or 
administrative proceedings, interest, fines, charges, penalties, and attorney and expert fees for the 

11 

Page 224



adverse party and expenses (including but not limited to attorney's and expert witness fees and 
costs incurred in connection with defending against any of the forgoing or in enforcing this 
indemnity) of any kind whatsoever paid, incurred or suffered by, or asserted against, the City or 
City's Agents arising from or attributable to the negligence or willful misconduct of Collector or 
its affiliates and their respective officers, directors, employee and shareholders in handling 
Hazardous Waste either knowingly or under circumstances in which a reaso:iable person would or 
should have known that Hazardous Waste was being handled. The foregcing indemnity is also 
intended to operate as an agreement pursuant to Section I 07(e) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. Section 
9607(c) and California Health and Safety Code Section 25364, lo defend, insure, protect, hold 
harmless and indemnify the City from liability. 

18.2. Indemnification of Collector. City shall indemnify, defend and hold Collector, 
its affiliates and their respective officers, directors, employees and shareholders harmless from and 
against any and all liabilities, losses, damages, claims, actions and causes of action, costs and 
expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees) arising from or in any mar_ner arising out of the 
negligent acts of the City or the City's employees. Subject to this indemnification, and upon 
demand of Collector, made by and through Collector's counsel, City shall appear in defense of 
Collector, and its officers, employees and agents in any claims or actions, whether judicial, 
administrative, or otherwise arising out of the exercise of this Agreement. Nothing in this 
Agreement shall alter the requirements of the Government Tort Claims Act as established within 
the Government Code and/or any indemnities provided to the City pursuant to any state, federal 
or local law, statue, or ordinance. 

Section 19. Insurance. Collector will continue to carry insurance, which shall be placed with 
insurers with a current AM Best's rating of no less than A VII, and which shall include all of the 
following: 

19.1 Required Insurance. 

19.1.1 Worker's Compensation. Collector shall obtain and maintain in full force 
and effect throughout the Term, worker's compensation insurance in accor:i with the provisions 
and requirements of the California Labor Code. Endorsements that implement the required 
coverage shall be filed and maintained with the City Clerk throughout the Term. The policy 
providing coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits, 
except after thiliy (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has 
been given to the City. The policy shall also be amended to waive all rights cf subrogation against 
the City, its elected or appointed officials, employees, agents or representatives for losses which 
arise from the Services performed by the Collector pursuant to this Agreement. 

19.1.2 General Commercial Liability Insurance. Collector shall carry 
commercial or comprehensive general liability insurance with a combined single limit of Two 
Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per occurrence/ aggregate for bodily injury, personal injury and 
property damage. Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office Commercial 
General Liability coverage (occurrence form GG 00 01 11 88). 

12 

Page 225



19.1.3 Automobile Liability Insurance. Collector shall carry automobile 
insurance with a combined single limit of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per occurrence for 
bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage, and which shall provide coverage for rented 
and non-owned vehicles. Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Service form number 
CA 00 010692 covering Automobile Liability, code I (any auto). 

19.1.4 Public Liability Insurance. Collector shall carry public liability insurance 
with a combined single limit of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per occurrence for bodily 
injury, personal injury, and property damage. 

19.1.5 Pollution or Environmental Liability Insurance. Collector shall carry 
Environmental or Pollution liability coverage appropriate for the waste activity contemplated in 
this Agreement, including sudden and accidental upset pollution liability for the amount of One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per claim or occurrence and One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) 
in the aggregate. 

19.2 Additional Insurance Requirements. Within five (5) days '.)fthe Effective Date, 
Collector shall provide City with certificates of insurance for all of the policies required under this 
Section 19 ("Certificates"), excluding the required worker's compensatior: insurance. With the 
exception of the worker's compensation insurance, all of the insurance po:icies required in this 
Section 19 shall: provide that the policy will not be cancelled, allowed to expire, or materially 
reduced in coverage without at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice, or ten (I 0) days' in the 
case of non-payment of premium by Collector ( as per insurance industry star:dard), to City of such 
cancellation, expiration, or reduction and each policy shall be endorsed to state such; name City, 
and City's Agents as additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of automobiles owned, 
leased, hired, or borrowed by or on behalf of Collector or operations performed by or on behalf of 
the Collector to perform the Services including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in 
connection with the Services or operations by endorsement; be primary, with respect to any 
insurance or self-insurance programs covering City or City's Agents and any insurance or self
insurance maintained by City or City's Agents shall be excess of Collector's insurance and shall 
not contribute to it; and contain standard separation of insured provisions. 

19.3 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductbles or self-insured 
retentions must be declared to and approved by City. At the option of City, either the insurer shall 
reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to City and City's 
Agents, or Collector shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to City guaranteeing payment 
of loss related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses. 

19.4 Verification of Coverage. Before the Services commence, Collector shall furnish 
City with original Certificates and endorsements affecting coverage required by this Section 19. 
The endorsements shall be on forms approved by the City which contain 2.ll of the information 
required in Section 19. 

19.5 Subcontractors. Collector shall include all subcontractors as additional insured 
under its policies or shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. 
All coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all the requirements stated in this Section 19. 

13 

Page 226



Said insurance shall protect C,ollector and City from any claim for damages for bodily injury, 
including accidental death, as well as from any claim for property damage which may arise from 
the Services, whether such operations be by Collector itself, or by its agents, employees, 
contractors or sub-grantees. Copies of the policies or endorsements evidencing the above insurance 
coverage shall be filed with the City Clerk. All of the following endorsements are required to be 
made a part of the insurance policies required by this Agreement. 

19.6 Increase in Coverage Requirements. The limits for the insurance coverage 
required under this Section 19 and the ratings required for insurance companies shall be subject to 
review and approval by the City Attorney every year mid may be increased a: that time, at the City 
Attorney's discretion, to match the coverage provided by the City's own liability insurance policy. 

Section 20. Title to Solid Waste. All Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Organic Waste collected 
pursuant to this Agreement shall remain the property of the Customer until such time as it is 
collected for disposal. It is expressly understood that all Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Organic 
Waste collected under this Agreement becomes the property of Collector upon collection, subject 
to the requirement of delivery to an appropriate disposal site. Collector is he~eby granted the right 
to retain, dispose of, and otherwise use such Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Organic Waste, or any 
part thereof, in any fashion or for any lawful purpose desired by Collector, and to retain any benefit 
or profit resulting therefrom. Solid Waste which is disposed of at a disposal site shall become the 
property of the owner or operator of the disposal site once deposited there by Collector. 

Section 21. Rights of City to Perform During an Emergency. Should Collector, for any reason 
whatsoever, excluding a Force Majeure as defined in Section 11.2, be unable to perform any of 
the Services required by this Agreement, for a period of more than seventy-two (72) hours, and 
the City Manager reasonably finds that the resulting accumulation of Refuse in City endangers or 
menaces the public health, safety or welfare, then, City shall have the right to temporarily take 
possession of and use Collector's Equipment to carry out Collector's ooligations under this 
Agreement, upon twenty-four (24) hour prior written notice to Collector. Collector agrees that in 
such event it will fully cooperate with City to affect such a transfer of possession for City's use. 

Collector agrees that, in such event, City may take temporary possessioi: of and use all said 
Equipment and facilities without paying Collector any rental or other charge, provided that when 
City takes possession of Collector's Equipment and facilities under this Section 21, City shall 
assume complete responsibility for the proper and normal use of such Equ:pment and facilities. 
City agrees that it shall immediately relinquish possession of all of the above-mentioned property 
to Collector upon receipt of written notice from Collector stating it is able to resume its normal 
responsibility under this Agreement. 

Section 22. Customer Confidentiality. Collector shall strictly observe and protect the right of 
privacy of the Customers. Information identifying individual Customers, or the composition or 
contents of a Customer's Refuse, shall not be revealed to m1y person, governmental unit, private 
agency or company, unless upon the authority of a court of law, by sutute, or upon valid 
authorization of the Customer. This provision shall not be construed to predude Collector from 
preparing, participating in, or assisting in the preparation of waste characterization studies or waste 

14 

Page 227



stream analyses which may be required by AB 93 9 or SB I 3 83. 

Collector shall not market or distribute, without City's advance written consent, which City may 
withhold in its sole and absolute discretion, mailing lists with the names or addresses of Customers. 

The rights accorded Customers pursuant to this Section shall be in addition to any other privacy 
right accorded Customers pursuant to federal or state law. 

Section 23. Reports and Adverse Information. 

23.1 Reports. Within ninety (90) days after the close of Ccllector's fiscal year, 
Collector shall submit a written annual report, in a form approved by City, including, but not 
limited to, the following information: 

23.1.1 A report on City's progress in meeting and maintaining its ability to meet 
its goals under AB 939 and SB 1383 as applied to the Franchise Area, along with any 
recommended changes. Collector shall also provide the City's Public Works Director with 
quarterly reports on the quantity (by weight) of all Commercial Solid Waste, Residential Solid 
Waste, Recyclables, and Organic Waste collected. 

23.1.2 A list of Collector's officers and members of its board of directors. 

23.1.3, A list of stockholders or other equity investors holding five percent (5%) or 
more of the voting interest in Collector and any subsidiaries. 

23.1.4 The most current annual audited financial statement, upon request. To the 
extent permitted by the Public Records Act, this document shall remain confidential. 

23.1.5 A current financial statement, upon request. 

23.2 Adverse Information. Collector shall provide City two (2) copies of all reports, 
or other material adversely affecting this Agreement, which Collector submits to: the State or 
federal Environmental Protection Agency; the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery; 
or any other federal, State, or local agency. Copies shall be submitted to City simultaneously with 
Collector's filing of such matters with said agencies. Collector's routing correspondence to said 
agencies need not be automatically submitted to City but shall be made available to City upon 
written request. 

Collector shall submit to City copies of all pleadings, applications, notifications, communications 
and documents of any kind, submitted by Collector to any federal, state and local courts, regulatory 
agencies and other government bodies relating to Collector's performance of Services pursuant to 
this Agreement, as well as copies of all decisions, correspondence and actions by such agencies. 
Any confidential data exempt from public disclosure shall be retained in confidence by City or its 
authorized agents and shall only be made available for public inspections, ao required by law. 

15 

Page 228



Collector shall submit to City such other information or reports in such forn:.s and at such times as 
City may reasonably request or require. 

All reports and records required under this, or any other section herein shall be furnished to City 
at the sole expense of Collector. 

23.3 Failure to Report. The refusal, failure, or neglect of Collector to file any report 
required may be deemed a material breach of this Agreement if not corrected by Collector within 
ninety (90) days, and may subject Collector to all remedies, legal or equitable, which are available 
to City under this Agreement or otherwise. 

Section 24. Bonds and Security. 

24.1 Performance Bonds. Contemporaneously with the execution of this Agreement, 
Collector shall secure and execute a performance bond to be held by the City (the "Performance 
Bond") to ensure performance of Collector in an amount equal to twenty-five percent (25%) of the 
City's estimate of the Contractor's annual gross revenue under the Agreement. The Performance 
Bond shall be on terms and in a form acceptable to the City Attorney anc shall be issued by a 
California admitted insurer. The Performance Bond shall serve as security for the faithful 
performance by Collector of all the provisions and obligations of this Agreement. 

Thirty (30) days following Collector's failure to pay City an amount owed under this Agreement, 
if ever, the Performance Bond may be assessed by City upon five (5) days prior written notice to 
Collector for purposes including, but not limited to: 

A. Failure of Collector to pay City any sums due under the terms of the 
Agreement. 

B. Reimbursement of costs borne by City to correct violations of this Agreement, after 
five (5) days' advance written notice to Collector. 

C. Monetary remedies or damages assessed against Collector d·1e to a breach of this 
Agreement. 

Section 25. Breach of Agreement. 

25.1 Determination of Breach. If the City Manager reasonably determines that 
Collector's performance pursuant to this Agreement has not been in conformity with reasonable 
industry standards obtained in similar cities in Central California, the provisions of this Agreement, 
the requirements of the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery, including, but not 
limited to, requirements for source reduction and recycling (as to the waste stream subject to this 
Agreement) or any other applicable federal, state or local law or regulation, including but not 
limited to the laws governing transfer, storage or disposal of Hazardous Waste, the City Manager 
may advise Collector in writing of such deficiencies. If Collector commits a material breach of 
this Agreement ("Breach"), City may terminate this Agreement, impose Liquidated Damages, or 
avail itself of any and all remedies set forth in Section 26 of this Agreement, in addition to all other 

16 

Page 229



remedies available to the City in Jaw or equity. 

25.2 Events that Constitute a Breach. A Breach includes but is not limited to the 
following: 

25.2.1 Misrepresentation. Collector commits, or attempts to commit, any fraud, 
intentional material misrepresentation or deceit upon the City in relation to this Agreement or in 
the statements or materials submitted to City by Collector in connection with this Agreement as of 
the time the representation or disclosure is made. 

25.2.2 Seizure or Attachment of Equipment. There is a seizure or attachment 
( other than a prejudgment attachment) of, or levy affecting possession on, the operating Equipment 
of Collector, including without limit its vehicles, maintenance or office facilities, or any part 
thereof of such proportion as to impair Collector's ability to perform under this Agreement and 
which cannot he released, bonded, or otherwise lifted within forty-eight (48) hours excluding 
weekends and City-approved holidays. 

25.2.3 Collector Bankruptcy. Collector files a voluntary petition for debt relief 
under any applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, debtor relief, or other similar law now or hereafter 
in effect, or consents to the appointment of or taking of possession by a receiver, liquidator, 
assignee ( other than as a part of a transfer of equipment no longer useful to Collector or necessary 
for this Agreement), trustee ( other than as security for an obligation under a deed of trust), 
custodian, sequestrator, or similar official of Collector for a part of Collecto:' s operating assets or 
any substantial part of Collector's property, or shall make any general assignment for the benefit 
of Collector's creditors, or shall fail generally to pay Collector's debts as they become due. 

25.2.4 Court Order or Decree. Any court having jurisdiction enters a decree or 
order for relief with respect to Collector, in any involuntary case brought under any bankruptcy, 
insolvency, debtor relief, or similar law now or hereafter in effect, or Collector consents to or fails 
to oppose any such proceeding, or any such court enters a decree or order appointing a receiver, 
liquidator, assignee, custodian, trustee, sequestrator, or similar official of Collector or for any part 
of Collector's operating equipment or assets, or order the winding up or liq:iidation of the affairs 
of Collector. 

25.2.5 Failure to Notify City. Collector fails to notify City in a timely manner of 
any receipt of notice of violation or official communication from those regulatory agencies 
regulating Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Organic Waste collection, transport, processing, or 
disposal activities. 

25.2.6 Lapse of Financial Requirement. If Collector fails to provide or maintain 
in full force and in effect, the following: any of the insurance policies required pursuant to Section 
16 herein; the full amount of the Performance Bond required under Section 24.1 herein; or the full 
amount of the Payment Bond required under Section 24.2 herein. 

25.2. 7 Regulatory Violation. Collector violates any orders or filings of any 
regulatory body having jurisdiction over Collector relative to this Agreement, provided Collector 

17 

Page 230



may contest any such orders or filings by appropriate proceedings conducted in good faith, in 
which case no breach of this Agreement shall be deemed to have occurred. 

25.2.8 Cessation of Services. Collector ceases to provide collection, 
transportation, processing, or recycling services as required under this Agreement for a period of 
three (3) consecutive business days or more, for any reason within the contr-)1 of Collector. 

25.2.9 Failure to Meet Payment or Reporting Requirements. Collector fails to 
make any payment required under this Agreement or refuses to provide City with required 
information, reports, or records in a timely manner as provided for in the Agreement. 

25.2.10 Violation of AB 939 or SB 1383. Any other act or omission by Collector, 
which materially violates the terms, conditions or requirements of AB 939 and SB 1383 as may be 
amended from time to time; or any other directive rule or regulation issued thereunder; unless the 
violation is corrected or remedied within the time set on the written notice of violation; or if 
Collector cannot reasonably correct or remedy the violation within the time set forth in such notice, 
Collector commences to correct or remedy such violation within the time set forth in such notice 
and diligently and in good faith continues to cure, correct, or remedy such violation thereafter. 

25.2.11 Unremedied Acts or Omissions. Collector commi,s any act or omission 
which violates the terms, conditions, or requirements of this Agreement, or any other applicable 
laws and which is not corrected or remedied within the time set in the written notice of the violation 
or, if Collector cannot reasonably correct or remedy the breach within the time set forth in such 
notice, Collector should fail to commence to correct or remedy such violation within the time set 
forth in such notice and diligently effect such correction or remedy thereafter. 

25.2.12 Failure to Correct Breach. Collector fails to correct any Breach within 
the applicable Cure Period. 

25.3 Cure Rights. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 25 to the 
contrary, City shall provide Collector with reasonable notice of and a reasonable opportunity to 
cure any Breach of this Agreement during the time periods set forth below (the "Cure Period"). 
Collector shall begin cure of any Breach as soon as it becomes aware of the Breach, whether 
discovered by Collector or through notice from the City. Upon becoming cognizant of the Breach, 
Collector shall proceed to cure such Breach as follows: 

25.3.1 Immediately, if the City determines the Breach endangers the health, safety, 
or welfare of the public; or 

25.3.2 Within fifteen (15) days of giving or rece1vmg n:itice of the Breach, 
provided that if the nature of the breach is such that it will reasonably require more than fifteen 
(15) days to cure, Collector shall have such additional time as is reasonably needed, no longer than 
thirty (30) days to expeditiously complete a cure. During any Cure Period, Collector shall provide 
City weekly written status updates infomling City of Collector's progress curing the Breach. 

18 

Page 231



25.4 Right to Appeal. Collector may submit a response to clairr:s of Breach contained 
in any written notice from the City within ten (I 0) days ofreceipt of such notice. The City Manager 
shall review Collector's response and refer the matter to the City Council or decide the matter and 
notify Collector of that decision, in writing. A decision or order of City Manager shall be final and 
binding on Collector. Unless a governing ordinance or statute provides otherwise, if the Collector 
seeks further relief, the Collector shall file a petition for writ of mandate in superior court pursuant 
to Code of Civil Procedure Sections 1094.5 and 1094.6 within ninety (90) calendar days of the 
date of the decision or order. 

Section 26. Termination, Liquidated Damages and other Remedies. 

26.1 Termination. In the event Collector commits a Breach of this Agreement, City 
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement ("Termination"). 

26.2 Liquidated Damages. 

26.2.1 City finds, and Collector agrees, that as of the Effective Date of this 
Agreement, it is impractical, if not impossible to reasonably ascertain the extent of damages which 
will be incurred by City as a result of a Breach by Collector of its obligations under this Agreement. 
Some reasons for the impracticability of ascertaining damages include but are not limited to: the 
difficulty in estimating the substantial damage that results to Customers who are denied Solid 
Waste disposal services or denied quality or reliable service; and the difficul:y valuing the damage 
caused from the inconvenience, anxiety, frustrations and deprivation of the benefits provided under 
the Agreement to individual members of the general public for whose benefit this Agreement 
exists. The Parties agree that these damages manifest in subjective ways and in varying degrees of 
intensity and are incapable of measurement in precise monetary terms. The Parties agree that any 
remedy for such breaches, including the te1mination of this Agreement are, at best, a means of 
future correction and not remedies, which can adequately make the public whole for past breaches. 

26.2.2 The City Council may, at its discretion, assess liquidated damages not to 
exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000) per day, for each calendar day that the Services 
are not provided by Collector in accordance with this Agreement for a period not to exceed forty
five (45) days ("Liquidated Damages"). In addition, the City Council rr:ay order assessment 
against the Performance Bond and Payment Bonds required by Section 24 as set fotlh herein, the 
termination of this Agreement, or both. 

26.2.3 The City finds, and Collector acknowledges and agrees that the above
described liquidated damages provision represents a reasonable sum in light of all the 
circumstances. Said liquidated damage sums shall be applicable to each calendar day of delay 
during which Collector has been found by the City Council to be in Breach pursuant to Section 25. 
Collector shall pay any Liquidated Damages assessed by the City Council ½ithin thirty (30) days 
after they are assessed. If they are not paid within the thirty-day (30) period, City may withdraw 
said amount from the Performance Bond or Payment Bond, as appropriate, pursuant to Section 24, 
order the Termination of the Franchise granted by this Agreement, or both. 

19 

Page 232



26.3 Remedies Not Exclusive. The right of Termination or to impose Liquidated 
Damages are in addition to all other rights of City upon a failure of Collector to perform its 
obligations under this Agreement, including but not limited to the rights provided in Section 27. 

Section 27. City's Additional Remedies. In the event Collector commits a Breach of this 
Agreement, and the City has tenninated this Agreement, in addition to the remedies set forth in 
Section 26, City shall have the following rights: 

27.1 Rental of Collector Equipment. Notwithstanding the provisions set forth in 
Section 21 of this Agreement, City shall have the right to rent or lease Equipment from Collector 
for the purpose of collecting, transp011ing and disposing of Refuse which Collector is obligated to 
collect, transport and dispose of pursuant to this Agreement, for a period not to exceed six ( 6) 
months. If such Equipment is not owned by Collector, Collector shall assign to City, to the extent 
possible, the right to possess the Equipment. If City exercises its rights under this Section, City 
shall pay to Collector the reasonable rental value of the Equipment so taken for the period of City's 
possession thereof. 

27.2 Right to License others to Provide Disposal Services for the City. City shall 
have the right to license others to perform the Services otherwise to be performed by Collector 
hereunder, or to perform such Services itself. 

27.3 Right to Other Damages. City shall have the right to obtain damages or injunctive 
relief. The Parties recognize and agree that in the event of Breach by Collector, City may suffer 
irreparable injmy and incalculable damages sufficient to support injunctive relief, to enforce the 
provisions of this Agreement by Collector and to enjoin the Breach thereof. 

Section 28. Compliance with Applicable Law. 

Collector agrees that it shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and 
regulations, expressly including the provisions set forth in the Code which are applicable to the 
work or business in which it is herein franchised, and with any and all amendments to such 
applicable provisions during the Term. 

Section 29. Assignment. 

The Franchise granted by this Agreement shall not be transferred, sold, hypothecated, sublet or 
assigned, nor shall any of the rights or privileges herein be hypothecated, leased, assigned, sold or 
transferred, either in whole or in part nor shall title thereto, either legal or equitable, or any right, 
interest or property therein, pass to or vest in any person, except Collector, either by act of the 
Collector or by operation oflaw, without the prior written consent of City expressed by a resolution 
or ordinance approved by the City Council, which may be withheld for any reason, conditioned or 
granted in the City's sole discretion. Any attempt by Collector to assign this Franchise without the 
consent of City shall be null and void. 

If Collector attempts to transfer the Franchise prior to obtaining City consent, all of the profits or 
twenty-five percent (25%) of the gross revenues received pursuant to the Services provided under 

20 

Page 233



this Agreement, from the date of attempted transfer until the date of City consent, whichever is 
greater, shall be returned to City. 

Section 30 . Franchise Transfer: Fees. 

Any application for a Franchise transfer shall be made in a manner prescribed by the City Manager. 
The application shall include a transfer fee in an amount to be set by the City by resolution or 
ordinance of the City Council, to cover the cost of all direct and indirect adr:iinistrative expenses, 
including consultants and attorneys, necessary to adequately analyze the application and to 
reimburse City for all direct and indirect expenses. In the event that City's actual costs exceed the 
amount of the transfer fee, Collector shall reimburse City for all additional costs which are not 
covered by the transfer fee, up to, but not exceeding Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00). Bills shall 
be supported with evidence of the expense or cost incurred. The applicant, for any such transfer, 
shall pay such bills within thirty (30) days of receipt. The Franchise transfer fees detailed in this 
Section are over and above any franchise fees specified in the other portions of this Agreement. 

Section 31. City Must Approve Change in Control of Collector. 

City consent is required for any change in control of Collector. Collector is a corporation, and any 
acquisition of more than forty-five percent ( 45%) of Collector's voting stock by a person, or group 
of persons acting in concert shall be deemed a change in control. Any change in control of the 
Collector occurring without prior City approval shall constitute a material breach of this 
Agreement. 

Section 32. Amendment to Agreement. 

This Agreement is intended to cany out City's obligations to comply with the provisions of AB 
939 and SB 1383 and implemented by regulations of the Department of Resources Recycling and 
Recovery ("Regulations"), as they may from time to time be amended. In tl:e event that AB 939, 
SB 13 83 or other state or federal laws or regulations enacted after the Effective Date, prevent or 
preclude compliance with one or more provisions of this Agreement, such provisions of this 
Agreement shall be modified or suspended as may be necessary to comp;y with such state or 
federal laws or regulations. Except for Rate adjustments made pursuant to Section 9, this 
Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written agreement duly authorized and executed 
by both the City and Collector. 

Section 33. General Provisions. 

33.1 Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California. Venue for all legal proceedings arising from 
this Agreement shall be in the Superior Court for the County of Stanislaus in the State of California. 
In the event of litigation in a U.S. District Court, exclusive venue shall lie in the Eastern District 
of the State of California. • 

33.2 Notices. Any notice or communication required hereunder between City and 
Collector must be in writing, and may be given either personally, by facsimile (with original 

21 

Page 234



forwarded by regular U.S. Mail), by registered or ce Itified mail (return receipt requested), or by 
Federal Express, UPS or other similar couriers providing overnight delivery. If personally 
delivered, a notice shall be deemed to have been given when delivered to the Party to whom it is 
addressed. If given by facsimile transmission, a notice or communication s!Bll be deemed to have 
been given and received upon actual physical receipt of the entire document by the receiving 
Party's facsimile machine. Notices transmitted by facsimile after 5:00 p.m. on a normal business 
day or on a Saturday, Sunday or holiday shall be deemed to have been given and received on the 
next normal business day. If given by registered or certified mail, such notice or communication 
shall be deemed to have been given and received on the first to occur of actual receipt by any of 
the addressees designated below as the party to whom notices are to be sent or five (5) days after 
a registered or ce 1 tified letter containing such notice, properly addressed, w:th postage prepaid, is 
deposited in the United States mail. If given by Federal Express or similar courier, a notice or 
communication shall be deemed to have been given and received on the da~e delivered as shown 
on a receipt issued by the courier. Any Party hereto may at any time, by giving ten (I 0) days 
written notice to the other Party hereto, designate any other address in substitution of the address 
to which such notice or communication shall be given. Such notices or communications shall be 
given to the Parties at their addresses set forth below: 

To City: 

With courtesy copy to: 

To Collector: Gilton Solid Waste Management, Inc. 
755 S. Yosemite Ave. 
Oakdale CA 9536 I 
Attention: President 

33.3 Severability. If this Agreement in its entirety is determined by a court to be invalid 
or unenforceable, this Agreement shall automatically terminate as of the date of final entry of 
judgment. If any provision of this Agreement shall be determined by a court to be invalid or 
unenforceable, or if any provision of this Agreement is rendered invajd or unenforceable 
according to the terms of any federal or state statute, which becomes effective after the Effective 
Date, the remaining provisions shall continue in full force and effect and shall be construed to give 
effect to the intent of this Agreement. 

33.4 Exhibits Incorporated. The following "Exhibits" are attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference: 

Exhibit Designation 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Exhibit C 
Exhibit D 
Exhibit E 
Exhibit F 
Exhibit G 

Exhibit Title 
Definitions 
Franchise Area 
Rates 
Bulky Item Collection Program 
C&D Debris Diversion Policy 
Specified E-Waste 
SB 13 83 Additional Services 

22 

Page 235



33.5 Time of Essence. Time is of the essence for the Agreement and each provision 
contained within and each provision is made and declared to be a material, necessary and essential 
part of the Agreement. 

33.6 Authority. All Parties to the Agreement warrant and represent that they have the 
power and authority to enter into the Agreement and the names, titles and capacities herein stated 
on behalf of any entities, persons, states or firms represented or purportec to be represented by 
such entities, persons, states or firms and that all former requirements necessary or required by the 
state or federal law in order to cuter into the Agreement. By entering into ti-is Agreement, neither 
Party hereto shall have breached the terms or conditions of any other contract or agreement to 
which such Party is obligated, which such breach would have a material effuct hereon. 

33. 7 Drafting and Ambiguities. Each Party acknowledges that it has reviewed this 
Agreement with its own legal counsel, and based upon the advice of that counsel, freely entered 
into this Agreement. Each Party has participated fully in the review and revision of the Agreement. 
Any rule of construction that ambiguities are to be resolved against the d~afting party does not 
apply in interpreting this Agreement. 

33.8 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with its specific references, 
attachments and Exhibits, constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties with respect to the subject 
matters hereof, and supersedes any and all prior negotiations, understanding and agreements with 
respect hereto, wh_ether oral or written. 

33.9 Supersedes Prior Agreement. It is the intention of the Parties hereto that this 
Agreement shall supersede any prior agreements, discussions, commitments, representations, or 
agreements, written, electronic or oral, between the Parties with respect to the subject matter of 
this Agreement. 

33.10 Captions. The captions of this Agreement are for convenience and reference only 
and the words contained therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify, or aid in the 
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this Agreement. 

33.11 Mandatory and Permissive. "Shall" and "will" and "agrees" are mandatory. 
"May" and '~can" are permissive. 

33.12 Successors and Assigns. All representations, covenants, and warranties 
specifically set forth in this Agreement, by or on behalf of, or for the beneft of, any or all of the 
Parties hereto, shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of such Party, its successors and 
assigns. 

33.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed simultane0usly and, in several 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but which together shall constitute one 
and the same instrument. 

23 

Page 236



33.14 Attorney's Fees and Costs. If any action at law or in equity, including action for 
declaratory relief, is brought to enforce or interpret provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing 
Party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees and costs, which may be set by the court in the 
same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose, in addition to any other relief to which 
such Party may be entitled. 

33.15 Necessary Acts and Further Assurances. The Parties shall at their own cost and 
expense execute and deliver such further documents and instruments and shall take such other 
actions as may be reasonably required or appropriate to evidence or carry out the intent and 
purposes of the Agreement. 

33.16 Waiver. No covenant, term, or condition or the breach thereof shall be deemed 
waived, except by written consent of the Party against whom the waiver is claimed, and any waiver 
of the breach of any covenant, te lm, or condition shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any 
preceding or succeeding breach of the same or any other covenant, term, or condition. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been entered into by and between City and 
Collector as of the Effective Date. 

CITY OF LIVINGSTON 

By: _________ _ 
Christopher Lopez 
Interim City Manager 

Date: ----------

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 

By: -----------Roy C. Santos, City Attorney 

Date: ----------

GIL TON SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT, 
INC. 

By:----------
Richard Gilton, President 

Date: ----------

24 

Page 237



EXHIBIT A 
Definitions 

Capitalized words in the Agreement shall have the following meanings: 

I. "AB" shall mean an Assembly Bill of the California Legislature. 

2. "AB 341" shall mean the amendments to the California Integrated Waste Management 
Act of 1989 (Division 30 of the California Public Resources Code), Chapter 476, as 
amended, supplemented, superseded, and replaced from time to time. 

3. "AB 939" shall mean the California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989 
(Division 30 of the California Public Resources Code), as amended, supplemented, 
superseded, and replaced from time to time. 

4. "AB 1826" shall mean the Assembly Bill approved by the Governor of the State of 
California on September 28, 2014, which added Chapter 12.9 (commencing with Section 
42649.8) to Part 3 of Division 30 of the Public Resources Code, relating to Solid Waste, as 
amended, supplemented, superseded, and replaced from time to time. 

5. "Agreement" shall mean this Franchise Agreement between the City and Collector, 
including all exhibits and future amendments. 

6. "Bin" or "Bins" shall mean receptacles provided by Collector for customers which are 
picked up by Collection trucks by means of a front-loading apparatus. 

7. "Bulky Items" shall mean large items of Solid Waste such as appliances, furniture, 
branches, and other oversize wastes whose large size precludes or complicates their 
placement in containers or handling by normal collection, processing, or disposal methods, 
but excluding Excluded Waste; items larger than five cubic yards or heavier than 500 
pounds; and items of excessive size or density, such as engine blocks, spas, boats, and 
trailers. A list of acceptable and unacceptable Bulky Items is attached as Exhibit D. 

8. "Breach" shall be as defined in Section 26.1 of this Agreement. 

9. "Cart" or "Carts" shall mean industry standard receptacles for disposal of Solid Waste, 
Organic Waste, and Recyclables, in a range of sizes. A Cart has wheels, a handle for 
ease of movement, and a light-fitting, attached lid and is designed to be dumped manually 
or mechanically into a Solid Waste collection vehicle. 

10. "Certificates" shall be as defined in Section 19.2 of this Agreemen:. 

1 I. "City" shall mean the City of Livingston, Merced County, State of California. 

12. "City's Agents" shall be as defined in Section 18.1 of this Agreen:ent. 

Page 238



13. "City Attorney" shall mean the city attorney for the City of Livingston. 

14. "City Council" shall mean the City Council of the City of Livingston. 

15. "City Engineer" shall mean the city engineer for the City of Livingston. 

16. "City Manager" shall mean the city manager for the City of Livingston. 

17. "Claim"shall be as defined in Section 18.1 of this Agreement. 

18. "Collector" shall be as defined in the Preamble to this Agreement. 

19. "Construction_ and Demolition Debris" or "C&D Debris' shall nean waste building 
materials, packaging, and rubbish resulting from construction, remodeling, repair, and 
demolition operations on pavements and on houses, commercial buildings, and other 
structures, but not including any Excluded Waste. 

20. "Container" or "Containers" shall be as defined in Section 11.1 of this Agreement. 

21. Contamination Monitoring shall be monitoring for prohibited container contaminants 
and notifying generators if contamination is found. 

22. "Cure Period" shall be as defined in Section 26.3. of this Agreement. 

23. "Customer" or "Customers" shall mean an individual(s), emity or entities that 
receive any services provided by Collector pursuant to this Agreement. Customer 
shall also mean the person, organization, or corporation receiving services to which 
billing statements are sent. 

24. "Effective Date" shall be as defined in the Preamble to the Agreement. 

25. "Electronic Waste" or "E-Waste" shall mean waste containing or consisting of 
electronic devices and components, such as computers, monitors, terminals, computer 
cards and components, computer peripheral devices, main frame computers, 
keyboards, mice, printers and scanners, mini-systems, power supply units, servers, 
connectors/cables, storage discs, consumer electronics, printed circuit boards, 
televisions, chips and components, cellular and other phones, telecommunications 
equipment, and fax machines and copiers, but not including Excbded Waste. 

26. "Equipment" shall mean Collector's vehicles, tools, and equipn:ent for the Services 
for which it is responsible under this Agreement. 

27. "Excluded Waste" shall mean Hazardous Waste; Medical and Infectious Waste; liquid 
wastes; volatile, corrosive, biomedical, infectious, biohazardous, an:! toxic substances or 
material; waste that Collector reasonably believes would, as a result of or upon disposal, 
be a violation of local, state, or federal law, regulation, or ordinance, including land use 

Page 239



restrictions or conditions; waste that cannot be disposed of in Class III landfills; waste that 
in Collector's reasonable opinion would present a significant risk to human health or the 
environment, cause a nuisance, or otherwise create or expose Collector or the City to 
potential liability. Excluded Waste does not include de minimis volumes or concentrations 
of waste of a type and amount normally found in residential Solid Waste after 
implementation of programs for the safe collection, recycling, treatment, and disposal of 
Household Hazardous Wastes in compliance with Sections 41500 and 41802 of the Public 
Resources Code. 

28. "Exhibits" shall be as defined in Section 34.4. of this Agreement. 

29. "Force Majeure" shall be as defined in Section 11.2. of this Agreement. 

30. "Franchise Area'' shall be as defined in Section 4.1. of this Agreement. 

31. "Franchise Fees" shall mean both the fees retained by City and paid by Collector to City 
as defined in Section 16.1. 

32. "Hazardous Waste" shall mean a waste, or combination of wastes, which, because of 
its quantity, concentration, or physical, chemical, or infectious characteristics, may do 
either of the followjng: 

a. Cause, or significantly contribute to, an increase in mortality or an increase in 
serious irreversible or incapacitating reversible illness. 

b. Pose a substantial present or potential hazard to human health or environment when 
improperly treated, stored, transported, or disposed of, or otherwise managed. 
(Public Resources Code Section 40141.) 

33. "HDPE (High Density Polyethylene)" shall mean a recyclable plastic that includes, but is 
not limited to, milk jugs. 

34. High Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facility shall mean a facility that is in 
compliance with the repo1ting requirements of SB 1383 and meets or exceeds an annual 
average mixed waste organic content recovery rate of 50 percent (50%) between January 
I, 2022, and December 31, 2024, and 75 percent (75%) after January I, 2025, as 
calculated pursuant to SB 1383 for Organic Waste received from the Mixed Waste. 

35. "Household Hazardous Waste" shall maintain the meaning set forth in Title 14, California 
Code of Regulations, Section 18502 or successor laws and regulations as may be amended 
from time to time. 

36. "Liquidated Damages" shall be as defined in Section 27.2.1 of this Agreement. 

37. "Medical and Infectious Waste" shall mean biomedical waste generated at residences in 
excess of legal limits or at hospitals, public or private medical clinics, dental 

Page 240



offices, research laboratories, pharmaceutical industries, blood banks, mortuaries, 
veterinary facilities, and other similar establishments. 

38. "Notice or Appeal" shall be as defined in Section 26.4 of this Agreement. 

39. "Organic Waste" shall be all tree and plant trimmings, grass cuttings, dead plants, weeds, 
leaves, branches, and similar plant materials, (but not including palm fronds or items longer 
than five (5) feet or with a diameter greater than six (6) inches), food, food scraps, food 
soiled paper, wood waste, paper and cardboard. 

40. "Party" or "Parties" shall be as defined in the Preamble to this Agreement. 

41. "Payment Bond" shall be as defined in Section 25.2 of this Agreement. 

42. "Performance Bond" shall be as defined in Section 25.1 of this Agreement. 

43. "PET (Polyethylene Terephthalate)" PET means a recyclable plastic that includes, but 
is not limited to, 2-liter soda bottles. 

44. "Rates" shall mean the rates charged by Collector or City to Customers within the 
City as set forth in Section 9 .I. 

45. "Recitals" shall be as defined- in Section I of this Agreement. 

46. "Records" shall be as defined in Section 13 or this Agreement. 

4 7. "Recyclable Materials" or "Recyclables" shall mean those ma:erials that may be 
separated on a commercially reasonable basis from Solid Waste and returned to the 
economic mainstream in the fonn of raw material for new, rei:sed, or reconstituted 
products which meet the quality standards necessary to be used in the marketplace. 
Subject to mutually agreed revision by the Parties, Recyclable Materials or Recyclables 
include, newspaper (including inserts, coupons, and store advcl liscments), corrugated 
card-board, mixed waste paper (including office paper, computer pcper, magazines, junk 
mail, catalogs, Kraft bags and Kraft paper, paperboard, egg containers, phone books, 
brown paper, grocery bags, colored paper, construction paper, envelopes, legal pad 
backings, shoe boxes, and cereal and other similar food boxes), glass containers 
(including colored glass bottles and jars), aluminum (including beverage containers, foil, 
food containers, and small scrap metal), plastic milk and juice containers, steel or tin cans, 
small scrap metal, PETE and HDPE plastic containers (natural and colored), used motor 
oil and oil filters, and any other commercially viable recyclable materials mutually agreed 
to by Collector and the City. 

48. "Refuse" shall mean general term for waste, including Solid Waste, 

49. "Regulations" shall be as defined- in Section 33 of this Agreement. 

Page 241



50. "Roll-Off Box" shall mean a container, with a minimum capacity of ten cubic yards, 
designed for mechanical emptying with a vehicle, and used for the storage and 
transportation of solid waste, Organic Waste, recyclables, and other commodities. 

51. Route Review shall mean inspection and compliance review of a random sample to 
determine compliance and generate an electronic or written recod for each inspection. 

52. "SB 1383" shall mean Senate Bill 1383, Short-Lived Climate Pollutants (SLCP): 
Organic Waste Methane Emissions Reductions ("SB 1383"), establishing a statewide 
target to decrease methane emissions at landfills by reducing the disposal of organic 
waste by 50% below 2014 levels by 2022 and by 75% below 2014 levels by 2025. 

53. "Services" shall be as defined in Section 5.1 of this Agreement. 

54. "Solid Waste" shall mean and include all forms of residential and commercial 
waste generated within City limits and intended for disposal. Solid Waste as 
defined in Public Resources Code, Section 40191 and regulations promulgated 
thereunder and without limitation includes all putrescible and non-putrescible 
solid, semisolid, and liquid wastes, including garbage, trash, Refuse, rubbish, 
ashes, industrial wastes, demolition and construction wastes, abandoned vehicles 
and parts thereof, discarded home and industrial appliances, dewatered, treated, or 
chemically fixed sewage sludge which is not hazardous waste, manure, vegetable 
or animal solid or semisolid wastes, and other discarded solid and semisolid wastes. 
Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, "Solid Waste" may include de 
minim is volumes or concentrations of waste of a type and amount normally found in 
residential solid waste after implementation of programs for the safe collection, recycling, 
treatment, and disposal ofHousehold Hazardous Waste in compliance with Sections 
41500 and 41802 of the Resources Code. For the purposes of this Agreement the 
Collector may, but is not required, to collect, haul, dispose or recycle any liquid wastes, 
abandoned vehicles, and parts thereof, industrial appliances; dewatered, treated or 
chemically fixed sewage sludge or manure. 

55. "State" shall mean the State of California. 

56. "Term" shall be as defined in Section 7 of this Agreement. 

57. "Termination" shall he as defined in Section 27.1 of this Agreement. 

58. "Universal Waste" shall mean any waste matter which the State of California classifies 
as 'universal waste,' including, but not limited to, items and materials listed in 22 CCR 
6626 I. 9, as it may be amended, as well as any items listed below not classified by the 
State of California as 'universal waste.' Universal Waste includes, but is not limited 
to, the following: 

• E-Waste; 
• Batteries ( except automobile batteries); 
• Thermostats; 

Page 242



• 

• 
• 
• 

• 

Lamps with fluorescent tubes, high intensity discharge lamps, sodium vapor 
lamps, and other lamps with hazardous waste characteristics; 
Cathode ray tubes; 
Aerosol cans; 
Mercury-containing items, including light switches, pressure gauges, and 
thermometers; 
Appliances, devices, and other objects containing electronic components, including 
(but not limited to) computers, computer monitors, cellular telephones, copiers, fax 
machines, DVD players, VCRs, and televisions. 

Page 243



irN'W1,")t)t 

............... t 

t--.'---1 S~ .. - ---.....1 

EXHIBIT B 
Franchise Area 

I '-' 

Page 244



Exhibit 1 

Gilton Solid Waste Management~ Inc. 
Revised Proposal for City of Livingston 

Agreement for Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials, & Organic Waste Collection Services 

Based on Increased Passthrough costs 03/01/2024 

STANDARD SERVICE - WEEKLY COLLECTION ALL CONTAINERS 

Tw0 (2) Carts (1,) MSW/ Recycle .(1~ Organks,, 
96 Gallon Carts 

Basic Bundled Service 

Additional carts availble at a Monthly rate of $10.00 per cart 
Carts are replaced as needed. 

Standard Service Per Bin 

Bin Collection Monthly 
Size FrequencVt R.ate 

1 Cubic Yard 1 $67.35 
1 Cubic Yard 2 $134.65 
1 Cubic Yard 3 $201.93 
1 Cubic Yard 4 $269.21 
1 Cubic Yard 5 $336.49 
1 Cubic Yard 6 $403.85 

2 Cubic Yard 1 $134.26 
2 Cubic Yard 2 $266.1 1 
2 Cubic Yard 3 $401.23 
2 Cubic Yard 4 $535.41 
2 Cubic Yard 5 $669.59 
2 Cubic Yard 6 $803.85 

3 Cubic Yard 1 $198.90 
3 Cubic Yard 2 $376.21 
3 Cubic Yard 3 $566.86 
3 Cubic Yard 4 $764.64 
3 Cubic Yard 5 $961.43 
3 Cubic Yard 6 $1,160.33 

4 Cubic Yard 1 $254.58 
4 Cubic Yard 2 $496.10 
4 Cubic Yard 3 $775.89 
4 Cubic Yard 4 $1,025.84 
4 Cubic Yard 5 $1,276.65 
4 Cubic Yard 6 $1,452.41 

6 Cubic Yard 1 $357.95 
6 Cubic Yard 2 $697.76 
6 Cubic Yard 3 $1,067.07 
6 Cubic Yard 4 $1,419.66 
6 Cubic Yard 5 $1 ,776.83 
6 Cubic Yard 6 $2,134.78 

96 Gallon carts are available to commercial customers 
The rate for this service is $ 30 per container per month. 

Mhrthty Rate 
$35.25 

Page 245



EXHIBITD 

RESIDENTIAL BULKY ITEM COLLECTION PROGRAM 

• Scheduled by appointment only. To arrange a pickup, please call our office at (209) 527-
3781 

• Program available to residents who currently subscribe to garbage service* 
• Qualifying residents can have bulky item picked up at their home two times per year 
• Verify that items you want to set out for pick up are Acceptable Items (see lists below) 
• Once appointment for pick up has been scheduled, items must be set out in front of home 

after 6:00 p.m. the day before scheduled appointment. Place items on the street one 
foot from curb. Do NOT block sidewalks, driveways or mailboxes. Items should be at 
least 3 feet away from garbage cart 

• Do NOT place pile under low hanging wires or low hanging tree branches 
• Items set out for collection should not exceed a dimension of 6 feet tall, 6 feet wide and 6 

feet deep 
• Items will be picked up after 6:00 a.m. on scheduled pick up day 

ACCEPTABLE ITEMS 
✓ Refrigerators & Freezers - Doors taped shut or doors removed - Limit I 
✓ Washers & Dryers - Limit I of each 
✓ Water Heaters, Water Softener - drained - Limit I of each 
✓ Air Conditioning Units - Limit I 
✓ Dishwashers - Limit 1 
✓ Toilets, Sinks, Bathtubs 
✓ Hot Tubs - Limit 1 
✓ Couches, Sofas, Recliners 
✓ Table and Chairs 
✓ Dressers, Desks 
✓ Mattress, Box Springs, Bed Frame - Limit 2 
✓ Barbeques, Grills - remove propane tank 
✓ Patio Furniture 
✓ Doors 
✓ Ladders 
✓ Lawn Mowers - gas & oil removed 
✓ Bicycles 
✓ Exercise Equipment 
✓ Plywood Sheets - limit 2 
✓ Wood - limit IO pieces no longer than 8 feet 
✓ Carpet - rolled up 
✓ Dry, flattened cardboard- Bundled 

UNACCEPTABLE ITEMS 
✓ Tires 
✓ Automobile Parts 
✓ Household Garbage-No bags, boxes or containers with small items inside 

Page 246



✓ Hazardous Waste, Chemicals, Toxic Materials 
✓ Liquids, Paints, Solvents 
✓ Plate Glass 
✓ TVs 
✓ Computer Monitors 
✓ Concrete, Asphalt, Sheetrock 
✓ Construction & Demolition Debris 
✓ Fencing, Treated Wood 
✓ Yard Waste 
✓ Tree Stumps 
✓ Items Associated with Business 
✓ Dead Animals 
✓ Fluorescent Light Tubes 
✓ Sod, Dirt 
✓ Glass, Mirrors 
✓ Items Small Enough to Fit in Garbage Can 

Page 247



EXHIBITE 

Construction & Demolition Debris Policy 

The 2013 California Green Building Standards Code (CALGreen) instructs local jurisdictions to 
require contractors to develop and maintain a waste management plan, among other things, to 
verify a minimum 50 percent waste diversion. CALGreen further specifies for the WMP to be 
updated as necessary and shall be available for examination during construction. Sample WMP is 
provided in the actual CALGreen code publication under the Compliance Forms and Worksheets 
section. The California Department of Housing and Development's website also provides sample 
WMP for residential C&D projects. 

Page 248



EXHIBITF 

Acceptable E-Waste for Curbside Collection Program 

Computers 

Printers 

Copiers 

Scanners 

Fax Machines 

Telephones 

Cellular Telephones Stereos 

DVD Units 

Televisions (Cathode Ray Tubes) 

Computer Monitors 

Flat Screen Televisions 

Lap Top Computers 

Networking Equipment 

Printed Circuit Boar\ls 

Computer Servers 

Computer Main Frame 

Page 249



EXHIBITG 

SB 1383 Additional Services 

• Gilton staff to attend city public events providing outreach and education on SB 1383 
• No less than twice per year, direct mail SB 1383 requirements to both residential and 

commercial customers. Fliers will be in English, Spanish and Punjabi. 
• Annual route reviews for residential customers 
• Cart and bin labels reinforcing proper separation of materials, by listing out which 

materials are accepted inside the container, and which are not accep:ed. 
• Contamination Monitoring - contractor shall perform contamir:ation inspections by 

utilizing on-board monitoring systems or physical container inspections. 
• Cart contamination tags to inform customers of contamination issues and educate with 

solutions to resolve. 
• Procurement- Contractor to provide Organic Waste Products (OWP, such as mulch and/or 

compost) to the City, to meet the annual Target Goal issued by CalRecycle to the City for 
that reporting year. 

• Reporting - contractor will provide the data or prepare reports required to meet SB 1383 
requirements which include: 
o The number of generators that receive organic waste collection service. 
o The number of route reviews conducted for prohibited container contamination. 
o The number of times notices, violations or targeted education materials were issued to 

generators for prohibited container contaminants. 

Page 250



EXHIBIT B 

EXHIBIT B 

Franchise Area 

Page 251



AGENDA ITEM: 

MEETING DATE: 

PREPARED BY: 

STAFF REPORT 

Consideration of Resolution Authorizing the Interim City Manager to 
Execute an Agreement with HR Green, Inc. to Perform Engineering 
Services to Include Water Modelling, Development of a Water CIP, and 
Other Water Related Engineering Services as Needed 

April 16, 2024 

Christopher Lopez, Interim City Manager 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt the resolution authorizing the Interim City Manager to 
Execute an Agreement with HR Green, Inc. to perform Engineering Services to include water 
modelling, development of a water CIP, and other water related engineering services as needed. 

BACKGROUND: 

The City of Livingston provides potable water service to a population of approximately 15,448 residents 
including commercial, industrial, and public facilities within its service area boundary. The City of 
Livingston serves as the governing agency and sole purveyor of water within the City limits and 
provides water services to 2,770 metered connections based on the 202 Urban Water Management 
Plan. 

Currently, the City utilizes eight active wells including Well Nos. 8, 9, 11, 12, 13, 14, 16, 17 which 
extract groundwater from the Merced Subbasbin, while Well NO. 15 serves as a standby well source. 
The City's wells have individual capacities ranging from 800 gallons per minute (gpm) to 2,000 gpm. 
Collectively, the wells have a combined capacity of 10,900 gpm with water being distributed by a 
network of lines ranging in size from two to 16-inches in diameter. Additionally, the water system 
includes a 1.0MG welded steels storage tank used for water storage. 

The groundwater underlying the City is part of the larger San Joaquin Valley Groundwater Basin within 
the San Joaquin River Hydrologic Region. By way of background, the San Joaquin Valley Groundwater 
Basin is divided into nine subbasins, with the City extracting from the Merced subbasin, which is 
classified as a critical overdraft subbasin. 

Following the passages of the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) by California 
Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. in 2014, the County of Merced and water districts and cities within the 
Merced Subbbasin formed three Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSA) in accordance with SGMA 
of which the City of Livingston is part of the Merced Irrigation-Urban Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
(MIUGSA). The member agencies of this GSA include the Merced Irrigation District, City of Merced, 
City of Atwater, City of Livingston, Le Grand Community Services District, Plarada Community 
Services District, and Winton Water Sanitary District. The City and the MIUGSA are working 
collaboratively to achieve sustainable groundwater conditions by 2040 in accordance with SGMA. 

As defined by SGMA, "a basin is subject to critical overdraft when continuation of present water 
management practices would probably result in significant adverse overdraft related environmental, 

Page 1 of 4 

Page 252



social, or economic impacts." The Merced Subbasin is currently considered to be in a state of critical 
overdraft per the DWR Bulletin 118 Interim 2016 Update. 
Over the last year, and due to decades of lack of planning and preparation for replacement of 
infrastructure, the City has experienced an increase in the number of failures in water infrastructure. 
While the City Council adopted its first CIP in several years during the FY 23/24 Budget process, the 
lack of planning has resulted in delayed replacement of the City's infrastructure. This has resulted in 
offline wells, reduction in system pressure, and challenges with meeting daily demand for water use. 
This has also resulted in staff being reactionary and responding to emergencies, versus planning for 
system upgrades and improvements. 

Staff has identified numerous challenges and during peak daily demand situations, the system is 
strained and struggles to meet water demand. In the instance of mechanical failures, the system 
struggles even more to keep up with demand. Water operations staff is well aware of these challenges. 

TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 

In October 2023, the City Manager's authorized the preparation of a Technical Memorandum to provide 
an assessment of the capacity of the City of Livingston's municipal water supply with a purpose to 
determine if the City's water supply wells have adequate capacity to meet the City's maximum day 
demand (MOD) and peak hour demand (PHD) under current and future water supply conditions. 

Based on the report, and for reliability purposes, it is desirable to maintain a firm source capacity higher 
than the MDD. System demand in excess of MOD required for PHD or for fire flows can come from 
storage. The firm source capacity of the water system is virtually the same as the MDD (7,200-
gpm""?,222-gpm). The system's capacity is not adequate to meet PHD (9,200-gpm<10,883-gpm). 

Additionally, based on the calculations provided in the Technical Memorandum, the City's water system 
would not have adequate capacity to meet the increased MDD from new developments and would not 
have adequate capacity to meet the projected PHD based on the firm capacity. 

FUTURE SUPPLY CONDITIONS 

The City is planning to construct two new wells, one of which (Well 19) will have well head TCP 
treatment, and two new centralized treatment facilities to remove TCP from the groundwater. The 
Centralized Facilities will also include water storage tanks and Booster Pumps. The following is a brief 
description of each facility: 

1. Arakelian Park Centralized Treatment Facility 
a. This facility will receive water from Well Nos. 12, 13 and 17 and treat it using GAC 

adsorption for the removal of TCP. Treated water will be discharged into a 1-million-gallon 
(MG) storage tank. 

b. A 6,000-gpm booster pump station will repressurize the treated water into the distribution 
system. 

2. Well 8 Centralized Treatment Facility 
c. This facility will receive water from the new Well No. BA (Well 8 replacement) and from 

future Well No. 18. The production of these wells is still unknown. For purposes of this 
report, it is assumed that Well No. 18 will produce 1,500-gpm. Treated water will be 
discharged into a 1.5 MG storage tank. A 4,500-gpm booster pump station will repressurize 
the treated water into the distribution system. 

3. Well 19 with Treatment Facility 
d. This facility will consist of the new Well 19 with well head treatment for the removal of TCP. 

A booster pump station will repressurize the treated water into the distribution system. 

Page 2 of 4 

Page 253



The City's total production capacity would be 11,300-gpm and the firm production capacity would be 
9,300-gpm or 13.39 MGD. Therefore, the City would have adequate capacity to supply MDD to the new 
developments. With the new improvements, the City's PHD capacity would increase to 16,300-gpm 
which would also be adequate to supply the new developments. 

Once the new TCP improvements are completed and based on the projected firm capacity of 9,300-
gpm and 7,455-gpm MDD, the City would have approximately 25 percent remaining capacity for any 
future new developments beyond the presently entitled multifamily and commercial projects. The City 
would need to add more new wells and/or treated surface water to accommodate growth beyond that. 

Existing System 

There is currently no mechanism in place that allows City staff to determine available water capacity, 
and the respective water impacts based on various development projects. This type of information is 
critical and will allow staff to determine the impacts of various projects on the overall impacts to the 
City's supply of water. 

With this information, staff would be able to make sound, rational, and data driven recommendations to 
the Mayor and City Council. In addition, the development community has requested this type of 
information to understand their respective impacts to the overall water system. This will also help in 
future planning. 

HR Green Proposal 

The HR Green proposal will accomplish the following: 
1. Review existing GIS mapping and atlases of water system 

a. Review the City's 2007 Water Distribution System Water Plan 
b. Review system improvements and studies completed since 2007 
c. Review studies for specific future property developments 
d. Review the latest Comprehensive Land-use and population projections 

2. Hydraulic Analysis 
a. HR Green to create and calibrate a complete water distribution system model 
b. Work with City staff to identify locations for additional fire hydrant flow and pressure 

testing as required 
c. Identify shortcomings in the existing water distribution system 
d. Use local fire flow guidelines to determine system fire flow needs 

3. Assess the water system and waste water treatment plant, compile data obtained in Item 1 
and review the current documented risk and resiliency assessment to determine system 
failure points, system upgrades, etc. to create a Water CIP 

DISCUSSION 

Based on the Technical Memorandum, and the failures that continue to plague the system, staff is 
recommending the adoption of this resolution to identify the larger and broader system enhancements 
needed for the water system. This would help identify future projects, and ensure that staff has the 
most updated information to ensure that the existing water and wastewater systems have information 
related to planned projects to ensure optimal performance. 

While the city is currently moving forward on additional projects to increase capacity, this item will 
ensure that the city is protecting its current investments, and also preparing for replacements and 
enhancements to its existing infrastructure. 

Page 3 of 4 

Page 254



FISCAL IMPACT 

The proposed agreement for project deliverables not to exceed $124,000 which will be funded by a new 
appropriation from uncommitted and available reserves. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 
2. HR Green Proposal for Water Sufficiency Assessment 

Page 4 of 4 

Page 255



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON 
AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT 
WITH HR GREEN, INC. TO PERFORM ENGINEERING SERVICES TO INCLUDE 

WATER MODELLING, DEVELOPMENT OF A WATER COMPREHENSIVE CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP), AND OTHER WATER RELATED ENGINEERING 

SERVICES AS NEEDED 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to adhere to the City of Livingston Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Livingston has a responsibility to ensure its water system remains 
reliable, sufficient, and in an optimal condition; and 

WHEREAS, the City has not updated its water model in approximately 17 years resulting 
in a lack of updated and reliable understanding of the City's water system; and 

WHEREAS, due to a series of failures over the last year, the City Is needing expertise in 
evaluating and recommending improvements to the existing system; and 

WHEREAS, staff identified and Council adopted a "One Year CIP" in order to prioritize 
needs for one year; and 

WHEREAS, the City has lacked a comprehensive multi-year CIP to provide for long term 
prioritization of replacement of its existing water infrastructure; and 

WHEREAS, the City is seeking a water model that allows staff to identify the impacts of 
current and future developments on the City's ability to provide water to the community; and 

WHEREAS, the City is seeking information on the projects necessary to assure system 
reliability which will be used to pursue grant funding and other requests from its state and federal 
representatives; and 

WHEREAS, staff needs assistance in evaluating, assessing, and making 
recommendations to ensure the City's infrastructure remains in an optimal operation 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Livingston as follows: 

Section 1. The City Council finds a benefit in obtaining water expertise assistance and 
thus does hereby authorize a professional services agreement with HR Green, Inc. to 
complete the following: 

1. Review existing GIS mapping and atlases of water system 
a. Review the City's 2007 Water Distribution System Water Plan 
b. Review system improvements and studies completed since 2007 
c. Review studies for specific future property developments 
d. Review the latest Comprehensive Land-use and population projections 

2. Hydraulic Analysis 
a. HR Green to create and calibrate a complete water distribution system model 

Page 256



Resolution No. 2024-
Page 2 of2 

b. Work with City staff to identify locations for additional fire hydrant flow and 
pressure testing as required 

c. Identify shortcomings in the existing water distribution system 
d. Use local fire flow guidelines to determine system fire flow needs 

3. Assess the water system and wastewater treatment plant, compile data obtained in 
Item 1 and review the current documented risk and resiliency assessment to 
determine system failure points, system upgrades, etc. to create a GIP 

4. Additional water, wastewater, and other engineering work necessary to update long 
term plans for the viability and growth of the community 

Section 2. Authorize the Interim City Manager to negotiate and execute a Professional 
Services Agreement for Water Engineering expertise in accordance with legal 
concurrence with a contract amount not to exceed $144,000 for the term of the agreement. 

Section 3. This Resolution will become effective immediately. 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2024-_ is a full, true and correct copy of a 
resolution duly passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Livingston at a regular 
meeting thereof duly held on the 16th day of April 2024, by the vote recorded as follows: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST 

Monica Cisneros, Deputy City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM 

Roy C. Santos, City Attorney 

By:-----------

Page 2 of2 

Jose A. Moran, Mayor 
of City of Livingston 

Page 257



-HRGreen .. 
PACIFIC 

April 3, 2024 

Christopher Lopez 
Interim City Manager 
City of Livingston 
1416 C Street 
Livingston, CA 95334 

Re: Proposal for Water Sufficiency Assessment 

Dear Chris, 

► 1260 Corona Pointe Court Suite 305 
Corona, CA 92879 
Main 855.90J.4742 Fax 713.965.0044 

► rin:un.cc~.C.OM 

Per your Request for a scope and fee proposal for the subject project, HR Green, Inc. (HR Green) is ready to 
provide the necessary services to perform the Water Sufficiency Assessment. 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 

The City of Livingston (City) water system serves approximately 15,000 residents. It is served by three well fields 
(eight wells with one in production), a water treatment plant, a 1.0MGD water storage tower and 36 miles of 
watermains. The City's water is available through groundwater aquifers. Due to the recently proposed increase in 
housing and a state conducted water availability study, the City seeks to evaluate the current system capacity to 
determine future City growth plans. The City also requests to develop a Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) to 
implement into the budget. 

HR Green understands that the Scope of Services will be phased in three separate tas-<.s: 
► Task 1: Assess the capacity of the current water system by updating the existing water model, completed 

in 2007 
► Task 2: Assess the water system (3 well fields, 1 WTP, 1 Tower). This will be used to create a Capital 

Improvement Plan (CIP) . 

PROPOSED SCOPE OF SERVICES 

A. Project Management and Coordination 

a. Provide project management services for duration of the project. 
b. Project Kick-off Meeting: Schedule a project kick-off meeting with the City staff to discuss in detail the 

project tasks. 
c Review existing reports related to water demand, pump capacity and past water system studies as 

provided by the City. 

B. Assess the capacity of the current water system by updating the existing water model (Task 1) 

a. Review existing GIS mapping and atlases of water system. 
► Based on discussions, HR Green has assumed that the City has the existing water atlases in GIS 

format 
► Review the City's 2007 Water Distribution System Water System Plan 
► Review system improvements and studies completed since the 2007 Water Distribution System 

Master Plan was completed . It is assumed this information will be gathered and summarized by the 
City and provided to HR Green 

► Review studies for specific future property developments. 

HR Green ' I Building Communities. Improving Lives. 

Page 258



-HRGreen~ 
l'AL1f-lC 

► Christopher Lopez 

Page 2 of 4 

April 3 , 2024 

► Review the latest Comprehensive Plan land-use and population projections 
► Meet with the City to discuss proposed development and areas of concern in existing water system 

b. Hydraulic Analysis 
► HR Green will create and calibrate a complete water distribution system model using WaterGEMS 

from the GIS database and elevations provided by the City. 
► City will use the total system average and peak day demand data and also a record of the top 10 

highest demands, with respective flows during the peak day, as available. Using this information, the 
City will input the highest users in the model at the point of use (as provided by the City). The 
remaining system demands for residential and commercial customers will be distributed evenly 
throughout the City 

► HR Green will work together with the City's staff to identify locations for additional fire hydrant flow 
and pressure testing as required to calibrate the water model. The City will gather additional hydrant 
flow and pressure test data at the sites identified 

► Using the existing and any additional hydrant flow test data, HR Green will calibrate the water 
distribution system model. HR Green will input the hydrant flows and pressures and pumping flows 
and pressures into the computer model and adjust the model parameters so that the model is 
calibrated to match the measured conditions as closely as feasible. It is assumed that the City will 
forward the hydrant flow testing data to HR Green. 

► Using the City's population projections and land use information from the latest (Year) 
Comprehensive Plan, develop a population and corresponding water demand projection for the next 
5- and 20-year planning periods. Include projected average day, peak day and peak hour demands. 

► Using the calibrated water distribution system model, land use, and projected water demands 
accounting for future projected expansion/ growth objectives, develop a water distribution system 
model for 5 and 20 years in the future. 

► Identify the shortcomings in the existing water distribution system from the calibrated water 
distribution system model for each planning period and provide recommendations for improvements. 

► Use the local fire flow guidelines to determine system fire flow needs. Program and execute a series 
of fire flow model scenarios, for existing conditions and future scenarios identified above, assuming 
fire flows at various locations throughout the system. Locations will be geographically distributed to 
sufficiently evaluate all areas of the system and selected in collaboration with City's staff. Compare 
results with required fire flows at each location, respectively, and identify any deficiencies. Provide a 
database listing of the pipe segments with the following information during peak hour demands: 

Pressure 
Flow velocities 
Head loss per 100 feet of pipe 
Pressure drop relative to static system pressure 
Fire flow 

C. Assess the water system (3 well fields, 1 WTP, 1 Tower), compile the data obtained in item A and 
review the current documented risk and resiliency assessment to determine system failure points, 
system upgrades, etc. This will be used to create a Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) (Task 2). 

a. Desktop Assessment of City's water and wastewater Infrastructure 
► Collect and analyze the City's records on the water and sewer system including, but not limited to, 

water treatment plants and water distribution system, wastewater treatment plant, GIS data, record 
drawings, maintenance records, sewer televising videos, flow data, sewer back-up data, water main 
break inventory, etc. 

► Assess the City's existing staffing levels compared to current and upcoming regulatory requirements 
and programs. Incorporate recommendations into the CIP. 

Page 259



- ► Christopher Lopez 

Page 3 of 4 
April 3, 2024 

HRGreen .. 
p A C I f· I C 

b. Site Condition Assessment 
► Conduct two (2) site visits to assess the condition of water treatment plant. wastewater treatment 

plant, booster stations, lift station structures, mechanical equipment, electrical equipment, ground 
storage tanks, wells, water towers, PRV's, and control systems. 

► During the site visit, HR Green will obtain input from the City staff on the e:,cisting equipment 
performance and historical operational challenges. 

► Review the Trichloropropane (TCP) contamination issues (due to the agriculture activities 
surrounding the city) and determine betterments to treatment to address the issue. Consult with 
treatment equipment vendors to get required treatment units sizing and budgetary cost opinions. No 
detailed design is included in the proposed scope of services 

► The information gathered during our assessment of the water and sewer systems and site visits will 
be used to develop a list of capital improvements needed over the next five fiscal years 

c. Prioritized Project List 
► Conduct virtual Teams meeting with key City staff to prioritize the list of po:ential projects 
► Finalize the prioritized project list based on City input 

d. Develop Budgetary Cost Estimates 
► Develop budgetary cost estimates for each project on the prioritized list 
► Consult with treatment equipment vendors for equipment sizing to address the TCP contamination 

issue at one existing groundwater well and obtain budgetary cost opinions for improvements to the 
WTP at site. HR Green has budgeted 20 hours for this effort 

e. Finalize Capital Improvement Program 
► Formalize the Capital Improvement Program with prioritized water/sewer p·ojects, recommended 

implementation timelines, and anticipated costs 
► Prepare a supporting memorandum for the CIP 

DELIVERABLES AND PROJECT SCHEDULE 

Task 1: 
► Summary report quantifying current and projected water demands, based on two multi-family 

development applications submitted to the City (City to provide), compared to availability of water 
► Water model of the current system. 

Task 2: 
► Draft Capital Improvement Program and supporting memorandum 
► Final Capital Improvement Program and supporting memorandum 

HR Green will develop a schedule in consultation with the City at project kickoff. 

TASKS NOT INCLUDED IN PROPOSED SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The following items are not included as part of the proposed scope of services: 

► Geotechnical, Environmental, Survey, HydranUPressure Testing and Hydrogeology services. 
► Water rights analysis 

Page 260



-HRGreen, 
PACIFIC 

► Water/Sewer Rate Studies 
► Sewer modeling 

► Christopher Lopez 
Page 4 of 4 

Apnl3 2024 

► Additional site visits or on-site meetings beyond what is described above. 
► Legal services 
► Engineering design and construction services 

Supplemental services not included in the proposed scope can be provided by HR Green under separate 
agreement, if desired. 

PROPOSED FEE 

HR Green proposes to provide these services as follows in accordance with our attached standard fee schedule. 

Task 1: Time and Materials basis with an estimated fee of $47,000 
Task 2: Time and Materials basis with an estimated fee of $77,000 

If you have any questions, please contact me at 951-4 75-3619 or via email at sloriso@hrqreen.com. 

Sincerely, 

f-lR GREEN PACIFIC, INC. 

-----s~~, , ____ ;A:. __ 

Steve Loriso, PE, QSO/QSP 
Group Leader 

Page 261



STAFF REPORT 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion and Direction regarding Community Facilities District 
(CFD) 2005-1 and the Respective Expenditure Against this Fund.   

 
   
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2024 
 
FROM:  Christopher Lopez, Interim City Manager 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
This item is included for the City Council to have a discussion and provide direction regarding 
Community Facilities District (CFD) 2005-1.  
 
In preparation of the FY 24/25 budget, staff has identified approximately $200,000 in 
unallocated expenditures against this fund.  
 
Staff is seeking direction on how the Council would like to allocate this funding in preparation of 
the FY 24/25 Budget.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 262


	Agenda Cover Sheet
	Fire Department Report 
	Item 4
	Item 5
	Item 6
	Item 7
	Item 8
	Item 9
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 13
	Item 14
	Item 15
	Item 16
	Item 17
	Resolution for Street Light Poles April_16_2024 (002).pdf
	Section 1.  Adopt a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Livingston approving the purchase of six (6) solar light poles from Fonroche Lighting America, in the amount of $31,107.
	Section 2. Authorize the Interim City Manager to execute all required documents.
	Section 3: Authorize the Interim City Manager to submit all documents, request reimbursement, and take any and all actions necessary for funding, submittal, and reimbursement from Merced County.
	Section 4: Identify the City Hall and Council Chambers security improvement project as a priority project for the purposes of requesting Merced County Supervisorial District funding.




